HHELEZNT]
WEICHAI POWER

JBE 3 B 9% Stock code:2338.HK

2016 | v

Interim Report

&
. -
- - a
. & - L2
* ES W
o " -.. El - a %
@ - ® w
5 . ® ’ ¢ o 24\
- "3 . .
® " . -] -
. & - -
. - . - » & ¢
" - L] . o
& Y { / 4, -
of
. - L
- . " - -
B @ L » e - .
' - .
> y *
L] . . $
T2 ’
; -
.1 @
-
-~ - =2 a » "
& . ] .' - -
a " w
1 oy
- e
- "
@

. MBI TR REREDS

“« WEICHAI POWER CO..LTD.




Contents H &%

Corporate Information 2 A "I&*

Financial Summary 6 B E

Chairman'’s Statement 7  EFHREE

Management Discussion and Analysis 17  EEE DT

Auditors’ Review Report 29  ERRE
Reviewed Financial Statements EEMMBERE
Consolidated Balance Sheet 30 AEHEERRER
Consolidated Income Statement 33 &P RE R

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity 35 AR EEREER

Consolidated Cash Flow Statement 37 afBRenegx

Company Balance Sheet 39 NEIEEBER

Company Income Statement 41 NRFE &R

4

Company Statement of Changes in Equity 42 NRAIRRERE IR

Company Cash Flow Statement 43 RARERER
Notes to Financial Statements 45 B 7S TR R BT o -
Supplemental Information on Financial Statements BsmREair
Schedule of Extraordinary Profit and Loss 258  JEQEMiBAAME
Return on Net Assets (“RONA”) and Earnings Per Share (“EPS”) 259  F& &= Wz B MG MR U =5

Other Information 260 E & #}




02 Weichai Power Co., Ltd.  #SeE HIRD AR AT

1 v Mz
Corporate Information NN -
Directors W
Executive Directors BITES
Tan Xuguang (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer) BRN(EERFEEHTE)
Zhang Quan (Executive President) &k R(HITHEE)
Xu Xinyu (Executive President) BRI E (B TAEE)
Li Dakai (Executive President) TRE (BT
Sun Shaojun (Executive President) BB (HTHEZ)
Non-executive Directors FHITES
Wang Yuepu FHEE
Jiang Kui I =
Gordon Riske Gordon Riske
Independent Non-executive Directors BYFHTES
Loh Yih E R
Zhang Zhenhua RIREE
Zhang Zhong kA
Wang Gongyong TEE
Ning Xiangdong A
Supervisors B
Lu Wenwu BXH
Jiang Jianfang BEx
Ma Changhai BES

Company Secretary and Chief Financial Officer /2 v Fib 5 8 I 7 4

Kwong Kwan Tong (CPA, FCCA, ACMA) EBIRE (CPA, FCCA, ACMA)
Secretary to the Board HHREWH

Dai Lixin LOAvE i



Corporate Information (Continued)

Securities Affair Representative
Wang Li

Section A 197, Fu Shou East Street

High Technology Industrial Development Zone
Weifang

Shandong Province

The People’s Republic of China

Postal Code: 261061

Tel: (86) (536)-819 7069

Fax: (86) (536)-819 7073

Website: http://www.weichaipower.com

Authorised Representatives
Xu Xinyu

Kwong Kwan Tong

Registered Address and Headquarters
of the Company

Section A 197, Fu Shou East Street

High Technology Industrial Development Zone

Weifang

Shandong Province

The People’s Republic of China

Postal Code: 261061

Tel: (86) (536)-819 7069

Fax: (86) (536)-819 7073

Website: http://www.weichaipower.com

Place of Business in Hong Kong
Room 3407-3408

34/F Gloucester Tower

Landmark

15 Queen’s Road Central

Central, Hong Kong

Legal Advisors

Reed Smith Richards Butler

Auditors
Ernst & Young Hua Ming LLP

Interim Report 2016 s 03

N EVER ()

BB IE
TE

FEARENE

e

V2o

mAT R E ERERE
BERHI197RF

4R 261061

E % ¢ (86) (536)-819 7069
{55 : (86) (536)-819 7073

#H4E - http://www.weichaipower.com

R
B3 E
WieE

3950 0 24 ) A

FEARENE

e

V2]

mAT R EERERE
BEREI197RF

4R 261061

E % ¢ (86) (536)-819 7069
{55 : (86) (536)-819 7073

#4E - http://www.weichaipower.com

T v 56 B
BEFR
EFREP155%
B E 5
ERLTITRE
34#£3407-3408%

A

BB BE AT

A% B

KERG BB (FREREIN)



04 weichai Power Co., Ltd.

Corporate Information (Continued)

Audit Committee
Wang Gongyong (Chairman)
Loh Yih

Zhang Zhenhua

Zhang Zhong

Ning Xiangdong

Strategic Development and Investment

Committee

Tan Xuguang (Chairman)
Zhang Quan

Xu Xinyu

Li Dakai

Sun Shaojun

Zhang Zhenhua

Wang Yuepu

Remuneration Committee
Zhang Zhong (Chairman)

Tan Xuguang

Loh Yih

Nomination Committee
Zhang Zhong (Chairman)

Xu Xinyu

Zhang Zhenhua

Wang Gongyong

Principal Bankers

Industrial and Commercial Bank of China
China Construction Bank Corporation
Bank of China

HSBC

HRBORHERDE

B e % e e B E & B

BB (FE)
® R
I E
EPNG!
BOE
RIRE
THE

i % B
®AR(EE)
BBk
B

REZHWT
FR(ER)
BHE

FiRE

IEE

F R RAT
B T AR 17
ER R R

h B4R 17

ERRTT

&)

En

4|
S|



Corporate Information (Continued)

Hong Kong H-share Registrar and Transfer
Office

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited

Shops 1712-1716 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East

Wanchai

Hong Kong

Share Information

3,998,619,278 Shares
(3,027,099,278 A Shares
and 971,520,000 H Shares)

Number of issued shares as at
30 June 2016:

Board lot (H Shares)
(A Shares)

1,000 H Shares
100 A Shares

Abbreviation of the Company’s share and Stock Codes

A Shares: Weichai Power (4228 /7) 000338

H Shares: Weichai Power (#4£%) /) 2338

Stock Exchange Listings

A Shares: Shenzhen Stock Exchange

H Shares: The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the "Hong Kong Stock Exchange”)

Investors and Media Relations

Securities Department
Tel: (86) 536-819 7069
Fax: (86) 536-819 7073

Website: www.weichaipower.com

The Company:

Hill & Knowlton Asia Ltd
Tel: (852) 2894 6321
Fax: (852) 2576 1990

Website: www.hkstrategies.com

Public Relations Consultant:

Interim Report 2016 AR HEAZRE

N EVER ()

FWHB BT AE P&
BEATRELEZTZARAT
aBE
T
SEARER1835
SRR N1781712-1716554
JB A R
RZT—RF 3,998,619,278%
NA=THEH (3,027,099,278R% AR
BETRMEA - 1971,520,000A%HA% )
TS BRI (HIZ) 1,0000%HA%
(AR%) 100X AR%

A ) B i A R B A SR

ARg - #SEE) S (Weichai Power) 000338

HA% : #L<E) /1 (Weichai Power) 2338

TR S

AR RINEHFR S

HE : BEEBMERHMARAR

(I B PR )
BOEH K B R
A7 BEH

T 55 (86) 536-819 7069
fEH : (86) 536-819 7073

A4 - www.weichaipower.com

A 1A BELARBERERERAA
B E 5 1 (852) 2894 6321
{5H : (852) 2576 1990
#4k © www.hkstrategies.com

05
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Financial Summary B 5 WE

Revenue amounted to approximately RMB42,287 million, increased by & XMW AL AARK42287TAETT @ LFHH
approximately 16.0%. 16.0% °

Net Profit Attributable to the Shareholders of the Parent amounted to (8BNS ARIREAFHNBEL AARE1,052
approximately RMB1,052 million, increased by approximately 8.5%. BETT EHK85% -

Basic Earnings Per Share was approximately RMBO0.26, increased by ®REXREBN N EAREE0.26T @ EF 4
approximately 8.3%. 8.3% °

(Important notice: This report is published in Chinese and English versions. In case of  (FZI2R : ABED B AP E XS - ach EXHE
inconsistency, the Chinese version shall prevail). AEZE  BUARXEBE )



Chairman’s Statement

Interim Report 2016 AR HEAZRE

ESViE S

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the Board, | would like to present the reviewed interim results of

the Company for the six months ended 30 June 2016.

L.

Review of Operations

In the first half of 2016, amidst the complex domestic and overseas
conditions as well as the persistently high downside economic pressure,
the Chinese government stood firmly by the main theme of making
steady work progress in their work, thoroughly implementing the five
development concepts, namely, “innovative, coordinated, green, open
and shared development”. While seeking to appropriately expand total
demand, efforts were made to fortify the supply-side structural reform, by
rigorously promoting business startups and creativity by the public (KX
Bl% - B3R AIF). The national economy continued to maintain a stable
trend of development in general, making progress while maintaining
stability. In the first half of the year, the gross domestic product reached
RMB34.06 trillion, representing a year-on-year growth of 6.7%. On a
quarter-to-quarter basis, it grew by 6.7% in the first quarter and 6.7% in

the second quarter.
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Chairman’s Statement (Continued) F R E ()

During the reporting period, with the marginal growth of the highway
logistics market and increase in fixed-asset investments in the property
sector, the heavy-duty truck market gradually demonstrated a trend of
recovery with substantial growth in sales volume and delivering sales of
340,300 units in total, representing a year-on-year increase of 15.2%.
Under such influence, during the reporting period, the Company reported
sales of 83,800 units of heavy-duty truck engines, representing a year-
on-year increase of 29.2% and a market share of 24.6%, representing
an increase of 3.2 percentage points from 2015, maintaining its leading
position in the industry. Shaanxi Heavy-duty Motor Company Limited (Bt
FEALSEAR AT, a controlling subsidiary of the Company, reported
an aggregate sales of 37,700 units of heavy-duty trucks for the first half
of the year, representing a year-on-year increase of 35.1%, with market
share of 11.1% and ranking No. 4 in the domestic heavy-duty truck
industry in the PRC, further increasing its competitiveness. Shaanxi Fast
Gear Co,, Ltd. (BREE TR BRE AR, a controlling subsidiary of
the Company, has maintained its leading position in the industry with its
aggregate sales of 245,900 units of gear boxes, representing a year-on-

year increase of 7.2%.

In the first half of 2016, fixed-asset investments in the PRC (excluding
agricultural households) reached RMB25.84 trillion, representing a year-
on-year growth of 9.0% and a drop of 2.4 percentage points in growth
rate year-on-year. The total planned investments for newly-commenced
construction projects reached RMB24.02 trillion, representing a year-
on-year growth of 25.1% and an increase of 23.5 percentage points
in growth rate year-on-year. Investments in property development
reached RMB4.66 trillion, representing a year-on-year growth of 6.1%
and an increase of 1.5 percentage points in growth rate year-on-year.
Generally speaking, the pace of growth of fixed-asset investments in the
PRC decreased in the first half of the year, but some leading indicators
performed well. As such, the construction machinery industry gradually
demonstrated a trend of recovery, with positive growth in sales volume of
various major categories of construction machinery. During the reporting
period, the construction machinery market in the PRC reported sales
of 209,000 units, representing a year-on-year decrease of 30.1%, and
among which, the sales volume of wheel loaders with a load capacity of 5
tonnes was 23,400 units, representing a year-on-year decrease of 5.8%.
The Company sold a total of 15,600 units of engines for wheel loaders
with a load capacity of 5 tonnes, representing a year-on-year decrease
of 9.0% and accounting for more than 60% market share in the market
of wheel loaders with a load capacity of 5 tonnes, while maintaining its

leading position in this sector.

EREY RSN KA
EEBRTEERELE  ERMBEN
SRHEHRLT  HEXNBER  RHAE
WIHE34.0388 - ALLILRIS.2% - ¥
HEE  REBA ARRHKBEERA
e 38EA - ML EA292% - ™
BB RE24.6% * E2015F 2 F 3.2
Aok EITEARIBSELED  AQA
TRFARIRAERN FEAR QA ¥
FHHESN FEI7T/ER AR
351% * MBGHBEREINI1% UEERA
ERMEFENA - BFEE— R
ARARERFRARREETHEHERE
TARIEHEFRE245988 - AL
R7.2% @ BERFITEBLMA -

WEHRAN - BE

2006F E¥ 5  BERETEERE(TE
BF)25848 T - ALERI.0% &
REALEZE2 AMEESE - FIFATIEBE
BIRE24.028 BT RLER251% ¢
WREL EA235EED T BihERE
HEL66BET AHEIER6.1% @ BiRA
b EA1SEE DS - BEERE - E¥FH
RETEERELRETE - BHHEITHE
ERBRT - ZHEE  ITREETER
WE2BOEEDY  ZHEFTETERNER
HEMEERE - REHAN - TEEWD
HERIEE2098 4 AL TE30.1% -
Hep - SHEREHEMISHE2348 6 - [
LR 85.8% ° 2N R $H & Ao B 58 5 1k
LEHK1568E AL TEI0% - /E5HE
HHFWTIZOEE REO%RI F - BER
FEE — A ABREMAL o



Chairman’s Statement (Continued)

During the reporting period, affected by the state’s macroeconomic
policies, the passenger vehicles market of the PRC continued to drop, with
accumulated sales of 254,000 units, representing a drop of 9.5% year-on-
year. Among such, the market of large-sized and medium-sized passenger
vehicles reported accumulated sales of 73,200 units, representing a
13.78% growth and became the major force in driving the growth of
the passenger vehicle market. The light passenger vehicle market, which
commanded larger market share, suffered a serious drop in sales, with
accumulated sales of 181,000 units which represented a year-on-year
decrease of 16.4%. Affected by the aforesaid, during the reporting
period, the Company’s aggregate sales of engines for use in passenger
vehicles amounted to 7,900 units, representing a year-on-year decrease
of 15.5%, and accounted for 10.8% of the market share of the large-
sized and medium-sized passenger vehicles, representing a decrease of 3.7

percentage points year-on-year.

During the reporting period, the Company adhered to the market-
oriented approach, being driven by innovation, with expedited structural
adjustment and continuously increasing its overall capability to resist
risks, thereby maintaining its trend of stable development. In the first half
of 2016, the Company reported a sales figure of 107,800 units of 10L,
12L and 13L engines, representing a 17.5% growth year-on-year, and
maintaining the stable leading position of heavy-duty engine products
in the heavy-duty truck market, the market of wheel loaders with a load
capacity of 5 tonnes and the market of passenger vehicles with a span of
over 11 metres. Meanwhile, sales of strategic products grew substantially,
increasing by 30.9% year-on-year to 33,800 units of Yangchai 2/4L
engines, by 17.6 times to 5,368 units of WP13 engines, by 20.6 times
to 367 units of new-energy power system, by 51.6 times to 10,800
units of Off-road Phase Ill Emission Standards engines, and by double to
1,129 units of engines for use in forklift trucks. During the same period,
Shaanxi Heavy-duty Motor Company Limited, a controlling subsidiary
of the Company, explored the heavy-duty truck segment market and
went beyond cold-chain, hazardous chemicals, express delivery and
environmental and hygiene-related segments to achieve rapid growth in
truck market and tractor market. The business of 6DS-series gear boxes
for use in passenger vehicles of Shaanxi Fast Gear Co., Ltd. grew against
the adversities faced by the market by leveraging its light-weight design
in aluminum-alloy shells, reporting monthly sales volume of approximately
5,000 units, becoming a new highlight in fostering the steady growth of

the production and operation of the enterprise.
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Chairman’s Statement (Continued)

During the reporting period, the Company adhered to the notion of
“Endogenous growth and driven by innovation”, and responded positively
to the external environment and industry competition through a series
of measures including structural adjustment, cost reduction and loss
mitigation, thereby achieving stable and healthy development. Firstly, we
upheld our market-oriented approach and took the initiative in leading
the trend of market development. Our success in launching new models
of engines namely WP9H and WP10H has set the highest standard of the
lifespan of high-speed heavy-duty engines and interpreted the core user
requirements of “reliability and durability”. Secondly, we placed great
emphasis on technological innovations and stepped up our investments
in research and development. We established five key technology
special projects in 2016, kick-started the R&D projects on WP13, WP17
and D-series engines and fostered the high-end development of our
products. Thirdly, by driving the establishment of a target-oriented
technological innovation system, we comprehensively implemented
the 10 items of advice on improving the innovative environment and
releasing the passion for innovation, to create a fervent and innovative
atmosphere, fully incentivized energy for innovation of the entire team,
and continually uplifted the level of technological innovation of the
enterprise. Fourthly, we achieved new breakthroughs in our overseas
business development. KION Group AG (“KION"), running with a stable
development, entered into an agreement to acquire the entire interests in
Dematic at a consideration of US$2.1 billion to become a global leader in
the intralogistics solution sector. For Linde Hydraulics, its integration plan
has made good progress. The new German plants have been completed
and commenced operation. The production capacity, the research and
development and the application capability of Linde Hydraulics were
substantially uplifted. Fifthly, by steadfastly fostering management
innovation, continuing to upgrade its WOS management operation
system, and continuously speeding up the intensive integration of
informatization and industrialization, we facilitated corporate reform and
renovation of business processes, and enhanced the overall operational

efficiency.

During the reporting period, the Company’s revenue increased by
approximately 16.0% compared with that in the corresponding period of
2015 to approximately RMB42,287 million. The net profit attributable to
shareholders of the listed company was approximately RMB1,052 million,
representing an increase of approximately 8.5% compared with that
in the corresponding period of 2015. The basic earnings per share was
RMBO0.26, representing an increase of approximately 8.3% compared with

that in the corresponding period of 2015.
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Chairman’s Statement (Continued)

II.

I1I.

Dividends and Capitalisation of Reserve

On 7 June 2016, the 2015 profit distribution scheme was considered and
approved at the 2015 annual general meeting of the Company. Based
on the total share capital of the Company of 3,998,619,278 shares, the
Company distributed to all shareholders a cash dividend of RMB1.00

(including tax) for every 10 shares held.

On 30 August 2016, under the authority granted by the shareholders
of the Company, the Board considered and approved the distribution
to all shareholders of cash dividend of RMB1.00 (including tax) for every
10 shares held, based on the total share capital of the Company of
3,998,619,278 shares, without any capitalisation of reserve. For details
on the closure of registers of members in determining the shareholders
who are eligible for the 2016 interim dividend, please refer to the further

announcement to be issued by the Company.

Acquisition and Consolidation

During the first half of the year, KION Group AG, a subsidiary of the
Company running with a stable development, entered into an agreement
to acquire the entire interests in Dematic, a globally leading logistics
transportation supplier, at a consideration of US$2.1 billion, thereby
becoming a global leader in the intralogistics solution sector. This
acquisition by KION Group AG is in line with the Company’s overall
strategic goal and its global development strategy. It will extend the
Company'’s global reach in its business deployment, especially in the North

American market, and further enhance its capability to resist risks.
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Chairman’s Statement (Continued) F R E ()

IV. Outlook and Prospects

In the second half of 2016, the world economy will remain on a weak
note. The economic recovery in the U.S. will slow down and the economic
recovery in Europe is broadening out. Although the economic recovery
in emerging economies will witness a rebound, the economy will remain
relatively weak from a global perspective. Affected by external factors
including the move by the United States Federal Reserve Board to raise
interest rate, the U.S. presidential election, the Brexit, geopolitical conflicts
and the revival of terrorism, etc., the global economy is expected to
grow at about 3.2%. Domestically, China is now under a key stage
of “transfer mode and adjust structure”, seeking to achieve the dual
goals of maintaining its minimum growth rate and carrying out supply-
side structural reforms, and connecting to upgrade overall economy
under quality improvement and transformation. With the increase
of newly-commenced construction projects in the PRC, investments
in infrastructure facilities will grow at a more rapid rate. Eliminating
excessive inventories contributes to fostering development of the property
market. While emerging industries and new consumption patterns are
rapidly developing, the change in economic structure will be significantly
expedited. Nonetheless, affected by factors including the diminished
effect from previous easing policies, the normalization of property market,
the persistently low private investments and the uncertain global macro
environment, etc., the GDP growth rate in the PRC is expected to further
decline in the third and fourth quarters, with the economic growth

maintaining at about 6.6% on an annual basis.

The Company is cautiously optimistic about the development trend of
its related industries. In the second half of 2016, the heavy-duty truck
market is expected to grow steadily, develop sustainably and attain truck
sales of approximately 600,000 on a yearly basis. Implementation of
projects including the “One Belt and One Road” project development,
the strengthening of international cooperation in production capacity,
implementing the outline in relation to the coordinated development of
Beijing, Tianjin and Hebei, the accelerated development of Yangtze River
Economic Zone, the revitalizing strategy of old industrial bases in northeast
region of China, and the renovation of shack areas, inland waterways and
underground pipe networks will be favorable to the development of the

heavy-duty truck market.
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Chairman’s Statement (Continued) F R (A

In the second half of 2016, the market condition does not bode well
for the construction machinery industry. Challenges include the decline
in market growth rate, excessive capacity of the industry and the
increasingly stringent safety and environmental regulations. Nevertheless,
there are a number of factors which favour industrial development:
with regard to the domestic market, the “Three-Year Action Plan of
Major Construction Projects in Transportation Infrastructure” indicates
a focus on implementing 303 projects in respect of railways, highways,
waterways, airports and urban rail transit from 2016 to 2018, and the
total investment will reach about RMBA4.7 trillion. Investment opportunities
in new transportation infrastructure in the PRC will continue to emerge.
Regarding the international market, the continuous implementation of
the strategy of “One Belt and One Road” and international cooperation
on production capacity will bestow new opportunities for the construction
machinery industry on the basis of economic corridors with the
breakthrough in transportation infrastructure development, bringing in
an upsurge in countries along the route. It is expected that the overall

infrastructure investment will exceed US$8 trillion.

At present, regulations on emissions are increasingly tightened and
the upgrade of technology development is accelerating. Starting
from 1 December 2016, Off-road Phase Ill Emission Standards will be
implemented on all the agricultural machinery nationwide. Starting from 1
January 2017, China V Emission Standards will be implemented on diesel-
driven heavy-duty vehicles (passenger vehicles and public transportation,
hygiene and environment, and postal use) and starting from 1 July
2017, China V Emission Standards will be implemented on all diesel-
driven heavy-duty vehicles. As such, some segments of the market will
experience a round of reshuffling and backward production capacities
will be further eliminated. Leveraging upon the synergy presented by its
globally coordinated R&D, advanced technology in smart manufacturing,
product and service diversity and its strong base of loyal customers, the
Company has started its preparation work in advance and made positive
progress, capturing a leading position in the new round of upgrade and
will be poised to maintain its leading position in the market of high-power
engines, heavy-duty gear boxes and complete heavy-duty trucks. The

Board has full confidence in the development prospect of the Company.
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Chairman’s Statement (Continued)

In the second half of 2016, by the three major means of “Cost reduction,
loss elimination and fostering innovation”, the Company will work
strenuously on the following for the thirteen battles that it must win this

year:

Firstly, to be persistently driven by innovations, to strengthen fundamental
technology research and further push forward the high-end engine
projects, continue to implement the 10 items of advice on fostering an
innovative environment and releasing the passion to create a fervent and
innovative atmosphere. Secondly, to persist in remaining market-driven,
enhancing the profit model of its products, and continuing to uplift
its competitive edge in terms of the distinctive reliability and durability
of its products in active response to the trend of vertical integration
of the industry. Thirdly, to insist on the integration of informatization
and industrialization with breakthroughs in smart manufacturing base
infrastructure, realizing the five major smart business areas, which include
R&D technology, supply chain, marketing services, functions management
and control and infrastructure, in a comprehensive way and promoting
corporate agile manufacturing capabilities with “low cost, high efficiency
and high quality”. Fourthly, to keep on strengthening the coordinated
business development of its domestic and foreign subsidiaries, step up its
efforts in exploring new overseas markets and establish a sound system
of global sales and services network, and actively participate in global
competition. Fifthly, to persist on cost saving and efficiency enhancement
along the entire industry chain, and throughout all business processes with
the involvement of all staff members. It will innovate upon new thoughts

and methods on cost saving and improve the mechanism for narrowing
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Chairman’s Statement (Continued) F R (A

and stopping loss, saving cost and eliminating loss for subsidiaries. Sixthly, VU AR IR A 4 AR E e AR TS EU B B - 1K
to insist on management reform, enhancing management operation EmPLRERARERFALAES - DIETE
systems of subsidiaries and carrying out the reform of systems and mEEwmER BITPEERBIEAN
mechanisms of pilot subsidiaries, achieving optimization of resource B AEPRHEBASZACHNEERER
allocation of the Company; to promote its WOS management operation FR - BRBAANEIAI5221 B FH A
system and engage in organizational reforms, and continually uplift the 15 %I ChNR SR R EE A A AR - HEB) A
operational efficiency of the enterprise. Our heavy-duty truck segment will SEERANRKNESKKEFEERRAL
continue to implement service-based manufacturing strategies, switching xR FZimfl c WEBERE - MAKE R
from product-oriented to customer-oriented in response to the concerns M —EeSetERTeamEhnE &
over the full product life cycle and full process in customer management BT SRR EE IR - BE
to provide an overall solution with maximised value for customers. R 158 B 175 [B] R FE -

Strategic direction “5221"” will guide gear box companies the way to
promote structural adjustments, transformation and upgrade, to foster
the development of traditional and mechanical gear boxes (represented
by S gear boxes) towards being more high-powered, high-end and light-
weighted, and intensify efforts on the R&D of the four-in-one hydraulic-
controlled mechatronic smart products. We will make good use of the
synergy among the component segment, the engine segment and the

complete vehicles segment.

At the same time, the Company will remain committed to its development B - RABBEFIITHEE2RY - 2481
goal of “developing a full series and whole range of comprehensive Em MemEE  hEeHE— %R
products while going high-end and seeking the challenge to become BiZ mRIEEGg—  BUES - ERiL
number one in the world”. Under the principle of “Unified Strategy, Z R R A R EERE - TR
Independent Operation, Resources Sharing”, we will accelerate the WARIR ~ B) D AARIR R B R B T2 iR 5
coordinated development among the business segments of vehicles, MHEERE  TOBEBRAINAFHNEIR
construction machinery, powertrains and automobile components, in BRIED  TEHRANENZKELGEENFE
order to fully utilize the synergetic advantage of our resources in the xR NTEBRESEREE S -

domestic and overseas companies, to continually enhance the quality and
image of the Company’s development, and boost the overall capability to

resist risks.
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Chairman’s Statement (Continued)

V. Appreciation
Last but not least, | would like to express my sincere appreciation to all
our shareholders, the general public and our customers for their care and
support, as well as all of our staff for their hard work and dedication in

the last six months!

Tan Xuguang

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 30 August 2016
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Management Discussion and Analysis

The Directors are pleased to present a management discussion and analysis of ZEZMRMARBEAEEREBEZ-_ZE— A E~A=+
BIEANEAR (TAREENDEEER ERE R m i

P - BT -

— R

the results of operations of the Group for the six months ended 30 June 2016

("the Period”) as follows:

I. Industry Analysis

The Company is one of the vehicles and equipments manufacturing

conglomerates in China with the best comprehensive strengths. It is a

leading company in the market of powertrain, complete vehicles and

machines, hydraulic controlling parts and automotive electronics parts and

components. It is equipped with the most comprehensive supply chain of

engines, gear boxes and axles and related after-sales market services.

ARBRTRGAENZEBNTERER
HEEXEEZ— ZBHHAK  BEE
#ORBESNNIEEFREAMETISE
KR AARTEMNRDHE  BEMRK
BRI R TSR o

1. Heavy-duty Vehicle Industry 1. BERRETE
In the first half of 2016, the macroeconomic conditions in the PRC TE-ARFL¥FRARBSERS
were exposed to considerable and continuous downward pressure, BRANFETITRS - BHEBIER
but the overall economy remained fairly stable. In the first half of BEE - F¥EFRNEELEEAR
the year, the gross domestic product reached RMB34.06 trillion, ¥34.06& BT RALERE6.7% °
representing a year-on-year growth of 6.7%. Influenced by an BaE B E B IR B B AR A KR
increase in investments in real estate development and moderate AR B RTEZRHEREE
growth in highway logistics, there were signs of recovery for the HEKIBIEM - RAHRE  AEREFR
heavy-duty truck market which reported a substantial increase in TS HEEN34.0388H AL LA
sales volume. During the Period, the heavy-duty truck market in the 15.2% °
PRC delivered sales of approximately 340,300 units, representing a
year-on-year increase of 15.2%.

2. Construction Machinery 2. IREH%W

During the Period, fixed-asset investments of China reached
RMB25.84 trillion, representing a year-on-year growth of 9.0% and
a drop in the growth rate of approximately 2.4 percentage points
year-on-year. As such, the construction machinery market in the
PRC reported sales of approximately 209,000 units, representing a
year-on-year decrease of 30.1%, amongst which, the sales of wheel
loaders with a load capacity of 5 tonnes was approximately 23,400
units, representing a year-on-year decrease of 5.8%. However,
some leading indicators performed well. For instance, the total
planned investments for newly-commenced construction projects
amounted to RMB24.02 trillion, representing a year-on-year growth
of 25.1%, and an increase of 23.5 percentage points in growth
rate year-on-year. All these represented signs of recovery for the

construction machinery industry.

REMBHE BREETEERED
BARMB2284EBET  ALER
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

II.

3. Passenger Vehicle Market
During the Period, under the influence of a number of factors,
such as a share of the transportation market having been taken
up by China’s national express rail, and the increasingly stringent
regulatory regime on the supervision of passenger transportation
etc., there was ongoing downturn in the passenger vehicle market
in the PRC. In the first half of 2016, China’s passenger vehicle
market reported an aggregate sales figure of 254,000 units,

representing a year-on-year decrease of 9.5%.

4. Forklift Truck Industry

In the first half of 2016, driven by domestic demand, the economy
of the Eurozone continued to recover, particularly in Germany and
France. As such, the global order for forklift trucks increased from
approximately 575,400 units in the corresponding period last year
to approximately 591,000 units, representing an increase of 2.7%

year-on-year.

The Group’s Business
An analysis of the Group's business segments is set out in Note XIV.2 to
the consolidated financial statements. The following are the highlights of

the operation conditions of the major products of the Group:

1. Sale of Diesel Engines

For use in Heavy-duty Trucks

During the Period, the heavy-duty truck market in the PRC has
gradually shown signs of recovery. The Company’s aggregate sales
of heavy-duty truck engines amounted to approximately 83,800
units, representing a year-on-year growth of approximately 29.2%
from approximately 64,900 units in the corresponding period last
year. The Company’s market share in the heavy-duty truck auxiliary
market reached 24.6%, maintaining the Company’s leading

position in the industry.

3. BEMH
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

For use in Construction Machinery

The Group is also the largest supplier of diesel engines to major
manufacturers of construction machinery (mainly wheel loaders)
with a load capacity of 5 tonnes in the PRC. During the Period,
under a drop in overall sales volume of the construction machinery
market, the Company’s sales of engines for wheel loader with
a load capacity of 5 tonnes was approximately 15,600 units,
representing a year-on-year decrease of 9.0%. The Company’s
market share in the market of wheel loader with a load capacity
of 5 tonnes was more than 60.0%, maintaining the Company’s

leading position in the market.

For use in Passenger Vehicles

During the Period, the domestic passenger vehicle market continued
to drop. The light passenger vehicle market, which commanded
larger market share, suffered a serious decrease. As such, during
the first half of 2016, the Company’s aggregate sales of engines for
use in passenger vehicles amounted to approximately 7,900 units,
representing a year-on-year decrease of approximately 15.5%,
and accounting for approximately 10.8% of the market share of
the large-sized and medium-sized passenger vehicles, representing
a year-on-year decrease of 3.7 percentage points from the

corresponding period last year.

Forklift Trucks Production and Warehousing
Technology Services

During the Period, KION actively pushed forward the “2020
Strategy”, and continued to record growth in sales volume of
forklift trucks in the European and North American markets. The
Group recorded a better growth of sales orders for forklift trucks
than the overall market performance, achieving an increase in
volume of sales orders for forklift trucks to approximately 89,200
units in the first half of 2016, representing an increase of 4.4%
year-on-year. Orders on hand amounted to EUR2,724 million,
representing an increase of 6.2% year-on-year. Before elimination
of intra-group sales, the forklift trucks production and warehousing
technology services business contributed sales revenue of

approximately RMB 18,672 million to the Group during the Period.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued) B B B AT (%)

Sale of Heavy-duty Trucks

During the Period, the Group reported an aggregate sales of
approximately 37,700 units of heavy-duty trucks, representing an
increase of approximately 35.1% from approximately 27,900 units
sold during the corresponding period of 2015. Shaanxi Heavy-duty
Motor Company Limited, a controlling subsidiary of the Company,
maintained its ranking within the top four in the domestic heavy-
duty truck industry in the PRC. Before elimination of intra-group
sales, the heavy-duty trucks business contributed sales revenue of

approximately RMB10,901 million to the Group during the Period.

Sale of Heavy-duty Gear Boxes

During the Period, the Group sold approximately 245,900 units of
heavy-duty gear boxes, representing an increase of approximately
7.2% compared to approximately 229,300 units sold in the
corresponding period of 2015, and maintaining its leading position
in the industry. Before elimination of intra-group sales, the
gear boxes business contributed sales revenue of approximately
RMB3,620 million to the Group during the Period.

Sale of Parts and Components of Engine and
Heavy-duty Trucks and Hydraulics Controlling
Parts

Apart from the production and sales of diesel engines for trucks
and construction machinery, heavy-duty trucks and heavy-duty
gear boxes, the Group is also engaged in the production and
sales of engine parts and components and other truck parts and
components such as: spark plugs, axles, chassis, air-conditioner
compressors, hydraulics controlling parts etc. During the Period,
the Group's sales of parts and components of engines and trucks
and hydraulics controlling parts decreased from approximately
RMB2,634 million in the corresponding period in last year to
approximately RMB 1,858 million, representing a year-on-year

decrease of approximately RMB776 million or 29.5%.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

III. Financial Review
The Group’s Results of Operations

1.

a.

Revenue

The Group's revenue increased by approximately RMB5,832
million or approximately 16.0% from approximately
RMB36,455 million in the corresponding period of 2015 to
approximately RMB42,287 million for the Period. This was
primarily attributable to the substantial increase in sales
volume under the recovery of the heavy-duty truck market in
China, and the sustained growth of the forklift truck business
in Europe and North America. In particular, the revenue from
principal operations increased by approximately 16.0%,
from approximately RMB35,652 million in the corresponding
period of 2015 to approximately RMB41,339 million for the
Period. Other revenue increased by approximately 18.0%,
from approximately RMB803 million in the corresponding
period of last year to approximately RMB947 million for the

Period.

Profit from Principal Operations

The Group’s focus on product research and development
and the ongoing enhancement in product mix has given
advantages to its products in terms of cost competitiveness,
core technology and quality. The Group’s effective cost
control and its efforts in managing the low-efficiency
business units in recent years have resulted in an increase
in the profit of its principal operations. During the Period,
the Group generated profit from principal operations in the
amount of approximately RMB9,593 million, representing
an increase of approximately RMB1,255 million or 15.1% as
compared to approximately RMB8,338 million recorded in the
corresponding period of 2015. The profit margin of principal

operations remained stable at approximately 23.2%.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

c.  Distribution and Selling Expenses

Distribution and selling expenses increased by approximately
RMB608 million or 21.2% to approximately RMB3,478 million
in the Period from approximately RMB2,870 million in the
corresponding period of 2015. The increase of distribution
and selling expenses was primarily attributable to the increase
in after-sales expenses and product return fee resulting from
the increase in sales volume. At the same time, the Company
capitalized on the opportunities presented by market
recovery by stepping up its efforts and manpower in market
expansion. As such, the distribution and selling expenses as a
percentage of revenue increased from approximately 7.9% in

the corresponding period of 2015 to approximately 8.2% in

the Period.

d.  General and Administrative Expenses

General and administrative expenses increased by
approximately RMB182 million or 5.1% from approximately
RMB3,557 million in the corresponding period of 2015
to approximately RMB3,739 million in the Period, which
was mainly due to the increase in staff costs and expenses
on external support in the course of the international
development of the Group. Further, KION incurred additional
expenses on professional fees paid in connection with
its preparation for the acquisition of the business of the
advanced material handling automation solutions business
operated by DH Services Luxembourg Holding S.a r.l. through

its subsidiaries which operate mainly under the “Dematic”

trade name.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

Operating Profit before Finance Expenses

During the Period, the Group’s total profit before finance
expenses and income tax expenses increased by approximately
RMB243 million or approximately 12.6% to approximately
RMB2,168 million in the Period from approximately
RMB1,925 million in the corresponding period of last year.
This was primarily attributable to the increase in sales during
the Period. With higher proportional increase in expenses, the
Group's operating margin dropped slightly to approximately
5.1% from approximately 5.3% for the corresponding period
of 2015.

Finance Expenses

Finance expenses decreased by approximately 51.2%
to approximately RMB89 million in the Period from
approximately RMB183 million in the corresponding period of
2015. This was mainly attributable to the one-off recognition
of the difference between the carrying amount and the
settlement consideration in the amount of approximately
RMB260 million in profit or loss for the Period, as KION
completed its refinancing arrangement during the Period and
repaid the medium-term notes in the amount of EUR450

million in advance.

Income Tax Expenses

The Group's income tax expenses increased by 9.4% from
approximately RMB436 million in the corresponding period
of 2015 to approximately RMB477 million in the Period.
During the Period, the Group's average effective tax rate
was approximately 23.0%, representing a decrease of 2
percentage points as compared to approximately 25.0% in
the corresponding period of last year, which was primarily
because of the increase in profit of business in China, where

the average effective tax rate is lower than overseas regions.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued) B B B AT (%)

Net Profit and Net Profit Margin

The Group’s net profit for the Period increased by
approximately RMB296 million or 22.6% from approximately
RMB1,306 million in the corresponding period of 2015 to
approximately RMB1,602 million in the Period. Net profit
margin for the Period was approximately 3.8%, an increase
of 0.2 percentage points from approximately 3.6% in
the corresponding period of last year. This was primarily
attributable to the increase in revenue in China and the
increase in the proportion of profit derived from China, under

the recovery of the heavy-duty truck industry.

Liquidity and Cash Flow

During the Period, the Group generated operating cash
flows of approximately RMB2,024 million. A portion of such
proceeds was applied to acquiring the U.S.-based Retrotech
Inc. (at a consideration of approximately EUR25 million,
equivalent to approximately RMB177.8 million), and paying
for the acquisition of property, plant and equipment for
the expansion of the Group’s business. As at 30 June 2016,
the Group had a net cash (cash and cash equivalents net of
interest-bearing debts) of approximately RMB142 million (31
December 2015: net cash (cash and cash equivalents net of
interest-bearing debts) of approximately RMB2,130 million).
Based on the calculation above, the debt to equity ratio was
not applicable to the Group as the Group was in a net cash
position (as at 31 December 2015: N/A).

ERE ROFAE X
RAHE - N&EEFNHELD
AARE1602EE T L&
FRBMNOARE1,3068 2
T M AR 296 H 8Tk
22.6% o BN B RS A E R 4
#3.8% @ HAFRHL3.6%
e - EAHO2EE DR - £ 2
¥ RERTEEH BAE
U A A AN R R S
LI o

mEEERREM
RAEE  AEEELKEE
BEROARK2048 3
T AR BHERARNKEXE
Retrotech Inc. (W EE S B4 A
CSEHEBIL MAARBY
1778 B L) X NEEY
¥ HKERSJENRBRALEH
ZEE R _T—XNENA
“tHAKEZRSRRESE
BNkt EEEARESFHE
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

2. Financial Position 2. BEMRR
a. Assets and Liabilities a. BENKA®E
As at 30 June 2016, the Group had total assets of RZZE—X"FXA=+A8 "

approximately RMB125,329 million, of which approximately
RMB66,660 million were current assets. As at 30 June 2016,
the Group had cash and cash equivalents of approximately
RMB25,555 million (as at 31 December 2015: RMB24,601

million). On the same date, the Group’s total liabilities

/N
$El§§ AR AR
125,329 &7t - HFR&HE
EHAARKEE66,660B8TT -
RZZE—XR"EXA=+H K
SEEBHARKE25555H

amounted to approximately RMB83,874 million, of which BETHEBE(R-ZE—1
approximately RMB47,310 million were current liabilities. F+ZA=+—H: AR

The current ratio was approximately 1.41 (as at 31 December
2015: 1.45).

24601B&T) - AA - K&
EEEEEN AR ARKS3,874
BB HRRBAGBHAA
E%47moﬁ§ﬁﬁoﬁ@tt

EHORIAB(R_ZT—HF
+:HE+—E:L%%)°
b. Capital Structure b. BARERE
As at 30 June 2016, the Group had total equity of RZE—RFAA=Z+H K
approximately RMB41,455 million, of which approximately EEAERNR/AREAL1,455
RMB31,955 million was attributable to equity holders of BExL Hbg AR®31,955

the Company and the balance was minority equity holders’
interests. The Group currently does not rely heavily on
borrowings. The borrowings of the Group as at 30 June
2016 amounted to approximately RMB21,979 million,
including debenture of approximately RMB4,032 million and
bank borrowings of approximately RMB17,947 million. The
bank borrowings included approximately RMB2,159 million
of fixed interest rate bank borrowings and approximately
RMB15,788 million of floating interest rate bank borrowings.
The Group's borrowings maturing within one year from 30
June 2016 amounted to approximately RMB7,852 million and
borrowings maturing in more than one year from 30 June

2016 amounted to approximately RMB14,127 million. Other

BELAARAIE=IEB AR
R FRERRDERE
e o ANEE B AT B S K
BEE RXEERZZT—RF
NAZTHWEESBEHARA
R¥21979B8 T E4 8
FHOARBA032EETHE
FRHOARE17,947EH & T
MIRTTEE - RITBEERET
BERITEENARK2,1598
BETREERITBEEOARKE
15,788B BT - AKER=ZZ
—ANENAZTHHN—FAE
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued) B B B AT (%)

than Euro-denominated borrowings and USD-denominated HABENRARK7,8528
borrowings equivalent to approximately RMB15,776 million BrmBal —FEBAEELY
and RMB2,632 million respectively, the borrowings are BARE14127887T - B A
Renminbi-denominated borrowings. The revenue of the REHF 15,776 BB - AR
Group is mainly in Renminbi and Euro. To prevent exchange BIr42,632B8 BT H Bl BE
rate risk arising from the fluctuation of the USD exchange TERRETERIN - EthE
rate, contracts have been entered into with financial tﬁ#’,}\E’L‘mﬁiﬁ AEBH
institutions to swap the USD-denominated bonds issued in ZRARBME T © At
September 2015 to Euro, and the Group does not consider ﬁ%ml: <R B T EE A EY SMNEE

its currency risk significant. However, the management will Ak AXEBE_Z—AFAN
monitor its foreign exchange risk and consider to hedge REETHNETESFEEDRE
against any material foreign exchange risk as and when BEEANERABIT - I
necessary. As a policy, the Group manages its capital to REBRBHINERRR L T E
ensure that entities in the Group will be able to continue as Ko R BIEEBEERINE
a going concern while maximizing the return to shareholders B - WEEELEEREF
through the optimization of the debts and equity balance. BERZIMERR - NEB A
The Group's overall strategy remains unchanged from prior REEREEAUEBRAEE
years. EREMNBERLE  RREH

B 1t B 8 o A 35t BB B 3R 32
ﬁ?ﬁ@ﬁ 7 B B AR R S
BEEERETE -

c.  Pledge of Assets c. EBEEEH
As at 30 June 2016, bank deposits, notes receivable and RZE—RNRFEAXA=F+H' &
accounts receivable of approximately RMB5,485 million (as SEBHARKES485HE T
at 31 December 2015: RMB7,724 million) were pledged (RZZE—RAF+_A=+-—
to banks to secure the Group’s notes payable and notes H: AR¥7,724887T) MR
receivable issued by banks. The pledged bank deposits TFER - EREE & ERER
carry interest at prevailing bank interest rates. The pledge EWTIRIT  EARAEEME
will be released upon the settlement of the relevant bank HITELENEEREREE
borrowings. The fair value of the bank deposits at the balance HEAm BEPRITERIE
sheet date was approximately the same as the carrying WATIRATHN G B - ZIBEE M
amount. Certain other assets were also pledged by the Group R AEREERITIEREER T A
to secure the Group's borrowings. kR - RNEHER - RITHERW

AFELEEFREERE - AK
BRCEAETHEMEE  {F
RARBE B ZER -



Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

d. Contingencies

As at 30 June 2016, the Group had guaranteed the
repayment of the shortfall between the invoiced amounts and
security deposits in the amount of approximately RMB1,710
million (as at 31 December 2015: approximately RMB1,014

million) for certain distributors and agents.

As at 30 June 2016, the Group had provided guarantee
for joint liabilities in respect of failure of the leasee under
finance lease to settle instalment payments plus interest. Risk
exposure in respect of possible guarantee for joint liabilities
amounted to approximately RMB728 million (as at 31
December 2015: approximately RMB728 million).

As at 30 June 2016, the Group’s borrowings and other
guarantee amounted to approximately RMB159 million (as at
31 December 2015: approximately RMB167 million).

e. Commitments

As at 30 June 2016, the Group had approximately RMB1,174
million capital commitments (as at 31 December 2015:
approximately RMB1,734 million), among which contracted
capital commitments amounted to approximately RMB1,174
million, principally for the capital expenditure in respect of
acquisition of property, plant and equipment. The capital
expenditure will be financed by internal resources.

3. Other Financial Information
a. Employees

As at 30 June 2016, the Group had approximately 62
thousand employees (including approximately 24 thousand
employees of KION). During the Period, the Group had
paid remuneration of approximately RMB7,256 million.
The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is set
up by the remuneration committee of the Company (the
“Remuneration Committee”) on the basis of their merits,

qualifications and competence.

3. H

Q
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued) B B B AT (%)

Major Investment
Save as the major acquisition disclosed below, the Group did
not have any major investment during the Period.

Major Acquisition and Disposal

On 20 June 2016 (New York time), KION entered into a sale
and purchase agreement to purchase all the issued shares of
DH Services Luxembourg Holding S.a r.l. and certain issued
shares of certain subsidiaries of DH Services Luxembourg
Holding S.a r.l. at a consideration of approximately US$2.1
billion. The underlying business to be acquired is the
advanced material handling automation solutions business
operated by DH Services Luxembourg S.a r.l. through its
subsidiaries which operate mainly under the “Dematic” trade
name. The consideration will be paid in cash and be funded
with a bridge loan facility. The transaction is expected to be
closed in the course of the fourth quarter of this year.

Save as disclosed above, the Group did not have any other
major acquisition or disposal during the Period.

Subsequent Events

On 18 July 2016 (Central European Time), KION Group AG
issued in aggregate 9,890,000 new KION shares through
the accelerated market bookbuilding offering process. The
Company has, through its indirect wholly-owned subsidiary
Weichai Power (Luxembourg) Holding S.a r.l. (“Weichai
Lux"), subscribed for 5,934,000 new KION shares based on
the subscription price of EUR46.44 per KION share at a total
consideration of EUR275,574,960. Upon completion of the
transaction, the Group’s shareholding in KION has increased
from 38.25% to 40.23% after enlargement, which is in
line with the Company’s strategy of further enhancing the
strategic alliance with KION and optimising the allocation of
the Group's assets.

BEAKRE

RAERE  AEBERATRE
BREARKBI  LEIELE
MEARKRE -

BANEMHE
RZB—REXAZTHERLY
KA  SIMARIETEEW
o UREL21EEITUEEDH
Services Luxembourg Holding
Sarl. AR EITRG - X
L. DH Services Luxembourg
Holding S.a r.l. & T i B 2 7]
WETEEITRGD - & TUWE
#9488 2 7 75 8 DH Services
Luxembourg S.& r.l. 55 @ H j&
T EZ [ Dematic | HEZLTE
KEOIE QR PTE LR
MEREBDLBATRE
%o BERAKEERSEARS
FRAXNFMREELHRE —
HBBERRME - BAXHTE
HehrSFEEEFETK -

BREXMBEEN  AKEHE
AHEMEETENEMETE
WK HESRH -

EEBREXARSEE
RZZE—A"FLtA+NAB(E
MR EREFFE ) - SR RIE B
MRS BRBEE A BT
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e ARAIBBEREELE
FTRABEH(ERE) T
BRERAR([HEERE])
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5,934,000 iR ¥ gl FL A 1 - 48
KRB A275,574,960 T °
5 TR & - REBERFIHR
#H38.25% & M E I K%EM
40.23% - LT3 & AR AR
b B2 SR 2 5 A BB I B AR R
BIEAEBE A ER S KR o



Auditors” Review Report

EY:

Ernst & Young Hua Ming (2016) Zhuan Zi No. 60729920_B05
To the Shareholders of Weichai Power Co., Ltd.:

We have reviewed the accompanying interim financial statements of Weichai
Power Co., Ltd. which comprise the consolidated and company balance
sheets as at 30 June 2016, the consolidated and company income statements,
statement of changes in equity and cash flow statement for January-June 2016
and notes to the financial statements. The management of Weichai Power Co.,
Ltd. is responsible for the preparation of these interim financial statements. Our
responsibility is to issue our review report on these interim financial statements

based on our review.

We conducted our review in accordance with the Review Standard for Chinese
Certified Public Accountants No. 2101 Review of Financial Statements. The
standard requires us to plan and conduct a review to obtain limited assurance as
to whether the interim financial statements are free from material misstatement.
A review is limited primarily to inquiries of company personnel and performing
analytical procedures on the data. A review provides less assurance than an
audit. We have not performed an audit and, accordingly, we do not express an

audit opinion.

Based on our review, nothing has come to our attention that causes us to
believe that the interim financial statements are not prepared in accordance with

the requirement in Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises — No. 32.

Ernst & Young Hua Ming LLP
Beijing, PRC

Chinese Certified Public Accountant:
Zhang Fei
Chinese Certified Public Accountant:

You Jin

30 August 2016
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30  Weichai Power Co., Ltd.

HRB D RHBRAF

Consolidated Balance Sheet

30 June 2016 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

aHEER

Note V 30 June 2016
ASSETS BE Mistn 20166 H30H
(Unaudited)
(REER)
Current assets mEEE
Cash and cash equivalents B¥ES 1 25,554,740,578.75
Financial assets at fair value through UAREEFEREH
profit or loss ZEEAEBRERD
TREE 2 103,611,375.00
Notes receivable U EIE 3 12,884,312,465.23
Accounts receivable TEWBE X 4 10,549,283,716.88
Prepayments FE T IR 5 432,497,183.43
Interests receivable R F B 6 93,601,195.56
Dividends receivable & UK A% | 7 13,947,625.00
Other receivables H b fE UK 8 936,076,329.67
Inventories T8 9 13,138,886,596.58
Non-current assets due within one year —FANEPNIERBEE 10 1,385,238,875.00
Other current assets HEihmEEE 1" 1,567,304,215.16
Total current assets MENEEASE 66,659,500,156.26
Non-current assets FERBEE
Available-for-sale financial assets AEEESHEE 12 482,354,426.11
Long-term receivables = B FE WK 13 3,594,176,750.00
Long-term equity investments REIRHERE 14 1,486,165,407.45
Investment property WA EEHE 15 589,417,609.37
Fixed assets & & B 16 24,430,433,567.85
Construction in progress EEIR 17 1,960,960,285.60
Materials used in construction TIEME -
Disposal of fixed assets EEEEEE 1,697,275.16
Intangible assets mAE 18 13,303,267,384.33
Development expenditure R H 19 495,180,708.23
Goodwill [EES 20 8,284,725,153.76
Long-term prepaid expenses RFEHER 21 323,006,155.58
Deferred tax assets RIEFRGREE 3,586,200,387.84
Other non-current assets HEMIEREEE 22 131,746,316.45
Total non-current assets ERBEERFT 58,669,331,427.73
Total assets BERE 125,328,831,583.99
The financial statements have been signed by: HBB/ERBATALRE

Legal Representative:

AEREA

Tan Xuguang
EEEB

Principal in charge of accounting:
ETEEHIERBRA

Kwong Kwan Tong

BIRE

Li Xia

=
E=

H K

201646 4303 (A RHT)

31 December 2015
2015912 A31H
(Audited)

(&%)

24,601,345,959.52

37,867,082.40
8,927,939,101.91
8,976,615,257.47
401,642,433.45
53,906,611.07
6,480,000.00
645,771,489.45
11,841,614,673.51
1,289,424,886.40
970,236,409.05

57,752,843,904.23

650,293,280.51
3,348,884,733.60
1,447,150,166.18
588,890,842.52
23,665,762,793.11
2,589,410,278.91
1,200.00
1,846,883.91
12,860,379,962.34
466,068,766.97
7,786,251,491.45
314,381,969.58
3,152,666,737.05
248,554,796.59

57,120,543,902.72

114,873,387,806.95

Head of accounting department:

SATHBEEA



Consolidated Balance Sheet (Continued) A EEAER (E)
30 June 2016 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 20166 H30H (A E#or)
Note V 30 June 2016
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY BEMBRER Liridn 2016F6A30H
(Unaudited)
(REER)
Current liabilities mEBE
Short-term loans EAEER 23 6,142,494,637.40
Financial liabilities at fair value through WAREEFEAEE
profit or loss T A HIEEN
TREE 24 236,466,063.57
Notes payable IS 25 5,315,686,832.34
Accounts payable FERTER SR 26 17,963,845,622.82
Advances from customers T8 Wk IE 27 1,373,017,730.57
Payroll payable JE A< B T3 M 28 3,099,909,679.51
Taxes payable B 29 1,407,339,383.37
Interests payable FE B 30 147,685,755.83
Dividends payable JE - AR ) 31 402,051,241.32
Other payables H M fE 3R 32 4,474,510,069.40
Non-current liabilities due within one year —FRIENIERSEE 33 4,570,359,788.71
Other current liabilities HimehaE 34 2,176,663,052.60
Total current liabilities mEAEEET 47,310,029,857.44
Non-current liabilities EREBEE
Long-term borrowings RAEBER 35 11,494,312,602.49
Bonds payable ERES 36 2,632,371,949.11
Long-term payables RAEFES IR 37 7,183,152,375.00
Long-term payroll payable £ HB 151 B T 5 B 38 8,602,514,170.85
Special payables BIHEMNK 39 43,000,000.00
Accruals and provisions TEEtAE 40 266,916,000.00
Deferred income BRI 5 41 2,468,960,107.77
Deferred tax liabilities BEFRGHRARE 3,832,490,377.02
Other non-current liabilities HEaIEmEaE 40,010,239.21
Total non-current liabilities FRBEESF 36,563,727,821.45
Total liabilities B BB 83,873,757,678.89
The financial statements have been signed by: HEMERBEATALESE

Legal Representative:

EEREKA

Tan Xuguang
BEX

Principal in charge of accounting:
EEIFEARA:

Kwong Kwan Tong

BIRE

Interim Report 2016 A HAZRE

Li Xia

31 December 2015
201512 A31H
(Audited)
(&%)

2,961,108,213.46

92,014,803.10
5,283,915,078.21
14,264,753,447.71
1,637,474,054.56
3,129,536,423.85
1,235,566,698.13
208,738,518.56
5,129,313.52
3,786,905,225.80
5,246,338,509.59
2,018,326,655.18

39,869,806,941.67

7,283,743,346.45
5,985,529,194.60
6,604,099,856.80
6,928,175,204.92
43,000,000.00
286,177,796.80
2,279,402,483.75
3,825,631,719.50
41,337,675.89

33,277,097,278.71

73,146,904,220.38

Head of accounting department:

BEIHBAEEA

31



32 Weichai Power Co., Ltd.

Consolidated Balance Sheet (Continued)
30 June 2016 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

HRB D RHBRAF

aHEEAMRE ()

201646 4303 (A RHT)

Note V 30 June 2016
B 5 7 201666 A30H
(Unaudited)

(REER)

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY (Continued) BEMRRERS(E)
Shareholders’ equity % R A 7
Share capital fi& 2
Capital reserve BARRNIE
Other comprehensive income HiiRa e
Special reserve HIEGFE
Surplus reserve BHBAE

Retained earnings

R BB

42 3,998,619,278.00
43 46,378,117.17

44 (960,055,003.14)

45 91,803,520.46
46 1,207,988,900.22
a7 27,570,287,708.20

Total equity attributable to the FEREARRRESREGR

shareholders of the parent

31,955,022,520.91
9,500,051,384.19

Minority interests DB AR RE RS
Total shareholders” equity B ES A s

41,455,073,905.10

Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity

BEMRREDA

125,328,831,583.99

The financial statements have been signed by:

Legal Representative:

EEREA

Principal in charge of accounting:

IEEHIFEEEA:

Tan Xuguang Kwong Kwan Tong

E B BRE

BIBSIMEABATALESE

31 December 2015
201512 A31H
(Audited)
(&%)

3,998,619,278.00
27,883,109.16
(502,508,673.78)
78,839,437.56
1,207,988,900.22
26,918,633,619.95

31,729,455,671.11
9,997,027,915.46

41,726,483,586.57

114,873,387,806.95

Head of accounting department:

BREBEAREA

Li Xia

FE



Consolidated Income Statement

January to June 2016 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

Interim Report 2016 A HAZRE

& R %

2016F 1-6 A(ARE¥T)

January to June

2016

20164 1-6 A
(Unaudited)
(REEXK)

Note V
BT R

Revenue
Less:  Cost of sales

Taxes and surcharges

Distribution and selling expenses
General and administrative expenses
Financial expenses

Impairment loss of assets

Add: Gain or loss on fair value changes
Investment income

Incl: Investment income from associates

and jointly controlled enterprises

ERIBA

RN
EEBE KM
HEER
ERER
MBER
BEMERX

m: AREEESER
BE W
Hep : EWEEhx

AN

48 42,286,511,209.18
48 32,625,101,923.75
49 142,817,120.98
50 3,477,832,967.81
51 3,738,511,698.49
52 89,253,779.49
53 349,230,571.66
54 (86,225,051.26)
55 82,977,065.51

68,609,558.56

Operating profit
Add: Non-operating income
Incl: Gain on disposal of

non-current assets

BERNHE
o EEIMRA
Hep: FRBEE
EEME

1,860,515,161.25
56 259,937,620.78

12,753,501.42
57 41,821,985.85

7,311,992.07

Less: Non-operating expenses W B FEINE
Incl: Loss on disposal of He: FERBEE
non-current assets BEEX
Total profit FE B

Less: Income tax expense

o ERER

58 2,078,630,796.18
59 477,116,621.27

Net profit

FEFE

1,601,514,174.91

Net profit attributable to the shareholders of the

parent

)Y SSYNSIEEE e bE

1,051,516,016.05

Minority interests

549,998,158.86

The financial statements have been signed by:

Legal Representative:

EEREKA

Tan Xuguang
EIB

Principal in charge of accounting:

FEGHIEATA

Kwong Kwan Tong
B EE

MBMRBEATALES :

January to June
2015
2015%1-6 4
(Unaudited)
(REEEZ)

36,455,259,868.68
28,028,944,784.66
96,052,633.89
2,870,010,696.32
3,556,548,533.74
183,034,068.43
192,603,210.24
(9,163,435.00)
100,744,461.39

66,804,707.15

1,619,646,967.79
219,634,183.48

26,139,266.14
96,963,421.27

14,763,360.50

1,742,317,730.00
436,181,443.41

1,306,136,286.59

969,149,138.37

336,987,148.22

Head of accounting department:

B RBARA :

33



34 Weichai Power Co., Ltd.

HRB D RHBRAF

Consolidated Income Statement (Continued)

January to June 2016 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

A BRI R ()
2016F 1-6 A(AR¥T)

Note V
MR

Net other comprehensive income after tax

Net other comprehensive income attributable to
shareholders of the parent after tax

Incl: Those other comprehensive income not

to be reclassified into profit or loss in

Changes arising from re-measuring net assets
or net liabilities of defined benefit plan

Share of investee’s other comprehensive
income not to be reclassified into profit or

subsequent periods

4R & W M B 18 88
BRE QAR

Hip R & W R F 8
Hep : MR TBEE D IER
m A H AR A W

<

BHHERTER
HEFRELFE
ENED

A TERREE
R4 8 5 1R

loss using the equity method mEH AR S s
FRERENGRE
Those other comprehensive income to be BB E ) BEER
reclassified into profit or loss in subsequent R H ML E Was
periods
Share of investee’s other comprehensive B A TERIEEE
income to be reclassified into profit or loss NEESEEERR
using the equity method B H A & Was
FrEAMHE
Changes of fair value of available-for-sale AHEESREE
financial assets N BEEE)
Effective portion of cashflow from RensEHTAN
hedging instruments B D
Exchange differences on foreign currency NS B TS 2R R
translation mEE
Net other comprehensive income attributable to 32BN L EREH H M4z E
minority owners after tax W a5 8O B0 18 F 58
Total comprehensive income Re W= B EE

Incl:

Total comprehensive income attributable to
the shareholders of the parent
Total comprehensive income attributable to

minority interests

Hep
BEXSAARENRS
W3 4 58
BER O BRRN G
W3 48 28

Earnings per share
Basic earnings per share

Diluted

earnings per share

e
ARG
W Ekk s

60

The financial statements have been signed by:

Legal R

epresentative:

EERERA

Tan Xuguang

REBK

Principal in charge of accounting:
B IEREA

Kwong Kwan Tong

b

January to June
2016
20165 1-6 A
(Unaudited)
(REERK)

(457,546,329.36)

(408,163,272.19)

(28,209.38)

(1,891,425.81)
(27,540,000.00)
(189,002.81)

(19,734,419.17)

(666,490,783.15)

477,477,062.40

593,969,686.69

(116,492,624.29)

0.26
0.26

FHBEBATALESE

BERMEBAREA

Li Xia

January to June
2015

20154 1-6 A
(Unaudited)
(REEERZ)

(62,863,128.95)

70,669,720.12

(87,328.44)
87,380,000.00
(15,796,243.61)

(205,029,277.02)

120,048,918.54

1,363,322,076.18

906,286,009.42

457,036,066.76

0.24
0.24

Head of accounting department:
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity & 1% PROME # 58 H)) 5%

January to June 2016 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 2016F 1-6 A(ARE¥T)

Equity attributable to shareholders of the parent

SRS ATRRER
Other
Share Gapital ~ comprehensive Spedial Surplus Retained Minority Total
(Unaudited) NoteV capital reserve income reserve reserve earnings Subtotal interests equity
At HERE fEL i
(7820 [iE31 & LN Eralt BVl BHLE FORAR it & ai
I Atbeginning of period - FEETRE 3998,619,278.00 788310916 (502,508673.78) 7883943756 1207,988900.2 2691863361995 3172945567111 9997,027.91546 41,726,483 586,57
1. Movements n curent period o FEEREgcE
(1) Total comprehensive income (-) BAhzeE - (457,546329.30) 1,051,516,016.05 59396968669 (116492624.29)  477.477,06240
(1) Ijection and reduction (Z) RERANHLER
1. Capital inection from shareholders 1. RERAELK 584541831 584541837
2. Amount ofshare-based payment aken 2. Rttt AfEE
fo owners'equiy EaNeE 913,983.75 913,983.75 1475,516.25 2,389,500.00
3. Acquiston o minority nterests 1 hEbanREE 8 1755177712 5T (00575576)  (19473978.64)
4. Others 4 i 2,114 2924114 - 294714
{1y Proft appropriaion (=) HEAR
1. Disrbution to owners 1. HREHAR i (399.861927.80)  (399861927.80)  (356,196,161.46)  (756,058,089.26)
(V) Speci esenve (m) 2EEE
1. Aporopration during the period 1. KEED 55 24,262,991.22 2,62,991.22 1221734032 36,480,331.54
2. Used during the period 2 RHER 8 (11,298,908.32) (11,298,90832) (6,800.20470)  (18,099,173.0)
II. Atend of period = FEERRE 3998,619,278.00 4637811747 (360,055,003.14) 9180352046 1207,988900.2  27,570,287,70820  31955,022,52091  9,500,051384.19  41,455,073905.10
The financial statements have been signed by: MEREBATATES
Legal Representative: Principal in charge of accounting: Head of accounting department:
EEREA FEGHIEBEREA: FrHEAEA
Tan Xuguang Kwong Kwan Tong Li Xia

E BIEE e
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Weichai Power Co., Ltd. % E HRHER AT

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity (Continued)

January to June 2015 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

B B B R RE £5 s B R (A8
2015F1-6 A(AR¥T)

Equity attributable to shareholders of the parent

BENEDIRRER
Other
Share Capital ~ comprehensive Spedial Surplus Retained Minority Total
{Unaudited) Note V capital reserve income reserve reserve eamings Subtotal interests equity
it HERR hREE
(K57 iEs e ER0E Reki EERE BHLE KARAE it Bi it
I, Atbeginning of period - HiBE 199930963900 128825293851 (388,485,902.69) STO6TTLN 305174259119 2639753191503 32399377,953.15  9,542,510380.18  41,941,888,333.33
1. Movements n curent period I REEREDLE
() Total comprehersiv incore (=) GahagE - - (6863189 - S U9M9IRIT G609 LSTO6066T6 136332207618
(1) Injection and reducton (2) BRRAMEDER
1. Capital njection from shareholders 1. RERAER - - - - - - - 1875842875 1875842875
2. Amount ofshare-based payment taken 2. RiRfAREZ
to owners' equty = 296,934.25 B - — = 29693425 47936445 776,298.70
3. Acquistion of minoriy interests 3. hiE I - (1078,649607.34) B - - - (107864960734 (208523246.00)  (1,287,172,853.36)
(1) Profit approprizton (2) HEAR
1. Distrbution to owners 1. HRROAR a = = B - - (2998944585 (29989644585 (225,059398.69) (524,955,845
(V) Special reserve (m) E%fk
1. Appropriaion during the period . 58 5 - - - 3185 - SRS BI0IBE W3REBD
2. Used during the perod 2. TR & = = B (16,335,76899) — = (16,335,76399) (8,69,592.72) (25,032361.1)
Il Atend of period = FEERRE 1,999,309,639.00 20990026542 (451,349,031.64) 05,829,55069 305174259119 27,006,784,60755 3194221762221 939272512834 41,534 942,750.55
The financial statements have been signed by: WBMEBATALESE

Legal Representative:

EERERA FEGHIHEEEA:

Tan Xuguang
b

Kwong Kwan Tong

BRE

Principal in charge of accounting:

Head of accounting department:

SRHEBEAREA

Li Xia

==
=3



Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

January to June 2016 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

Interim Report 2016 A HAZRE

& O BB i AR

2016F 1-6 A(ARE¥T)

January to June January to June
Note V 2016 2015
Mzt 2016%F1-6 B 2015%1-6 3
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(REER) (REEZ)
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES ~ —  R&EEELH
Bene
Cash received from sales of goods or rendering HERESD - RIESS
of services W IR & 33,817,581,661.89 36,634,743,199.53
Refunds of taxes WEE T B RE 140,680,417.31 180,529,707.47
Other cash received relating to operating U B H fth B AC 2 E E)
activities FHNERS 61 482,593,055.86 437,778,818.46
Subtotal of cash inflows from operating activities EEEENIR & A/ N 34,440,855,135.06 37,253,051,725.46
Cash paid for goods and services EERD - BXEH
XRME S 18,800,429,008.15 23,252,024,940.75
Cash paid to and on behalf of employees TRHGEBIUEA
BIXNHHRS 7,999,125,757.59 6,361,564,567.00
Cash paid for all types of taxes YRR ERE 1,907,324,557.76 1,745,336,372.42
Other cash paid relating to operating activities AT E At AT
EBHEMNE S 61 3,710,371,541.84 4,366,366,898.99
Subtotal of cash outflows from operating ETEBIR ST MG
activities 32,417,250,865.34 35,725,292,779.16
Net cash flows from operating activities LETEBELN
BenEF8E 62 2,023,604,269.72 1,527,758,946.30
Il. CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES - REBYEEH
RAene
Cash received from sale of investments LISZ @Txﬁuﬂl Ellzope ke 331,000,403.00 3,000,000.00
Cash received from return on investments B E W=
Hﬁz MR 53,423,333.38 76,925,284.83
Net cash received from disposal of subsidiaries BEFARIREMEE
and other business units BAWERIRE F5E 62 47,394,059.61
Net cash received from disposal of fixed assets, REBRTEE  BF
intangible assets and other long-term assets EENMEMRBEE
Yoy IR 5 %58 370,304,166.81 344,209,554.44
Other cash received relating to investing activities U Bt E145 &
EEIES N 0E e n 61 63,842,608.75 49,862,642.60
Subtotal of cash inflows from investing activities BEEEREEAN 818,570,511.94 521,391,541.48
Cash paid for acquisition of fixed assets, BRETEE B
intangible assets and other long-term assets A EE AR
BEXNNES 2,134,824,562.92 2,051,627,219.95
Cash paid for acquisition of investments BELNHES 1,053,023,294.00 103,326,869.99
Net cash paid for acquisition of subsidiaries and STARIREMEZE
other business units B NHR e FE 62 198,252,189.60 =
Net cash paid for disposal of subsidiaries BREFRRIREME S
and other business units BT MRS FE 62 37,959,549.54 =
Other cash paid relating to investing activities TR EMEEEES
FHNRE 11,888,997.23 =
Subtotal of cash outflows from investing activities REEHBE R B /Nt 3,435,948,593.29 2,154,954,089.94
Net cash flows from investing activities REDHEED
RemeF8 (2,617,378,081.35) (1,633,562,548.46)
The financial statements have been signed by: MIEMREATALESE
Legal Representative: Principal in charge of accounting: Head of accounting department:
EEREA FERHIEERA FEHEBAERA

Tan Xuguang Kwong Kwan Tong Li Xia
E R Wi B



38  Weichai Power Co., Ltd.

HRB D RHBRAF

Consolidated Cash Flow Statement (Continued)

January to June 2016 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

G HE SR ER (4)
2016F 1-6 A(AR¥T)

January to June

Note V 2016
(ol 2016%1-6 B
(Unaudited)
(REBER)
Il CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES = EBEEYPEEN
Hene
Cash received from capital contributions MU E U B R & 5,845,418.38
Incl: Cash received by subsidiaries from capital Hep: FRRIRKDE
contributions of minority owners IR R 1% & W B
R e 5,845,418.38
Cash received from borrowings NEEFKE NSRS 12,160,939,710.00
Other cash received relating to financing activities WEIEEEE EE)
BRNES 61 99,191,627.95
Subtotal of cash inflows from financing activities EEEHRERANET 12,265,976,756.33
Cash repayments of borrowings EREHEZNHRL 9,578,118,858.66
Cash paid for distribution of dividends or profits HERRF] - FEKER
and for interest expenses FMELHHIRE 979,551,384.97
Incl: Cash paid to minority owners for Hep: FRREAH
distribution of dividends or profits by DY ER
subsidiaries AR A~ F 359,136,161.46
Other cash paid relating to financing activities ST RHEMEEEEHE
HHIE e 61 69,930,112.63
Subtotal of cash outflows from financing BEEHRSIMH NG
activities 10,627,600,356.26
Net cash flows from financing activities EEEHEED
RemeFaE 1,638,376,400.07
IV.  EFFECT OF CHANGES IN EXCHANGE RATEON [« [EREHUBLNTE
CASH 62,344,801.22
V. NETINCREASE/DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH fi ~ R&RHALEEY
EQUIVALENTS FEM/ O & 1,106,947,389.66
Add: Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of i HeResR
period ReSEBYHE 21,014,266,005.49
VI, CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF N HEARBREEBESE
PERIOD BYessa 62 22,121,213,395.15
The financial statements have been signed by: HBMEBATALESE

Legal Representative:

EEREKA

Tan Xuguang
B JB

Principal in charge of accounting:

EEFTIERAA

Kwong Kwan Tong

BRE

January to June
2015

20155 1-6 A
(Unaudited)
(REER)

18,758,428.75

18,758,428.75
7,047,612,195.20

93,268,650.92

7,159,639,274.87

5,653,421,303.40

674,111,635.12

383,456,454.58

1,395,358,601.93

7,722,891,540.45

(563,252,265.58)

(69,496,482.87)

(738,552,350.61)

20,494,618,118.42

19,756,065,767.81

Head of accounting department:

SRTEBREA



Company Balance Sheet

30 June 2016 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

Interim Report 2016 FH#iksE 39

nA B EREE

201696 A30H (A E#¥T)

Note XV 30 June 2016 31 December 2015
ASSETS BE iiEEa il 201656 430H  EANELES P EN=!
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REER) (g&ER)
Current assets MENEE

Cash and cash equivalents BE¥ES 1 (NEPEVO AT EIPI S 12,447,686,804.26
Notes receivable FEEE 2 10,336,701,433.39 6,890,636,874.68
Accounts receivable JE UG BR X 3 1,472,358,886.30 640,602,324.45
Prepayments B 111,724,377.73 56,961,089.44
Interests receivable U F B 92,809,113.75 51,793,725.00
Dividends receivable FE AR A 3,324,794.33 3,060,000.00
Other receivables Ho A U R 4 1,486,069,461.45 1,872,128,429.70
Inventories FE 1,457,196,959.07 1,337,322,763.36
Other current assets HitmE & E 17,761,521.84 146,838,123.25
Total current assets mEEESET IR PRI PR 23,447,030,134.14

Non-current assets EMBNEE
Available-for-sale financial assets ARfHESRHEE 252,480,000.00 284,880,000.00
Long-term equity investments REIRERE 6,7 (TS WAL 10,020,852,579.69
Investment property WEEEHE 8 1,150,392,627.19 1,143,364,666.55
Fixed assets BEBAE 9 2,908,470,539.88 2,644,294,727.19
Construction in progress EEIRE 780,854,795.98 1,460,455,895.55
Disposal of fixed assets BEBESBE 83,797.31 83,797.19
Intangible assets mpEE 10 537,552,161.98 330,215,232.45
Goodwill GRS 579,145,043.76 579,145,043.76
Long-term prepaid expense RFHER 3,321,340.00 4,566,838.00
Deferred tax assets FIEFTSREE 275,736,585.01 215,366,868.45
Other non-current assets Hi3EmEEE 392,674,988.89 481,925,368.89
Total non-current assets ERBEES (VAT YRR VAR 17,165,151,017.72
Total assets BEAR VERLY WAyl 40,612,181,151.86

The financial statements have been signed by:

Legal Representative:

AEREA

Tan Xuguang
BB

Principal in charge of accounting:

TEGFIHEEEA

Kwong Kwan Tong

BREE

MHEBEBEATALEE :

Head of accounting department:

BEIBBAERA :

Li Xia

=
E2



40 Weichai Power Co., Ltd.  #%¢8) H R HER A T

NEEEAER ()
201646 4303 (A RHT)

Company Balance Sheet (Continued)
30 June 2016 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

Note XV S0 =edok s 31 December 2015
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY BENREER e+ 5 2016¥6H30H 201512 A31H
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REER) (BFEZ)
Current liabilities mENBE
Notes payable R ZIR il Pl 2,555,177,304.09
Accounts payable FERTBR X 4,843,675,256.36 3,299,797,871.61
Advances from customers TR FRIE 59,347,428.88 20,789,783.81
Payroll payable JE <t B T S5 A 1M 446,401,732.21 471,742,106.21
Taxes payable JEXT B 12 76,076,649.78 38,446,967.23
Interests payable FEH R B 72,508,333.53 32,958,333.51
Dividend payable JE A< R 399,861,927.80 -
Other payables A 3R 2,147,363,164.30 1,599,009,547.04
Non-current liabilities due within one year —FRNEBPNIEREBARE 1,399,355,788.71 1,398,153,360.39
Other current liabilities ErEamsk 13 528,729,493.64 474,669,460.90
Total current liabilities mEBEESE 12,490,075,501.61 9,890,744,734.79
Non-current liabilities ERBEE
Long term payroll payable = B AT B8 T 57 30,771,652.15 28,208,354.88
Special payables HIEREMNK 20,000,000.00 20,000,000.00
Deferred income IR E W s 14 358,094,526.26 324,194,404.72
Total non-current liabilities FnBEESS 408,866,178.41 372,402,759.60
Total liabilities BEE: 12,898,941,680.02 10,263,147,494.39
Shareholders’ equity IR RS
Share capital R& K 3,998,619,278.00 3,998,619,278.00
Capital reserve BARNTE 1,011,461,137.79 1,011,431,890.64
Other comprehensive income HthiR & W 22,780,000.00 50,320,000.00
Special reserve EIEHE 47,411,075.28 43,771,198.92
Surplus reserve R YN 1,221,269,763.04 1,221,269,763.04
Retained earnings Ko B F) PLEEBEICERTCE S 24,023,621,526.87
Total shareholders’ equity BREEREF el ARG 30,349,033,657.47
Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity BEMEREEZS AT el B R el GyA  40,612,181,151.86
The financial statements have been signed by: WBMEBATALES
Legal Representative: Principal in charge of accounting: Head of accounting department:
EEREA FTEEFIEARA FEHBAERA
Tan Xuguang Kwong Kwan Tong Li Xia

EB K BiEE =



Interim Report 2016 iR 41

I 7R 5

2016F 1-6 A(ARE¥T)

Company Income Statement

January to June 2016 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

January to June

January to June

Note XV 2016 2015

M +n 2016 1-6 B 2015%1-6 A

(Unaudited) (Unaudited)

(REER) (REFEZR)

Revenue WA 15 SRR R 6,735,199,082.09
Less: Cost of sales W B 15 6,914,542,810.91 5,179,554,626.68
Taxes and surcharges EERE LMW 69,302,705.78 38,453,264.20
Distribution and selling expenses HEE R 399,804,227.00 224,609,685.92
General and administrative expenses EIEEH 657,610,906.55 686,471,132.58
Finance expenses %8 A (49,833,064.88) (79,257,580.68)
Impairment loss of assets BEREEX 42,349,364.45 (3,865,780.28)

Add: Investment income me B RE 16 21,575,413.19 223,274,540.60

Incl:  Share of profit of associates and Hrh o S
jointly-controlled enterprises Me &bz
K18 & W 18,250,618.86 15,415,407.47
Operating profit EEXbE 823,768,351.92 912,508,274.27

Add: Non-operating income
Incl:  Gain on disposal of
non-current assets
Less: Non-operating expenses
Incl:  Loss on disposal of

o EEINRA
Hep: SERBEE
BREMNE
B BRI
Hef: FRBEER

non-current assets BB
Total profit MEmE 17
Less: Income tax expenses W TSR ER 18
Net profit A
Net other comprehensive income after tax HibiR & WaEaBii& 55
Those other comprehensive income to be BB ENREEERN

reclassified into profit or loss change of fair
value of available-for-sale financial assets

Hipsr e Wamn] fhih &
ERMEEAABEED

Total comprehensive income

e W EE

21,515,116.48 9,958,078.32
6,771,497.85 351,408.77
2,638,903.60 73,050.50
27,023.60 8,578.28

842,644,564.80
112,465,198.33

922,393,302.09
86,300,403.37

730,179,366.47 836,092,898.72

(27,540,000.00) 87,380,000.00

702,639,366.47 923,472,898.72

MBHMERAATALESE

The financial statements have been signed by:

Legal Representative: Principal in charge of accounting: Head of accounting department:

EFERRA FEGHIHEEEA BETREBATA
Tan Xuguang Kwong Kwan Tong Li Xia
ViR iR =8



42 \Weichai Power Co., Ltd.

HRB D RHBRAF

Company Statement of Changes in Equity 2> ] i BROME f 58 H)) 5%

January to June 2016 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

(Unaudited)

(REER)

. Atbeginning of period - KHBNSE
I Movementsin current period o KEEEEYLE

() Total comprehensive income

() Gahags

(I Injection and reduction
1. Others

(2) RREARBAER
1. £t

() Profit appropriation (2) 7lEAR
1. Distribution to owners 1. BRRMAE
(V) Special reserve (m) EEEE
1. Appropriation during the period 1. FERE
2. Used during the period 2. TEFA
Il Atend of period = FHBRHE

Share capital

k&

3,998,619,278.00

3,998,619,278.00

January to June 2015 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

Capital reserve

EALKE

1,011,431,890.64

292411

1,011,461,137.79

2016F 1-6 A(AR¥T)

Other
comprehensive

income

Afpsa ki

Special reserve

ARG

Surplus reserve

BHLE

Retained earnings

RARAE

50,320,000.00 4377119892 1,221,269,763.04  24,023,621,526.87

(27,540,000.00) 730,179,366.47

(399,861,927.80)

5,646,561.74
(2,006,685.38)

22,780,000.00 4141107528 1,21,269,763.04  24,353,938,965.54

2015F1-6 A(AR¥T)

Total equity
REBEAT

30,349,033,657.47

702,639,366.47

29,247.15

(399,861,927.80)

5,646,561.74
(2,006,685.38)

30,655,480,219.65

Other
comprehensive
(Unaudited) Share capital Capital reserve income Special reserve Surplus reserve  Retained eamings Total equity
(REEH) e BALHE Efirala EBRA BHLR RHERE RRERAH
.~ Atbeginning of period - FYEN%E 1,999,309,639.00  1,011,431,890.64 47,940,000.00 318353994 3,051,742,591.19  23,203,848,602.84  29,345,556,263.61
I Movements in current period o REEZELE
() Total comprehensive income (-) GakzaE - - 87,380,000.00 - - 83600289872 92347289872
(1) Profit appropriation (2) 7EAR
1. Distribution to owners 1. HRENAE - - - - - (29989644585 (299,896,445.85)
() Special reserve (Z) 2BkE
1. Appropriation during the period 1. AERE - - - 8,566,760.99 - - 8566,760.99
2. Used during the period 2. REFER - - - (2,297,246.41) - - (2,297,46.41)
I Atend of period = FERRE 1,999,309,639.00  1,011,431,890.64 135,320,000.00 37,553,054.52  3,051,742,591.19  23,740,045,055.71  29,975,402,231.06
The financial statements have been signed by: WBMEBATALESE

Legal Representative:

AEREA

Tan Xuguang

ik R

Principal in charge of accounting:

FEEHIEERA

Kwong Kwan Tong

Head of accounting department:

BERIRBAREA -

Li Xia

=
E2



Company Cash Flow Statement

January to June 2016 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

Interim Report 2016 A HAZRE

o~ F B4R i B AR

2016F 1-6 A(ARE¥T)

January to June

Note XV 2016
20165 1-6 B
(Unaudited)
(REEK)

TR

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES -

Cash received from sales of goods or rendering
of services

Other cash received relating to operating
activities

RERHELRN
=3

SZ /)1

HERM - RESH
LSk

Yo B B o BRI R B
BRNRS

S
Hlo ot

5,676,089,959.64

204,642,378.06

Subtotal of cash inflows from operating activities

RERBRBRANG

5,880,732,337.70

Cash paid for goods and services

BERm  BXHEK

5,099,766,750.71

538,042,533.80
670,327,381.01

293,613,929.76

6,601,750,595.28

19 (721,018,257.58)

EENEEKA

Cash paid to and on behalf of employees TRGEBIUARAE
BIZMES

Cash paid for all types of taxes TRESERE

Other cash paid relating to operating activities SR LIRS
EHENFEE

Subtotal of cash outflows from operating KETEBIR ST H NG

activities

Net cash flows from operating activities RERHELR

ReReFH
Il CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES — REEDELEH

ReEne

Cash received from sale of investments
Cash received from return on investments

Y El s B U2 M3 5
BGHRE W R KEH

100,000,000.00

3,060,000.00

248.00

30,000,000.00

133,060,248.00

203,292,668.05
420,258,400.00

623,551,068.05

e
Net cash received from disposal of subsidiaries BRETARINEAD
and other business entities bRl €Ly
e FE
Net cash received from disposal of fixed assets, REETEE « BF
intangible assets and other long-term assets EEMEMRIAE
ERENESFE
Other cash received relating to investing activities WEI M EREEHE
AR S
Subtotal of cash inflows from investing activities KEZEHRETANET
Cash paid for acquisition of fixed assets, BRETEE -
intangible assets and other long-term assets B AEME MR
EEXNNRE
Cash paid for acquisition of investments REZRHOHRS
Other cash paid relating to investing activities FR ) E A E A
BEHERNER S
Subtotal of cash outflows from investing activities BEZEHBR LMD &t
Net cash flows used in investing activities BERSELR
ReEmeFHE

(490,490,820.05)

January to June
2015
2015F1-6 A
(Unaudited)
(RigER)

9,486,776,859.24

316,630,009.23

9,803,406,868.47

8,480,169,492.98

492,669,869.13
548,590,706.21

483,539,693.86

10,004,969,762.18

(201,562,893.71)

70,000,000.00

224,195,465.32

49,893,098.00

344,088,563.32

253,854,976.48
632,297,213.95

886,152,190.43

(542,063,627.11)

BBSIHMERBATALES

The financial statements have been signed by:

Legal Representative: Principal in charge of accounting: Head of accounting department:

EEREKA TESHIERBRA BRHEBEAEEA
Tan Xuguang Kwong Kwan Tong Li Xia

E B BPIRE
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Company Cash Flow Statement (Continued)

January to June 2016 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

NEIB & EE ()
2016F 1-6 A(AR¥T)

Note XV
MaE+R

IIl. CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES =

Other cash received relating to financing

activities

BERHELRN

A=
BERE

WEEMAZELY
BRMRE

Subtotal of cash inflows from financing

activities

BETHRERANG

Other cash paid relating to financing

activities

XHEMEEEES
BRMRE

Subtotal of cash outflows from financing

activities

BETDRES MM/

Net cash flows from financing activities

BERYELN
RenEFHE

V. EFFECT OF CHANGES IN EXCHANGE RATEON [~

EXZHURSNTE

January to June

2016

20165 1-6 A
(Unaudited)
(REER)

29,247.15

29,247.15

29,247.15

CASH 17,704.37
V. NET DECREASE IN CASH AND CASH i BelkBe

EQUIVALENTS EEMFRL (1,211,462,126.11)

Add: Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of m:BNRe MEe
period EEMNE 12,429,369,847.65

VI CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF N HERRESEBES

PERIOD SEMHRE 20 11,217,907,721.54
The financial statements have been signed by: HBMEBEATALESE

Legal Representative:

Tan Xuguang

b BPIRE

Principal in charge of accounting:

EEREA TEEHIEERA

Kwong Kwan Tong

Li Xia

January to June
2015

20155 1-6 4
(Unaudited)
(REER)

10,835,481.60

10,835,481.60

(10,835,481.60)

(9,516.10)

(754,471,518.52)

13,418,614,444.43

12,664,142,925.91

Head of accounting department:

SRRBEAREA
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Notes to Financial Statements

30 June 2016 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

I. Corporate Background

Weichai Power Co., Ltd. (the “Company”) is a joint stock company limited
by shares incorporated in Shandong, the People’s Republic of China. It
was established on 23 December 2002.

The RMB ordinary A shares and overseas listed foreign H shares issued by
the Company were listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange and The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, respectively. The registered address of
the Company’s headquarters is 197, Section A, Fu Shou East Street, High
Technology Industrial Development Zone, Weifang, Shandong Province.
The Company operates in the transportation equipment manufacturing
industry. The approved scope of operations of the Company covers:
Design, development, production, sale, repair, import and export of diesel
engines and auxiliary products; automobile (except sedans), automobile
axle and components, gear boxes and components and other automobile
components, hydraulic pumps, hydraulic motors, hydraulic valves, gears
and gear transmission devices, ancillary casting and casting products
of hydraulic components; technical consultation and technical services;
leasing of self-owned houses; sale of steel; business management service;
forklift trucks and warehouses technology services (should hold operating

permit(s) for operations requiring administrative permission).

Weichai Group Holdings Limited and Shandong Heavy Industry Group
Co., Ltd., established in the PRC, are the parent company and ultimate

parent company of the Group respectively.

These interim financial statements were approved by the board of

directors of the Company on 30 August 2016.

The consolidation scope of consolidated financial statements is determined

on the basis of control. Please refer to Note VI for changes this year.

MR OBRMBRAR(ARA )RR
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2016 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

II.

I1I.

Preparation basis of the financial statements
These interim financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises — No. 32 Interim Financial

Reporting issued by the Ministry of Finance (the “MOF").

These interim financial statements include selected explanatory notes,
which are provided for easy understanding of the Group’s important
events and transactions leading to its financial position and change of
results of operations since the financial statements for the year 2015.
These selected notes do not include all information and disclosures
required under the Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises for a
full set of financial statements. As such, these statements shall be read in

conjunction with the financial statements for the year 2015.
The interim financial statements are presented on a going concern basis.

Other than certain financial instruments and held-for-sale assets, these
financial statements have been prepared at historical costs. Non-current
assets classified as held-for-sale and assets under disposal group classified
as held-to-sale are carried at the lower of fair value less foreseeable
expenses or original carrying amount upon satisfying conditions for
held-for-sale. If the assets are impaired, corresponding provisions for

impairment shall be made according to relevant provisions.

Significant Accounting Policies and
Accounting Estimates

Accounting policies and accounting estimates are formulated based on
the actual characteristics of production and operation. These are reflected
in the provision for bad debts in respect of receivables, classification of
fixed assets and depreciation estimation, classification of intangible assets

and long-term pre-paid expenses and estimation of amortization.

1. Accounting year
The accounting year of the Group is from 1 January to 31 December
of each calendar year. This accounting period is from 1 January to
30 June.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2016 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

III. Significant Accounting Policies and
Accounting Estimates (Continued)

2.

Functional currency

The functional currency of the Company and the currency used in
preparing the financial statements were Renminbi. The amounts
in the financial statements were denominated in Renminbi, unless

otherwise stated.

The subsidiaries, jointly controlled enterprises and associates of the
Company may determine their own functional currencies based
on the major economic environment in which they operate the
business. In preparation of financial statements, their functional
currencies shall be translated into Renminbi.

Business combination

A business combination is a transaction or event that brings
together two or more separate entities into one reporting entity.
Business combinations are classified into business combinations
involving entities under common control and business combinations
not involving entities under common control.

Business combinations involving entities under common
control

A business combination involving entities under common control
is a business combination in which all of the combining entities
are ultimately controlled by the same party or parties both before
and after the combination, and that control is not transitory. For
a business combination involving entities under common control,
the party that, on the combination date, obtains control of another
entity participating in the combination is the absorbing party, while
that other entity participating in the combination is the party being
absorbed. Combination date is the date on which the absorbing
party effectively obtains control of the party being absorbed.

Assets and liabilities that are obtained by the absorbing party in
a business combination involving entities under common control,
including goodwill arising from the acquisition of the party being
absorbed by the ultimate controller, shall be accounted for on
the basis of the carrying amounts on the financial statements of
the ultimate controller at the combination date. The difference
between the carrying amount of the net assets obtained and the
carrying amount of the consideration paid for the combination (or
the aggregate face value of shares issued as consideration) shall
be adjusted to share premium under capital reserve. If the capital
reserve is not sufficient to absorb the difference, any excess shall be
adjusted against retained earnings.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2016 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

III. Significant Accounting Policies and
Accounting Estimates (Continued)

3.

Business combination (Continued)

Business combinations not involving entities under
common control

A business combination not involving entities under common
control is a business combination in which all of the combining
entities are not ultimately controlled by the same party or parties
both before and after the combination. For a business combination
not involving entities under common control, the party that, on the
acquisition date, obtains control of another entity participating in
the combination is the acquirer, while that other entity participating
in the combination is the acquiree. Acquisition date refers to
the date on which the acquirer effectively obtains control of the

acquiree.

The acquirer shall measure the acquiree’s identifiable assets,
liabilities and contingent liabilities acquired in the business
combination not involving entities under common control at their

fair values on the acquisition date.

The excess of the sum of the consideration paid (or equities
securities issued) for business combination and equity interests in
the acquiree held prior to the date of acquisition over the share of
the attributable net identifiable assets of the acquiree, measured
at fair value, was recognized as goodwill, which is subsequently
measured at cost less cumulative impairment loss. In case the fair
value of the sum of the consideration paid (or equities securities
issued) and equity interests in the acquiree held prior to the date of
acquisition is less than the fair value of the share of the attributable
net identifiable assets of the acquiree, a review of the measurement
of the fair values of the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent
liabilities, the consideration paid for the combination (or equities
securities issued) and the equity interests in the acquiree held prior
to the date of acquisition is conducted. If the review indicates that
the fair value of the sum of the consideration paid (or equities
securities issued) and equity interests in the acquiree held prior
to the date of acquisition is indeed less than the fair value of the
share of the attributable net identifiable assets of the acquiree, the

difference is recognized in current profit or loss.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2016 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

III. Significant Accounting Policies and
Accounting Estimates (Continued)

3.

Business combination (Continued)

Business combinations not involving entities under
common control (Continued)

For a business combination involving enterprises not under common
control and achieved in stages, the Group remeasures its previously-
held equity interest in the acquiree to its fair value at the acquisition
date. The difference between the fair value and the carrying
amount is recognized as investment income for the current period;
the amount recognized in other comprehensive income using the
equity method and relating to the previously-held equity interest in
the acquiree shall be accounted for in accordance with the same
accounting treatment for direct disposal of relevant asset or liability
by investee. Movement of other owners’ equity (excluding net profit
or loss, other comprehensive income and profit distribution) shall
be transferred to profit or loss for the current period to which the

acquisition date belongs.

Consolidated financial statements

The consolidation scope of consolidated financial statements
is determined on the basis of control, including the financial
statements for the half year ended 30 June 2016 of the Company
and all of its subsidiaries. A subsidiary is an entity that is controlled
by the Company, including separable parts of an enterprise or

investee and structured entities controlled by the Company, etc.

In preparation of consolidated financial statements, the subsidiaries
use the same accounting period and accounting policies as those
of the Company. When the accounting policies of a subsidiary are
different from those of the Company, the Company shall make
adjustments to the financial statements of the subsidiary based
on its own accounting policies. All intra-group assets, liabilities,
equity, income, expenses and cash flows resulting from intra-group

transactions are eliminated on consolidation in full.

Where the amount of losses of a subsidiary attributable to the
minority shareholders in the current period exceeds their share of
the opening balance of owner’s equity of the subsidiary, the excess

shall be allocated against minority interests.
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50 Weichai Power Co., Ltd.

HRBORHERDE

Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2016 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

III. Significant Accounting Policies and
Accounting Estimates (Continued)

4.

Consolidated financial statements (Continued)
For subsidiaries acquired through business combinations not
involving entities under common control, the operating results and
cash flows of the acquiree shall be included in the consolidated
financial statements, from the day on which the Group gains
control, till the Group ceases the control of it. While preparing
the consolidated financial statements, the acquirer shall adjust the
subsidiary’s financial statements, on the basis of the fair values of
the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities recognized
on the acquisition date.

For subsidiaries acquired through business combinations involving
entities under common control, the operating results and cash
flows of the acquiree shall be included in the consolidated
financial statements from the beginning of the period in which
the combination occurs. While preparing the comparative financial
statements, adjustments are made to related items in the financial
statements for the prior period as if the reporting entity established
through combination has been existing since the ultimate controller
begins to exercise control.

The Group’s control over an investee is re-assessed if change in
relevant facts and situations causes changes in one or more of the
control substances.

Where there is no loss of control, the change in minority interests is
accounted for as equity transaction.

Classification of joint arrangements and joint
operation

Joint arrangements are in the form of joint operation or jointly-
controlled enterprise. A joint operation is a joint arrangement under
which the joint venture parties are entitled to assets and undertake
liabilities under the arrangement. A jointly-controlled enterprise is
a joint arrangement under which the joint venture parties are only
entitled to the net assets under such arrangement.

The following items should be recognised by a joint venture party in
relation to its share of profit in the joint operation: solely held assets,
as well as jointly held assets according to its share; solely assumed
liabilities, as well as jointly assumed liabilities according to its share;
income derived from its entitled share of production of the joint
operation; income derived from the sales of production of the joint
operation according to its share; solely incurred expenses, as well as
expenses incurred by the joint operation according to its share.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2016 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

III. Significant Accounting Policies and
Accounting Estimates (Continued)

6.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash comprises the Group’s cash on hand and deposits that can
be readily withdrawn on demand. Cash equivalents are short-
term, highly liquid investments held by the Group, that are readily
convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value.

Foreign currency operations and foreign
currency translation

The Group translates the amount of foreign currency transactions
occurred into its functional currency.

Foreign currency transactions are recorded, on initial recognition,
in the functional currency, by applying to the foreign currency
amount the spot exchange rate prevailing on the transaction dates.
At the balance sheet date, foreign currency monetary items are
translated using the spot exchange rate prevailing on the balance
sheet date. All the resulting differences on settlement and monetary
item translation are taken to profit or loss in the current period,
except for those relating to foreign currency borrowings specifically
for construction and acquisition of qualifying assets, which are
capitalized in accordance with the principle of capitalization of
borrowing costs. Non-monetary foreign currency items measured
at historical cost shall still be translated at the spot exchange rate
prevailing on the transaction date, and the amount denominated
in the functional currency is not changed. Non-monetary foreign
currency items measured at fair value are translated at the spot
exchange rate prevailing at the date on which the fair values are
determined. The difference thus resulted are recognized in profit or
loss for the current period or as other comprehensive income based
on the nature of the non-monetary items.

For foreign operations, the Group translates their functional
currency amounts into RMB in preparing the financial statements as
follows: asset and liability items in the balance sheet are translated
using the spot exchange rate at the balance sheet date, and
equity items other than “retained earnings” are translated using
the spot exchange rate at the date of transactions; revenue and
expense items in the income statement are translated using the
average exchange rate for the period during which the transactions
occur. The resulting foreign currency exchange differences in the
financial statement are recognized in other comprehensive income.
On disposal of a foreign operation, the component of other
comprehensive income relating to that particular foreign operation is
recognized in the profit or loss for the current period. If the disposal
only involves a portion of a particular foreign operation, the amount
is recognized on a pro-rata basis.
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HRBORHERDE

Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2016 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

III. Significant Accounting Policies and
Accounting Estimates (Continued)

7.

Foreign currency operations and foreign
currency translation (Continued)

Foreign currency cash flows and the cash flows of foreign
subsidiaries are translated using the average exchange rate for the
period during which the cash flows occur. The effect of exchange
rate changes on cash is separately presented as an adjustment item

in the cash flow statement.

Financial instruments
A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial
asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity instrument of

another entity.

Recognition and Derecognition of Financial Instruments
The Group recognizes a financial asset or a financial liability when
it becomes a party to the contractual provisions of a financial

instrument.

The Group derecognizes a financial asset (or part of a financial
asset, or part of a group of similar financial assets), i.e. writes off
the financial asset from the account and balance sheet, when the

following conditions are met:

(1) the rights to receive cash flows from the financial asset have

expired;

(2) the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows
from the financial asset, or has assumed an obligation to pay
them in full without material delay to a third party under a
“pass-through” arrangement; and either (a) has transferred
substantially all the risks and rewards of the ownership of
the financial asset, or (b) has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all the risks and rewards of the ownership of the
financial asset, but has transferred control of the financial

asset.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2016 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

III. Significant Accounting Policies and
Accounting Estimates (Continued)

8.

Financial instruments (Continued)

Recognition and Derecognition of Financial Instruments
(Continued)

If the underlying obligation of a financial liability has been
discharged or cancelled or has expired, the financial liability is
derecognized. If an existing financial liability is replaced by the
same creditor with a new financial liability that has substantially
different terms, or if the terms of an existing financial liability are
substantially revised, such replacement or revision is accounted for
as the derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of
a new liability, and the resulting difference is recognized in profit or

loss for the current period.

Regular way purchase or sale of financial assets are recognized and
derecognized using trade date accounting. Regular way purchase
or sale of financial assets refers to that the financial assets are
delivered to or by the Group under the terms of a contract within a
period as specified by law or general practice. The trade date is the

date on which the Group undertakes to buy or sell a financial asset.

Classification and Measurement of Financial Assets

Financial assets are, on initial recognition, classified into the
following categories: financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss, held-to-maturity investments, loans and receivables, available-
for-sale financial assets and derivatives designated as effective
hedging instruments. A financial asset is recognized initially at fair
value. In the case of financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss, relevant transaction costs are directly charged to the profit
and loss of the current period; transaction costs relating to financial
assets of other categories are included in the amount initially

recognized.
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54 Weichai Power Co., Ltd.

HRBORHERDE

Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2016 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

III. Significant Accounting Policies and
Accounting Estimates (Continued)

8.

Financial instruments (Continued)

Classification and Measurement of Financial Assets
(Continued)

The subsequent measurement of a financial asset is determined by

its category:
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss include financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss and those designated
upon initial recognition as financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss. A financial asset at fair value through profit or loss
is the financial asset that meets one of the following conditions:
the financial asset is acquired for the purpose of selling it in a
short term; the financial asset is a part of a portfolio of identifiable
financial instruments that are collectively managed, and there is
objective evidence indicating that the enterprise recently manages
this portfolio for the purpose of short-term profits; the financial
asset is a derivative, except for a derivative that is designated as
an effective hedging instrument, or a financial guarantee contract,
or a derivative that is linked to and must be settled by delivery of
an unquoted equity investment (without a quoted price from an
active market) whose fair value cannot be reliably measured. For
such kind of financial assets, fair values are adopted for subsequent
measurement. All the realized or unrealized gains or losses on
these financial assets are recognized in profit or loss for the current
period. Dividend income or interest income related to financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss is charged to profit or loss for the

current period.

Held-to-maturity investments

Held-to-maturity investments are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturity date
that the Group has the positive intention and ability to hold to
maturity. Such kind of financial assets are subsequently measured at
amortized cost using the effective interest method. Gains or losses
arising from amortization or impairment and derecognition are

recognized in profit or loss for the current period.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2016 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

III. Significant Accounting Policies and
Accounting Estimates (Continued)

8.

Financial instruments (Continued)

Classification and Measurement of Financial Assets
(Continued)

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active
market. Such kind of financial assets are subsequently measured at
amortized cost using the effective interest method. Gains or losses
arising from amortization or impairment are recognized in profit or

loss for the current period.

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are those non-derivative financial
assets that are on initial recognition designated as available for sale
or are not classified as any of the aforesaid categories. After initial
recognition, available-for-sale financial assets are measured at fair
value. The discount/premium is amortized using effective interest
method and recognized as interest income or expense. Changes in
the fair value of an available-for-sale financial asset is recognized
as other comprehensive income in capital reserve, except for
impairment losses and exchange differences resulted from
monetary financial assets, until the financial asset is derecognized or
determined to be impaired, at which time the accumulated gain or
loss is transferred to profit or loss for the current period. Dividends
or interest income relating to an available-for-sale financial asset are

recognized in profit or loss for the current period.

Investments in equity investments, which do not have quoted
prices in an active market and whose fair values cannot be reliably

measured, are measured at cost.

Classification and Measurement of Financial Liabilities

The Group's financial liabilities are, on initial recognition, classified
into financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, other
financial liabilities or derivatives designated as effective hedging
instruments. For financial liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss, relevant transaction costs are directly recognized in profit or
loss for the current period, and transaction costs relating to other

financial liabilities are included in the initial recognition amounts.
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56  Weichai Power Co., Ltd.

HRBORHERDE

Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2016 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

III. Significant Accounting Policies and
Accounting Estimates (Continued)

8.

Financial instruments (Continued)

Classification and Measurement of Financial Liabilities
(Continued)

The subsequent measurement of a financial liability is determined

by its category:
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include
financial liabilities held for trading and those designated upon initial
recognition as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss.
A financial liability held for trading is the financial liability that meets
one of the following conditions: the financial liability is assumed for
the purpose of repurchasing it in a short term; the financial liability
is a part of a portfolio of identifiable financial instruments that are
collectively managed, and there is objective evidence indicating
that the enterprise recently manages this portfolio for the purpose
of short-term profits; the financial liability is a derivative, except
for a derivative that is designated as effective hedging instrument,
or a financial guarantee contract, or a derivative that is linked to
and must be settled by delivery of an unquoted equity investment
(without a quoted price from an active market) whose fair value
cannot be reliably measured. For such kind of financial liabilities, fair
values are adopted for subsequent measurement. All the realized or
unrealized gains or losses on these financial liabilities are recognized

in profit or loss for the current period.

Other financial liabilities
After initial recognition, such kind of financial liabilities are

measured at amortized costs by using the effective interest method.

Elimination of financial instruments

The net amount after eliminating financial assets and financial
liabilities is presented in the balance sheet if the following
conditions are satisfied: A lawful right exists for eliminating
recognized amounts, and such lawful right is currently enforceable;
it is planned that the financial assets and financial liabilities are to
be netted against each other, or that they are to be realized and

settled simultaneously.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2016 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

III. Significant Accounting Policies and
Accounting Estimates (Continued)

8.

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial guarantee contract

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires the issuer
to settle a debt or assume a liability to reimburse the holder for a
loss it incurs because a specified debtor fails to make payment when
due in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument. Financial
guarantee contracts are measured, on initial recognition, at fair
value. For financial guarantee contracts that are not designated as
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, they are, after
initial recognition, subsequently measured at the higher of: the
amount of the best estimate of the expenditure required to settle
the present obligation at the balance sheet date; and the amount
initially recognized less the accumulated amortization determined

according to the principles of revenue recognition.

Derivative Financial Instruments

The Group uses derivative financial instruments such as forward
currency contracts and interest rate swaps to hedge its risks
associated with foreign currency and interest rate fluctuations. Such
derivative financial instruments are initially recognised at fair value
on the date on which a derivative contract is entered into and are
subsequently remeasured at fair value. Derivatives are carried as
assets when the fair value is positive and as liabilities when the fair
value is negative. A financial derivative that is linked to and must
be settled by delivery of an unquoted equity instrument (without a
quoted price in an active market) whose fair value cannot be reliably

measured is measured at cost.

Any gains or losses arising from changes in fair value of derivatives
are taken directly to profit or loss for the current period, except for
the effective portion of cash flow hedges, which is recognised in
other comprehensive income and later reclassified to profit or loss

when the hedged item affects profit or loss.
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58  Weichai Power Co., Ltd.

HRBORHERDE

Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2016 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

III. Significant Accounting Policies and
Accounting Estimates (Continued)

8.

Financial instruments (Continued)

Impairment of Financial Assets

The Group assesses at the balance sheet date the carrying amount
of every financial asset. If there is objective evidence indicating
a financial asset may be impaired, a provision is provided for the
impairment. Objective evidence that a financial asset is impaired is
one or more events that occur after the initial recognition of the
asset and have an impact (which can be reliably estimated) on the
expected future cash flows of the financial asset. Where there arises
any of the following objective evidences indicating that accounts
receivable have been impaired, an impairment provision will be
made: a serious financial difficulty occurs to the debtor; the debtor
breaches any of the contractual stipulations (such as he fails to pay
or delays the payment of interests or the principal); the debtor will
probably go bankrupt or carry out other financial reorganisations;
other objective evidences show that the accounts receivable are

impaired.

Financial assets carried at amortized cost

If an impairment on a financial asset has incurred, the carrying
amount of the asset is reduced to the present value of expected
future cash flows (excluding future credit losses that have not
been incurred) and such reduction is taken to profit or loss for the
current period. The present value of expected future cash flows is
discounted at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate
(i.e. effective interest rate computed on initial recognition) and
includes the value of any related collateral. Where floating interest
rate is adopted, the discount rate for determining the present value
of future cash flow shall be equal to the prevailing effective rate
which is contractually stipulated. Interest income upon impairment is
recognized at a rate equal to the discount rate used for discounting

future cashflow upon recognition of impairment loss.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2016 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

III. Significant Accounting Policies and
Accounting Estimates (Continued)

8.

Financial instruments (Continued)

Impairment of Financial Assets (Continued)

Financial assets carried at amortized cost (Continued)

For a financial asset that is individually significant, the asset is
individually assessed for impairment, and the amount of impairment
loss is recognized in profit or loss for the current period if there is
objective evidence of impairment. For a financial asset that is not
individually significant, it is included in a group of financial assets
with similar credit risk characteristics and collectively assessed for
impairment. If no impairment incurs for an individually assessed
financial asset (whether the financial asset is individually significant
or not individually significant), it is included in a group of financial
assets with similar credit risk characteristics and collectively assessed
for impairment. Assets for which an impairment loss is individually
recognized is not included in a group of financial assets with similar

credit risk characteristics and collectively assessed for impairment.

If, subsequent to the Group’s recognition of an impairment loss
on a financial asset carried at amortized cost, there is objective
evidence of a recovery in value of the financial asset and the
recovery can be related to an event occurring after the impairment
was recognized, the previously recognized impairment loss is
reversed and recognized in profit or loss for the current period.
However, the reversal shall not result in a carrying amount of the
financial asset that exceeds what the amortized cost would have
been had the impairment loss not been recognized at the date the

impairment is reversed.

Available-for-sale financial assets

If there is objective evidence that an available-for-sale asset is
impaired, the accumulated loss arising from decline in fair value
previously recognized in other comprehensive income is removed
and recognized in profit or loss. The accumulated loss that removed
from other comprehensive income is the difference between the
acquisition cost (net of any principal repayment and amortization)
and the current fair value, less any impairment loss on the financial

asset previously recognized in profit or loss.
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60  Weichai Power Co., Ltd.

HRBORHERDE

Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2016 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

III. Significant Accounting Policies and
Accounting Estimates (Continued)

8.

Financial instruments (Continued)

Impairment of Financial Assets (Continued)
Available-for-sale financial assets (Continued)

Objective evidence indicating that available-for-sale equity
investment is impaired include significant or prolonged decline in
fair value. Judgments shall be made in distinguishing “significant”
and “prolonged”. “Significant” is judged by the extent of fair
value below its cost and “prolonged” is judged by the length
of period where fair value falls below its cost. Where objective
evidence of impairment exists, the accumulated loss of the transfer
is represented by the balance of acquisition cost after deduction
of the current fair value and impairment loss previously charged to
profit and loss. The impairment loss on an available-for-sale equity
investment is not reversed through profit or loss, and any increase
of fair value that occurs after the impairment is recognized directly

in other comprehensive income.

The determination of what is “significant” and “prolonged”
requires judgment. The Group takes into account, among other
factors, the extent and duration of the period of the fair value being

lower than cost, in such determination.

If, after an impairment loss has been recognized on an available-
for-sale debt instrument, the fair value of the debt instrument
increases in a subsequent period and the increase can be objectively
related to an event occurring after the original impairment loss
was recognized, the original impairment loss is reversed with the
amount of the reversal recognized in profit or loss for the current

period.

Financial assets carried at cost

If there is objective evidence that such a financial asset is impaired,
the difference between its carrying amount and the present value
of expected future cash flows which are discounted at the current
market yield rate of similar financial assets is recognized as an
impairment loss in profit or loss for the current period. Once an

impairment loss is recognized, it is not reversed.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2016 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

III. Significant Accounting Policies and
Accounting Estimates (Continued)

8.

Financial instruments (Continued)
Transfer of Financial Assets

If the Group transfers substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the financial asset to the transferee, the Group
derecognizes the financial asset; if the Group retains substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset, the Group

does not derecognize the financial asset.

If the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership of the financial asset, it is accounted for as
follows: if the Group has not retained control, it derecognizes the
financial asset and recognizes any resulting assets or liabilities; if the
Group has retained control, it continues to recognize the financial
asset to the extent of its continuing involvement in the transferred

financial asset and recognizes the relevant liability.

For ongoing involvement by way of provision of financial guarantee
in respect of the transferred financial assets, the assets arising from
such involvement is recognized as the lower of the carrying amount
of the financial assets and the amount of the financial guarantee.
Amount of financial guarantee refers to the maximum amount to

be repayable on demand among the considerations received.

Receivables

(1) Receivables Which Are Individually Significant and
for Which Provision for Bad Debt Is Recognized
Separately
In judging receivables which are individually significant,
the Group takes into account accounts receivables and
other receivables due from individual customers, risks
specific to particular customers, risks specific to particular
countries, interest on long-term receivables and the extent of
guaranteed portion of receivables etc. Receivables which are
individually significant are tested for impairment individually.
When objective evidence indicates that the receivable has
been impaired, bad debt provision is made based on the
shortfall of the present value of future cash flow as compared
to its carrying amount, and is charged to profit and loss for

the current period.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2016 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

III. Significant Accounting Policies and
Accounting Estimates (Continued)
9. Receivables (Continued)

(2) Receivables for Which Provision for Bad Debt Is
Recognized by Group With Distinctive Credit Risk
Characteristics
Other than receivables for which provision for bad debts
has been recognized individually, provision for bad debt is
recognized by group based on the actual loss rate of identical
or similar group in prior year or with similar distinctive credit

risk characteristics, taking into account the current situation.

Other than business segments located overseas, the grouping
of receivables is based on their ages which are taken as
a distinctive credit risk characteristic. Ageing analysis is
conducted to determine the provision for bad debt for

trade receivables and other receivables, at the following
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percentages:

Percentage provided for
Age FRie sTHRLL
Within 1 year 1R 5%
1-2 years 1224 15%
2-3 years 2E3F 30%
3-4 years 3E4%F 50%
4-5 years 455 80%
Over 5 years 5F A 100%

For business segments located overseas, grouping of
receivables is based on their overdue ages which are taken as

a distinctive credit risk characteristic.

If objective evidence shows a recovery in value of the
receivables, the original bad debt provision can be reversed

and carried through profit and loss in the current period.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2016 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

III. Significant Accounting Policies and
Accounting Estimates (Continued)

9.

10.

Receivables (Continued)

(3) Receivables Which Are Not Individually Significant
But Provision for Bad Debt Is Recognized Separately
For receivables which are not individually significant but
objective evidence shows that the impairment has occurred,
bad debt provision will be made according to the difference
between the present value of future cash flows and its
carrying amounts and will be carried through profit and loss

for the current period.

If clear evidence indicates that the receivables are indeed
not recoverable, such as in case of cancellation, bankruptcy
or insolvency of the debtor or its serious cash flow problem,
then it is recognized as a bad debt and written off for bad

debt provision already made.

Inventories
Inventories include materials in transit, raw materials, work in
progress, finished goods, materials under entrusted processing, self
made semi-finished goods, turnover materials and second-hand
forklift trucks etc.

Inventories are initially carried at cost. Cost of inventories comprises
all costs of purchase, costs of conversion and other costs. The actual
cost of inventories transferred out is assigned by using weighted
average method, first-in-first-out method or specific identification
method. Low value consumables are amortized by using immediate

write-off method.
The Groups adopts perpetual inventory system.

At the balance sheet date, inventories are measured at the lower
of cost and net realizable value. If the cost of inventories is higher
than the net realizable value, a provision for decline in value of
inventories is recognized in profit or loss for the current period. If
factors that previously resulted in the provision for decline in value
of inventories no longer exist, so that the net realizable value is
higher than the carrying amount, the amount of the write-down is
reversed. The reversal is limited to the amount originally provided
for the decline in value of inventories. The amount of the reversal is

recognized in profit or loss for the current period.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2016 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

III. Significant Accounting Policies and
Accounting Estimates (Continued)
10. Inventories (Continued)
Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary
course of business less the estimated costs of completion and the
estimated costs necessary to make the sale and relevant taxes. The
provision for decline in value of inventories is made on an individual

basis or a category basis.

11. Classified as held-for-sale assets
Except for financial assets and deferred tax assets, corporate
constituents (or non-current assets) are classified as held-for-sale if

the following conditions are satisfied:

(1) The constituent (or non-current asset) shall be ready for
immediate sale merely under customary terms for this kind of

constituent in its existing conditions;

(2)  Resolution has been made by the Group concerning the
disposition of such constituent (or non-current asset) and, if

required, shareholders’ approval have been obtained,;

(3) Irrevocable transfer agreement has been entered into with

transferee;
(4)  The transfer will be completed within one year.

Individual assets or disposal groups of non-current assets classified as
held-for-sale are not subject to depreciation or amortization. They
are measured at fair value less cost of disposal, but such amount
shall not exceed the original carrying amount during a period where
the conditions precedent to being held-for-sale are satisfied. The
excess of the original carrying amount over fair value less cost of
disposal shall be taken to profit and loss for the current period as

loss on impairment of assets.

12. Long-term equity investments
Long-term equity investments include equity investments in

subsidiaries, jointly controlled enterprises and associates.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2016 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 2016F6 H30H (AR #or)

III. Significant Accounting Policies and = - 5 % & 5 8K & & 5 4 5
Accounting Estimates (Continued) (%)
12. Long-term equity investments (Continued) 12. RERERE (&)

A long-term equity investment is initially recorded at its initial
investment cost on acquisition. For a long-term equity investment
acquired under business combination involving entities under
common control, the initial investment cost is determined as
the initial investment cost of the long-term equity investment is
the carrying value of the absorbing party’s share of the owner’s
equity of the party being absorbed as of the date of business
combination on the consolidated financial statements of the
ultimate controller. The difference between the initial investment
cost and the carrying value of the consideration for combination is
adjusted to capital reserve (or charged against retained earnings if
there is any shortfall). Other comprehensive income held prior to
the acquisition date is accounted for on the same basis as where
the assets or liabilities are directly disposed of by the investee in
disposing of such assets or liabilities. Owners' equity recognized as
a result of changes in other owners’ equity of the investee other
than net gains and losses, other comprehensive income and profit
appropriation is taken to profit and loss for the current period upon
the disposal of such investment. In particular, those which remain as
long-term equity investments upon disposal are carried forward in
proportion, and those which are converted to financial instruments
upon disposal are carried forward in full. For a long-term equity
investment acquired through a business combination involving
entities not under common control, the initial investment cost is
the cost of business combination (Business combination involving
entities not under common control which is achieved after multiple
transactions, the initial investment cost is the sum of carrying
value of equity investments of the acquiree held prior to the date
of acquisition and the addition to investment cost on the date of
acquisition). Cost of business combination includes the sum of fair
values of the assets given, liabilities incurred or assumed, and equity
securities issued by the acquirer. Other comprehensive income
recognized on equity method held prior to the date of acquisition is
accounted for on the same basis as where the assets or liabilities are
directly disposed of by the investee in disposing of such assets or
liabilities. Accumulated fair value change of equity investments held
prior to the date of acquisition being taken to other comprehensive
income as financial instrument is taken to profit or loss for the
current period under cost method. Long-term equity investments
acquired by means other than business combination, initial
investment cost is determined as follows: for a long-term equity
investment acquired by paying cash, the initial investment cost is
the actual purchase price paid and those costs, taxes and other
necessary expenditures directly attributable to the acquisition of
the long-term equity investment; for a long-term equity investment
acquired by the issue of equity securities, the initial investment cost is
the fair value of the equity securities issued. For a long-term equity
investment acquired by the swap of non-monetary assets, initial
investment cost is determined based on Accounting Standard for
Business Enterprises No. 7 — Swap of Non-monetary Assets. For a
long-term equity investment acquired by way of debt restructuring,
initial investment cost is determined based on Accounting Standard
for Business Enterprises No. 12 — Debt Restructuring.

R E RIS R AR E K
EFTOHRFTE - BBR—ZEHT
MEESHREHRABERE - U
EHEMBRAHTAEEREER
RGBT A KM BERERTREEE
D BEIERIIEIRERA : YRR E
RABRGHEEREERCHER
AEBEARRECHRAPRD - IR A
T ) AR Z AT E MRS W
& FREZBREBRAERRKRE
BUEERERBEEXRBERRD
EMETERE  ARRETRF
B - HhsRa WS MAE D B IASN
B Lt s BR AR 2 2 B TR e R ) P R A
o EREREARENBAEHE
7 Hh RERDARIRERE
MIRLLHIEE  RERERASRT
AR 2EEE - @BEIFR—ZEFT
BBESHEGH - A HRAER
MERERACRBZ AR SN T E
BIER— 26 TOEREHN - UE
BRZAFAFREBERE TOBREREN
FREEERRBE RMIGRERA ZM
ERIBIRERAE) - EHRAEE
BEANHEMEE  ZHESAENE
B BETHOEaREESNAAEBEZ
o BERZARFAMERAEDE
TZEMERNEMEARE  ERE
HZEREREAEFREENERRE
ENBEEXABRMARNERETE
FHEE BERAZABANKRERE
ERERMTAF ARMES R R
AR BEESESIRKAEZE R
BAEHEE - RERAHEROE
HARRE A DASIN T AR 1S Y = A B o
KE - BRTIITDEREIEREK
A XNREBEH - UEBENEH
BEERKERSRARBEREERR
HENER  HeREMBEIHE
R E A - BITHES 1 E 5
B UETESUERFNAAEE
ERMBREKAE - BBIFERIEE
EXBEREH  RB(EEGER
B -FEELEERB)EED
RIRERA - BBEFEMAIUSH -
BR(ER G ENFE 12 - AKE
MIEEMRIERA ©



66 Weichai Power Co., Ltd. #SeE HIRBD AR AT

Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2016 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

III. Significant Accounting Policies and
Accounting Estimates (Continued)

12.

Long-term equity investments (Continued)
For a long-term equity investment where the Company can exercise
control over the investee, the Company uses the cost method in the
Company’s financial statements. Control refers to the power over
an investee, and exposure, or rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee, and the ability to use its power over
the investee to affect the amount of the investor’s returns.

Under the cost method, the long-term equity investment is
measured at its initial investment cost. For addition or reduction of
investments, the cost of long-term equity investments is adjusted.
Cash dividend or profit distribution declared by an investee is
recognized as profit or loss in the current period.

The equity method is adopted for a long-term equity investment
when the Group holds joint control, or exercises significant
influence on the investee. Joint control refers to the contractually-
agreed shared control over an arrangement and related activities
under such arrangement shall be decided upon with the unanimous
consent of the parties sharing control. Significant influence is the
power to participate in the financial and operating policy decisions
of the investee but cannot control or jointly control with other
parties over the formulation of those policies.

Under the equity method, where the initial investment cost of a
long-term equity investment exceeds the investing entity’s interest
in the fair values of the investee’s identifiable net assets at the
acquisition date, the excess is included in the initial investment cost.
Where the initial investment cost is less than the investing entity’s
interest in the fair values of the investee’s identifiable net assets at
the acquisition date, the difference is charged to profit or loss for
the current period, and the cost of the long-term equity investment is
adjusted accordingly.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2016 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

III. Significant Accounting Policies and
Accounting Estimates (Continued)

12.

Long-term equity investments (Continued)

Under the equity method, the Group recognizes its share of the
net profits or losses and other comprehensive income made by the
investee as investment income or losses and other comprehensive
income after the acquisition of the long-term equity investments,
and adjusts the carrying amount of the investment accordingly.
The Group recognizes its share of the investee’s net profits or
losses after making appropriate adjustments to the investee’s net
profits based on the fair value of the investee’s identifiable assets
at the acquisition date, using the Group’s accounting policies and
periods, and eliminating the portion of the profits or losses arising
from internal transactions with its jointly controlled enterprises
and associates, attributable to the investing entity according to its
share ratio (but impairment losses for assets arising from internal
transactions shall be recognized in full). The carrying amount of the
investment is reduced accordingly based on the Group’s share of
any profit distributions or cash dividends declared by the investee.
The Group's share of net losses of the investee is recognized to the
extent the carrying amount of the investment together with any
long-term interests that in substance form part of its net investment
in the investee is reduced to zero, except that the Group has
incurred obligations to assume additional losses. The Group adjusts
the carrying amount of the long-term equity investment for any
changes in owners’ equity of the investee (other than net profits
or losses, other comprehensive income and profit distribution) and
includes the corresponding adjustments in the shareholders’ equity.

On disposal of the long-term equity investments, the difference
between book value and market price is recognized in profit or
loss for the current period. For long-term equity investments under
equity method, when the use of the equity method is discontinued,
other comprehensive income previously accounted for under
the equity method shall be dealt with on the same basis as if
the relevant assets or liabilities were disposed of directly by the
investee. Shareholders’ equity recognised as a result of changes in
shareholders’ equity other than the net-off of profit and loss, other
comprehensive income and profit allocation of the investee shall be
transferred in full to current profit and loss. If the equity method
remains in use, other comprehensive income previously accounted
for under the equity method shall be dealt with on the same basis
as if the relevant assets or liabilities were disposed of directly by
the investee and transferred to current profit and loss on a pro-
rata basis. Shareholders’ equity recognised as a result of changes in
shareholders’ equity other than the net-off of profit and loss, other
comprehensive income and profit allocation of the investee shall be
transferred to current profit and loss on a pro-rata basis.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2016 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

III. Significant Accounting Policies and
Accounting Estimates (Continued)

13.

14.

Investment property
Investment property is property held to earn rentals or for capital
appreciation or both. Investment property includes a land use right

that is leased out and a building that is leased out.

An investment property is measured initially at its cost. If the
economic benefits relating to an investment property will probably
flow in and the cost can be reliably measured, subsequent costs
incurred for the property is included in the cost of the investment
property. Otherwise, subsequent costs are recognized in profit or

loss for the period in which they are incurred.

The Group uses the cost model for subsequent measurement of its
investment property. Depreciation or amortization is calculated on

the straight-line basis over its useful life, as follows:
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Estimated Estimated net Annual

useful lives residual depreciation

(years) value rate (%) rate (%)
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Land use rights + b AR 48.5-50 0 2.00-2.06

Houses and buildings B MY 14.5-30 0-5 3.17-6.90
Fixed assets 14. BEEE

A fixed asset is recognized only when the economic benefits
associated with the asset will probably flow to the Group and the
cost of the asset can be measured reliably. Subsequent expenditure
incurred for a fixed asset that meet the recognition criteria shall
be included in the cost of the fixed asset, and the carrying amount
of the component of the fixed asset that is replaced shall be
derecognized. Otherwise, such expenditure shall be recognized in

profit or loss for the period in which they are incurred.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) B i R B 5T (A8
30 June 2016 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 2016F6 H30H (AR #or)

III. Significant Accounting Policies and = - % & 5} B %K & & 544 5

Accounting Estimates (Continued) (78
14. Fixed assets (Continued) 14.

Fixed assets are initially measured at cost. The cost of a purchased

fixed asset comprises the purchase price, relevant taxes and any

directly attributable expenditure for bringing the asset to working

condition for its intended use. Other than fixed assets arising

from the use and appropriation of safety funds, special reserve

offset against the cost of fixed assets, and equivalent amounts

of accumulated depreciation recognized; and certain equipment

of the parent company, and machinery and equipment of certain

subsidiaries namely Weichai America Corp., Shaanxi Fast Gear Co.,

Ltd., Baoji Fast Gear Co., Ltd. and Xi'an Fast Auto Drive Co., Ltd.,

for which double-declining balance method is used for depreciation,

the straight line method is adopted for the depreciation of other

fixed assets.

The expected useful lives, net residual value rates and annual

depreciation rates of fixed assets are presented as follows:
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Estimated Estimated net Annual

useful lives residual depreciation

(years) value rate (%) rate (%)
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ltem ERE| Han (F) BE(%) (%)

Land use rights + M FT A Indefinite

EHARR 0 0

Houses and buildings BEEREEY 10-50 0-5 1.90-10.00

Machinery and equipment 2SR 3-15 0-5 6.33-33.33

Vehicles BRI 4-10 0-5 9.50-25.00

Electronic equipment BTRE 2-15 0-5 6.33-50.00

Others H At 2-15 0-5 6.33-50.00
Forklift trucks and equipment AR NEREE

leased out (long-term) (RH) 2-15 0 6.67-50.00
Forklift trucks and equipment FAHBXERHE

leased out (short-term) (%2 H) 2-15 0 6.67-50.00
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2016 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

III. Significant Accounting Policies and
Accounting Estimates (Continued)

14. Fixed assets (Continued)

Forklift trucks and equipment leased out (long-term)

If the risks and rewards of the leased assets remains with KION
GROUP AG, a subsidiary of the Company, as the lessor under an
operating lease, the assets are reported as a separate item in the
balance sheet and, being measured at cost and are depreciated. To
fund leases, industrial trucks are generally sold by KION GROUP AG
to leasing companies. The industrial trucks are then leased back to
companies in the KION GROUP AG (head lease), who sublease them
to external end customers (described below as”sale and leaseback
sub-leases”). These long-term leases generally have a term of four
to five years. If, in the case of sale and leaseback sub-leases, the
risks and rewards incidental to the head lease are substantially
borne by KION GROUP AG and are not transferred to the end
customers, the corresponding assets are reported as forklift trucks
and equipment leased out (long-term) under fixed assets. However,
if substantially the risks and rewards incidental to the head lease are
transferred to the end customers, a corresponding lease receivable
is recognized. In both cases, the funding items for these long-term
customer leases, which are funded for terms that match those of
the leases, are recognized as lease liabilities.

Forklift trucks and equipment leased out (short-term)
Forklift trucks and equipment leased out (short-term) arises from
short-term rental transactions as well as the sale of industrial trucks
in relation to which significant risks and rewards remain with KION
GROUP AG (“sale with risk”).

In the case of short-term rentals, Linde Material Handling Ltd
("LMH") and STILL Materials Handling Ltd (”STILL") under KION
GROUP AG, a subsidiary group under the Company rent industrial
trucks to customers directly. Short-term rental agreements usually
have a term within one year. The significant risks and rewards
remain with the aforesaid companies. The industrial trucks
are carried at cost and depreciated over the normal useful life,
depending on the product group.

In an indirect leasing arrangement, industrial trucks are sold to
finance partners who then enter into leases with end customers.
If LMH and STILL provide material residual value guarantees or
a customer default guarantee (“sale with risk”), the trucks are
recognized as assets in the balance sheet at their cost on the date
of the sale and written down to their guaranteed residual value,
or zero, on a straight-line basis over the period until the customer
default guarantee expires. If the Company provides a residual value
guarantee, an amount equivalent to the residual value obligation is
recognized under financial liabilities.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2016 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

III. Significant Accounting Policies and
Accounting Estimates (Continued)

14.

15.

16.

Fixed assets (Continued)

Forklift trucks and equipment leased out (short-term)
(Continued)

For fixed assets leased in under finance lease, depreciation for
leased assets is provided for using policy similar to that applied to
self-owned fixed assets. When it can be reasonably determined
that the ownership of a leased asset will be obtained at the end of
the lease term, it is depreciated over the period of expected use;
otherwise, the lease asset is depreciated over the shorter period of
the lease term and its useful life.

The Group reviews the useful life and estimated net residual value
of a fixed asset and the depreciation method applied at least at
each year-end, and make adjustments if necessary.

Construction in progress

The cost of construction in progress is determined according to
the actual expenditure incurred for the construction, including all
necessary construction expenditure incurred during the construction
period, borrowing costs that shall be capitalized before the
construction gets ready for its intended use and other relevant
expenses.

A construction in progress is transferred to fixed asset when the asset
is ready for its intended use.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs are interest and other costs incurred by the Group
in connection with the borrowing of the funds. Borrowing costs
include interest, amortization of discounts or premiums related
to borrowings, ancillary costs incurred in connection with the
arrangement of borrowings, and exchange differences arising from

foreign currency borrowings.

The borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of a qualifying asset are capitalized. The
amounts of other borrowing costs incurred are recognized as an
expense in the period in which they are incurred. Qualifying assets
are assets (fixed assets, investment property and inventories, etc.)
that necessarily take a substantial period of time for acquisition,
construction or production to get ready for their intended use or
sale.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2016 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

III. Significant Accounting Policies and
Accounting Estimates (Continued)
16. Borrowing costs (Continued)
The capitalization of borrowing costs commences only when all of
the following conditions are satisfied:

(1)  expenditures for the asset are being incurred;
(2)  borrowing costs are being incurred;

(3) activities relating to the acquisition, construction or
production of the asset that are necessary to prepare the asset
for its intended use or sale have commenced.

Capitalization of borrowing costs ceases when the qualifying asset
being acquired, constructed or produced becomes ready for its
intended use or sale. Any borrowing costs subsequently incurred are
recognized as an expense in the period in which they are incurred.

During the capitalization period, the amount of interest to be
capitalized for each accounting period shall be determined as

follows:

(1) where funds are borrowed for a specific purpose, the amount
of interest to be capitalized is the actual interest expense
incurred on that borrowing for the period less any bank
interest earned form depositing the borrowed funds before
being used on the asset or any investment income on the
temporary investment of those funds.

(2)  where funds are borrowed for a general purpose, the amount
of interest to be capitalized on such borrowings is determined
by applying a weighted average interest rate to the weighted
average of the excess amounts of accumulated expenditure
on the asset over and above the amounts of specific-purpose

borrowings.

Capitalization of borrowing costs is suspended during periods in
which the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying
asset is interrupted by activities other than those necessary to
prepare the asset for its intended use or sale, when the interruption
is for a continuous period of more than 3 months. Borrowing costs
incurred during these periods are recognized as an expense for the
current period until the acquisition, construction or production is
resumed.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2016 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

III. Significant Accounting Policies and
Accounting Estimates (Continued)

17.

Intangible assets

An intangible asset shall be recognized only when it is probable
that the economic benefit associated with the asset will flow to
the Group and the cost of the asset can be measured reliably.
Intangible assets are measured initially at cost. However, intangible
assets acquired in a business combination with a fair value that can
be measured reliably are recognized separately as intangible assets

and measured at the fair value.

The useful life of an intangible asset is determined according to the
period over which it is expected to generate economic benefits for
the Group. An intangible asset is regarded as having an indefinite
useful life when there is no foreseeable limit to the period over
which the asset is expected to generate economic benefits for the

Group.

The original useful lives of the intangible assets are as follows:
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Land use rights that are acquired by the Group are generally
accounted for as intangible assets. Buildings, such as plants that
are developed and constructed by the Group, and relevant land use
rights and buildings, are accounted for as intangible assets and fixed
assets, respectively. Payments for the land and buildings acquired
are allocated between the land use rights and the buildings; if
they cannot be reasonably allocated, all of the land use rights and
buildings are accounted for as fixed assets.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2016 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

III. Significant Accounting Policies and
Accounting Estimates (Continued)

17.

Intangible assets (Continued)

An intangible asset with a finite useful life is amortized using
the straight-line method over its useful life. For an intangible
asset with a finite useful life, the Group reviews the useful life
and amortization method at least at each year-end and makes

adjustment if necessary.

An intangible asset with an indefinite useful life are tested for
impairment at least once every year, irrespective of whether there
is any indication that the asset may be impaired. This category of
intangible assets will not be amortized and will be reviewed every
accounting period based on its useful life. If there are evidence
indicates that its useful life is limited, the asset will be accounted for
in accordance to the policy for intangible asset with definite useful

life stated above.

The Group classifies the expenditure on an internal research and
development project into expenditure on the research phase and
expenditure on the development phase. Expenditure on the research
phase is recognized in profit or loss for the period in which it is
incurred. Expenditure on the development phase is capitalized when
the Group can demonstrate all of the following: (i) the technical
feasibility of completing the intangible asset so that it will be
available for use or sale; (i) the intention to complete the intangible
asset and use or sell it; (iii) how the intangible asset will generate
probable future economic benefits. Among other things, the Group
can demonstrate the existence of a market for the output of the
intangible asset or the intangible asset itself or, if it is to be used
internally, the usefulness of the intangible asset; (iv) the availability
of adequate technical, financial and other resources to complete
the development and the ability to use or sell the intangible asset;
and (v) its ability to measure reliably the expenditure attributable
to the intangible asset during its development. Expenditure in
the development phase that does not meet the above criteria is

recognized in profit or loss for the period in which it is incurred.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2016 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 2016F6 H30H (AR #or)

III. Significant Accounting Policies and = % & B % & & 51145
Accounting Estimates (Continued) (%)
18. Impairment of assets 18. EERE

The Group determines the impairment of assets, other than the
impairment of inventories, deferred income taxes, financial assets

and assets classified as held-for-sale, using the following methods:

The Group assesses at the balance sheet date whether there is any
indication that an asset may be impaired. If any indication exists
that an asset may be impaired, the Group estimates the recoverable
amount of the asset and performs test for impairment. Goodwill
arising from a business combination and an intangible asset with an
indefinite useful life are tested for impairment at least at each year-
end, irrespective of whether there is any indication that the asset
may be impaired. Intangible assets that have not been ready for

intended use are tested for impairment each year.

The recoverable amount of an asset is the higher of its fair value less
costs to sell and the present value of the future cash flow expected
to be derived from the asset. The Group estimates the recoverable
amount on an individual basis. If it is not possible to estimate the
recoverable amount of the individual asset, the Group determines
the recoverable amount of the asset group to which the asset
belongs. Identification of an asset group is based on whether major
cash inflows generated by the asset group are largely independent

of the cash inflows from other assets or asset groups.

When the recoverable amount of an asset or asset group is less
than its carrying amount, the carrying amount is reduced to the
recoverable amount. The reduction in carrying amount is recognized
in profit or loss for the current period. A provision for impairment of

the asset is recognized accordingly.

For the purpose of impairment testing, the carrying amount of
goodwill acquired in a business combination is allocated from the
acquisition date on a reasonable basis, to each of the related asset
groups; if it is impossible to allocate to the related asset groups,
it is allocated to each of the related sets of asset groups. Each of
the related asset groups or sets of asset groups is an asset group
or set of asset group that is able to benefit from the synergies of
the business combination and shall not be larger than a reportable

segment determined by the Group.

AEEHBEE  RIEMSH - 28
BE INRRKERENEENINE
ERE - RATHIERE

AEEREERBERAHABEERSD
FEARELERENTR - FER
BFRY  AEE/EFETEDS
B OETRENR HEEEA R
TR B B RN R 38 A T HEE Y SR T
BE EwRLFCEREDNSR =D
REFRETRENE - AR HAE
A EARENELEE  hEBFE
TTRAE AR ©

ARESEREEENIABERE
REEMRRNFREEER ARKA
ERENBREMEZRRSERE -
AEBENEREERSERBIEATK
Cef: BUHEBREENT KOS
TR NZEEMBNEE
AAEREETEEAN A KDEHE -
BEEANRE UEEMELNTIE
ReERARBBUNEMEENEE
EANRERABKE -

HEEREAEEHTRESEER
HORE GRS - A WG R A
REETRESHE  REHSEHA
HERR - AEHEARG EERE
ff o

AEEBRRENANS  HRERE
AHERNBENREERE BFE
HEEZERAENITEADEBEHRBNE
Ef: BUBEHENEEAN
BESBMERBNEEMLES - 1868
MEEMAREEEHRAS  BREMK
EEAHNBRBETZENEER
REBEMAES B TARASE B

ERREDED



76 Weichai Power Co., Ltd.

HRBORHERDE

Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2016 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

III. Significant Accounting Policies and
Accounting Estimates (Continued)

18.

19.

Impairment of assets (Continued)

In testing an asset group or a set of asset groups to which goodwill
has been allocated for impairment, if there is any indication of
impairment, the Group firstly tests the asset group or set of
asset groups excluding the amount of goodwill allocated for
impairment, determines the recoverable amount and recognizes
any impairment loss. After that, the Group tests the asset group or
set of asset groups including goodwill for impairment, whereby the
carrying amount of the related asset group or set of asset groups
is compared to its recoverable amount. If the carrying amount of
the asset group or set of asset groups is higher than its recoverable
amount, the amount of the impairment loss firstly reduces the
carrying amount of the goodwill allocated to the asset group or
set of asset groups, and then reduce the carrying amount of other
assets (other than the goodwill) within the asset group or set of asset

groups, pro rata on the basis of the carrying amount of each asset.

Once the above impairment loss is recognized, it cannot be reversed

in subsequent accounting periods.

Long-term prepaid expenses
Long-term prepaid expenses are amortized using straight-line

method with amortization period as follows:
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30 June 2016 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 2016F6 H30H (AR #or)

III. Significant Accounting Policies and = % & B % & & 51145
Accounting Estimates (Continued) (%)
20. Payroll 20. B T %P

Payroll are all forms of consideration or compensation given
by the Group for obtaining services rendered by employees or
for terminating working relationship. Payroll include short-term
remuneration, post-employment benefits, severance benefits and
other long-term staff benefits. The benefits provided to spouses,
children, persons receiving maintenance, widows or widowers of

deceased staff and other beneficiaries are also included in payroll.

Short-term remuneration

Short-term remuneration actually incurred during the accounting
period in which the staff members provide services are recognized as
liability and taken to the profit and loss for the current period or the

costs of the relevant asset.

Post-employment benefits (Defined contribution plan)

The employees of the Group participate in pension insurance
administered by local governments. The relevant expenditure is
recognized, when incurred, in the costs of relevant assets or the

profit and loss for the current period.

Post-employment benefits (Defined benefit plan)

Some overseas subsidiaries of the group operate defined benefit
pension plan, under which contributions shall be made to a
separately-administered fund. The cost of providing benefits under
the defined benefit pension plan is determined using the projected

unit credit method.

Any re-measurements arising from the defined benefit pension
plan, including actuarial gains and losses, change to the effect on
maximum assets (net of amounts included under net interest) and
return on assets under the plan (net of amount included under net
interest), are recognized immediately in balance sheet, and included
as incurred in owners’ equity through other comprehensive income.

No reversal to profit or loss will be made in subsequent periods.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2016 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

III. Significant Accounting Policies and

Accounting Estimates (Continued)

20. Payroll (Continued)
Post-employment benefits (Defined benefit plan)
(Continued)
Previous service costs are recognized as expenses for the current
period on the earlier of the following dates: when amendments are
made to the defined benefit plan; or when the Group recognizes

the relevant reorganization costs or severance benefits.

Net interest is calculated by multiplying the net liabilities or net assets
under the defined benefit plan with the discount rate. Changes in
the net obligations under the defined benefit plan are recognized
under cost of sales, general and administrative expenses and finance
expenses in the income statement. Costs of services include costs of
services for the current period, costs of services for previous periods,
and gains or losses on settlement. Net interest includes interest
income accrued upon assets under the plan, interest expenses
incurred due to obligations under the plan, and interest under the

effect of maximum assets.

Severance benefits

Where the Group provides severance benefits to its employees,
payroll payable arising from such severance benefits are recognized
on the earlier of the following dates and included in profit or loss
for the current period: when the company is unable to unilaterally
withdraw the severance benefits provided under its plan to
terminate working relationship with employees or redundancy plan;
or when the company recognizes costs or expenses relating to

reorganization involving the payment of severance benefits.

Other long-term staff benefits

For other long-term staff benefits provided to staff members, the
provisions for post-employment benefits apply for recognizing and
measuring the net liabilities or net assets for other long-term staff
benefits, but movements are taken to profit and loss for the current

period or the costs of the relevant assets.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2016 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

III. Significant Accounting Policies and
Accounting Estimates (Continued)

21.

Accruals and provisions

Except for contingent consideration transferred and contingent
liability assumed in business combinations not involving entities
under common control, the Group recognizes an obligation related
to a contingency as a provision when all of the following conditions

are satisfied:

(1)  the obligation is a present obligation of the Group;

(2) it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits from the

Group will be required to settle the obligation;
(3)  the amount of the obligation can be measured reliably.

A provision is initially measured at the best estimate of the
expenditure required to settle the related present obligation,
with comprehensive consideration of factors such as the risks,
uncertainty and time value of money relating to a contingency. The
carrying amount of a provision is reviewed at the balance sheet
date. If there is clear evidence that the carrying amount does not
reflect the current best estimate, the carrying amount is adjusted to

the best estimate.

A contingent liability recognized in a business combination from
the acquiree is initially measured at its fair value. Subsequently, it is
measured at the higher of (i) the amount that would be recognized
in accordance with the general guidance for provisions above; and (i)
the amount initially recognized less, when appropriate, cumulative
amortization recognized in accordance with the guidance for

revenue recognition.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2016 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

III. Significant Accounting Policies and
Accounting Estimates (Continued)

22.

Share-based payments

Share-based payments can be distinguished into equity-settled
share-based payments and cash-settled share-based payments.
Equity-settled share-based payments are transactions of the Group
settled through the payment of shares or other equity instruments

in consideration for receiving services.

Equity-settled share-based payments made in exchange for
services rendered by employees are measured at the fair value
of equity instruments granted to employees. Instruments which
are vested immediately upon the grant are charged to relevant
costs or expenses at the fair value on the date of grant and the
capital reserve is credited accordingly. Instruments of which
vesting is conditional upon completion of services or fulfillment
of performance conditions are measured by recognizing services
rendered during the period in relevant costs or expenses and
crediting the capital reserve accordingly at the fair value on the date
of grant according to the best estimates conducted by the Group
at each balance sheet date during the pending period based on
subsequent information such as latest updates on the change in the
number of entitled employees and whether performance conditions
have been fulfilled, and etc. For the fair value of equity instruments,

see Note XI.

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised, together with
a corresponding increase in capital reserve, over the period in which
the performance and service conditions are fulfilled. The cumulative
expense recognised for equity-settled transactions at the end of
each reporting period until the vesting date reflects the extent to
which the vesting period has expired and the Group's best estimate

of the number of equity instruments that will ultimately vest.

No expense is recognised for awards that do not ultimately vest,
except where vesting is conditional upon a market or non-vesting
condition, which are treated as vesting irrespective of whether or
not the market or non-vesting condition is satisfied, provided that

all other non-market conditions are satisfied.

F B i R B T (48
201696 H30H (A R¥T)
=~ HOE GG BOR &g s
(%)
22. BB XA
BRI D AUEREENRO X
MR SEEORG A - UER

HEENRMI - RIEREE AR
%ﬁu&f&ﬁm%‘lﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ
THENRS -

VAR 25 45 B B IR £ 32 A9 R B TR it
RIBE  UARTFTRIEZTAND
REEFE - RTPRLATHED
AR T HZRRAAEE ABBRA

HEM - HEENERRTE  THE
FHIR R R SZE B R E B RIS

AT ESHHASEEERE
®B - ARBRESFAREGHAIITE
BTAZES  EREINREFRARK
HERECRHATEESETAHRE

e B - LA AR - RS
FEMDALEE 58 HREN R

FFAERBE A E R - FHEEINE KR
PE - EETENAREER ANE
+—

TE T & 3548 16 1 A0 Bl 755 A PR {1 10 13
- ERERARSEAE RN M
RARER @ WHRIEMEARARTE
ATHEBZE  REEEEREXRA
AR A E R B T HERH) RET
SRR T EFICEEm Y AR
AEBHREATRNESTARE
B &G -

BN RERETRORO N - T
RAALER  BRFTEGHRED
BRI SR AIIT R IR - LR ERE
BB T R SR TR R - R
R B P A AL ATRE IR I P VIR 45 R
- BMAR B RITTHE o



Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2016 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

III. Significant Accounting Policies and
Accounting Estimates (Continued)

22.

Share-based payments (Continued)

Where the terms of an equity-settled share-based payment are
modified, as a minimum, services obtained are recognized as if the
terms had not been modified. In addition, an expense is recognized
for any modification which increases the total fair value of the
instrument ranted, or is otherwise beneficial to the employee as

measured at the date of modification.

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated as if it
had vested on the date of cancellation, and any expense not
yet recognized for the award is recognized immediately. Where
employees or other parties are permitted to choose to fulfill non-
vesting conditions but have not fulfilled during the pending period,
equity-settled share-based payments are deemed cancelled.
However, if a new award is substituted for the cancelled award, and
designated as a replacement award on the date that it is granted,
the new awards are treated as if they were a modification of the

original award.

A cash-settled share-based payment shall be measured in
accordance with the fair value of liability calculated and confirmed
based on the shares or other equity instruments undertaken by the
Group. Initial measurement is based on fair value as at the date of
grant, and reference is made to the terms and conditions attached
to the equity instruments. Refer to Note XI. If the right may be
exercised immediately after the grant, the fair value of the liability
undertaken by the enterprise shall, on the date of the grant, be
included in the relevant costs or expenses, and the liabilities shall
be increased accordingly. If the right may not be exercised until the
vesting period comes to an end or until the specified performance
conditions are met, on each balance sheet date within the vesting
period, the services obtained in the current period shall, based on
the best estimate of the information about the exercisable right,
be included in the relevant costs or expenses at the fair value of
the liability undertaken by the enterprise, and the liabilities shall
be increased accordingly. On each balance sheet date prior to
settlement of the relevant liabilities and on the settlement date, the
fair value of the liability is re-measured and any change of fair value

is taken to profit or loss for the current period.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2016 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

III. Significant Accounting Policies and
Accounting Estimates (Continued)

23.

Revenue
Revenue is recognized only when it is probable that the associated
economic benefits will flow to the Group, its amount can be

measured reliably, and the following conditions are satisfied.

Revenue From the Sales of Goods

Revenue is recognized when the Group has transferred to the buyer
the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the goods; the
Group retains neither continuing managerial involvement to the
degree usually associated with ownership nor effective control over
the goods sold; and the associated costs incurred or to be incurred
can be measured reliably. The amount of revenue arising from the
sale of goods is determined in accordance with the consideration
received or receivable from the buyer under contract or agreement,
except where the consideration received or receivable under
contract or agreement is not fair. Where the consideration
receivable under contract or agreement is deferred, such that the
arrangement is in substance of a financing nature, the amount of
revenue arising on the sale of goods is measured at the fair value of

the consideration receivable under contract or agreement .

Revenue From the Rendering of Services

When the outcome of a transaction involving the rendering of
services can be estimated reliably at the balance sheet date, revenue
associated with the transaction is recognized using the percentage
of completion method, or otherwise, the revenue is recognized to
the extent of costs incurred that are expected to be recoverable.
The outcome of a transaction involving rendering of services can be
estimated reliably when all of the following conditions are satisfied:
the amount of revenue can be measured reliably; it is probable
that the associated economic benefits will flow to the Group; the
stage of completion of the transaction can be measured reliably;
the costs incurred and to be incurred for the transaction can be
measured reliably. The Group determines the stage of completion
of a transaction involving the rendering of services by using the
proportion of costs incurred to date to the estimated total costs.
The total service revenue on a transaction involving rendering of
services is determined in accordance with the consideration received
or receivable from the recipient of services under contract or
agreement, except where the consideration received or receivable

under contract or agreement is not fair.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2016 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

III. Significant Accounting Policies and = % & B % & & 51145
Accounting Estimates (Continued) (%)
23. Revenue (Continued) 23. WA (88)

Revenue From the Rendering of Services (Continued)

Revenue from the rendering of services is recognized during
the accounting period in which the services are rendered. For
the rendering of services across periods, the recognition shall
be in proportion to the percentage of completion, namely the
completion schedule of transaction. Revenue from long-term service
agreements is recognized in stages based on the average terms of

service agreements and accrued costs.

Revenue from financial service transactions is recognised in the
amount of the sale value of the leased asset if classified as a finance
lease and in the amount of the lease payments if classified as an
operating lease. As part of the financial service provided by the
group company, industrial trucks are sold to finance company who
then enter into leases directly with the end customer. If significant
risks and rewards remain with the group company as a result of an
agreed residual value guarantee that accounts for more than 10
per cent of the asset’s value or as a result of an agreed customer
default guarantee, the proceeds from the sale are deferred and

recognised as revenue on a straight-line basis over the term.

Where the contracts or agreements entered into with other entities
cover the sale of goods or provision of services, the portion of sale
of goods and the portion of provision of services are dealt with
separately if the two portions can be distinguished and separately
measured. If the two portions cannot be distinguished, or can be
distinguished but cannot be separately measured, such contract is

fully taken as to relate to sale of goods.
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HRBORHERDE

Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2016 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

III. Significant Accounting Policies and
Accounting Estimates (Continued)

23.

24,

Revenue (Continued)

Interest Income

It is determined according to the length of time for which the
Group's cash and cash equivalents is used by others and the

effective interest rate.

Royalty Income
It is determined according to period and method of charging as

stipulated in the relevant contract or agreement.

Lease Income
Lease income from operating leases is recognized on a straight-line
basis over the lease term. Contingent rents are charged to profit or

loss in the period in which they actually arise.

Government grants

Government grant is recognized when the Group can comply with
the conditions attached to it and it can be received. If a government
grant is in the form of a transfer of a monetary asset, it is measured
at the amount received or receivable. If a government grant is in the
form of a transfer of a non-monetary asset, it is measured at fair
value; if fair value is not reliably determinable, it is measured at a

nominal amount.

Government grants for purchasing, building or forming long-term
assets in other methods regulated in government documents are
recognized as government grants related to assets. Judgments
should be made based on the necessary basic conditions for
obtaining the government grants when government documents are
unclearly stated. Government grants with purchasing, building or
forming long-term assets in other methods as basic conditions, are
recognized as government grants related to assets, whereas the rest

as government grants related to income.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2016 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

III. Significant Accounting Policies and
Accounting Estimates (Continued)

24,

25.

Government grants (Continued)

A government grant related to income is accounted for as follows: (a)
if the grant is a compensation for related expenses or losses to be
incurred in subsequent periods, the grant is recognized as deferred
income, and recognized in profit or loss over the periods in which
the related costs are recognized; (b) if the grant is a compensation
for related expenses or losses already incurred, it is recognized
immediately in profit or loss for the current period. A government
grant related to an asset shall be recognized as deferred income,
and evenly amortized to profit or loss for the current period over
the useful life of the related asset. However, a government grant
measured at a nominal amount is recognized immediately in profit

or loss for the current period.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax is
recognized as income or an expense in profit or loss for the current
period, or recognized directly in shareholders’ equity if it arises from
a business combination or relates to a transaction or event which is

recognized directly in shareholders’ equity.

The Group measures a current tax asset or liability arising from
the current and prior period based on the amount of income tax
expected to be paid by the Group or returned by tax authority

calculated by related tax laws.

For temporary differences at the balance sheet date between the
tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts, and
temporary differences between the carrying amounts and the
tax bases of items, the tax bases of which can be determined for
tax purposes, but which have not been recognized as assets and
liabilities according to the tax laws, deferred taxes are provided using
the liability method.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2016 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

III. Significant Accounting Policies and
Accounting Estimates (Continued)
25. Income tax (Continued)

A deferred tax liability is recognized for all taxable temporary

differences, except:

)

where the taxable temporary differences arise from the
initial recognition of goodwill, or the initial recognition of an
asset or liability in a transaction which contains both of the
following characteristics: (i) the transaction is not a business
combination; and (ii) at the time of the transaction, it affects

neither accounting profit nor taxable profit or deductible loss.

in respect of taxable temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries, jointly-controlled enterprises and
associates, where the timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences can be controlled and it is probable that the
temporary differences will not be reversed in the foreseeable

future.

A deferred tax asset is recognized for deductible temporary

differences, carryforward of deductible tax losses from prior years

and tax credits, to the extent that it is probable that future taxable

profit will be available against which the deductible temporary

differences, and deductible tax losses and tax credits can be utilized,

except:

(M

where the deductible temporary differences arises from a
transaction that is not a business combination and, at the
time of the transaction, neither the accounting profit nor

taxable profit or deductible loss is affected.

in respect of the deductible temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries, associates and jointly-
controlled enterprises, a deferred tax asset is only recognized
to the extent that it is probable that the temporary differences
will be reversed in the foreseeable future and taxable profit
will be available against which the deductible temporary

differences can be utilized in the future.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2016 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

III. Significant Accounting Policies and
Accounting Estimates (Continued)

25.

26.

Income tax (Continued)

At the balance sheet date, deferred tax assets and liabilities are
measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period
when the asset is realized or the liability is settled, according to the
requirements of tax laws. The measurement of deferred tax assets
and deferred tax liabilities reflects the tax consequences that would
follow from the manner in which the Group expects at the balance

sheet date, to recover the assets or settle the liabilities.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
balance sheet date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available in future
periods to allow the deferred tax assets to be utilized. Unrecognized
deferred tax assets are reassessed at the balance sheet date and are
recognized to the extent that it has become probable that sufficient
taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax

asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities presented on a
net basis are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off
current tax assets against current tax liabilities on a net basis and
the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same

taxation authority.

Leases
A finance lease is a lease that transfers in substance all the risks and
rewards incidental to ownership of an asset. An operating lease is a

lease other than a finance lease.

In the Case of the Lessee of an Operating Lease

Lease payments under an operating lease are recognized by a lessee
on a straight-line basis over the lease term, and either included
in the cost of the related asset or charged to profit or loss for the
current period. Contingent rents are charged to profit or loss in the

period in which they actually arise.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2016 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

III. Significant Accounting Policies and
Accounting Estimates (Continued)

26.

27.

Leases (Continued)

In the Case of the Lessor of an Operating Lease

Rent income under an operating lease is recognized by a lessor on a
straight-line basis over the lease term, through profit or loss for the
current period. Contingent rents are charged to profit or loss in the

period in which they actually arise.

In the Case of the Lessee of a Finance Lease

At the commencement of lease term, for an asset leased in under
finance lease, the difference between the book value of the leased-
in asset, which is determined as the lower of the fair value of such
leased asset as at the commencement of lease term and the present
value of minimum lease payments, and the book value of long-term
payables, which is determined as the minimum lease payments, is
treated as unrecognized finance costs which is apportioned to the
leasing period using effective interest rate method. Contingent
rents are charged to profit or loss in the period in which they

actually arise.

In the Case of the Lessor of a Finance Lease

At the commencement of lease term, for an asset leased out under
finance lease, the book value of finance lease receivable is measured
at the sum of minimum lease receipts and initial direct costs, whilst
risk exposure shall be recorded simultaneously; and unrealized
finance income shall be measured at the difference between the
sum of minimum lease receipt, initial direct costs and risk exposure,
and its present value. These are recognized using effective interest
rate method during the leasing period. Contingent rents are

charged to profit or loss in the period in which they actually arise.

Hedge accounting
For the purpose of hedge accounting, the Group adopts cash flow

hedging against interest rate risks and exchange rate risks.

Cash flow hedges when hedging the exposure to variability in cash
flows that is either attributable to a particular risk associated with a
recognised asset or liability or a highly probable forecast transaction,

or a foreign currency risk in an unrecognised firm commitment.
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III. Significant Accounting Policies and = % & B % & & 51145
Accounting Estimates (Continued) (%)

27. Hedge accounting (Continued) 27. EHEE (&)

At the inception of a hedge relationship, the Group formally
designates and documents the hedge relationship to which the
Group wishes to apply hedge accounting, the risk management
objective and its strategy for undertaking the hedge. The
documentation includes identification of the hedging instrument,
the hedged item or transaction, the nature of the risk being
hedged and how the Group will assess the hedging instrument’s
effectiveness in offsetting the exposure to changes in the hedged
item’s fair value or cash flows attributable to the hedged risk. Such
hedges are expected to be highly effective in achieving offsetting
changes in fair value or cash flows and are assessed on an ongoing
basis to determine that they actually have been highly effective
throughout the financial reporting periods for which they were
designated.

Hedges which meet the strict criteria for hedge accounting are
accounted for as follows:

Cash flow hedges

The effective portion of the gain or loss on the hedging instrument
is recognised directly in other comprehensive income, while the
ineffective portion is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Amounts recognized in other comprehensive income are transferred
to profit or loss when the hedged transaction affects profit or
loss, such as when hedged financial income or financial expense is
recognised or when a forecast sale occurs. If the hedged item is the
cost of a non-financial assets or non-financial liability, the amount
that would otherwise be recognized in other comprehensive income
is transferred out in the same period as the profit or loss of that
non-financial assets or non-financial liability, and recognized in

profit or loss in current period.

If the hedging instrument expires or is sold, terminated or exercised
(with the expiry of rollover of the hedging strategic component
or unfulfilled replacement or the termination of processing of the
contract), if its designation as a hedge is revoked, or if the hedge
no longer fulfills the accounting requirement of a hedge, the
amounts previously taken to other comprehensive income remain in
other comprehensive income until the forecast transaction or firm

commitment occurs or is fulfilled in actual terms.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2016 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

III. Significant Accounting Policies and
Accounting Estimates (Continued)

28.

29.

30.

31.

Repurchase of shares

Consideration and transaction costs paid for the repurchase of
the Company’s own equity instruments are charged against
shareholders’ equity. Other than share-based payments, issuance
(including refinancing), repurchase, sale or cancellation of its own

equity instruments is treated as change in equity.

Profit appropriation
Final cash dividends are recognized as liabilities upon approval by

shareholders in general meeting.

Safety funds

Safety funds provided for as required were included in cost of
product or the current profit and loss, and credited in special
reserve. And the funds are treated separately depending on
whether fixed assets are resulted when being used: funds related
to expenditure is offset against special reserve directly while those
forming fixed assets will consolidate expenditure incurred and
recognized as fixed assets when such assets are ready for their
intended use, at the same time offsetting equivalent amounts in the
special reserve and recognizing equivalent amounts of accumulated

depreciation.

Fair value measurement

The Group measures its derivative financial instruments and listed
equity investments at fair value at each balance sheet date. Fair
value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid
to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement
is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset
or transfer the liability takes place either in the principal market for
the asset or liability, or in the absence of a principal market, in the
most advantageous market for the asset or liability. The principal
or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Group
at the measurement date. The fair value of an asset or a liability is
measured using the assumptions that market participants would use
when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants

act in their economic best interest.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2016 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

III. Significant Accounting Policies and
Accounting Estimates (Continued)

31.

Fair value measurement (Continued)

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant’s ability to generate economic benefits
by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to
another market participant that would use the asset in its highest

and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in
the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to
measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable
inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs only under
the circumstances where such relevant observable inputs cannot be

obtained or practicably obtained.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed
in the financial statements are categorised within the fair value
hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that
is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole: Level 1 —
based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical
assets or liabilities that the entity can access at the measurement
date; Level 2 — based on inputs other than inputs within Level 1 that
are observable for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly;
Level 3 — based on input for the asset or liability that is not based

on observable market data.

For assets and liabilities that are recognized in the financial
statements at fair value on a recurring basis, the Group re-assess
them at each balance sheet date to determine whether transfers

have occurred between levels in the hierarchy.
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30 June 2016 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

III. Significant Accounting Policies and
Accounting Estimates (Continued)

32.

33.

Segment reporting

The Group identifies operating segments based on the internal
organization structure, managerial requirements and internal
reporting system, identifies reportable segments based on operating

segments and discloses segment information by operating segment.

An operating segment is a component of the Group that meets all

the following conditions:

(1) it engages in business activities from which it may earn

revenues and incur expenses;

(2) its operating results are regularly reviewed by the Company’s
management to make decisions about resources to be

allocated to the segment and assess its performance;

(3)  the Group is able to obtain relevant accounting information
such as its financial position, operating results and cash flows

of such segment.

If two or more segments have similar economic characteristics and
meet certain conditions, then they can be aggregated into a single

operating segment.

Significant accounting judgments and
estimates

The preparation of the financial statements requires management
to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that will affect the
reported amounts and disclosure of revenue, expenses, assets and
liabilities, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities at the balance
sheet date. However, uncertainty about these estimates and
assumptions could result in outcomes that could require a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of the assets or liabilities

affected in the future.

Judgments

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies,
management has made the following judgments which have
significant effect on the amounts recognized in the financial

statements.

5 i R M 5 (48)
201646 4303 (A RHT)
= o2 AR o' ETH AN
(,%E)
/'\ﬁl&*ﬁd:
NEBANEPEBERE  SEESR -
NEBIRE I E BIRIBFEERLE D E0
AR & 3B A B T s o 2 i
BEoER -
KBS IMEIEAEBANRERE T
117%1%\]%@5}2%5% :

33.

(1) ZAXREDERNERTEES T
EEBA BEER

(2) ARREREBRATHTIEZ
HBCER D MR EARR - LURTE
RMEREER  FEEESE

(3) AEERMEGZAKE TN
MEAR - BERRMR TR
EEAMERER -

P fE 3 % (48 & 0 JF AL B AR LR AR O
R WHRE —ERER - RIAA
HFR—EREDH -

B ARG A MG

MR BB TS R B R IR R (R M B -
EEFBRR - ELHE - B
ERERA - BA - AENEMEH
BEERERE  UREEABXA
SEEEGRE - R - L%F“ﬁ
fi 0 T HESE M PTG B 4 R AT
W%*Xﬁ%%%éé&ﬁ%%%@
SERTEARE -

4185
EEAAEENS A BENBIES
EIRBIEM T AT BB MR PR
B REBERTZENHE -



Interim Report 2016 e 93

5 i R M 5 (48
20166 H30H (A R#T)
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30 June 2016 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

III. Significant Accounting Policies and =& % & 51 B R & & 51 4 5t
Accounting Estimates (Continued) (%)
33. Significant accounting judgments and 33. EASFTHE MG ()

estimates (Continued)

Judgments (Continued)

Confirmation of Functional Currency

Since the Company owns a number of overseas subsidiaries,
associates and branch organizations, when recognizing its
functional currency, multiple factors are taken into consideration
to recognize the major economic environment of their operating
locations. Under circumstances with multiple factors and no obvious
functional currency, the Group uses judgment to confirm its
functional currency. Such judgment is the best to reflect economic
influence of the underlying transactions, events and environment.
Unless there appear material changes in the major economic
environment relating to the recognition of functional currency, once

the functional currency is recognized, it would not change.

Finance lease — in the case of the lessor

Leases where all risks and rewards relating to the ownership of the
assets are substantially transferred are referred to as finance leases.
The Group does not retain all substantial risks and rewards of the
ownership of these leased assets, and thus they are regarded as

finance leases.

Operating lease — in the case of the lessor

The Group has entered into leasing contracts for its investment
properties, certain intangible assets and certain fixed assets. The
Group is of the opinion that, according to the terms of such leasing
contracts, the Group has retained all material risks and returns of
ownership of these investment properties, intangible assets and

fixed assets and therefore they are accounted for as operating lease.

Estimation Uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources
of estimation uncertainty at the balance sheet date, that have a
significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the future accounting

periods, are discussed below.
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30 June 2016 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

III. Significant Accounting Policies and

Accounting Estimates (Continued)

33. Significant accounting judgments and
estimates (Continued)
Estimation Uncertainty (Continued)
Defined benefit plans
The management of the Group recognizes defined benefit plans
liabilities based on calculating model of the present value of the
defined benefit liabilities less fair value of the planned assets. The
present value of defined benefit liabilities comprises of various
assumptions, including term of benefits and discount rate.
Inconsistency between the future events and such assumptions may
subject the defined benefit plans liabilities on the balance sheet

date to material adjustment.

Fair value

Fair value of derivatives as at the balance sheet date is calculated by
the management of the Group based on models. Such calculation is
on the basis of some assumptions. Carrying value of derivatives may

differ significantly if future events deviate from such assumptions.

Impairment of available-for-sale financial assets

The Group classifies certain assets as available-for-sale financial
assets and directly recognizes movements of their fair values
in other comprehensive income. When the fair value declines,
management makes assumptions about the decline in value
to determine whether there is an impairment loss that shall be

recognized in the income statement.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2016 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

III. Significant Accounting Policies and =& % & 51 B R & & 51 4 5t
Accounting Estimates (Continued) (%)
33. Significant accounting judgments and 33. EASFTHE MG ()

estimates (Continued)
Estimation Uncertainty (Continued)
Impairment of non-current assets other than financial assets

(other than goodwill and trademark with uncertain lifetime)

The Group assesses whether there are any indication of impairment
for all non-current assets other than financial assets at the balance
sheet date. Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are tested
for impairment annually and at other times when such indication
exists. Other non-current assets other than financial assets are
tested for impairment when there are indication that the carrying
amounts may not be recoverable. Where the carrying amount of an
asset or asset group is higher than its recoverable amount (i.e. the
higher of the net of its fair value less costs to sell and the present
value of the future cash flows expected to be derived from it), it
is indicated that such asset or asset group is impaired. The net of
the fair value less costs to sell is determined with reference to the
price in sales agreement or observable market price of similar assets
in arm’s length transaction, adjusted for incremental costs that
would be directly attributable to the disposal of the asset or asset
group. When calculating the present value of expected future cash
flows from an asset or asset group, the management shall estimate
the expected future cash flows from the asset or asset group and
choose a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present

value of those future cash flows.

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognized for all unused deductible
temporary differences and deductible losses to the extent that it
is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences and deductible losses can be
utilized. Significant management judgment is required to determine
the amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognized, based
upon the likely timing and level of future taxable profit together

with future tax planning strategies.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2016 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

III. Significant Accounting Policies and

Accounting Estimates (Continued)

33. Significant accounting judgments and
estimates (Continued)
Estimation Uncertainty (Continued)
Net realizable values of inventories
The net realizable values of inventories are based on the saleability
of the evaluated inventory and their net realizable values.
The management’s judgments and estimates are required for
determining inventory impairment on the basis of clear evidence,
purpose of holding the inventories, effect of subsequent events
and other factors. The difference between the actual outcome and
original estimate will affect the carrying amount of inventories and
provision and reversal of decline in value of inventories during the

estimated revision period.

Impairment of receivable

Impairment of receivable is based on the recoverability of assessed
receivable. The management’s judgments and estimates are
required for determining impairment of receivable. The difference
between the actual outcome and original estimate will affect the
carrying amount of receivable and provision and reversal of bad

debts of receivable during the estimated revision period.

Recognition of provision

The Group uses contract terms, existing knowledge and historical
experience, to estimate and recognize the provision for product
quality assurance. On condition that such contingent matters have
formed a present obligation and the discharge of which is probable
to give rise to an outflow of the Group’s economic benefits, the

Group recognizes the best estimate.

Estimated useful lives of fixed assets

The Group reviews the estimated useful lives of fixed assets at least
once at the end of the year. Estimated useful lives are determined
by the management based on historical experience of similar
assets and expected technological advancement. Corresponding
adjustment to depreciation expenses for future periods will be made

in case of substantial changes in previous estimates.
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IV. Taxation g~ B IE
1. Major categories of taxes and respective tax 1. FEHRERBIE

rates

Value-added tax (VAT)
S {ER

Business tax

BEM

City maintenance and construction tax
Wl TH MR R

For the Group’s PRC subsidiaries, output VAT is calculated by applying
17%, 11% and 6% to the taxable income for normal taxpayers, but the
Group may pay it after deducting deductible input VAT for the current
period.

REEBATFRE —MATRAIRBERBANIT% 1% * 6%FE
STEHIEN - YRR EHAFENEBENE RN ERTH0EE
B o

The basis of computation and applicable rate of VAT primarily applicable
to major overseas subsidiaries of the Group are set out below:
REBRIINF AR EZEBAOIBENATKE BB EIRNT

Basis of computation Applicable country Tax rate
FBLR B BABEX HE
Amount of taxable added-value Germany 19%
JE M B E R =

Value-added tax rates applicable in other countries follow the tax laws
and regulations in force in the respective countries.
HBREERNEBBEWNBEEERERMET -

It used to be calculated by applying 5% to the taxable income prior to 1
May 2016. With effect from 1 May 2016, the change from business tax
to value-added tax was implemented throughout China according to the
Implementation Rules for the Trial Run of the Change from Business Tax
to Value-added Tax (Cai Shui (2016) No. 36), pursuant to which the levy
of business tax would be changed to the levy of value-added tax.
201655 1B Z AHRET M A M5 % HEUE %77 - 2016554 1H

BB RBCE EB B ER AR ERIDEMT[2016]3658 4 EE
PESEARFEEVNBUGEN  ABREETBRBREBEN

It is levied at 7% or 5% on the actual turnover taxes paid.

REBRBAHRER T %H5 %
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IV. Taxation (Continued) g~ BEIE (7))
1. Major categories of taxes and respective tax 1. FEFRERBR(E)
rates (Continued)

Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2016 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

Education surcharge - Itislevied at 3% on the actual turnover taxes paid.

A EWM REBRBRERET B3 %aT 5 -

Local education surcharge — ltis levied at 2% on the actual turnover taxes paid.

A BN REBRRERETE2 %15 o

Corporate income tax — ltis levied at 15% or 25% on the taxable profit, except that for oversea
EMEH subsidiaries, it is levied at the statutory tax rate of the countries or regions

in which the subsidiaries operate.
BRIOGINF RRHREFMAERRK « MR HEEREHIN - BEMIEH
REMBPTISEERI15%325% T4 ©

—  The basis of computation and applicable rate of corporate income tax
primarily applicable to major overseas subsidiaries of the Group are set

out below:
AEEBIIFEFRAFTZEANPEMRGH AT KE MERBT X
IR -

Basis of computation Applicable country 2016
BRI BRER 2016FE
Amount of taxable income Germany 30.75%
JEMNTL PTG 5E 1=

Income tax rates applicable in other countries follow the tax laws and
regulations in force in the respective countries.
HBRMEHNEBREE MBI EEERMETE -

2. Tax benefits 2. BRERE

Value-added tax

In accordance with the Notice Concerning Exemption from
Value-added Tax and Consumption Tax applicable to Special-
purpose Military Vehicles ( R E A IEE@MeZUISERIEER
B %)) issued by MOF and State Administration of Taxation, the
sale of special-purpose military vehicles to army and armed police by
Shaanxi Heavy-duty Motor Co., Ltd., a subsidiary of the Company, is
exempted from value-added tax.

Preferential corporate income tax for the Company

The Company was recognized as a high-tech enterprise on 27
November 2008. The Company continued to be recognized as a
high-tech enterprise in 2014 and is therefore entitled to enjoy a
preferential income tax rate of 15% from 1 January 2014 to 31
December 2016.

B1EH
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30 June 2016 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

IV. Taxation (Continued)

2.

Tax benefits (Continued)

Preferential corporate income tax for the domestic
subsidiaries of the Company

Weichai Power (Weifang) Reconstruction Co., Ltd. was recognized
as a high-tech enterprise in 2013 and was therefore entitled to
enjoy a preferential income tax rate of 15% from 1 January 2013
to 31 December 2015. The company passed the tax audit process
in relation to the qualification as a high-tech enterprise for 2016,
and is currently preparing for the declaration for such recognition.
It is expected that it will continue to be recognized as a high-tech

enterprise in 2016.

Shaanxi Hande Axle Co., Ltd. and Zhuzhou Torch Sparkplugs Co.,
Ltd. were recognized as high-tech enterprises and are therefore
entitled to enjoy a preferential income tax rate of 15% from 1
January 2015 to 31 December 2017.

Shaanxi Automobile Huainan Special Vehicles Co., Ltd. was
recognized as a high-tech enterprise and is therefore entitled to
enjoy a preferential income tax rate of 15% from 1 January 2014 to
31 December 2016.

Shaanxi Heavy-duty Motor Co., Ltd., Shaanxi Fast Gear Co., Ltd.,
Baoji Fast Gear Co., Ltd., Zhuzhou Gear Co., Ltd. (%M E & AR
& £ & Al ), Zhuzhou Torch Machinery Manufacturing Co., Ltd.,
Zhuzhou Euro Grace Gear Automotive Transmission Co., Ltd. ( #&M
B E SN B R AT ), Weichai Power Yangzhou Diesel Engine
Co., Ltd. (#LEE) /35 /N S mi B R E LA 7)) and Shanghai He
Da Auto Accessory Co., Ltd. (_E/&FIE FBEE FHR AT ), were
again recognized as high-tech enterprises and are therefore entitled
to enjoy a preferential income tax rate of 15% from 1 January 2014
to 31 December 2016.
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IV. Taxation (Continued)

2.

Tax benefits (Continued)

Preferential corporate income tax for the domestic
subsidiaries of the Company (Continued)

Pursuant to the requirement of Cai Shui [2015] No. 34, Shaanxi
Fast Automotive Components Import and Export Company Limited
meets the criteria of a low-margin small-scale industrial enterprise
and is subject to corporate income tax at the reduced rate of 20%
based on its taxable income which is taken as 50% of its income

(equivalent to a 10% tax rate for corporate income tax).

Pursuant to the requirement of the Notice Concerning Issues on
Taxation Policies Relating to the Thorough Implementation of
China’s Strategy of Western Development (Cai Shui Fa No. [2011]
58) (CBARR A B bt 78 #B K 79 35 BB A A Bt W B 58 P R e 3 AN )
promulgated by MOF, the State Administration of Taxation and
the General Administration of Customs dated 27 July 2011, the
following companies have implemented preferential tax policy of

15% for the Western Development:

o Shaanxi Heavy-duty Motor Co., Ltd., Shaanxi Hande Axle Co.,
Ltd., Shaanxi Jinding Casting Co., Ltd., Shaanxi Automobile
Xinjiang Vehicle Co., Ltd., Xi‘an Fast Auto Drive Co., Ltd.,
Shaanxi Fast Gear Co., Ltd., Baoji Fast Gear Co., Ltd. and
Weichai (Chongging) Automotive Co., Ltd.

o Pursuant to the requirement of the Announcement
concerning the Cancellation of 22 Matters of Approvals
About Non-administrative Permissions to be Sought for
Taxation Issues” numbered 58 of 2015 issued by the State
Administration of Taxation on 18 August 2015, for those
companies entitled to the preferential tax treatment at 15%
under the western development strategy of China, only filing is
required instead of approval. Except for Weichai (Chongging)
Automotive Co., Ltd., the aforesaid companies have passed
the examination of 2015 Taxation Filing, and they are
expected to be entitled again to enjoy a preferential policy for

the Western Development in 2016.

5 i R M 5 (48)
201646 4303 (A RHT)
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2016 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial . - & f i % #t 3% 32 2115 H 51 R

Statements
1. Cash and cash equivalents 1. EES
30 June 2016 31 December 2015
201668300 2015412 A318
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REER) (EHE%)
Cash at bank EEES 23,031,543.60 4,973,160.10
Bank deposits HRITIFH DR v 20,293,084,804.26

HiE¥ES

Other cash and cash equivalents

3,883,632,973.45

25,554,740,578.75

As at 30 June 2016, the other cash and cash equivalents of the
Group amounted to RMB3,223,527,183.60 (31 December 2015:
RMB3,587,079,954.03), all of which are used in letter of guarantee
and security monies for special accounts such as bank acceptance

bills and letter of credit.

As at 30 June 2016, the Group held cash and cash
equivalents of RMB3,374,101,483.04 (31 December 2015:
RMB1,455,545,954.37), which were deposited overseas.

Interest income earned on bank current deposits is calculated by
using current deposit interest rate of the bank. The deposit periods
for time deposits vary from three months to one year depending on
the cash requirements of the Group, and earn interest income at

respective deposit interest rates of the bank.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss

4,303,287,995.16

24,601,345,959.52

Forward contracts w=HER

%2016 F£6 A30H » A &£ H
HtEXEecPBEBIFIARE
3,223,527,183.60 0 (20154 12 A
318 : AR#3,587,079,954.037T)
FARMR A R PR RIT A 2R - 15
AREEPRERENRES °

R20164F 6 A30H » A& BT
MRRIINEBEESITEARE
& 3,374,101,483.04 7Tt ( 2015
F12A3MH - IEARBE A
1,455,545,954.377¢C) °

RITIE R TF SR IR ER 1708 B 7 3R &
BASHEKA - EBMFEREFREBE
BEAAENFEAE KAKENERES
FBRME - WIRIRAEFE R IR1T T KA
EEFHBUA -

UAnREBEFEEESZE
SFAEBHESNEREE

30 June 2016 31 December 2015
201656 H30H 201512 A31H
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REER) (g&EZ)

103,611,375.00

37,867,082.40
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) FPHS i R M 5 (48
30 June 2016 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 2016F6H30A (AR T)
V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial 7 - & 0F b % it 3% £ EIH H 51 B
Statements (Continued) (%)
3. Notes Receivable 3. BEWEE
30 June 2016 31 December 2015
20166 H30H 2015412 A831H
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REER) (&%)

Bank acceptance bills SRITHAG EZE
Commercial acceptance bills HEAHEE

Among which, notes receivable which had been pledged are
presented as follows:

Bank acceptance bills SRITRGIES

Notes receivable which had been endorsed but not yet expired as at
the balance sheet date are presented as follows:

12,863,908,188.23
20,404,277.00

8,889,644,101.91
38,295,000.00

12,884,312,465.23 8,927,939,101.91

Heh DEAWEREERNT :

30 June 2016 31 December 2015

201656 H30H 2015412 A831H
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(RE&ER) (8| IZ)

2,260,982,737.36 2,511,424,512.27

EEEEAEEARRKRAMARIHI
EBREWT

30 June 2016 31 December 2015
201656 A30A 20155124318
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REER) (&=7)
Derecognized Not derecognized Derecognized Not derecognized
HIETER RE TR #RIPHER REHER
Bank acceptance bills RITEREES 3,650,664,800.61 | 2,818,049,462.43 -
Commercial acceptance bills EmEAHES - 10,000,000.00 - 6,893,000.00
3,650,664,800.61 LOLOIDIRES 2,818,049,462.43 6,893,000.00

Notes receivable already discounted but not yet expired as at the
balance sheet date are presented as follows:

30 June 2016
201656 H30A
(Unaudited)
(REER)

Derecognized Not derecognized

RIERER

2,706,634.94

Bank acceptance bills RITAHEEZ

As at 30 June 2016 and 31 December 2015, the Group has not
transferred any notes into accounts receivable due to issuers’ failure
in performance.

RELER

ERHREEEERBRAEARIHN
FEUEBINT -

31 December 2015
2015124314
(Audited)
(&ER)
Derecognized Not derecognized

BIFER R IR
= 44,487,805.36 -

R2016%F6 4308 %2015 12 A31
B AKEERLEABNBOMS
ERBREKEROTIR -



Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2016 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial
Statements (Continued)

4.

Accounts Receivable

The Group trades with its customers primarily on credit terms,

and generally requires prepayments or cash on delivery for new

customers. Credit period is generally one to six months, extending

up to six months for major customers. Accounts receivable is non-

interest bearing.

An aging analysis of accounts receivable based on invoice dates is

presented as follows:
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ho SO R I
(78)

4, FEWERF

H ke

AEEERZEFHNE S EFIAERR
HRE  A—REFHEFPEM KK
RBER N ET  ERMES
B1-6fAA TEEFEFANUEREG

BA - BUBRRI TR -

RIEAZEH - BUERTOREDT

mr

30 June 2016
20166 H30H
(Unaudited)
(REER)

Within 1 year
1 to 2 years
2 to 3 years

Over 3 years

1 LAR
1F 225
26 E3F
3FEP L

31 December 2015
2015%12A831H

(Audited)
(&%)

10,257,044,148.58
304,348,683.44
413,622,706.29
689,140,518.84

Less: provision for bad debts for

accounts receivable

B MR SR AR

8,370,914,431.92
696,424,083.66
230,497,732.65
614,417,642.49

11,664,156,057.15

1,114,872,340.27

9,912,253,890.72

935,638,633.25

10,549,283,716.88

Changes in provision for bad debts in respect of accounts receivable

are presented as follows:

8,976,615,257.47

FEWBR TR BRI EHIT ¢

30 June 2016
201656 HA30H
(Unaudited)
(REER)

31 December 2015
2015412 A31H

(Audited)
(REZ)

935,638,633.25
224,321,490.31

(48,091,509.59)
(102,697.46)

822,420,507.83
203,708,335.20

(50,608,404.25)
(21,585,116.22)

= (15,135,439.48)

3,106,423.76

Opening balance B FBE
Provision for the period/year AHEEHiR
Decrease during the period/year: RE S FR A
Reversal 4 [o]
Write-off i
Decrease upon disposal of BB T AR
subsidiary(ies)
Adjustment for exchange differences TE M =i
Closing balance Hi S REREE

(3,161,249.83)

1,114,872,340.27

935,638,633.25
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) FPHS i R M 5 (48
30 June 2016 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 2016F6H30H (A E¥T)

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial #. - & f i % it & 2 B IH H 51 &

Statements (Continued) (%)
4. Accounts Receivable (Continued) 4. FEWERM(E)
30 June 2016
2016%E6H30AH
Gross carrying  Proportion Provision for ~ Percentage
(Unaudited) amount (%) bad debt (%)

TR A
(RE&ER) AR IE ER 2R EL51(%) RRER (%)

Individually significant items for ~ BEESEE AT
which provision for bad debtis R IEEE
recognized separately 913,068,232.72 : 391,565,139.83

Items for which provision for bad 1% {2 Ll 54148 4
debt is recognized by group with  FHEZR%ERE
distinctive credit risk characteristics 10,559,316,508.30 630,120,375.32

Not individually significant items for BB & EFEXEE
which provision for bad debtis ~ BEHRZERER
recognized separately 191,771,316.13 1.64 93,186,825.12

11,664,156,057.15 100.00 1,114,872,340.27

31 December 2015
2015%12A31H

Gross carrying Proportion Provision for Percentage

(Audited) amount (%) bad debt (%)
gl

(BER) FRHEAER EE1(%) BRER (%)

Individually significant items for ~ BEHE&LFEE AL EH

which provision for bad debtis  FHREEEEHE

recognized separately 560,344,327.43 5.65 348,742,189.60 62.24
Items for which provision for bad 1% {Z B AR 41E A

debt is recognized by group with ~ sHRIZEE &

distinctive credit risk characteristics 9,118,579,029.38 91.99 481,566,211.39 5.28
Not individually significant items for BB EAEAEE

which provision for bad debtis  BEHZEIRER

recognized separately 233,330,533.91 2.36 105,330,232.26 45.14

9,912,253,890.72 100.00 935,638,633.25
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) RS i R M 5 (48
30 June 2016 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 2016F6H30H (A E¥T)

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial #. - & f I % it & £ IH H 51 #

Statements (Continued) (%)
4. Accounts Receivable (Continued) 4. FEWERM(E)
As at 30 June 2016, individually significant items for which provision H2016F6H30H ' BEHSBEEAL
for bad debt is recognized separately are presented as follows: BERHREREEN B ERTIE RN
™
Gross carrying Provision for
(Unaudited) amount bad debt Percentage Reasons
(RiEER) RE RS BRER AHREAI AREMR
EURL GM TRADE (ALGERIA) 239,998,279.78 Insured by Sinosure,
EURL GM TRADE (FT & & 7I35) not provided for
RERRRE  Fitik
Xuzhou XCMG Schwing Machinery Co,, Ltd. 115,767,881.00 23,153,576.20 Bad repayment ability
BMRIEREERBRL A EEENE
Shanxi Tong Tai Automobile Sales 56,927,140.00 51,234,426.00 Long credit age
Services Co., Ltd ERiR
LIEBRAEHERKERAR
Guangzhou Jingi Trading Company Limited 49,159,575.31 49,159,575.31 Bad repayment ability
ENTEEESERAT EERLE
Shaanxi Rong Chang Yuan Trading Co., Ltd 43,173,316.66 38,855,984.99 Not full coverage of
RAXEREFERAA preservation
EHR2EE
Anhui Anyu Engineering Machinery 42,763,993.80 17,105,597.52 Bad repayment ability
Sales Co., Ltd BERLE
ZERFIRBRHEFRAA
Hubei Aoma Special Automobile Co., Ltd. 42,228,752.49 16,891,501.00 Legal actions in progress
B REERAERERAR EERAT
Dalian Shaanxi Automobile Sales Co., Ltd 40,516,068.59 32,412,854.87 Long credit age
RERAREHEBRLF RERE
Global Haulage Company Limited (Ghana) 37,956,394.85 379,563.95 Provision for bad debts not
Global Haulage Company Limited(f145) covered by insurance
SHRERTEA B2 HER
Hubei Space Shuanglong Special Purpose 35,611,768.86 24,928,238.20 Company dissolved
Vehicle Co., Ltd. NGRS
HAMAERSRAEER A
Others 208,965,061.38 137,443,821.79 Cessation of business etc.
it DAXBELE

913,068,232.72 391,565,139.83
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) W5 R B 5 ()
30 June 2016 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 20166 H30H (AR #or)

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial i ~ & /f o % #t 3% - 205 H 51

Statements (Continued) (%)
4. Accounts Receivable (Continued) 4. EBWER(E)
As at 31 December 2015, individually significant items for which M2015F 12 A31H - BESBEEK
provision for bad debt is recognized separately are presented as W B I TR IR E A RN BR RUB N
follows: mr
Gross carrying Provision for
(Audited) amount bad debt Percentage Reasons
(E&i) RESE ERER Eigiail SHiRIEM
Shanxi Tong Tai Automobile Sales 56,927,140.00 51,234,426.00 90% Long credit age
Services Co., Ltd RRER
IWERZTEHERBERAA
000 SHANKSIRUS 50,219,167.38 12,554,791.85 25% Long credit age
000 SHANKSIRUS RERER
Guangzhou Jingi Trading Company Limited 49,159,575.31 49,159,575.31 100% Bad repayment ability
EMHEEESERAT EBEENE
Shaanxi Rong Chang Yuan Trading Co., Ltd 43,173,316.66 38,855,984.99 90% Not full coverage of
RERERESERAA preservation
EHAREE
Anhui Anyu Engineering Machinery 42,763,993.80 17,105,597.52 40% Bad repayment ability
Sales Co., Ltd BREENE
ZHRTIREMHERRRA
Hubei Aoma Special Automobile Co., Ltd. 42,054,011.99 8,410,802.40 20% Legal actions in progress
MRS ERAEERAR EEFR AT
Dalian Shaanxi Automobile Sales Co., Ltd 40,513,268.59 32,410,614.87 80% Bad repayment ability
RERAAEHEBERDA BEENE
RITA VO CO., LTD (Vietnam) 38,124,056.16 190,620.28 1% No recourse by banks,
RITA VO CO., LTD(#if) account receivable transferred
RITEERE
Hubei Space Shuanglong Special Purpose 35,611,768.86 24,928,238.20 70% Company dissolved
Vehicle Co., Ltd. AR A
MEMAERERAEBER AT
Nanjing Lerong Trading Company Limited 33,443,140.43 30,098,826.39 90% Assets have been preserved
HRLRESERAA HESESE
Others 128,354,888.25 83,792,711.79 65% Cessation of business etc.
HAt REEBREILE

560,344,327.43 348,742,189.60
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2016 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial
Statements {Continued)
4. Accounts Receivable (Continued)
The Group's accounts receivable for which bad debts are provided
for using aging analysis are presented as follows:

30June 2016 31 December 2015
201656 A30H 20155128318
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REER) (£E7)
Gross carrying ~ Proportion Provision for  Percentage Gross carrying — Proportion Provision for  Percentage
amount (%) bad debt (%) amount (%) bad debt (%)
g SR
FEGE A% BRER (%) SESE  thw) FEER (%)
Within 1 year 1A 4,543,852,765.62 8686  217,569,517.76 IBERS 3546,476,131.73 8211 162,932,78749 459
1102 years 122% 207,255,752.83 3.96 32,318,488.38 (FEER  461,362,586.78 1068 66345372.22 1438
210 3 years 123F 212,838,272.47 407 64,597,925.86 30.35 141,481,172.05 328 42,454,296.62 30.01
3t04years 324F 87,434,042.91 1.67 43592,183.19 49.86 16,179,303.99 038 8,081,230.12 49.95
4105 years 4E5% 29,253,821.74 0.56 23,400,657.39 79.99 24,292,305.44 056 19,433 844.35 80.00
Over 5 years SENE 150,605,727.73 288 150,605,727.73 (WIS 129,282,060.59 299 129,282,060.59 100.00

5,231,240,383.30 100.00  532,084,500.31 (NP 4,319,073,560.58 10000 428529,591.39 9.92

RABRKRKERERRRSHGHE
RRERBNEBBERBROT

Accounts receivable for which bad debts are provided for using
overdue aging period as a distinctive credit risk characteristic are
presented as follows:

30June 2016 31 December 2015
20166830 2015%12A318
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REER) (#5%)
Gross carrying Provision for percentage Gross carrying Provision for percentage
amount bad debt (%) amount bad debt (%)
RERE BRER TR AI(%) RESE BRER SR %)
An overseas segment combination BN ERBEAA 5,328,076,125.00 98,035,875.01 (L 4,799,505,468.80 53,036,620.00 1M

As at 30 June 2016, the top five balances in respect of accounts
receivable had a sum of closing balance of RMB585,696,222.69 (31
December 2015: RMB570,645,024.37), accounting for 5.02% (31
December 2015: 5.76%) of the total of closing balance of accounts
receivable. The closing balance in respect of bad debt provided for
the top five amounted to RMB79,427,067.70 (31 December 2015:
RMB37,960,889.31).

As at 30 June 2016, no accounts receivable was pledged for
securing bank borrowings of the Group (31 December 2015:
RMB1,625,574,176.80).

M2016F6 A30H @ %A1 A%
MEWESTOBERBREEGTAAR
¥ 585,696,222.69 JT ( 2015 F 12
A318 : AR #570,645,024.37
o) M ENERKEI R BB A G
Bt B A& 5.02% (20154 12 A 31
H :576% ) ' %A1 &1 & #H FE &t
RNBEREGEHRBEBAARE
79,427,067.70 7t (2015 12 A 31
H : AR#%37,960,889.317T) °

MN201646 A30R @ A& HEEK
EWERRERARBRERITERSN
EW (2015412 A31 8 « ARK
1,625,574,176.807T) °



108 Weichai Power Co., Ltd. S8 HRHERA T

Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2016 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

RS i 25 BT 5 (%)
201646 4303 (A RHT)

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial i ~ £ f 4 % #i 3% 3 26 H 5 R
Statements (Continued) (%)

5.

Prepayments 5.

An aging analysis of prepayments is presented as follows:

BNRIE
BN RBOREATOT -

30 June 2016 31 December 2015
20166 A30H 2015412 A31H
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REER) (=)
Proportion Proportion
Amount (%) Amount (%)
&8 £ 41(%) i L (%)
Within 1 year 1FAR 365,499,146.28 84.51 348,897,171.27 86.87
110 2 years 1226 47,164,494.32 10.91 40,545,235.83 10.09
2 to 3 years 2E3F 9,315,353.42 2.15 5,940,613.56 1.48
Over 3 years 3FE L 10,518,189.41 243 6,259,412.79 1.56
432,497,183.43 100.00 401,642,433.45 100.00

As at 30 June 2016, there was no significant prepayments with an

age of more than one year (31 December 2015: Nil).

As at 30 June 2016, the closing balances of the top 5 prepayments
amounted in aggregate to RMB129,965,536.98, representing
30.05% of the total closing balances of all prepayments at end.

As at 31 December 2015, the closing balances of the top 5
prepayments amounted in aggregate to RMB89,556,506.58,
representing 22.30% of the total closing balances of all

prepayments as at year end.

Interests receivable 6.

Interests on time deposits EHERFE

H2016%6 A30H @ EEREE—F A L
MEEFENMNZK(2015F12 A318 -
) -

MH2016F6 A30H  #AREAIAEHN
ENRIENRARAEETRARE
129,965,536.98 7T * 15 T8 - 5% 1E &7
RERFEE ST B 01/330.05% ©

M2015F12A318 BRI REAH
ENREBERNFRBBEEATAARE
89,556,506.587T ' {HTE FIEF K
HREEFT ML /22.30% °

FE W R 2

30 June 2016 31 December 2015
20166 H30H 201512 A31H
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REER) (gEZ)

93,601,195.56 53,906,611.07
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V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial i ~ £ ff I % #i 3% 3 26 H 5 R

Statements (Continued)
7. Dividends receivable

JULI Motorenwerk s.r.o.

Shaanxi Eurostar Auto Co., Ltd.

Shaanxi Tonghui Automotive
Transportation Co., Ltd.

JULI Motorenwerk s.r.o.
PRAEET B AR A A
PRPEimEE B YR A R A

8. Other receivables

An aging analysis of other receivables is presented as follows:

Within 1 year
1 to 2 years
2 to 3 years
Over 3 years

1R
1226
2E3F
3FEME

Less: Provision for bad debts for
other receivables

B H AR UR R R

Changes in provision for bad debts in respect of other receivables

are as follows:

Opening balance HFE
Provision for the period/year NEFEHR
Decrease during the period/year: NE R
Reversal o
Write-off 5 55
Decrease upon disposal of subsidiary BEFRARD
Adjustment for exchange differences ME 5, 2= 2R B
Closing balance Hl, R ER

»

F& W AR A

30 June 2016 31 December 2015

20166 H30H 2015412 A831H
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REER) (&%)
10,907,625.00 -
3,040,000.00 3,040,000.00
3,440,000.00

13,947,625.00 6,480,000.00

H P& W 5K
E A R BREE D AT AT -

30 June 2016 31 December 2015
20166 H30H 201512 A31H
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(RREX) (BEZX)

858,516,453.50
40,615,435.38
48,015,212.80
42,545,121.96

582,552,420.11
38,927,172.60
22,096,966.05
57,533,773.93

989,692,223.64 701,110,332.69

53,615,893.97 55,338,843.24

936,076,329.67 645,771,489.45

Hip SRR ERBNEIINT ¢

30 June 2016 31 December 2015
20166 A30H 2015412 A31H
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REER) (REZ)

55,338,843.24
3,256,520.77

38,171,673.31
41,581,690.97

(5,208,782.40)
(68,739.33)

= (183,138.88)

298,051.69 =

(22,071,253.63)
(2,160,128.53)

53,615,893.97 55,338,843.24
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2016 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial i ~ £ f 4 % #i 3% 3 26 H 5 R
Statements (Continued)
8. Other receivables (Continued)

(Unaudited)
(RawsER)

Individually significant items for
which provision for bad debt is
recognized separately

Iltems for which provision for bad

debt is recognized by group
with distinctive credit risk

SESBEALEEHE
R

HERRREHAATE

Gross carrying

amount

SREERE

»

8. HttEW (&)

30 June 2016
201646 A30H

Proportion Provision for
(%) bad debt
(%) BRER

Percentage
of provision
(%)
FHHREEAI(%)

characteristics 969,032,860.97 35,674,585.29
Not individually significant items ~ ETE SR E AR E BT
for which provision for bad debt ~ 12IZEEEM
is recognized separately 20,659,362.67 17,941,308.68
989,692,223.64 53,615,893.97
31 December 2015
201512 A31H
Percentage
Gross carrying Proportion Provision for of provision
(Audited) amount (%) bad debt (%)
(=) REEE L 0(%) BRERE R (%)
Individually significant items for EHEGEEATES
which provision for bad debt is FHREREE
recognized separately - - - -
Items for which provision forbad ~ #%1{= B A& 54148 4
debt is recognized by group FHREREE
with distinctive credit risk
characteristics 680,262,500.01 97.03 37,397,534.56 5.50
Not individually significant items ~ BEIBSEAEABE
for which provision for bad debt Bt iR EE
is recognized separately 20,847,832.68 2.97 17,941,308.68 86.06
701,110,332.69 100.00 55,338,843.24
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) RS i R M 5 (48
30 June 2016 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 2016F6H30H (A E¥T)

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial #. - & f I % it & £ IH H 51 #

Statements (Continued) (%)
8. Other receivables (Continued) 8. HMEWRK(E)
The Group's other receivables for which bad debts are provided for AEBERABRRDITEAGTIRIEREE
using aging analysis are presented as follows: B H A FEWCRIE R AT
30 June 2016 31 December 2015
201656 830H 2015124318
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REER) (&5%)
Amount  Proportion Provision for  Percentage Amount  Proportion Provision for  Percentage
(%) bad debt (%) (%) bad debt (%)
RIS STRIA
€8 HAI(%) BRER (%) 28 whlo) FRER (%)
Within 1 year 1ER 478,628,450.61 87.61 5,446,568.51 1.14 248,579,082.64 81.84 8,442,357.02 340
1102 years 122% 21,708,950.60 507 4,057,336.23 13,547,642.20 446 2,025,210.09 14.95

210 3 years 153F 18,515,212.80 339 5,614,932.67 19,400,790.05 6.39 552161853 2846
3to4years 3E4E 2,640,442.09 0.48 1,281,914.48 2,069,258.06 0.68 1,049,648.12 50.73
4105 years 4Z5% 641,732.33 0.12 513,385.86 24285132 0.08 194,281.06 80.00
Over 5 years SERLE 18,192,572.54 333 18,192,572.54 19,901,897.34 6.55 19,901,897.34 100.00

546,327,360.97 100.00 35106,710.29 ! 303,741,521.61 100.00 37,135,012.16 12.23

Other receivables for which bad debts are provided for using A BRREREHARBSRGEHR
overdue ages as a distinctive credit risk characteristic are presented as BEREEBNEMBERZBERNT
follows:

30 June 2016 31 December 2015
2016564308 2015124318
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REEH) (B%%)
Gross carrying Provision for Percentage Gross carrying Pravision for Percentage
amount bad debt (%) amount bad debt (%)
HRLA FTRILHI
REHS BEER (%) FARE EHRER (%)

An overseas segment
combination B EREds 422,705,500.00 567,875.00 . 376,520,978.40 262,522.40 0.07




112 Weichai Power Co., Ltd. M4 R HERA T

PR 5 3 M R (4)
201664308 (A E¥T)

Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2016 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial

Statements (Continued)

8. Other receivables (Continued)
Other receivables are categorized by nature as follows:

ﬂ‘%ﬁ%%ﬁ%i%ﬁﬁ%%
(%)
H it B WK (&)

BB REIE ST |

8.

30 June 2016

31 December 2015

20166 H30H 2015412 A831H

(Unaudited) (Audited)

(REER) (R&EZ)

Transfer of fund BaIR 112,992,375.00 75,429,071.20
Compensation claim =EET 98,576,286.32 67,445,455.01

Corporate lending and
payment on behalf

EEEERRRBR

82,673,050.66

74,682,402.85

Commission receivable FEWRE 77,769,375.00 68,163,586.40
Deposit e 52,227,968.52 32,700,662.46
Employee advance ERE 48,024,562.70 40,197,930.71
Tax rebate receivable JE YR TR 32,269,602.38 19,256,798.65
Consideration receivable for asset transfer [ I & B 82 3 3¢ 22,125,000.00 21,285,600.00
Value-added tax paid in advance B IEET 2,381,139.75 74,973.72
Others Hih 460,652,863.31 301,873,851.69

989,692,223.64 701,110,332.69

As at 30 June 2016, the top 5 other receivables are presented as M2016F6A30H - HitfEW R &5
follows: BIREBAT :
Percentage of
total other Closing balance
receivables of bad debt
(Unaudited) Closing balance (%) provision
hE
e
R EM BRER
(REEZ) HREAER Ee4l(%) HE i BARERE
Company A ART 77,769,375.00 7.86 Commission  Within 1 year
receivable 1E LR
EkfEe
Company F FAR] 23,981,141.64 Consideration for ~ Within 1 year
sale of equity 1 LR
B H &
Company C CRA 23,039,500.00 Transfer of fund ~ Within 1 year
BEeRR (D
Company B BRAF] 22,125,000.00 Consideration for 2 to 3 years
asset transfer 23%F
EEEER
Company G GAT 21,129,375.00 Transfer of fund ~ Within 1 year

ERAR

1E R

168,044,391.64
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30 June 2016 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial

Statements (Continued)

8. Other receivables (Continued)

Interim Report 2016 A HAZRE

RS i 25 BT 5 (%)
201696 A30H (A E#¥T)

(%)
8. HtbEWR (M)

1~ B OF B AR 1 IH H RE R

As at 31 December 2015, the top 5 other receivables are presented M2015F12 8318 - Atk TS
as follows: HAIRAWT
Percentage of
total other Closing balance
receivables of bad debt
(Audited) Closing balance (%) Nature Age provision
B
el ere
ChE &) BRER
(5%%) HRHE b (%) #E B FREE
Company A VNS 68,163,586.40 9.73 Commission Within 1 year =
receivable TEUR
Jiidiea
Company B BAH] 21,285,600.00 3.04 Consideration for 2to3years =
asset transfer 3%
BEEZD
Company C (A7 20,072,320.80 2.86 Transfer of fund Within 1 year =
BelR 1EUR
Company D DAT 18,277,235.20 261 Transfer of fund Within 1 year =
BelR 15MR
Company E ERA 13,778,740.01 1.96  Corporate lending and  Within 1 year and 10,872,216.01
payment on behalf 3to 4 years
CEEERRRNR  1FUAR34E
141,577 482.41 20.20 10,872,216.01

As at 30 June 2016, other receivables were not pledged for
securing bank borrowings of the Group (31 December 2015:

RMB199,091,312.00).

9. Inventories

Goods n transit EENE
Raw materials FHTH
Finished goods ERf
OEM materials NI
Self made semi-finished ~~ EEEK @R
goods and work kED
in progress
Tumover materials REiH

Second-hand forklft trucks  =FXE

Gross carrying
amount

REHE

402,864,598.96
1.984,372,449.69
7,964,518,991.45
127,029,129.04

1,553,804,107.44
1,057,278,353.52
501,532,913.29

13,591,400,543.39

30 June 2016
2016%6A30H

(Unaudited)
(RE27)

Provision for
decline in value

HERH

(53,999,803.96)
(287,737,076.03)
(14,983.27)

(31,544,402.96)
(51,993,142.31)
(27,224,538.28)

(452,513,946.81)

(Gross carrying
amount

REEE

402,864,598.9
1.930,372,645.73
7,676,781,915.42
127,014,145.77

1,522,259,704.48
1,005,285,211.21
474,308,375.01

13,138,886,596.58

M2016F6 A30H » AEBEFHE

it FE W8 0 R R ERAS SR 1T 8 B0

BN (2015F 128318 : AR

199,091,312.007T) ©

9. ®FE
31 December 2015
20154124318

(Audited)

(#2%)
Gross carrying Provision for Carying
amount decline in value amount
SARE FRERE FHEE
329,327919.02 - 329,327919.02
1,938,619,581.55 (41,237,380.61) 1,897,382,200.94
7,067,418,595.31 (277557,857.22)  6,789,860,738.09

100,543,175.90 (61,989.08) 100,481,186.82
1,406,810,309.74 (23212,973.00)  1,383,597,336.74
956,267,869.83 (25,170,996.33) 931,09,873.50
423,512,016.87 (13,643,598.47) 409,868 418.40
12,222,499,468.22 (380,884,794.71)  11,841,614,67351

113
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) FPHS i R M 5 (48
30 June 2016 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 2016F6H30H (A E¥T)

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial #. - & f i % it & 2 B IH H 51 &

Statements (Continued) (%)

9. Inventories (Continued) 9. ®BHE(#)
The changes in provision for decline in value of inventories are as GFELEEEZHNT -
follows:
January to June 2016 20165 1-6 A

Decrease during the period

REHD
Charge Adjustment
Opening during for exchange Closing
(Unaudited) balance the period Reversal Write-off differences balance
(REER) B RER &p B ERZEEAE BRY
Raw materials BHH 41,237,380.61 19,049,887.21 (3,047,416.10) (4,399,793.46) 1,159,745.70 53,999,803.96
Finished goods ERm 2775557,857.22  115,503,227.54 (3,288,592.42)  (103,569,530.54) 1,534,114.23  287,737,076.03
OEM materials ZREMTIH 61,989.08 - (336,600.00) (895.97) 290,490.16 14,983.27
Seff made semi-finished goods ~ EE XM MK
and work in progress EER 23,212,973.00 9,028,473.11 (848,391.75) (111,586.25) 262,934.85 31,544,402.96
Turnover materials BEiH 25,170,996.33 29,793,385.91 (3,861,737.27) (453,288.09) 1,343,785.43 51,993,142.31
Second-hand forklift trucks —FXE 13,643,598.47 14,834,674.30 (1,922,829.95) - 669,095.46 27,224,538.28
380,884,794.71 188,209,648.07 (13,305,567.49)  (108,535,094.31) 5,260,165.83 452,513,946.81
2015 20154
Decrease during the year
RERD
Adjustment
Opening Charge for exchange Closing
(Audited) balance  during the year Reversal Write-off differences balance
(#E7) ENSE TSR eIl g EizEAE ERBE
Raw materials Ritg 40,246,072.01 23,623,594.98  (12,878,980.73) (8,459,206.07) (1,294,099.58) 41,237,380.61
Finished goods ERM 218,015,651.81  157,052,865.69  (28,676,182.81)  (66,143,017.07) (2,691,460.40) 271,557,857.22
OEM materials ZRMIHH 61,989.08 - - - - 61,989.08
Seff made semi-finished goods ~ BEER AR
and work in progress KEM 18,620,019.11 1,422,673.63 (4,500,470.02) (1,080,924.11) 2,751,674.39 23,212,973.00
Tumover materials BB 5473962.43 4036475845  (19,212,354.99) (2437041)  (1,430,999.15) 25,170,996.33
Second-hand forkift trucks “FnE 1,115,782.38 19,595,370.22 (7,278,190.64) - 210,636.51 13,643,598.47

283533,476.82  248,059,262.97  (72,546,179.19)  (75,707,517.66) (2,454,248.23) 380,884,794.71




Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2016 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial
Statements (Continued)

9.

10.

11.

Inventories (Continued)

Provision for decline in value of inventories is determined based on
the excess of cost over net realizable value and shall be reversed
within the original provision for decline in value of inventories when
the factors that give rise to the decline in value of inventories in

prior years are not in effect in current year.

Non-current assets due within one year

A B ek
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BiFEE (%)

201696 A30H (A E#¥T)

T~ & OF B 3 2 I H iR

(%
9.

10.

)

FE (&)
AEBRBRASRAI BB FENE
BT R B EERE - WE AR
FEEENFZERZELE £RE
SAEMFERERFENSEAEMD -

—FREBNFERBEE
30 June 2016 31 December 2015
20166 B30H 2015412 A831H
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REEXR) (&%)

Finance lease receivables

BB E B UK

(I

As at 30 June 2016, none of the Group’s non-current assets due
within one year was pledged to secure its bank borrowings (31
December 2015: RMB73,939,079.20).

Other current assets

11.

FHER
QE:itorR]
RABE RS RIRE E M

Prepaid expenses

Tax credit

Principal-protected fixed income
investment products

Principal-protected variable income
wealth management products

RAST B W e B 38 B EE

Prepaid corporate income tax TR
Others Eth

385,238,875.00 1,289,424,886.40

M2016F6A30H » REBMERE—F
WNEERR BT B & = E W A N EUE R
TEFABR(2015F12 8318 ¢
AR #73,939,079.207T) °

HittRE&EE
30 June 2016 31 December 2015
20166 H30H 201512 A31H
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REER) (f&F'EZ)

382,738,457.90
389,214,882.19

10,000,000.00

643,000,000.00
124,727,077.87

17,623,797.20

1,567,304,215.16

232,104,668.12
530,972,955.35

10,000,000.00

73,000,000.00
105,881,057.03

18,277,728.55

970,236,409.05
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2016 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial

Statements (Continued)
12. Available-for-sale financial assets

30 June 2016
201656430A
(Unaudited)
(*E5H)
Gross carrying Provision for
amount impairment
5 AEER
Avalable-for-sale equty HEERRTIE
nstruments
Atfainvalue FLAERE 2664837500 -
Most UL 379,062,181.11 (123,356,130.00)

605,710,556.11 (123,356,130.00)

Available-for-sale financial assets at fair value:

RS i 25 BT 5 (%)

201696 H30H (A RHET)

T~ A OF B R R EIH H RERE
(78)

12. THHESHEE

31 December 2015
015124318
(Audited)
(#57)
Carying (ross carrying Provsion for Carying
amount amount impairment amount
BaEE FERE BEER FHEH
226,648375.00 158,826,493.60 - 258826,493.60
255,706,051.11 51482291691 (123,356,130.00) 391,466,786.91
482,354,426.11 77364941051 (123,356,130.00) 650,293,28051

KMARBEFENTHEESHE
=

30 June 2016 31 December 2015
20166 H30H 2015412 A831H

(Unaudited) (Audited)
(RE&ER) (8| IZ)

Cost of equity instruments W2 T AR AR
Fair value changes accrued to other Bt AREMESMED
comprehensive income NABEEES

Adjustment for exchange differences PE R ZrfR

199,912,290.80 199,912,290.80

26,800,000.00 59,200,000.00
(63,915.80) (285,797.20)

Fair value NirfEE

226,648,375.00 258,826,493.60
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30 June 2016 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 2016F6H30H (A E¥T)

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial  #i. - & f I % it & £ HIH H 5 #

. ==3
Statements (Continued) (#)
12. Available-for-sale financial assets (Continued) 12. AItHESHEE(E)
Available-for-sale financial assets at cost: AT EM A HEESHEE
30 June 2016 2016F6 H30H
Gross carrying amount Provision for impairment
REGE AEER
Adjustment Closing  Percentage of
Opening  Increase during  Decrease during for exchange Closing Opening balance shareholding ~ Cash dividend

(Unaudited) balance the period the period differences balance balance (Note 1) (%) forthe period
(REER) HIHE KB KERY  EXZERE HREE BUBE  BREEGH)  BRHB(R)  AERSAW
Foton Heay-duty Machinery BREVEARD

(o, Ltd BRAR 38,630,876.38 38,630,876.88 1,408,500.00 1,408,500.00
Yije Investment and Guarantee ERREERER

Co, Lt (ote2) BRI 5,135,800.00 5,135,800.00
Huarong Xengjang Bank FRMIRT

Corporation Limited 20,000,000.00 20,000,000.00
China National Machinery and FEERREIERA

Equipment Hainan Corp, Ltd. BRAR 879,605.00 879,605.00 879,605.00 879,605.00
Thuzhou Gear Sere Co, L. HHEBRAERRE 1,680,000.00 1,680,000.00 - -
Eastern Life Insurance Co, Lid. RAABRBRARAT 60,000,000.00 60,000,000.00 60,000,000.00 60,000,000.00
New Century Finance Leasing e REE

(o, td ARAR 61,068,025.00 61,068,025.00 61,068,025.00 61,068,025.00
Yamen Fengtai Bus & Coach EMLRARTLRT

Intemtional Co, Ltd EERAA 24,999,800.00 24,999,800.00
Yangthou Suken Yinhe Auto FNERRTAEE

Comnecting Rod Co, Lid. ERAR 1,563,949.23 = = = 1,563,949.23 -
Others it 300,864,860.80 449,946.40  (142,741,866.80) 6,531,184.60  165,104,125.00 10,961,466.93

514,822,91691 449,946.40  (142,741,866.80) 6,531,18460  379,062,181.11  123356,130.00  123,356,130.00 10,961,466.93
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) W5 R B 5 ()
30 June 2016 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 20166 H30H (AR #or)

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial i~ f0fM & &K FEIHHEH B

. ==3
Statements (Continued) (%)
. . . . =1 3 -
12. Available-for-sale financial assets (Continued) 12. it HESREE (&)
31 December 2015 201512 H31H
(Gross carrying amount Provision for impairment
FERE AERRE
Adjustrent Closing Percentage of
Opening Increase during ~ Decrease during for exchange Closing Opening balance shareholding ~~ Cash dividend
(Audited) balance the year the period differences balance balance (Note 1) (%) orthe period
(£E7) E4E RERE AERY) EREBEE EX4E ENRE O FRBEE) BRUA%)  AERLAH
Foton Heay-duty Machinery BREVEARA
(o, Ltd. BRAF 38,630,876.88 - - - 38,630,876.88 1,408,500.00 1,408,500.00 6.14 -
Xinje Investment and Guarantee ERREERAR
o, L. (Note ) BEAAGH) 5,135,800.00 - - - 513580000 - - 2500 -
Huarong Xangjang Bank ERRIRG
Corporation Limited 20,000,000.00 - - - 20,000,000.00 - - 032 2,000,000.00
China Natonal Machinery ang PERRESE
Equipment Hainan Corp, Ltd. ROBRAR 879,605.00 - - - 879,605.00 879,605.00 879,605.00 066 -
Thuzhou Gear Share Co, Lid. HNasRHERAR 1,680,000.00 - - - 1,680,000.00 - - 245 -
Eastern Lie Insurance Co, Ltd. EHASRBERLA 60,000,000.00 - - - 60,000,000.00 60,000,000.00 60,000,000.00 750 -
New CenturyFinance Leasng FteRBERR
(o, Ltd. AR 61,068,025.00 - - - 61,068,025.00 61,068,025.00 61,068,025.00 12 -
Yiamen Fengta Bus & Coach EMERARHER
International Co,, Ltd RERRAH 24,999,800.00 - - - 24,999,800.00 - - 1547 -
Yangzhou Suken Yinhe Auto IE bt
Connecting Rod Co, Lid. % 1,563,949.23 - - - 1,563,949.23 - - 15.00 -
Othes Afh 84,703071.60  219,991,598.00 (5,304,418.60) 147460980 300,864,860.80 - - 69,029,200.80
298,661,127.71 219,991,598.00 (5,304,418.60) 147460980 51482291691  123356,130.00  123,356,130.00 71,029,200.80
Note 1: There was no change in the provision for impairment of available-for-sale 1 At EeRmEERBEERGAHES
financial assets during the period. g o
Note 2:  The Group has no board seats in Xinjie Investment and Guarantee Co., H2: AEBEEGRKREERAREMERF
Ltd., as such the Group has no significant influence over that investee. BEFROGRMU  AEEUZRKER

EERTE -
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) RS i R M 5 (48
30 June 2016 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 20166 H30H (A E#or)

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial #. - & f I % it & £ IH H 51 #
Statements (Continued) (%)
13. Long-term receivables 13. REEWR

30June 2016 31 December 2015
2016568308 20155124318
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(FE&HK) (B%#)
@ross carrying Provision for Carrying Gross carrying Provision for Carrying
amount impairment amount amount impairment amount

RAHE RERH REEE REHE HEEE FHEE

Finance lease receivables BERERYS 3,594,176,750.00 3,594,176,750.00 3,348,884,733.60 - 3,348,884,733.60

The discount rate adopted for finance lease receivables ranged from MERSEWFEANTRERMER
0% to 15%. 0%-15% -°

As at 30 June 2016, among the aforesaid finance lease receivables, MN2016F6H30H + L@ ERE
unrealized finance income amounted to RMB304,499,000.00 (31 BRZPARERREWNSRARE
December 2015: RMB304,802,696.80). 304,499,000.007C (2015412 A 31

H: AR®304,802,696.807T) °

As at 30 June 2016, no long-term receivables were pledged for R2016F6A30R  AEEEHF K
securing bank borrowings of the Group (31 December 2015: Nil). FEUGRE R ARISRITERNBR
(2015412H318 : f&) -
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) FPHS i R M 5 (48
30 June 2016 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 2016F6H30H (A E¥T)
V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial # - & f B % #t 38 3= B IH H 5E B
Statements (Continued) (%)
14. Long-term equity investments 14. RERERE
30 June 2016 201656 A30H

Change during the period
A58
Transferred
Gainsand losses ~ out of gains
oninvestment  and losses from Other Incl: closing
Opening Additional Decreasein  under equity disposal of  comprehensive  Declaration of Closing ~provision for
(Unaudited) balance investments investments method  equity interests income  cash dividend balance impairment
BT RERE 8K
(k27 b)) EnkE AORE ReRs BEEH Epaaus EEREHRA BRGE AEER
Jointly-controlled enterprises ~ A%4%
Xi'an FC Intelligence BRERELED
Transmission Co,, Ltd. ERAR(H)
(Note 1) 158,050,798.96 (14,323,038.64) 143,727,760.32
Assodiates e
Shanzhong Finance Leasing ~ 1IERARE
(o, Ltd. ERAF 391,030,428.38 7,482,870.63 398,513,299.01
Shandong Heavy Industry ~ UEE TEE R
Group Finance Co,, Ltd. BRAR 237,468,864.87 14,740,787.04 252,209,651.91
Basodateswhicharenot — BBEAEAH5K
individually significant Bafg 660,600,073.97 22,023,294.00 (42,404,145,08) 60,708,939.53 24,723,167.45 15,331,279.38 (49,267913.04)  691,714,696.21 (4,940,709.51)
1,447,150,166.18 22,023,294.00 (42,404,145,08) 68,609,558.56 24,123,167.45 15,331,279.38 (49,267,913.04)  1,486,165,407.45 (4.940,709.51)
2015 20154
Change during the year
2R
Gains and losses
on investment Other Incl closing
Opening Additional Decrease in under equity Other  comprehensive ~ Declaration of Closing provision for
(Audited) balance investments investments method equity changes income ~ cash dividend balance impairment
ERiET EpER
(B27) EHE BRE AIRE REkEs L) Epsaka SERERA EXBE ARER
Jontly-controlled enterprises A% AE
X'an FC Intellgence Transmission - BR B 5554483
Co,, Ltd. (Note 1) BRAR(GH) 192,653,453.02 - - (34,602,654.06) - - - 158,050,798 9% -
Assocites BErE
Shanzhong Finance Leasing LERERERRAT
(o, Ltd. 391,082,871.61 - - 16,066,956.77 - - (16119400000 391,030428.38 -
Shandong Heawy Industry Group ~ ILRE T £@EH %
finance Co,, Ltd. BRAF 228,029,963.54 - - 22,718, 40478 - - (1327950345 23746886487 -
24 associates which are not BEAEAMUR
individually significant Bats 665,959,370.13 49,050,703.65 (12,118,687.10) 27,998,182.16 1,224,63537 (6,561,087.89) (6495304235 660,600,073.97 (4,84,091.33)
1477,725,658.30 49,050,703.65 (12,118,687.10) 32,180,889.65 1,204,63537 (6,561,087.89) (94,351,945.80)  1,47,150,166.18 (4,804,09133)
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2016 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial
Statements (Continued)

14. Long-term equity investments (Continued)
Note 1: Xi'an FC Intelligence Transmission Co., Ltd. is held as to 51% by the

Group, and as to 4% and 45% by Shaanxi Fast Gear Automotive
Transmission Co., Ltd. (“Transmission Co”) and Caterpillar (China)
Investment Co., Ltd (“Caterpillar”) respectively. Its board of directors
comprises seven directors, three of whom being nominated by the
Group, one being nominated by Transmission Co and three being
nominated by Caterpillar. According to its articles of association, board
resolutions require unanimous approval or approval by substantially all
directors, and thus Xi‘an FC Intelligence Transmission Co. is a jointly-
controlled enterprise of the Group.

Provision for impairment of long-term equity investments is presented as
follows:

FS1% M - SOMABRARA
FErREHEREREEAR(EE
SEDMRFRG(FE)BREARA
AT RERD])  BES B R4%
45% - EEEMELREEMEK - EF
—ERAKEEZE —2HEDEE
RIE BN =2RRERHZE R
BREAERNE EFGREFTESE
ERRRNEBRZURAERE
WAZEFEHEEDERIABAAL

SEAERE -

RHBRELEREEBNER

January to June 2016 20164 1-6 7
Increase Decrease Adjustment
Opening during the during the for exchange Closing
(Unaudited) balance period period differences balance
ERZH
(RigEZ) BABE AHiEm AHED RE MR R
Zhuzhou Auto Trading Market wNAER5m5 (284,499.56) - (284,499.56)
Torque Turbine Torque Turbine
Engine Co. Engine Co. (4,559,591.77) (96,618.18) (4,656,209.95)
(4,844,091.33) (96,618.18) (4,940,709.51)
2015 20154
Increase Decrease Adjustment
Opening during the during the for exchange Closing
(Audited) balance year year differences balance
EXER
(&%) FOHE REEM KERD #AE FRHE
Zhuzhou Auto Trading Market HNSET SIS (284,499.56) 4 - - (284,499.56)
Torque Turbine Torque Turbine
Engine Co. Engine Co. (4,254,432.61) - - (305,159.16) (4,559,591.77)

(4,538,932.17)

(305,159.16) (4,844,091.33)
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
30 June 2016 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

B 75 i 3R M R (D)
2016466 H30H (A R#T)
V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial % - & 0F b % it 3% £ B IH H 51 B
Statements (Continued) (%)
15. Investment property 15. REMEME
Subsequent measurement under the cost model: KA AERETRETS
January to June 2016 2016 1-6 H
Houses and
(Unaudited) buildings Land use rights Total
(REg#ER) EEREREY = 3 5 F R &%
Gross carrying amount RE
Opening balance EAYIEREE 695,589,346.33 46,257,447.37 741,846,793.70
Transfer from construction in ~ fEZ T2 A
progress 2,281,319.00 16,006,719.72 18,288,038.72
Other decrease EAm (498,574.00) (498,574.00)
Closing balance HRR#RRE 697,372,091.33 62,264,167.09 759,636,258.42
Accumulated depreciation EEHTER#H
and amortization
Opening balance HR)e4%E 148,483,447.23 4,472,503.95 152,955,951.18
Provision =g 15,748,227.51 1,514,470.36 17,262,697.87
Closing balance HREAE 164,231,674.74 5,986,974.31 170,218,649.05
Carrying amount REEE
At period end HiZR 533,140,416.59 56,277,192.78  589,417,609.37
At period beginning HR¥) 547,105,899.10

41,784,943.42 588,890,842.52
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201696 A30H (A E#¥T)

1~ B OF B AR 1 IH H RE R

Statements (Continued) (%)
15. Investment property (Continued) 15. REMHEME (&)
2015 20154
Houses and
(Audited) buildings Land use rights Total
(fe8:%) FEEREEY P R A &t
Gross carrying amount RE
Opening balance FHREE 592,636,238.34 47,204,688.83 639,840,927.17
Directly acquired BEEBEA 1,053,791.00 - 1,053,791.00
Transfer from construction in ~ FEZ T2 A
progress 90,012,504.91 - 90,012,504.91
Transfer from fixed assets BETEEEBA 31,950,882.49 = 31,950,882.49
Transfer from intangible assets 2 & ZE#E A - 300,218.79 300,218.79
Disposals and retirements B MIRREE (20,064,070.41) (1,247,460.25) (21,311,530.66)
Closing balance FRBTE 695,589,346.33 46,257,447.37 741,846,793.70
Accumulated depreciation and  ZEtH7E FE 5
amortization
Opening balance FHIRTE 113,972,710.07 3,704,901.78 117,677,611.85
Provision B 32,533,101.52 933,329.13 33,466,430.65
Transfer from fixed assets BETEEBA 5,229,981.96 - 5,229,981.96
Transfer from intangible assets 2 & ZE# A - 37,175.31 37,175.31
Disposals and retirements BB SR EE (3,252,346.32) (202,902.27) (3,455,248.59)
Closing balance FRATE 148,483,447.23 4,472,503.95 152,955,951.18
Carrying amount FREEE
At year end FR 547,105,899.10 41,784,943.42 588,890,842.52
At year beginning =) 478,663,528.27 43,499,787.05 522,163,315.32

As at 30 June 2016, investment properties for which the Group
had not obtained real estate certificates had a carrying amount
of RMB105,547,673.84, for which the Group was in the process
of applying for real estate certificates (31 December 2015:
RMB116,401,788.08).

72016568308  AEEHKRES
FHEFNREHFHERTDEEBR
AR #105,547,673.847C @ B H
EEMEFBEFR (2015512 A31
H: AR#116,401,788.087T) °
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30 June 2016 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 2016F6H30H (A E¥T)

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial #. - & f i % it & 2 B IH H 51 &

Statements (Continued) (74)
16. Fixed assets 16. BEEE
January to June 2016 2016 1-6 H

Forklift trucks Forklift trucks

and equipment  and equipment

Houses and Machinery and Electronic leased out leased out

(Unaudited) buildings equipment equipment Vehicles (long-term) (short:term)
LD LD

(7E%%) BERREH KERE 13E EURE RRE(RE) Rt (EH)
Camying amount &
Opening balance Baa 10,687,124,142.00  15497,295709.69  1,033,223,335.51 402,28491420  2,636,668557.60 469641221280  1,645971,22801  36,598,980,099.81
Addition BE 44,957,351.75 69,124,007.54 37,572,346.63 6,760,389.80 97912459360 1,195,674500.40 104,041,07097  2,437,254,260.69
Transfer from construction- k2 T#/
in-progress AN 128,742,959.19 607,688,655.25 106,373,949.06 152,185.16 28,885,726.79 879,213,475.45
Increase arising from RUETAA
acquisttion of subsidiaries #m = 2,365,847.20 - = 50,481,083.20 28,840,112.80 10,145,565.60 91,832,608.80
Disposals or retirements REUHE (1,661,669.37)  (178,444,109.25) (7,228,758.4) (6,79887879)  (633415673.20)  (929,240,916.80)  (254382,713.70)  (2,011,172,719,53)
Adustmentforexchange ~ E¥ £E8E
diference 122,924,960.85 52,572,941.69 307,365.01 120,100.25 84,199,938.80 220,086,465.80 36,069,920.63 516,281,693.03
Closing balance HReE 10,982,087,744.42  16,050,603,052.12 1,170,248, 237.79 40988871062 3,117,058500.00 521177237500 157073079830  38512,389,418.25

Accumulated depreciation ~~ Z:17E
Opening balance Byaa 192667285295 812792432898 752,153,695.38 302,672,548.30 264,083,344.00 682,446,135.84 772,206,881.63  12,828,159,787.08
Provision i 236,421,996.87 730,922,901.12 67,967,228.67 1944221151 328359,271.20 £60,899,899.13 15354251498 2,197,556,083.48
Disposals or retirements RENHEE (146,486,273.12) (5,685,730.67) (6446966.19)  (258457,92080)  (535871,648.00)  (246,715392.94)  (1,199,663,931.72)
Adustment forexchange ~~ EEBE

diferences 39,162,410.66 (4,596,375.79) 5,166,514.84 3,679,651.58 (3,702,694.40) 92,057,103.36 19,031,009.70 150,797,619.95

(Closing balance Bra% 220225726048 8,707,764,581.19 819,601,708.22 319,347,505.20 330,282,000.00 899,531,490.33 698,005,013.37  13,976,849,558.19

Provision for impairment AfEEE

Opening balance B 1,850,543.37 102,614,823.08 144,649.06 58,339.59 389,164.52 105,057,519.62

Provision iR - 4877199 - - - 4877199

Closing balance HRHE 1,850,543.31 102,663,595.07 144,649.06 58,339.59 389,164.52 105,106,291.61
Carying amount EHfE

At period end JiifS 8,777,97994057  7,240,174875.86 350,501,880.51 90482,865.83  2,786,776,500.00  4,312,240,884.67 872,276,62041  24,430,433,567.85

At period beginning )] 8,758,600,745.68  7,266,756,557.63 280,924991.07 9955402631 237258521360 4,013,966,076.9 873375,181.86  23,665,762,793.11
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V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial i ~ & /f [ % #t 3% - 200 H 51

Statements (Continued) (74)
16. Fixed assets (Continued) 16. BIEEE(E)
2015 20154

Forklft trucks Forkift trucks
and equipment and equipment

Houses and Machinry and Electronic leased out leased out
(Audited) buildings equipment equipment Vehicles (long-term) (short-term) Others Total
ALHNE ALHNE
(%7) BEREEN EERE E13k B8Rk REE(RE) Rith(RE) i At
Carying amount FE
Opening balance EfHE 995287591227 13,866,863,024.78 934,672,528.96 39221927345 232450696800  4522,082,346.00  2,322,944,709.27 34,316,224,762.73
Addition BE 117,642,255.04 326,643,560.18 38,115,445.76 1363106877 1,667,804,06000  2,047,791,936.00 253,519,048.04 4,465,147373.79
Transfer from construction- ~~ EETEEA
n-progress 982,531,883.59 752,608,269.51 53,558,774.45 19,925,019.55 - 2,653372.00 49,391,457.29 1,860,668,776.39
Increase arising from RUETLA
acquistion of subsidiaries gl - 604,302.00 - - - - 8,488,012.00 9,092,314.00
Intemal re-classiication RNBELE - 754,166,607.32 19,744,400.55 - - - (T13911,00787) =
Other transfer-in LOEIN - 119,441.8%.13 8,122,829.31 7672,139.46 - - - 135,236,824.90

Disposals or retirements RESHE (193,593,979.76) (238,581,20031) (19,540,486.14) (30,747,01201)  (1,172,769,586.00)  (1,617,292,748.00) (178,169,591.61) (3,450,694,612.83)
Decrease upon disposal of ~ RETFAT

subsidiaies 0 (6557004000 (19406,017.31) (1,644,625.73) (579,055 (23,01209800)  (57,361,502.00) (5237,284.00) (113,997,606.62)
Other transfer-out L h (31,950,882.49) - - - - - - (31,950,882.49)
Adustmentforexchange ~ E¥ £E8E

differences (13382402265 (65,044,68361) 194,468 35 10348056 (159,860,78640)  (201.26119120)  (31,054,115.11) (590,746,850.06)
Closing balance EXHE 1068712414200 1549729570969 10332333551 40228491420 263666855760 469641221280 1,645,971,228.01 36,598,980,099.81

Accumulated deprecation  Z39TE

Opening balance ENHE 1418700,650.65  6491,170,205.73 625,036,855.07 281,624,939.9 242,791,614.00 62184177360 101787243948 10,699,038 478.49
Provision i 556,207,96883  1,395,763,699.79 125,914,875.66 38,111,140.75 559,521,13800  1,207612,111.20 287,615,201.91 4,130,746,136.14
Internal re-classification RNBESE - 344,434,666.13 13730,036.77 - - - (358,164,702.90) -
Other transfer-in EUEIN - 97,991,658.78 7,742,744.55 129107247 - - - 113,031,475.80

Disposals or retirements RENEE (47,487,52962) (149,677,571.29) (18,796,211.68) (24,109,848 96) (440,848,728.00)  (1,118,215,702.00) (165,901,556.53) (1,965,037,148.08)
Decrease upon disposal of ~ REFAT

subsidiaries ) (854,358.00) (9.836,621.8) (1469,27043) (309,743.76) (9.856,374000  (37.876,538.00) (3903,652.00) (64,106,557.47)
Other transfer-out L5 (5.229981.96) - - - - - - (5.229,981.9)
Adustmentforexchange  E¥ £E8E

differences 5,336,103.05 (1921,708.88) (533456 5898784 (87524306.00) 9,084,491.04 (5310,84833) (80,282,615.84)
Closing balance EREE 190667285295 812792431898 7515369538 3026725830 26408334400 68244613584 7720688163 12,818,159,787.08

Provision forimpairment AERE

Opening balance B 206617534 103946,231.22 144,649.06 1,047,369.85 = - 389,16452 107,793,589.99

Proiision i 4,690,547.50 194682157 = = = = - 6,637,369.07

Disposals or retirements RENHEE (5,106,179.47) (3.278229.71) - 989,030.26) - - - (9373,43944)

Closig balance EREE 185054331 10261482308 144,649.06 5833959 - - 389,16452 10505751962
Canying amount FaERE

Atyear end £X 875860074568 726675655763 280924,991.07 9955400631 237258521360  401396,076% 87337518186 23,665,762,793.11

At year beginning ) 8531,909,080.28  7,271,746,587.83 309491,024.83 1096069364 208171535400 390024057240 1,304683,105.27 23,509,392,694.25
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30 June 2016 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 2016F6H30H (A E¥T)

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial #. - & f i % it & 2 B IH H 51 &

Statements (Continued) (%)
16. Fixed assets (Continued) 16. BEEE (&)
Fixed assets leased in under finance lease are presented as follows: BEMABRTEENT ¢
30 June 2016 2016F6 H30H
Gross Accumulated Provision for

(Unaudited) carrying amount depreciation impairment  Carrying amount
(REER) RE Rt E B fREEE
Houses and buildings EEZEY 45,489,000.00 26,026,375.00 19,462,625.00
Machinery and equipment SR E 64,789,375.00 9,941,500.00 54,847,875.00
Electronic equipment BTEE 132,410,750.00 61,736,125.00 70,674,625.00
Forklift trucks and equipment T B RE K&

leased out (long-term) HE(RE) 2,396,698,000.00  253,952,952.39 2,142,745,047.61
Forklift trucks and equipment ~ FAHHRE R

leased out (short-term) i CEE) 3,186,486,750.00 432,680,944.49 2,753,805,805.51

5,825,873,875.00 784,337,896.88 5,041,535,978.12
31 December 2015 2015512 A31H
Gross Accumulated Provision for

(Audited) carrying amount depreciation impairment Carrying amount
(BER) RE BitiE BEER FHEE
Houses and buildings FEEREY 43,720,622.40 24,457,154.40 - 19,263,468.00
Machinery and equipment R 45,366,708.80 6,676,583.20 - 38,690,125.60
Electronic equipment B 144,777,556.00 70,249,575.20 - 74,527,980.80
Forklift trucks and equipment ~ FAH B RE K&

leased out (long-term) FBE(RE) 2,252,624,050.78  224,248,274.78 - 2,028,375,776.00
Forklift trucks and equipment  FAH B RE R

leased out (short-term) R (EE) 3,498,035,390.91 509,501,674.91 - 2,988,533,716.00

5,984,524,328.89 835,133,262.49 - 5,149,391,066.40
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V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial i - & ff B % #t 38 = 2 H H 51 B

Statements (Continued) (%)
16. Fixed assets (Continued) 16. EE&E (&)
Carrying amount of fixed assets leased out under operating lease is EMEHETEEREEBENAT ¢

presented as follows:

30 June 2016 31 December 2015
201656 A30H 2015412 A831H

(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REER) (REZ)
Houses and buildings EEREY 9,008,352.55 2,349,951.44
Electronic equipment R 1,652,798.69 923,041.78
Machinery and equipment R 16,540,034.47 10,443,268.08
Vehicles EwT A 533,450.02 609,335.85
Forklift trucks and equipment leased TR XEREEH(RE)
out (long-term) 2,786,776,500.00 2,372,585,213.60
Forklift trucks and equipment leased TR E X E R (EH)
out (short-term) 4,312,240,884.67 4,013,966,076.96
As at 30 June 2016, the Group did not have significant temporarily H2016F6A30H  AEBEEEKRH
idle fixed assets (31 December 2015: Nil). ERMEBTEZE(20159412 A 31
H:M)-
As at 30 June 2016, fixed assets for which the Group R2016F6 8308 » REEHKRES
had not obtained real estate certificates had a carrying EHEENETEEREEEAAR
amount of RMB1,767,589,090.51 (31 December 2015: #1,767,589,090.51 7t (2015 12
RMB1,794,017,705.49). A318H : AR®1,794,017,705.49
JL) e
As at 30 June 2016, fixed assets with a carrying amount of R2016F6 A30H + XAEEBEER
RMB535,407,617.89 (31 December 2015: 161,851,321.80) were EfEME A AR %S535407,617.89
pledged for securing bank borrowings of the Group. 7T (201512 4318 : AR¥

161,851,321.80 ) WETTE & E AR
IARERSERITE R -
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V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial

Statements (Continued)
17. Construction in progress

HRB D RHBRAF

Weichai Power Testing Centre EXFHNERAL
FAST transmission technology ETHESRY
renovation project L
Construction of Yulin new factory area B HER%
Project o global accessories BESN2RERD
distrbution cenre of Weichai Power ~ #LER
Industial park project of Weichai Power %448 /1 T2 BB R
Phase Il production fine renovation BEHNEGE
project of motor of Weichai Power 4 ESHETER
Weichai Power Landking Phase I HR9NER-S
Weichai Power inerim testing xR ER
workshop project Ef
Logistics Park of Weichai Power kS Wb il
Phase | project of diesel engines of HE5E PR
NP9 series of Weichai Power Fihg-gs8

Project on workshop 3 to 4in
Factory | of Weichai Power

BN -5
ELEL

Landking project of Weichai Power Y NEEER
Project of capactty expansion of EEHNFE
gas machines of Weichai Power BEHER
Phase Il of new base of Shaanii Zhonggi~ FRE 75 &4 = 5
Project of elocation of fve production ~ ~¥IHMIT4E
lines for processing in Factory | EREEs
Weichai Power Information Centre EEHNEEAL
Project T of Weichai Power LSRR
Project of expansion of casting L
of Weichai Povier i
Project of catering services LS NERRE
centre of Weichai Power EOVE!

Project of three companies
of Weichai Power

BXBH=07
BR

Project of relocation of the equipment B HEFR
technology semvices company B
of Weichai Power Gl

Project of transportation of castingand 4B NS EAZE
heat processing of Weichai Power EfiE%EH

Phase Il project of testing centre LS IEEGIN
of Weichai Povier “HAE

Thuzhou Gear technology renovation ~ FA EERHIER
project

Renovation for the casting project g NER
of Weichai Power =R

Project of renovation of production trial #4871
chamber in the technology centreof — BAEHE
Weichai Power HEAER

Others Aft

Prepayment for project equipments B TEH

Gross

carrying amount

RESE

163,717,005.21

133,886,054.78

75,965,432.66

13,133,447.49
51,686,777.09

39,792,061.20
31,706,300.09

30,855,100.38
29,123,093.52

21,315,023 84

19,105,683.10
19,017,710.48

17,225,218.57
17,006,747.40

16,726,173.59
15,643,395.84
14,635,994.77
13,615,447.67
13,072,589.03

11,197,693.9

9,675,175.76
9,017,293.75
8,837,921.24
6,010,678.17

5,006,917.04

4,824,662.41

982,826,740.65
124,072,087.85

1,964,698,553.54

30 June 2016

2016%68308
(Unaudited)
(REER)

Provision for
impairment

AEXR

(3,738,267.94)

(3,738,267.94)

ARG # R Mt R (48)
2016630 (AR#T)
T~ A O B Ak R H AR
(%)
17. TR
31 December 2015
2015128318
(Audited)
(#E0)
Carrying (ross Provision for Carrying
amount carrying amount impairment amount
KmRE i HEER FHER
163,717,065.21 289,866,753.20 - 289,866,753.20
133,886,054.78 128,459.476.% - 128,459,476.96
75,965,432.66 110,164,120.21 - 110,164,120.21
73,133,447.49 26,681,044 - 26,681,044
51,686,777.09 106,295,112.35 - 106,295,112.35
39,792,061.20 14,095,589.31 - 14,095,589.31
31,706,300.09 59,617,894.67 - 59,617,894.67
30,855,100.38 37,.222,037.48 - 37,222,037.48
29,123,093.52 111,695,443.33 - 111,695443.33
27,315,023.84 21,486,564.08 - 21,486,564.08
19,105,683.10 33,117,442.63 - 33,117,442.63
19,017,71048 22,880,2003 - 22,880,2003
17,205,285 29,515,669.86 - 29,515,669.86
17,006,747.40 16,801,967.81 - 16,801,967.81
16,726,173.59 112,475,984.12 - 112,475,984.12
15,643,395.84 2,754,039.59 - 2,754,039.59
14,635,994.77 42,089,283.33 - 42,089,283.33
13,615,447.67 14,110,64359 - 14,110,64359
13,072,589.03 82,282,921.13 - 8,282,921.13
11,197,693.9 15,554,72050 - 15,554,72050
9,675,175.76 48,263,139.86 - 48,263,139.86
9017.293.75 17,749,151.40 - 17,749,151.40
8,837,927.24 14,674,249.48 - 14,674,249.48
6,010,678.17 19,464,817.18 - 19,464,817.18
5,006,917.04 35,688,065.03 2 35,688,065.03
4,804,662.41 49,887,497.91 = 49,887,49791
979,088,472.71 909,705,795.13 (3,738267.94) 905,967,527.19
124,072,087.85 200548,762.24 - 200548,762.24
1,960,960,285.60 2,593,148,546.85 (3,738267.94)  2,589410,278.91
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30 June 2016 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial
Statements (Continued)
17. Construction in progress (Continued)
Movement in key construction-in-progress from January to June

2016 is presented as follows:

Increase

Opening during

(Unaudited) Budget balance the period

(REEH) EE HIBE KEEM
FAST transmission technology 1+ & E&#75

renovation project BE 2,383,600,000.00  128/459,476.96  120,155,166.72
Weichai Power Testing Centre #4871 B8

B 942,310,000.00  289,866,753.20 22,706.80

Movement in key construction-in-progress in 2015 is presented as
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PO 5 i 3 M R (4)
201664308 (A E¥T)

G f.%ﬂ‘ﬁ;ﬁi%%ﬁi%igiﬁ H 5k
17 EEIR(E)

Fixed asset

transferred in

during the period

HEA
BERE

(108,222,364.99)

(82,558,832.39)

EEEZITIR2016%F1-6 A& 8N
B

Actual

costs as a

percentage

Other
decrease

Closing Source of  of budget
funding (%)
IBRA

HEE

B (%)

balance

HEs HARE BERR

Internal fund
BEES
Internal fund

Fhcka

(6506,223.91)  133,886,054.78 97.34%

(43,613,562.40)  163,717,065.21 98.46%

EEAERITR2015FEEHMT :

follows:
Actual
costs as a
Fixed asset percentage
Opening Increase transferred in Other Closing Source of of budget
(Audited) Budget balnce  during the year  during the year decrease balance funding (%)
TEREA
TEEL hHEE
(&2%) BE E8E KEEN EEAE £t ERRE EeRR 5 51(%)
FAST transmission technology % THFE &) Internal fund
renovation project BH 238360000000 36328945444 18524243145  (373,585,588.88)  (46,486,820.05) 128,459,476.96 EERa 97%
Weichai Power Testing Centre 4 1 85 Internal fund
B 942,310,00000 46554098173 46,902,075.76  (190,364,527.88)  (32,211,776.41) 289,866,753.20 B5E% 98.32%

Provision for impairment of construction-in-progress was made
in respect of sparkplug technology renovation project because its
recoverable amount was lower than carrying amount. There was no

movement in the provision for impairment during the period.

As at 30 June 2016, construction-in-progress with carrying amount
of RMB67,971,686.34 (31 December 2015: Nil) were pledged to
secure bank borrowings of the Group.

ERIRREEFRRNEERNR
B sHEREAER AR E S BER K
HEE  AHREEREES -

R2016F6 8308 » AEEKE®EE
EA ANR¥67,971,686.347L (2015
F12A318  E)NEEIEANK
HESIRITE N -
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2016 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial

Statements (Continued)
18. Intangible assets
January to June 2016

(Unaudited) Opening balance
(REE7) HaE

(Gross carrying amount BERE
Technology know-how B 1,292,008,860.32
Trademark rights EERRRE 4,470,292,096.00
Licence itk 605,481,486.28
Land use rights THERE 1,526,007,699.09
Orders on hand = 269,392,256.45
Customer relationship ZPE& 4,898,046,182.49
Software an 274,642,919.04
Others - 1,632,726,977.66
14968,598,477.33
Opening balance
BaE

Less: Accumulated amortization W BHEH

Technology know-how BRI 562,454,251.03
Trademark rights EEERE 19,594,127.24
Licence fiHE 194,207,102.40
Land use rights ThEEE 173,413,753.78
Orders on hand EFiE 77,231,252.00
Customer relationship RPEA 755,477,881.60
Software ot 89,164,483.68
Others ) 236,675,663.26
2,108.218514.99

Net carrying amount FmFE
Technology know-how EEH 729,554,609.29
Trademark rights EEERE 4,450,697,968.76
Licence g 411,274,383.88
Land use rights TitERE 1,35,593,945.31
Orders on hand EFiE 192,161,004.45
Customer relationship EFEA 4,142,568,300.89
Software g 185,478 435.36
Others b:t ) 1,39,051,314.40

12,860,379,962.34

Addition
BE

1,203,548.09
43,695,601.20
05,447,608.58

37,574670.3
155,129,181.48

303,050,609.58

Provision

i

13,245,132.05
1,361,940.55
79,547,402.92
30,611,940.77
10,174,594.40
230,182,599.24
12,897,35042
153,097,891.20

593,118,851.55

S5 e R WA R (A

201664308 (A E¥T)

T~ A O B Rk EEIH H AR

Transferred
from construction
ONES

HERIREA

195,857,535.00

195,857,535.00

(%)

18. BLEE

2016 1-6 A

Increase upon
acquisition of
subsidiaries

KETAREN

10,305,224.00
43,564,971.60

82,100,703.60

3,773,400

139,744,643.20

Disposals or
retirements

REIEE

(18,414,628.06)

(37,774,971.60)

(70,085.47)
(31,324252.92)

(87,583,938.05)

Disposals or
retirements

REEE

(37,666,113.60)

(37,666,113.60)

Adjustment

for exchange

differences

EXZESE

16,999,479.15
162,291,782.24
26,427,332.16
532,175.13
5825,287.15
178,848,085.58
26,897,438.56
58,688,807.91

476,510,388.48

Adjustment
for exchange
differences

EXzEaE

780980.13
(299,371.45)
1,483,625.48
(1,587,447.80)
16,779,598.81
66,796.62
12,014,8%.48

29,239,078.21

Closing balance

BB

1,291,797,259.50
4,642,889,102.24
681,394,419.64
1,787,845,018.40
215,217,543.60
5158,994,971.67
339,044,942.36
1,818,994,458.13

15,99,177,715.54

Closing balance

BR6E

636,480,363.21
20,656,696.34
231,572,017.20
204,025,694.55
85,818,398.60
1,004,440,079.65
102,128,630.72
401,788,450.94

2,692,910,331.21

655,316,896.29
4,622,232,405.92
443802,402.83
1,583,819,323.85
189,399,145.00
4,154,554,892.0
236,916,311.63
1,417,206,007.19

13,303,267,384.33




Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2016 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial
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4~ A OF B ok R IHH

Statements (Continued) (,%E)
18. Intangible assets (Continued) 8. EMILEE (&)
2015 20154
Increase upon Adjustment
acquisition Disposals for exchange
(Audited) Opening balance Addition Internal R&D of subsidiaries or retirements diferences Closing balance
(&57) FnE BE METE  RETRAEN REIRE EizERE ERBE
(Gross carrying amount EERE
Technology know-how EERT 117492855278 159,943.94 150,645,640.15 - (1,910,150.00 (31,815,126.55)  1,292,008,860.32
Trademark rights AEERE 4,617,999,346.00 32,100.00 - 59,735,600.00 - (207.474950.00  4,470,292,09.00
Licence i 568,578,950.34 42,655,386.00 - 49,504,142.00 (30,854,132.00 (24,402,860.06) 605,481,486.28
Land use rights TR 1,542,535,567.25 134,692,525.55 - - (150,694,197.49) (526,19.22)  1,526,007,699.09
Orders on hand E¥ilE 277,954,012.94 - - - - (8,561,756.49) 269,392,256.45
Customer relationship EPHE 5,071,859,706.56 - 60,548,282.00 (1,771,230.00 (232,590,576.07)  4,898,046,182.49
Software af 216,838,054.81 63,426,319.10 - - (1,542,091.35) (4,079,424.12) 274,642,919.04
Others £ 1,673,235,40630 298,684,946.00 29,851,041.32 5,153932.00 (294,252,842.32) (79,945,505.64)  1,632,726,977.66
15,143,929,596.98 539,651,281.19 180,49,681.47 174,941,956.00 (481,024,643.16) (589,396,395.15)  14,968598,477.33
Adjustment
Disposals for exchange
Opening balance Provision or reirements differences Closing balance
2 it REJHE ERZEE EreE
less: Accumulated amortzation 7+ 25t
Technology know-how ELy 1 423,409,858.86 137,699,943.11 (715,438.00) 2,059,887.06 562,454,251.03
Trademark rights AEfRE 16,788,050.80 2,378,006.04 - 428,07040 19,594,127.24
Licence e 76,878,530.64 142,597,424.9 (26,742,100.00) 1473,246.80 194,207,102.40
Land use rights THERE 153,232,082.38 32,757,8%.12 (12,576, 24.12) 17341375378
Orders on hand FTE 55,126,706.40 19,733,586.00 - 2,310,959.60 77,31,252.00
Customer relationship EPER 312,945,082.20 439,494,258.00 (847.412.00) 3,885,95340 755,477,881.60
Software af 71,094,045.45 20,104,777.57 (1,092,71357) (941,625.77) 89,164,483.68
Others £ 191,983,489.34 321,183,040.00 (263,836,308.32) (12,654,557.76) 136,675,663.26
1,301,457,846.07 1,115,948,931.80 (305,810,196.61) (3,378,066.27)  2,108218,514.99
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2016 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial H - A 0f b % i 3% 3 2H H 1
Statements (Continued) (7)
18. Intangible assets (Continued) 18. ML EE (&)

2015 (Continued) 20155 (4
Increase Decrease Adjustment
during during for exchange
(Audited) (Opening balance the year the year differences Closing balance
(2) 20 KN KR EXZEE ErBE
Less: Provision for impaiment 35 : %
Technology know-how EERI - - - -
Trademark rights HEFER - - - - -
Licence it - - - - -
Land use rights TiERE - - _ _ B
Orders on hand ESE - - - - -
Customer relationship EFEA - - - - -
Software af - - - - -
Others i - 28,284,112.00 (28,284,112.00 - -
- 28,284,112.00 (28,284,112.00) - -
Net carrying amount EETE
Technology knowehow B 751518,69392 729554,609.29
Trademark rights AEERE 4,601,211,295.20 4,450,697,968.76
Licence e 491,700,419.70 411,274383.88
Land use rights THERE 1,389,303 484.87 1,352,593,945.31
Orders on hand EFiE 2082730654 192,161,004.45
Customer relationship REBE 4758,914,624.36 4142,568,300.89
Software o 145,744,009.36 18547843536
Others £ 1481,251916.96 1,396,051,314.40
13842471,75091 12,860,379,962.34

As at 30 June 2016, intangible assets with carrying amount of
RMB431,244,490.28 (31 December 2015: RMB43,997,456.41)
were pledged to secure bank borrowings of the Group.

The trademarks are renewable every 10 years at minimal cost. The
management of the Group are of the opinion that the Group has
both the intention and ability to renew the trademarks continuously.
As a result, the useful life of the trademarks is considered by the
management of the Group as indefinite because the trademarks are
expected to contribute to the Group’s net cash inflows indefinitely.
The trademarks will not be amortised until their useful life is
determined to be finite.

As at 30 June 2016, the intangible assets for which the Group
had not obtained title certificates had a carrying amount of
RMB289,481,309.24, for which the Group was in the process of
applying (31 December 2015: RMB198,847,774.46).

R2016%F6 A308 © A& E &k
HmEEA AR 431,244,490.28
7T (201512 8318 : AR
43,997,456.410) MEFEER R
ARG IRITIE K ©

MABBEE+FARRERRNEE—
R AEEERBRR  AKEEE
BBERNTHBEEZEEE - Bt &
EFRBEEAKAR/AKREELR SR
ANFE L AREEEER/K
ERRBEAXATERFR - RIFZ
ERENAIERFRERERSER
BRITEEITHEE

201668308 » AEEHRHE
ERFENEFEEREEBEEAAR
#289,481,309.247F * BREPIEE
HEERNBED (20156128318 ¢
ANE#198,847,774.467T) °



Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2016 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial

Statements (Continued)
19. Expenditure on development
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(%)
19. AR XH

Capitalization of expenditure on development starts when

the development stage is reached. Capitalized expenditure on

development of the Group is presented as follows:

January to June 2016

BB EDMEREORRALR
BRI REBERMEOFAE LN
T

2016 1-6 A

Decrease during the period

S0
Increase in Transferred
internal R&D to intangible
(Unaudited) Opening balance  during the period assets Other decrease Closing balance
AgEm
(REE7) BI5% LS BABVEE Bt HREE
HX complete vehicle external flow HXB BN
field analysis and optimization project A7 R E{EE 13,185,634.17 844,809.16 - 14,030,443.33
Improvement project on driver's cabin EBEWEER 25,430,342.84 31,807,755.44 - 57,38,098.28
Hydraulics project HEER 235,706,165.08 37,865,916.60 (28,636,911.20) 244,935,170.48
Others 2 191,746,624.88 - (12,769,628.74) 178,976,9%.14
466,068,766.97 70,518,481.20 (41,406,539.94) 495,180,708.23
2015 20154
Decrease during the year
RERYD
Increase in
internal R&D Recognition of
(Audited) Opening balance during the year intangible assets Other decrease Closing balance
REEN
(E&%) ENB% mEFE EREVEE At ExeE
HX complete vehicle external flow HXBESN S
field analysis and optimization project ARE(LEE 345727133 9,728,356.84 = = 13,185,634.17
Improvement project on driver's cabin BHEMEER 8,190,188.69 33,414,089.78 (16,173,935.63) - 25430,342.84
Hydraulics project HREER 400,216,608.00 39,883,932.00 (134,471,704.52) (69,922,670.40) 235,706,165.08
Others i 121,842,316.74 99,755,349.46 (29,851,041.32) = 191,746,624.88
533,706,390.76 182,781,728.08 (180,496,681.47) (69,922,670.40) 466,068,766.97
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) FPHS i R M 5 (48
30 June 2016 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 2016F6H30H (A E¥T)
V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial # - & f B % #t 38 3= B IH H 5E B
Statements (Continued) (%)
20. Goodwill 20. BE
January to June 2016 20165 1-6 A

Increase during

the period
Business
combination
not involving Adjustment
Opening entities under  Decrease during for exchange
(Unaudited) balance  common control the period differences  Closing balance
REEm
HE-2HT
(REER) BAnE bREH N EXEHAR HABE
Merger with TAGC afbANE 537,573,736.46 537,573,736.46
Merger with Linde Hydraulics & HiEREAB L%

GmbH & Co. KG 752,544,551.07 = 29,676,677.95 782,221,229.02
Merger with KION GROUPAG A #KION GROUP AG 6,133,809,720.72 - 208,338,592.56  6,342,148,313.28
Merger with Egemin Inc. A #tEgemin Inc. 362,323,483.20 = 14,288,266.80 376,611,750.00
Merger with Retrotech Inc. A BrRetrotech Inc. - 173,000,003.40 6,168,246.60  179,168,250.00
Others ity - 64,695,193.50 2,306,681.50 67,001,875.00

7,786,251,491.45 237,695,196.90 260,778,465.41  8,284,725,153.76
2015 20154
Increase during
the year Business
combination
not involving Adjustment
Opening entities under ~ Decrease during for exchange
(Audited) balance  common control the year differences Closing balance
REEM
FR—1EHT
(B%F%) FABE REAH RERY ENEEAE FREE
Merger with TAGC AHAAE 537,908,504.02 - (334,767.56) - 53757373646
Merger with KION GROUP AG AHKION GROUP AG 6,445,375,994.17 - - (311,566,273.45) 6,133,809,720.72
Merger with Egemin APtEgemin

Automation Inc. Automation Inc. - 341,042,811.30 - 2128067190 362,323,483.20
Merger with Linde Hydraulics ARMEREERLE

GmbH & Co. KG 790,769,978.99 - - (3822542792)  752,544,551.07

7,774,054,477.18  341,042,811.30 (334,767.56)  (328,511,029.47) 7,786,251,491.45




Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2016 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial
Statements (Continued)

20.

Goodwill (Continued)

Balance as at 30 June 2016 mainly represented goodwill arising
from merger with TAGC, Linde Hydraulics GmbH & Co. KG, KION
Group AG, Egemin Inc. and Retrotech Inc. Goodwill is tested for
impairment based on asset groups formed by the merger with

material asset group units from those mergers on an annual basis.

Further, the trademark with indefinite useful life comprised in the
intangible assets in Note V.18 amounted to RMB4,621,817,047.24

and is included in those asset group units for impairment testing.
Carrying amount of material goodwill and trademarks is allocated
to the following asset group units as follows:

o asset group unit A: manufacture and sale of diesel engines

and related parts

o asset group unit B: major automobile components other than

automotive and diesel engines
o asset group unit C: manufacture of hydraulic pumps,
hydraulic motors, hydraulic valves, gears and other

components

o asset group unit D: forklift trucks production and

warehousing technology services
o asset group unit E: Automation of material handling

o asset group unit F: Automated warehousing and modernized

searching

Interim Report 2016 AR HEAZRE

S S ¥ R MY R (A

201646 H30H (AR #T)

o AP B SR FEIHE R
(78)
20. EE (&)

2006 F6 AR EMERTEEEAR
SOFMANE  MEREERRE -
KION GROUP AG -+ Egemin Inc. #1
Retrotech Inc. MES£ M E - A&
ESFREAZEEHERNEERR
EREZEAEMAGETHEREN

o - BERWER - 18EFEE
FHROKAAEANEEEERARKE
4,621,817,047.247C » INBIEE Z
LEEBESFETRER -

EZRERAGNRESEIKESR
EENBERMT

e EBEMHMAESA EERHER
AR T B

o  EEMAMAAB: TERIMEI
B EETETEM

e AEMHMAAC HEREXR -
REFE  BREWEM  EHK

HZ ¢

e HZEMHMAED: XEEERE
[E 4T BR 7%

o EEMBAE: UHRELHL

o EEMMAAF: BBLARMER
itz
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2016 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

PR 5 3 M R (4)
201664308 (A E¥T)

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial #. - & f i % it & 32 IH H 51 &
Statements (Continued)
20. Goodwill (Continued)

The carrying amount of goodwill and trademark are allocated to the FHELEENERcEIREEER

21.

asset groups as follows:

(%)
20. & (&)

RBERIT ¢

Carrying amount of goodwill Carrying amount of trademark
BENREER BENREEHR
012G 31 December 2015 NPl 31 December 2015
ARG 20154512 A31H 20166 H30H AUEEIPEEN=
(Unaudited) (Audited) (Unaudited) (Audited)
(REER) (&%) (REER) (REZ)

Asset group unit A EEHRBEARA - - 116,422,784.00 116,422,784.00
Asset group unit B BEEHES 537,573,736.46 537,573,736.46 94,197,000.00 94,677,740.80
Asset group unit C EEABAC 782,221,229.02 752,544,551.07 - -
Asset group unit D EEMBEAD GEPREERREERS 6,133,809,720.72  [UEEERREGELS S 4,178,578,723.96
Asset group unit E BEEHAAE EVIIARIE  362,323,483.20 63,425,000.00 61,018,720.00
Asset group unit F EEMBMBAF 179,168,250.00 - 10,472,500.00 -
As at 30 June 2016, the management considers that there was no R2016%F6 A30H * EREBRAZS
risk of impairment for these goodwill and trademarks. B IR R E AR o

Long-term prepaid expenses
January to June 2016

21. RAZFHEEHA
2016%F1-6 H

Increase  Amortization

Opening during during Other Closing

balance the period the period decrease balance

BAHE AlEm N b HRGR

(Unaudited)

(RigzER)

Industrial mould fee THERE

Industrial equipment fee ThEAE
Expenditure on improvement of RAEREEMALL

fixed assets leased in

216,396,240.19 38,898,025.39 (22,593,164.15) (18,230,244.20) 214,470,857.23
52,481,511.01 26,826,092.52 (9,765,665.14) = 69,541,938.39

45,504,218.38 4,499,515.33 (10,985,638.59) (24,735.16) 38,993,359.96

314,381,969.58 70,223,633.24 (43,344,467.88) (18,254,979.36) 323,006,155.58
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2016%6/30H (ARHT)
V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial
Statements (Continued)

21. Long-term prepaid expenses (Continued)
2015

1~ B OF B AR 1 IH H RE R

(%)
21. RMFHBER (&)
2015%F
Increase Amortization
Opening during during Other Closing
(Audited) balance the year the year decrease balance
(&E=R) EfHE REEN R At ERBE
Industrial mould fee IRRRE 71,610,046.80 191,889,571.01 (41,650,208.40) (5,453,169.22) 216,396,240.19
Industrial equipment fee TRAE 52,107,937.89 19,345,462.96 (17,398,298.25) (1,573,591.59) 52,481,511.01
Bxpenditure on improvement of BAEREENALL
fixed assets leased in 45,067,155.01 22,830,355.06 (22,393,291.69) 45,504,218.38
168,785,139.70 234,065,389.03 (81,441,798.34) (7,026,760.81) 314,381,969.58
22. Other non-current assets 22. HittERBEE

30 June 2016

31 December 2015
201656 H30H
Scheme assets under defined

2015412 A31H
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REER) (g&EZ)
REREH B2 BEE
benefit scheme 214,544,657.60
Others EAth 131,746,316.45 34,010,138.99

131,746,316.45 248,554,796.59
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2016 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial
Statements (Continued)

23.

24.

Short-term loans

RS i 25 BT 5 (%)
201646 4303 (A RHT)
T SO BRI EIEH R
(74)
23. EHIER

Mortgage loans IR E R
Guaranteed loans EIRIER
Pledge loans BIRE R
Credit loans EREBX

As at 30 June 2016, the above loans carried interest at rates
ranging from 0.9% to 5.22% (31 December 2015: 0.95% to 7.8%)

per annum.

Among the short-term loans, RMB 737,500,000.00 (31 December
2015: Nil) represented the guarantee by Weichai Group Holdings
Limited granted to the loan business of Weichai Power (Luxembourg)
Holding S.a r.I. (a subsidiary of the Company) , which will mature in
June 2017.

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit
or loss for the current period

24.

Forward contracts REAR
Cross currency interest rate swap RXREENEE]MTH
instruments

Total aEr

30 June 2016 31 December 2015
20166 H30H 201512 A31H
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REER) (R&ER)

39,000,000.00 39,000,000.00
737,500,000.00 -
= 380,231,102.40

5,365,994,637.40 2,541,877,111.06

6,142,494,637.40 2,961,108,213.46

M2016F6A30H » LiltfE A FF|
R 50.9%~5.22% (2015F 12 A 31
H:0.95%~7.8%) °

W EfE 5 A R 737,500,000.00
JL(20159 12 A318 « ) BisEr
BREBBRAARIAERRRZ FARIMH
LEFH(ERE)ERBRARNER
EBRBER - ZEFENR20175F6
AEIE -

U EBEFEBEESE
SFAEHBESENEREE

30 June 2016 31 December 2015
201656 H30H 201512 HA31H
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REER) (gE=)

203,845,000.00 84,255,500.00

32,621,063.57 7,759,303.10

236,466,063.57 92,014,803.10
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V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial
Statements (Continued)

25.

26.

Notes payable
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(%)
25. EHZE#E

30 June 2016
20166 H30H
(Unaudited)
(REER)

5,207,467,916.10
108,218,916.24

Bank acceptance bills HRITHAH R
Commercial acceptance bills EEANESR
Total &&h

5,315,686,832.34

As at 30 June 2016, the Group had no outstanding notes payable
which were due (31 December 2015: Nil).

Accounts Payable
Accounts payable are non-interest bearing, and are generally settled

within three to four months.

31 December 2015
2015412 A31H
(Audited)
(R&ER)

5,134,597,401.53
149,317,676.68

5,283,915,078.21

MN20165E6A30H » REBERIH K
~EEMZE(2015F12 8318

&) -

26. B IR

&1 BR SR AT R

NIBME °

30 June 2016
201656 H30H
(Unaudited)
(REER)

F& 5 BR K

Accounts payable

17,963,845,622.82

As at 30 June 2016, the aging analysis of accounts payable based
on the invoice date is presented as follows:

C WIBEAE3-4EA

31 December 2015
201512 HA31H
(Audited)
(EE%)

14,264,753,447.71

M2016F6 A30H @ BRI ER
ZHHNER ST ¢

30 June 2016
20166 H30H
(Unaudited)
(REER)

17,139,336,731.50
824,508,891.32

Within 1 year 1A
Over 1 year 1A E
Total &5t

17,963,845,622.82

As at 30 June 2016, there was no payable which was individually
significant and aged over one year (31 December 2015: nil).

31 December 2015
2015412 A31H
(Audited)
(gE=)

13,493,299,323.69
771,454,124.02

14,264,753,447.71

MR2016F6 30 @ ERE—FIA
MEZMENMNKRIE(2015F12 A31

B &) -
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) FPHS i R M 5 (48
30 June 2016 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 2016F6H30H (A E¥T)

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial #. - & f i % it & 2 B IH H 51 &
Statements (Continued) (74)
27. Advances from customers 27. AR ARE

30 June 2016 31 December 2015
20166 H30H 201512 A31H
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REER) (R&ER)

Advances from customers FE U R IE 1,373,017,730.57 1,637,474,054.56

As at 30 June 2016, there was no individually significant advances MR2016F6A30H « EiRIR—F U L
from customers which aged over one year (31 December 2015: nil). B EZ TR FRIE(2015F 12 A 31
H:m)-
28. Payroll payable 28. FE{TER T %A
January to June 2016 20165 1-6 H
Opening Increase during Decrease during

(Unaudited) balance the period the period Closing balance
(REER) e REE KEHD HAREE
Short-term remuneration B 2,541,729,289.17  6,378,322,728.09  (6,568,955,167.34)  2,351,096,849.92
Post-employment benefits (defined BBt/ 1 7

contribution plan) (RERFTE) 259,983,382.25 972,370,621.61 (855,982,917.64) 376,371,086.22
Severance benefits BHERH

Portion due within 1 year —FRTREED 240,964,314.03 70,984,425.19 (68,333,495.86) 243,615,243.36
Other long-term payroll due —FNEERH

within 1 year REBTEH 86,859,438.40 182,743,990.44 (140,776,928.83) 128,826,500.01

3,129,536,423.85 7,604,421,765.33  (7,634,048509.67)  3,099,909,679.51
2015 2015%F
Opening Increase during Decrease during

(Audited) balance the year the year Closing balance
(&&R) FHE REEM RERD FRBE
Short-term remuneration Skt 2,508,586,938.87  11,838,358,641.27  (11,805216,290.97)  2,541,729,289.17
Post-employment benefits B R AR

(defined contribution plan) (FERRFHE) 322,162,32833  1,808,420,791.55  (1,870,599,737.63) 259,983,382.25
Severance benefits BHRET

Portion due within 1 year —ERNTRBBH 201,584,718.65 159,394,179.30 (120,014,583.92) 240,964,314.03
Other long-term payroll due —FRHEBHE

within 1 year R T & 82,690,059.60 190,739,117.98 (186,569,739.18) 86,859,438.40

3,115,024,04545  13,996,912,730.10  (13,982,400,351.70)  3,129,536,423.85
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) RS i 25 BT 5 (%)
30 June 2016 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 2016F6H30H (A E¥T)
V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial # - & 0F b % it 3% £ EIH H 51 B
Statements (Continued) (%)
28. Payroll payable (Continued) 28. BB T HEM (&)
Short-term remuneration is presented as follows: SERSF RN T
January to June 2016 20164 1-6 A
Opening Increase during Decrease during
(Unaudited) balance the period the period Closing balance
(REER) B KEE KEHD BARGBE
Salaries, bonuses, allowances 1% e 20AH
and subsidies B 1,982,539,210.98 5,568,574,042.47  (5,755,319,643.70)  1,795,793,609.75
Staff welfare BIEANZ 16,179,650.51 142,222,924.36 (133,422,009.83) 24,980,565.04
Social security HeREE 69,285,109.04 460,376,667.03 (458,671,070.35) 70,990,705.72
Incl: Medical insurance A BERRE 52,885,654.44 403,988,095.04  (404,434,127.57) 52,439,621.91
Work injury insurance I5RRE 12,431,438.54 29,059,418.98 (26,679,209.14) 14,811,648.38
Maternity insurance EBERBRE 342,467.36 6,258,204.85 (6,276,543.29) 324,128.92
Supplementary medical HRBERR
insurance 3,625,548.70 21,070,948.16 (21,281,190.35) 3,415,306.51
Housing funds FELES 14,924,311.20 104,075,135.32 (104,761,976.14) 14,237,470.38
Labor union operating funds and TEREBNBIHEL
employee education costs 2 334,550,452.63 42,372,530.38 (35,527,876.59) 341,395,106.42
Other short-term remuneration H{th 53 E 5 B 124,250,554.81 60,701,428.53 (81,252,590.73) 103,699,392.61
2,541,729,289.17 6,378,322,728.09  (6,568,955,167.34)  2,351,096,849.92
2015 20154
Opening Increase during Decrease during
(Audited) balance the year the year Closing balance
(BER) ENHE REEM KERD ERHE

Salaries, bonuses, allowances

I8 %% 2R0E

and subsidies i 2,048477,621.20  10,186,191,262.27  (10,252,129,672.49)  1,982,539,210.98
Staff welfare BIw®HE 19,981,723.00 274,467,528.49 (278,269,600.98) 16,179,650.51
Social security teRBE 8,169,937.38 845,932,319.45 (784,817,147.79) 69,285,109.04
Incl: Medical insurance 2o BERRE 3,797,634.08 729,264,952.65 (680,176,932.29) 52,885,654.44
Work injury insurance IEREE 448,766.83 58,341,994.44 (46,359,322.73) 12,431,438.54
Maternity insurance EERRE 421,484.06 13,375,621.35 (13,454,638.05) 342,467.36
Supplementary medical insurance BRBERR 3,502,052.41 44,949,751.01 (44,826,254.72) 3,625,548.70
Housing funds FERES 13,771,309.97 225,348,315.37 (224,195,314.14) 14,924,311.20

Labor union operating funds and TERENBRIAEK
employee education costs b4 286,743,090.75 90,060,017.77 (42,252,655.89) 334,550,452.63
Other short-term remuneration H e B 131,443,256.57 216,359,197.92 (223,551,899.68) 124,250,554.81
2,508,586,938.87  11,838,358,641.27  (11,805,216,290.97)  2,541,729,289.17
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) FPHS i R M 5 (48

30 June 2016 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 2016F6 A30H (AR ¥T)

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial #. - & f i % it & 2 B IH H 51 &
Statements (Continued) (74)

28. Payroll payable (Continued) 28. BB THM(E)

Post-employment benefits (Defined contribution plan) is presented as

follows:

January to June 2016

BBEEN (RTREHEIMT :

20165 1-6 A

Opening Increase during  Decrease during
(Unaudited) balance the period the period  Closing balance
(RigEiz) BHE REEM XEED HREAEE
Basic pension insurance EREZRE 202,120,998.73  835,502,586.26  (714,027,686.32)  323,595,898.67
Unemployment insurance KERKRE 10,826,578.43 71,587,630.14 (73,002,563.26) 9,411,645.31
Contribution to pension fund PEFLHUB 47,035,805.09 65,280,405.21 (68,952,668.06) 43,363,542.24
259,983,382.25 972,370,621.61 (855,982,917.64) 376,371,086.22
2015 20154
Opening Increase during Decrease during
(Audited) balance the year the year Closing balance
(FER) FRE RELEM RERD FRHE
Basic pension insurance EREERR 292,500,414.92  1,550,663,469.47  (1,641,042,885.66) 202,120,998.73
Unemployment insurance KERBE 1,465,626.36 137,323,299.63  (127,962,347.56) 10,826,578.43
Contribution to pension fund TrEFSHE 28,196,287.05 120,434,022.45 (101,594,504.41) 47,035,805.09
322,162,328.33  1,808,420,791.55 (1,870,599,737.63) 259,983,382.25
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) RS i R M 5 (48
30 June 2016 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 20166 H30H (A E#or)

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial #. - & f I % it & £ IH H 51 #
Statements (Continued) (%)
29. Taxes payable 29. EXBLE

30 June 2016 31 December 2015
20166 HA30H 2015412 A831H

(Unaudited) (Audited)

(REER) (R&ER)

Value-added tax BEF 473,368,121.78 387,408,799.92
Corporate income tax EFREH 655,286,386.25 611,662,615.00
Individual income tax B A PRIFHE 130,864,341.72 110,962,586.56
Property tax BEM 19,254,225.88 19,330,716.35
Stamp duty ENFERT 10,708,636.72 13,945,062.71
Land use tax b fE A 16,842,336.17 12,852,763.19
City construction tax PER 13,399,099.25 5,498,539.49
Business tax R - 879,037.29

Other taxes HAanFiE 87,616,235.60 73,026,577.62

1,407,339,383.37 1,235,566,698.13

30. Interests payable 30. ENAIE

30 June 2016 31 December 2015
20166 H30H 201512 A31H
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REERZ) (g&EZ)

Interests on medium-term notes FREAZEE R B 105,583,641.33 171,841,853.57
Interests on borrowings B RFLE 41,064,714.25 35,172,531.39
Others EHh 1,037,400.25 1,724,133.60

147,685,755.83 208,738,518.56
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2016 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial

Statements (Continued)

31.

32.

Dividends payable

HRB D RHBRAF

PR 5 3 M R (4)

201664308 (A E¥T)

T SO BRI EIEH R
(74)

Dividends payable to minority JERF AR EHARERF
shareholders of subsidiaries

Ordinary share dividends payable JEAT 3 B AR AR F

Other payables

Sales discount HEIE

Guarantees and deposits REZRFE

Payables for purchase of construction
and fixed assets

Repair and maintenance expenses

After-sales expenses

Technology development expenses

Land facility fee and land premiums

Others

e TR R EIE & ERBR

BAFEE
THEEER R LR
Hit

As at 30 June 2016 and 31 December 2015, there were no other

payables in significant amount with an age of more than one year.

31. BEARA

30 June 2016
20166 H30H
(Unaudited)
(REER)

2,189,313.52
399,861,927.80

402,051,241.32

32. B

30 June 2016
201656 HA30H
(Unaudited)
(REER)

1,350,061,564.26
981,321,597.82

452,347,319.40
335,097,294.13
59,063,023.67
40,610,891.34
142,299,118.94
1,113,709,259.84

4,474,510,069.40

31 December 2015
2015412 A31H
(Audited)
(R&ER)

5,129,313.52

5,129,313.52

31 December 2015
201512 A31H
(Audited)
(g&EZ)

885,318,685.01
797,995,777.10

607,056,971.96
301,297,341.97
33,895,086.00
65,985,991.70
30,865,423.78
1,064,489,948.28

3,786,905,225.80

201646 A30H &2015%12 431
B EREKR - FALNERNEME

3 -



Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2016 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial
Statements (Continued)
33. Non-current liabilities due within one year

Interim Report 2016 A HAZRE

RS i 25 BT 5 (%)
201696 A30H (A E#¥T)

i é‘%ﬁ?ﬁjiﬁiﬁi@igiﬁ H iR
(%)
33. ~FRIHHERBEAE

30 June 2016 31 December 2015

20166 A30H 2015412 A831H
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REEER) (L E|HZ)

Long-term borrowings due within

—FA BN RBRER

one year

Medium-term notes due within one year

(Note)

Long-term payable due within one year

—FREHRHREN R

—FRAIHMNTHRREGD)

310,625,000.00

456,096,323.00

1,399,355,788.71
2,860,379,000.00

2,197,925,724.19
2,592,316,462.40

4,570,359,788.71 5,246,338,509.59

Long term borrowings due within one

year include:
Credit loans ERER
Guaranteed loans ERER

Hep o —FREHHRIER

310,625,000.00 249,666,400.00
- 206,429,923.00

Note: As at 30 June 2016, balance of medium-term notes due within one year
are listed as follows:

Issuing At the beginning

(Unaudited) Face value date Bond period  Issued amount of period

(k&%) mE EGLE EEER gk BHE

Medium-tem note - EHZF 1,400,000,000.00 2011-7-28 SFyear  1,397,340,00000  1,398,153,360.39

Medium-tem note - FHZ 400,000,000.00 2013-3-21 3Fyear  398,800,000.00  399,849914.75

Medium-tem note - R EHZE 400,000,000.00 2013-5-21 3Fyear 39880000000  399,922,449.05

Total A3t 2,200,000,000.00 2,197,925,724.19

(1) The Company registered at the National Association of Financial Market

Institutional Investors in August 2009 for issuing medium-term notes in

a registered amount of RMB2.7 billion to be issued in two tranches. The

handling fee was 0.3%. The first tranche, in an aggregate amount of

RMB1.3 billion, was issued on 24 August 2009. Its maturity period was 5

years, with a coupon rate of 4.95%. Interest was payable every 12 months.

This tranche was due in 2014 and has been repaid. The second tranche

of RMB1.4 billion was issued on 28 July 2011 with a maturity period of 5

years. The coupon rate was 5.65% with interest payable every 12 months.

2) Shaanxi Heavy-duty Motor Co., Ltd., a subsidiary of the Company,

registered at the National Association of Financial Market Institutional
Investors in February 2013 for issuing medium-term notes in a registered
amount of RMB1.4 billion to be issued in two tranches. The handling
fee was 0.3%. The first tranche, in an aggregate amount of RMBO0.4
billion, was issued on 21 March 2013. Its maturity period was 3 years,
with a coupon rate of 5.18%. Interest was payable every 12 months.
The medium-term notes were matured in the first half of 2016 and have
been repaid. The second tranche of RMBO0.4 billion was issued on 21 May
2013 with a maturity period of 3 years. The coupon rate was 5.03% with
interest payable every 12 months. The medium-term notes were matured
in the first half of 2016 and have been repaid.

£ M2016%F6A308 - —FEREHNF
HEIRHEIN AT

Atthe end
of period
BAHE

Accrued interest
this period
AHHRAE

Issued this
period

ARRT

Repaid this
period

ARKE

Amortization

fEREs

39,550,000.00
20,720,000.00
20,120,000.00

1,202,428.32
150,085.25
71,550.95

1,399,355,788.71
(400,000,000.00) -
(400,000,000.00) =

80,390,000.00 1430,064.52

(800,000,000.00) 1,399,355,788.71

(1)  ARANR2009F8 AEFBHRITRT
SR GEHeFMBETHHEE - &
MEEAARK2IBL  FEBX
BTFH2= DMRBEIT - F— KR
20098 A24B %7 @BRARM
13187 - BHFHRASTE - ZTEAE
"4.95% - NESERI12EA - ZERE
HFER2014F B HAWEER - F2K
MR2011F7H28B%1T » @EAAR
14 BHHERASTE - ZEF
EA5.65%  TEIEERR12ER -

(2) ARRZFRAAKRBAERSTEFRA
AR2013F2 AEHRBERITR TSR
SEBEIMBETHFHER - M
SHEABARBIABT  FEEXRA
FHz=" HRMRET - F—RK
2013F3H21B%1T - @EAARE
AfSTT - BEHHRAIE  ZEFMRA
5.18% ' (NEMEEA12EA + ZE+
HZEER20165F ¥ FE B E
B o BB IRM2013F5 821 H %17 -
SHEAARBIETL  BEBHFERAS
£ EEANKA503%  HEHERA
12188 - ZEFHEBEER2016F £
FEIHWEEE -

145
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2016 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial
Statements (Continued)
34. Other current liabilities

35.

RS i 25 BT 5 (%)
201646 4303 (A RHT)

ﬂ~€ﬁ%%ﬁ%i£ﬁﬁ%%
(%)
34. HbRBHE R

30 June 2016 31 December 2015
20166 H30H 2015412 A31H
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REER) (R&ER)

Product quality assurance deposit EmEERED
Deferred income RIEW S (—F AR S)

(portion due within one year)
Others Hih

1,263,475,620.37 1,096,672,498.77

564,777,500.00 549,123,980.00
348,409,932.23 372,530,176.41

2,176,663,052.60 2,018,326,655.18

Long-term borrowings

35. REIfER

30 June 2016 31 December 2015
20166 H30H 201512 HA31H
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REER) (gE=)

Guaranteed loans PERIEF
Credit loans ERER
Mortgage loans RS R
Pledge loans EHIR{EK

200,000,000.00 200,000,000.00
10,595,504,851.04 6,445,175,346.45
698,807,751.45 -

— 638,568,000.00

11,494,312,602.49 7,283,743,346.45

As at 30 June 2016, the above loans carried interest at rates ranging
from 1.05% to 5.305% (31 December 2015: 1.3% to 5.535%) per

annum.

In addition, among the long-term borrowings, RMB200,000,000.00
(31 December 2015: RMB200,000,000.00) represented the financial
guarantee in respect of the loan business of Shaanxi Heavy-duty
Motor Company Limited, a subsidiary of the Company, granted to
the Export-Import Bank of China from the Xi‘an branch of the Bank
of East Asia (China) Limited, which will mature in September 2017.

M2016F6A30R @ FitfE e FEF|
R 51.05%~5.305% (2015F 12 A
31H : 1.3%~5.535%) °

K EIfE 5+ A R%200,000,000.00
JL(2015F 12 A31H + AR¥
200,000,000.007% ) A& H 5z $R 17 (
B)ERAFRAZDTTRAARRZF
NAIRABEREEARRFNERE
BRI AEMEREGEPBEE D OR
17 ZEFBR2017F9 8584 -
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30 June 2016 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial
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S5 e R WA R (A

201696 A30H (A E#¥T)

Statements (Continued)
36. Bonds payable

Medium-term notes

FHIRE

As at 30 June 2016, balance of bonds payable are listed as follows:

EI ?@;ﬁﬁ;ﬁj%ﬁ?@igiﬁ SR
36. B

30 June 2016 31 December 2015
20166 HA30H 2015412 A831H
(Unaudited) (Audited)

(REER) (REZ)

2,632,371,949.11 5,985,529,194.60

M20165E6A308 @ EN{ES %D

REAR ¢
Issuing Atthe beginning Issued  Accrued interest Repaid Atthe end
(Unaudited) Face value date Bond period Issued amount of period this period this period Amortization this period of period
(7E%5%) i %A% BEHR ki | EEIEE R8T KRS EERE AHRE BRBE
Medumtemnote  #HZH 3,303,755,294.40 013-2-6 TEyear 329867259395  3409.725656.23 137,161,080.00  (106,860,656.23)  (3,302,865,000.00)
Medumtemnote  #HEH 2,544,520,000.00 2015930 SEyear 252231795403 257580353837 55,973,860.56 56,568,410.74 - 263231194911
Total At 5,848,275,294.40 5985,529,194.60 193,134,940.56 (50,292,245.49)  (3.302,865,000.00)  2,632,371,949.11
As at 31 December 2015, balance of bonds payable are listed as M2015F12A831H » EffE564E
follows: SITREATE
Issuing Atthe beginning Isued  Accrued interest Repaid At the end
(Audited) Face value date Bond period Issued amount of year his year this year Amortization this year ofyear  Note
(427 Ak 2708 E5ER 2788 8% rEEG KRS fiaBRY TERE FREE H
Medumemnote  RHZE 3,303,755,29440 2013-2-6 TE 3298671259395 3,637,524,96381 - 2098475000 (227,799,307.58) - 340972565623 (1)
Medumtemnote  RHZE 2,544,520,000.00 2015930 SE 252231795403 - 252231795403 26,687379.23 53,485,584.34 - 25758035837 )
Total Aif 5,848,275,294.40 363752496381 2522,317,954.03 BIOILINB - (1743137232) - 598552919460
(1) KION GROUP AG, a subsidiary of the Company, issued medium-term notes (1) A2AFZF2AFKON GROUP AG -
in a registered amount of EUR450 million in Europe in February 2013. Its R2013F2 A ERNETEMEES R
maturity period was 7 years, with a coupon rate of 6.75%. The interest B4 5BHREBRE  ZEEANER
was payable every 6 months. The bond was repaid early in February 2016. 6.75% ' EHFHARF/7TF - HEHEE
REMEA - ZEEFEMN2016F2A1
AIfEIR °
(2)  Weichai International (Hong Kong) Energy Group Co., Ltd., a subsidiary (2)  ARBZFRAVALER(FE)LR

of the Company, issued medium-term notes with registered capital of
USD400 million on 30 September 2015, nominal interest rate of 4.125%,
maturity of 5 years and with interest payable every six months.

SEAMRADA - B2015F9A30H %
TEMESBIBETNRBERE -
ZEMRKREL125% @ EEHRAES
F - FEAER6MEA -
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2016 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

HRB D RHBRAF

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial
Statements (Continued)

37.

38.

Long-term payables

Government grants for national debt
projects
Rental payable for sale and leaseback

Finance lease

(A 18 B BUR#EGR

FEfFE 12T M &R
BMEHE

Other financial liabilities Hheras
Long-term payroll payable

Defined benefit obligations RESZHES
Long-term severance benefits RHEBHRET
Cash-settled share-based payments IR EENRMHD
Other long-term payroll payable Hofth = R ES: T35 A

Defined benefit obligations

The Group operates defined benefit schemes for its staff in some

overseas subsidiaries who meet conditions. The scheme requires

that contribution be made to an independently administered fund.

Under the scheme, staff are entitled to enjoy retirement benefit

provided for under defined benefit of the plans.

RS i 25 BT 5 (%)
201646 4303 (A RHT)

T~ B OF B R R IH H RE R

(%)
37. REPEMSRK

30 June 2016
20166 H30H
(Unaudited)
(REER)

5,500,000.00
4,796,781,125.00
2,376,697,000.00
4,174,250.00

7,183,152,375.00

31 December 2015
2015412 A31H
(Audited)
(R&ER)

5,500,000.00
4,382,655,373.60
2,210,885,605.60
5,058,877.60

6,604,099,856.80

38. RIS T ZM

30 June 2016
201656 HA30H
(Unaudited)
(REER)

8,146,554,486.25
110,627,945.85
84,930,500.00
260,401,238.75

8,602,514,170.85

RELmELS

31 December 2015
201512 A31H
(Audited)
(g&EZ)

6,438,405,650.11
117,348,692.36
106,314,476.80
266,106,385.65

6,928,175,204.92

REEFLARINT RRIAT A GEEN
BTEFETREX @S - %aT 8
ERMBUEENESHUETER - &
ZitBl T BT BERFIREXER

X ERRIRAEF

wI*



Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2016 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial

Statements (Continued)

38. Long-term payroll payable (Continued)
Defined benefit obligations (Continued)
The Group’s defined benefit scheme is one requiring contribution
prior to termination of service. The scheme requires that
contribution be made to an independently administered fund. The
scheme is administered by an independent trustee in the legal form
of a fund. The assets held under the fund is held separately with
assets of the Group. The trustee is responsible for the investment

strategies of the scheme.

The trustee assesses the level of capital of the scheme. The
assessment includes asset-liabilities matching strategies and
investment risk management strategies. The trustee determines the

amount to be deployed based on the result of its annual assessment.

The scheme is exposed to interest rate risk, risk of change of
anticipated age of beneficiaries of the pension, and risks of the

securities market.

The latest actuarial valuation of the assets under the scheme and
the present value of the defined benefit obligations are determined

by using the projected unit credit method.

The following table sets out the key actuarial assumptions used as

at the balance sheet date:

Interim Report 2016 AR HEAZRE

RS i 25 BT 5 (%)
201696 A30H (A E#¥T)

B 0 B A B AR
i

38.

Discount rate (%) P (%)
Expected growth rate of future pension
expenses (%)

BERFHIERE(%)

Expected rate of salary increment (%)

BHRIGEAR S B BIERE(%)

The actuarial valuation illustrates that the market value of assets
under the scheme is RMB4,493,806,343.44 (31 December 2015:
RMB4,497,117,081.86).

RBEABIHHER)
REXEET (HF)

AR B R R A B R BB ATH K
RINSHE - ZABIBERABIEE
MESHFRA - R BUES BE
BRR YRBURRARGTER
EREMAERSEENEEEES
Bl o RIEARERE L ENRER

& o

XHRABZENESKYF - ZEZ
BREEE-RBCRRBENRERR
BERE - XEARBFEEZNG

RREEHIFH -

ZATBIZ A RER - RARER AR
RS EBERME ST SRR

240
i —

ZATEBEERNRIOIBE
BEBHREFEAEHIBEETE
JEWETE ©

L HEMRER
B

TRABEABROFERN LB
HERE

30 June 2016 31 December 2015

20166 A30H 20154 12H31H
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REER) (&%)

0.94%-3.75%

1.61%-3.75%

1.75%-3.35%
2.08%-4.25%

0.42%-3.35%
2.50%-4.25%

FEMERATTIHEENTERAR
¥ 4,493,806,343.44 78 (2015 F 12
A318 : AR%4,497,117,081.86
TT) e
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150 Weichai Power Co., Ltd.

Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2016 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

HRB D RHBRAF

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial

Statements (Continued)

38. Long-term payroll payable (Continued)
Defined benefit obligations (Continued)

Scheme recognized in the income statement is set out below:

PR 5 3 M R (4)
201664308 (A E¥T)

I O B H R
H
38. B MM B T W ()

EAEXRTEINEBAENAT

January-June 2016 2015
2016%1-6 A 20154
(Unaudited) (Audited)

(REER) (&%)

131,848,809.60
71,265,704.00

245,464,538.01
129,291,078.54

203,114,513.60 374,755,616.55

Current cost of service B HAARTER A

Interest expenses FMEEA

Net amount of the cost of post- BB BRI A F5E
employment benefit

Credited to cost of sales STABENRA

Credited to distribution and selling FTAHEER
expenses

Credited to general and administrative ~ st AEIEE H
expenses

Credited to financial expenses AR ER

77,949,585.20 144,379,556.00

21,227,310.00 44,016,802.00

32,671,914.40
71,265,704.00

57,068,180.01
129,291,078.54

203,114,513.60 374,755,616.55

The change in present value of defined benefit scheme obligations

are as follows:

Bt

IZBREZLSHNAT :

Sles sz aLs
RE X AT

January-June 2016 2015
20165 1-6 B 20154
(Unaudited) (Audited)

(REER) (gE=)

Opening balance
Business combinations not involving
entities under common control

8
FER—EHI TR ES

10,720,978,074.37 10,997,112,057.69
3,235,411.20 -
131,848,809.60 245,464,538.01
141,123,511.20 270,397,939.28
(137,951,407.02) (277,765,134.83)
1,749,711,375.00 (217,770,868.27)
(3,732,464.06) 5,226,084.91

19,036,535.40
16,110,984.00

(327,782,664.42)
26,096,122.00

Cost of services BRAS A AR

Interest expenses FMEEA

Benefits paid B SR

Actuarial losses/(gains) BEEL(FS)

Contribution from employers EEx&F

Exchange differences of FIMENGTEIEH =8
overseas benefit schemes

Others Al

Closing balance R

12,640,360,829.69

10,720,978,074.37
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) RS i R M 5 (48
30 June 2016 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 2016F6H30H (A E¥T)
V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial # - & f B % #i 38 32 B IH H 5 B
Statements (Continued) (%)
38. Long-term payroll payable (Continued) 38. REAERBE T H M (&)
Defined benefit obligations (Continued) REXmEB(E)

The change in defined benefit obligations and the change in fair

REXDAEBRPNAENEELAE

value of assets under the scheme are as follows:

January to June 2016

Present value of

EEFHMT

2016 1-6 A

defined benefit Fair value of

scheme assets under Net liabilities/

(Unaudited) obligations the scheme (Net assets)
(REER) RES a8l FEEE

Defined benefit scheme

Opening balance

Business combinations not involving

MHE

FER—BHTEEAH

BHRE

10,720,978,074.37

AnEE

(4,497,117,081.86)

BEE/(FEE)

6,223,860,992.51

entities under common control 3,235,411.20 3,235,411.20
Taken to profit or loss in FAEHER

the current period

Cost of services PR A 131,848,809.60 - 131,848,809.60

Net interest FEFE 141,123,511.20 (69,857,807.20) 71,265,704.00
Credited to other comprehensive SFAEMER A W

income

Actuarial gains

BEFE

1,749,711,375.00

719,800.00

1,750,431,175.00

Return on assets under the scheme HEEERR(GGH
(net of amount included in Fl&
net interest) EEABRIN) (198,734,125.00) (198,734,125.00)
Adjustment for exchange EREERE
differences (55,828,750.00) - (55,828,750.00)
Benefits paid B ¥R (137,951,407.02) 82,209,561.60 (55,741,845.42)
Contribution from employers EX4F (3,732,464.06) (28,404,680.80) (32,137,144.86)
Other changes Hit 2 g 90,976,269.40 217,377,989.82 308,354,259.22
Closing balance HARBE 12,640,360,829.69 (4,493,806,343.44) 8,146,554,486.25)

Note: As at 30 June 2016, the amount under the scheme assets included in other

non-current assets was zero.

i R2016F6A30REIEEREEM
FRBEEFZENSEART -
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PR 5 3 M R (4)
201646 4303 (A RHT)

Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2016 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial i ~ & /f o % #t 3% - 205 H 51

Statements (Continued) (%)

38. Long-term payroll payable (Continued) 38. REAERBE T H M (&)
Defined benefit obligations (Continued) HETHERRE)
The change in defined benefit obligations and the change in fair HESXHRBGEHNAZNEELARLE

BEHOT : (&)

value of assets under the scheme are as follows: (Continued)

2015 20154
Present value of Fair value of
defined benefit assets under Net liabilities/

(Audited) scheme obligations the scheme (Net assets)
(E&%) RER et E HEEE
Defined benefit scheme FEXmtal ZH5EE AREE FEE/(FEE)
Opening balance FHE 10,997,112,057.69 (4,547,670,440.92) 6,449,441,616.77
Taken to profit or loss in the current HABHER

period

Cost of services RBKA 245,464,538.01 - 245,464,538.01

Net interest e EeE 270,397,939.28 (141,106,860.74) 129,291,078.54
Credited to other comprehensive income st A E fh 474 Juz

Actuarial gains BEFG (217,770,868.27) - (217,770,868.27)
Return on assets under the scheme (net of &t 21’&E =1 (5t A

amount included in net interest) T B FENKRIN) - 97,897,056.56 97,897,056.56
Adjustment for exchange differences BN EHAR 22,824,556.00 - 22,824,556.00
Benefits paid B REF (277,765,134.83) 168,561,289.76 (109,203,845.07)
Contribution from employers EX@e 5,226,084.91 (64,991,187.35) (59,765,102.44)
Other changes Hing (324,511,098.42) (9,806,939.17) (334,318,037.59)
Closing balance FRHBE 10,720,978,074.37 (4,497,117,081.86) 6,223,860,992.51

Note: In 2015, an aggregate amount of RMB214,544,657.60 under the scheme
assets was included in other non-current assets.

0155 B EERBEHRTARE
214,544,657 60 1L M IETEN & E

PEE -



Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2016 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial
Statements (Continued)
39. Special payables
January to June 2016

Interim Report 2016 A HAZRE

PO 5 i 3 M R (4)
201664308 (A E¥T)

T SO R EIEH R
(78)
39. EIEEMNR

20164 1-6 A

At period- Increase during  Decrease during
(Unaudited) beginning the period the period At period-end
(RE&ER) BARE A ) BRRE
Interest subsidy for liquid fund B BRERNTNTED
granted by provincial finance office & & B85 8 23,000,000.00 23,000,000.00
National debt special fund - HEEHES —EH
establishment of key industry EERENRM
revitalization and technological BUETHE B
renovation projects 20,000,000.00 20,000,000.00
43,000,000.00 43,000,000.00
2015 20154
At year- Increase during Decrease during
(Audited) beginning the year the year At year-end
(FER) FRE REREM RERD FRHE
Interest subsidy for liquid fund granted & Bf TR BB B¢ 4 695 8
by provincial finance office BEEHE S 23,000,000.00 - - 23,000,000.00
National debt special fund - EEEES-EH
establishment of key industry B REA R
revitalization and technological WETEE ER
renovation projects 20,000,000.00 = = 20,000,000.00
43,000,000.00 - - 43,000,000.00

153
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2016 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial

Statements (Continued)
40. Accruals and provisions
January to June 2016

HRB D RHBRAF

PR 5 3 M R (4)
201664308 (A E¥T)

(%)

40. FEFTEE

20165 1-6 A

T~ B OF B AR R IH H RE R

Increase Decrease Adjustment for
Opening during during exchange Closing
(Unaudited) Balance the period the period differences balance
(REEHR) BO¢HE REEM REED EiZHRE HABE
Product quality assurance  EREBRES
deposit 166,524,344.00 58,369,659.60 82,971,567.60 3,070,064.00 144,992,500.00
Pending litigation RAERA 18,759,708.80 1,146,637.60 3,737,458.00 1,236,111.60 17,405,000.00
Guarantee provided to FOMRRER
external parties 14,452,922.40 10,682,598.40 9,811,734.40 768,463.60 16,092,250.00
Debt restructuring EBER 19,050,612.00 - 72,572.00 757,460.00 19,735,500.00
Losses in contract ERAR 4,909,878.40 - 5,021,982.40 112,104.00 -
Others Hity 62,480,331.20 13,222,618.40 5,305,013.20 (1,707,186.40) 68,690,750.00
286,177,796.80 83,421,514.00 106,920,327.60 4,237,016.80 266,916,000.00
2015 20154
Increase Decrease Adjustment for
Opening during during exchange Closing
(Audited) balance the year the year differences balance
(B%%) FNeHE REEM RERD EREERE ERBE
Product quality assurance deposit R E ERES 397,271,646.00 120,026,880.00 333,769,192.00 (17,004,990.00) 166,524,344.00
Pending litigation RRFFA - 23,324,668.00 4,681,604.00 116,644.80 18,759,708.80
Guarantee provided to HOMRA R
external parties 15,358,536.00 13,885,054.00 13,898,946.00 (891,721.60) 14,452,922.40
Debt restructuring BRER - 18,650,010.00 - 400,602.00 19,050,612.00
Losses in contract EEAR 4,965,429.60 180,596.00 - (236,147.20) 4,909,878.40
Others it 26,653,770.00 62,604,298.00 25,943,310.00 (834,426.80) 62,480,331.20
444,249,381.60 238,671,506.00 378,293,052.00 (18,450,038.80) 286,177,796.80
41. Deferred income 41. EEW =

Government grant
Deferred income of

“sales with risk” business
Deferred income of sale and

leaseback sub-leases
Deferred income of forklift truck services X B fR7% %} & 2 IR FEUL %5

Others

BT BY

PR [\ 36 6 SR 75 2 IR AE e as

EREEBEARE 2 IELE S

Hith

30 June 2016
20166 H30H
(Unaudited)
(REEER)

1,020,613,357.78
269,718,500.00
918,932,375.00

234,775,750.00
24,920,124.99

2,468,960,107.77

31 December 2015
201512 A831H
(Audited)
(f&FEz)

964,214,926.16
280,267,495.20
802,296,835.20

209,854,730.40
22,768,496.79

2,279,402,483.75




Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2016 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial

Statements (Continued)

41. Deferred income (Continued)

As at 30 June 2016, the liability items related to government grant

are as follows:

(Unaudited)

(RBER)

Land-related government B4R
grant B

Special funds for industry  EZFEMAH
revitalization and ERES
technological renovation

Special assistance fund EEEBES

National debt special fund ~ EIEZEEZ S

Position-based allowances for - 78 B A 4 BB
project teams ol 3
Others i

As at 31 December 2015, the liability items related to government

grant are as follows:

Opening
balance

BASH

759,725,901.40

148,573,211.85
11,873,339.49
11,953,216.79
29,473,900.00

2,615,356.63

964,214,926.16

Increase during
the period

LN

30,000,000.00

31,710,000.00
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PO 5 i 3 M R (4)
201664308 (A E¥T)

1~ B OF B AR R IEH H RE R

(

)

41. EEW = (4E)

M2016F6 A30R8 @ W REFMBIE
BEEBWOT

Credited to
non-operating

10,525,900.00

72,235,900.00

10,1

income during Related to
the period Closing balance assetsfincome

AHEA HEE/

BEMA HRERE 8l

Related to assets
08,304.10 779,617,597.30 HEERH

Related to assets

5580,843.74 174,702,368.11 HEEHE

Related to assets

96,750.00 11,776,589.49 HEERH
Related to assets

11,953,216.79 HEERE

Related to income

39,999,800.00 ligayil

Related to assets

51,570.54 2,563,786.09 HEERH

15,837,468.38 1,020,613,357.78

201512 A31H @ F R E
MEaEEFNT

Credited to Decrease in
non-operating change in

Opening  Increase during income during scope of Related to

(Audited) balance the year the year consolidation ~ Closing balance assets/income

REFHA aftEE HEE/

(B%%) FNEH REFHE BEIMIA 285D ERBE e il

Land-related government S iR Related to assets

grant B8 704,862,516.67  98399,700.00  10,927,981.89  32,608,333.38  759,725,901.40 A
Special funds forindustry ~ EZIREMRH

revitalization and EEER Related to assets

technological renovation 123,366,395.81 41,460,890.00 9,483,514.04 6,399,999.92  148,943,771.85 HBERE

Special assistance fund EERHES Related to assets

11,425,779.55 450,000.00 373,000.06 - 11,502,779.49 EEEIAE

National debt special fund ~ BIEZEE & Related to assets

13,945,419.59 - 1,992,202.80 - 11,953,216.79 REERRE

Position-based allowances for 78 B A7 Bl# Related to income

project teams afivReti - 29,473,900.00 - - 29473,900.00 Eeflieryl

Others Hity Related to assets

2,718,497.71 - 103,141.08 - 2,615,356.63 B

856,318,609.33  169,784,490.00 22,879,839.87 39,008,333.30  964,214,926.16




156 Weichai Power Co., Ltd. M4 R HERA T

Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) FPHS i R M 5 (48
30 June 2016 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 2016F6H30H (A E¥T)

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial #. - & f I % it 3% 2 B IH H 5 #

Statements (Continued) (%)
42. Share capital 42. R
January to June 2016 2016 1-6 H
Increase
(decrease) of
shares in
Opening balance current period Closing balance
N8R KA (H) Ry BRGBE
(Unaudited) No. of shares Percentage No. of shares Percentage
(REZER) RE E451(%) R E4(%)
| Restricted shares —. BREGHERR
State-owned legal person shares AEEARR 821,265,504.00 - 821,265,504.00
Qther domestic shares EtMA R 113,664,000.00 (67,285,989.00) 46,378,011.00
Incl: Domestic non-state-owned Ed BRiEEE
legal person shares ENER
Domestic natural person BRARA
shares TR 113,664,000.00 : (67,285,989.00) 46,378,011.00
934,929,504.00 (67,285,989.00) 867,643,515.00
Il Non-restricted shares = BREKKRR
RMB ordinary Shares ARBLER 2,092,169,774.00 67,285,989.00  2,159,455,763.00
Domestic listed foreign shares B ETRNER = = -
Overseas listed foreign shares B ETEINER 971,520,000.00 - 971,520,000.00

3,063,689,774.00 67,285,989.00  3,130,975,763.00

IIl. Total no. of shares

R 3,998,619,278.00 3,998,619,278.00
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) RS i R M 5 (48
30 June 2016 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 20166 H30H (A E#or)
V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial T ~ & /f [ % #t 3% - 205 H 51
Statements (Continued) (%)
42. Share capital (Continued) 42. BB (#])
2015 20154
Opening balance Increase (decrease) of shares in current year Closing balance
ERE KRER(R)RE ERBE
Capitalisation
(Audited) No. of shares Percentage o surplus reserve Others Sub-total No. of shares Percentage
E N
(E57) &8 SE1(%) ] Eft Iy k& $051%)
| Restricted shares - BREKHRD
State-owned legal person BEEABR
shares 410,632,752.00 2054 410,632,752.00 - 41063275200 821,265,504.00 2054
Other domestic shares HtmERR 56,832,000.00 284 56,832,000.00 - 56,832,000.00  113,664,000.00 284
Inct: Domestc non-state- LR {0F i
owned legal person EARR
shares - - - - - = =
Domestic natural person BERARA
shares Bk 56,832,000.00 284 56,832,000.00 - 56,832,000.00  113,664,000.00 284
467,464,752.00 2338 46746475200 - 46746475200 934,929,504.00 2338
Il Non-festricted shares = BRERERS
RMB ordinary Shares ARBEZZR 1,046,084,887.00 5232 1,046,084,887.00 1,046,084,887.00  2,092,169,774.00 53
Domestic lited foreignshares AL HEIANER - - - - - = =
Overseas lsted foreign shares I ETNER 485,760,000.00 2430 485,760,000.00 - 48576000000 971,520,000.00 2130
1,531,844,887.00 76,62 1,531,844,887.00 - 1,531,844,887.00  3,063,689,774.00 76.62
Il Total no. of shares = Rheg 1,999,309,639.00 100.00  1,999,309,639.00 1,999,309,639.00  3,998,619,278.00 100.00
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2016 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial i - & 0F b % it 3% £ B IH H 51 B
Statements (Continued) (%)
43. Capital reserve 43. EXRNE
January to June 2016 20165 1-6 A

Opening Increase during  Decrease during

(Unaudited) balance the period the period Closing balance
(RE&ER) BARE R XHHD HRRE
Capital reserve BERDE 27,883,109.16 18,495,008.01 46,378,117.17
2015 20154
Opening Increase during Decrease during

(Audited) balance the year the year Closing balance
(BER) FMHE REEM KERD ERBE
Capital reserve BANE 1,288,252,938.51 26,859,413.20  (1,287,229,242.55) 27,883,109.16

As at 30 June 2016, the Company acquired minority interests
from its subsidiaries, Weichai Power (Weifang) Intensive
Logistics Company Limited and Shandong Synergy Oil Co.,
Ltd., and the capital reserve increased with share premium of
RMB17,551,777.12. For other increase in capital reserve arising
from equity-settled share-based payment, please refer to Note XI.

Share-based Payment.

In 2015, the Company acquired minority interests from Shandong
Synergy Oil Co., Ltd., a subsidiary, and its capital reserve increased
with share premium of RMB25,320,076.07. For other increase in
capital reserve arising from equity-settled share-based payment,
please refer to Note XI. Share-based Payment. During 2015, as a
result of the Company’s acquisition of 4.95% minority interests in
KION GROUP AG, the capital reserve of the Company reduced by
RMB1,100,217,449.41.

BHZE2016%46 4308 » ARRIE
FRTIMES NS ) ENEEXBR
ANEVFL R BOE SR R AR A RS BUR
R ME AR RN BRAREARE
17,551,777.1270 : BmEEORG
TSI ERRNEEMAE N - 2
R sE+— RO -

20154 « AR AW F 2 AW
REREARRBERAADERER
BENMEAREREAZEARE
25,320,076.07 7% : fEm S H B RMD
XS RRHEARRNEEMAE N - 2
BME+— RHOIZMA - 20155 K
‘A 7] B B KION GROUP AG 4.95%
WLOHRRBRER D ERRBEARE
1,100,217,449.417T »
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) RS i R M 5 (48
30 June 2016 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 20166 H30H (A E#or)
V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial # - & f B % #i 38 32 % IH H 5E B
Statements (Continued) (%)
44, Other comprehensive income 44. HiniRE W&
Other comprehensive income, on a cumulative basis, attributable to EEABRTPEBEREAFMEME
parent as shown in balance sheet is as follows: Bl RETeREE -

1 January 2015 Increase/Decrease 31 December 2015 Increase/Decrease 30 June 2016
201551 A1E ERE 20155124318 Ml 2016564308
Changes arising from re- B ERENS
measuring net assets or HE EELEn
net liabilties of defined FEERY
benefit plan (399,400,214.14) 23,664,201.02 (375,736,013.12) (525,481,120.55) (901,217,133.67)
Share of investee’s other BRE MERRE
comprehensive income BUTHENH
notto bereclassified into ~ ERRMEM
profit or loss using the GeliahzE
equity method ol (169,889,140.76) 5,240,567.93 (164,648,572.83) (28,209.38) (164,676,782.21)
Share of investee’s other ERiTERRE
comprehensive income BI\ERE
to be reclassified into PRERRN
profit or loss using the bz e g
equity method IENNE 26,376,302.58 7,779,405.56 34,155,708.14 (1,891,425.81) 32,264,282.33
Change of fair value of HEESRER
available-for-sale RrEEE
financial assets 56,400,000.00 2,800,000.00 59,200,000.00 (32,400,000.00) 26,800,000.00
Effective portion of cashflow B4 HEEHH
from hedging BHES (6,420,300.47) 13,089,207.22 6,668,906.75 8,349,975.00 15,018,881.75
Exchange differences on NERBRENE
foreign currency translation  Z 58 12,563,549.71 (158,998,330.14) (146,434,780.43) (19,734,419.17) (166,169,199.60)
Relevant income tax effect RENMEHTE 91,883,900.39 (7,597,822.68) 84,286,077.71 113,638,870.55 197,924,948.26
(388,485,902.69) (114,022,771.09) (502,508,673.78) (457,546,329.36) (960,055,003.14)
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) FPHS i R M 5 (48
30 June 2016 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 2016F6H30H (A E¥T)

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial #. - & f I % it 3% 2 B IH H 5 #

Statements (Continued) (%)
44. Other comprehensive income (Continued) 44, R E W (&)
Incurred in current period for other comprehensive income as FERPEMGE RS S B £ 5

shown in the income statement:

January to June 2016 20165 1-6 A

Less: Amount
recognised in

other
comprehensive
income in
previous period
and recognised in
profit or Attributable Attributable
[oss in to parent to minority
(Unaudited) Incurred pre-tax current period Less: income tax company interests
A A
EfpRa W BR
(REEHR) RAREE EHEARR W R BRBAR SURRRR
Those other comprehensive NETHEARERRME
income not to be reclassified Ak
into profit or loss
in subsequent periods
Changes arising from ENERERA
re-measuring net assets o HEFRES
net liabilties of defined FEENEY
benefit plan (1,495,868,300.00) (429,748,625.00) (408,163,272.19) (657,956,402.81)
Share of investee’s other fuiﬂﬁ?& RAEMTH
comprehensive income not tobe  EAFEBRNEREA
reclassified into profit or loss using ~ WEHFHHHE
the equity method (73,750.00) (28,209.38) (45,540.62)

Those other comprehensive g7
income to be reclassified into &4
profit or loss
in subsequent periods

Share of investee's other BEATERRERN

ENBEBRENER
&

comprehensive income NERENEEER

to be reclassified into HEMSARES

profit or loss using ZENNE

the equity method 5,051,875.00 (1,891,425.81) 6,943,300.81
Change of fair value of avallable-for- A K E4BEAENAEE

sale finandial assets 29 (32,400,000.00) (4,860,000.00) (27,540,000.00)
Effective portion of cashflow from B4 R B K

hedging B 50,371,250.00 28,541,250.00 22,324,125.00 (189,002.81) (305,122.19)
Exchange differences on foreign ~—~ ANEBEITEZE

currency translation (34,861,437.51) - - (19,734,419.17) (15,127,018.34)

(1,507,780,362.51) 28,541,250.00 (412,284,500.00) (457,546,329.36) (666,490,783.15)
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) W5 R B 5 (4
30 June 2016 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 20166 H30H (A E#or)

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial T ~ & /f [ % #t 3% - 205 H 51

Statements (Continued) (74)
44. Other comprehensive income (Continued) 44, HfbimE W= (K)
January to June 2015 20155 1-6 H

Less: Amount
recognised in other

comprehensive
income in previous
period and
recognised in profit
orloss in Attributable to Attributable to
(Unaudited) Incurred pre-tax current period Less: income tax parentcompany ~ minority interests
R N
Etima s &
(REER) RAa%EsE EHEAER W AR BERAT LPHREER
Those other comprehensive income LA 162 & 5 $E 1B
not to be reclassified into MEMEENE
profit or loss
in subsequent periods
Changes arising from re-measuring E &5t SR F %2
net assets or net liabilities of HE LB
defined benefit plan FEERNEY 200,862,208.84 - 30,807,088.10 70,669,720.12 99,385,400.62
Share of investee’s other &éé?ﬁ"&?&?ﬁﬁﬁf
comprehensive income not to be BREREREN
reclassified into profit or loss EW EhETEE
using the equity method NiHE - - - - =
Those other comprehensive income b4 16 85 8B 1B 24
to be reclassified into profit or loss £ #0434 Ui
in subsequent periods
Share of investee's other BRE M ERRAEN
comprehensive income to be IERESBEER
reclassified into profit or loss using &) o5 & Yz
the equity method ZEMME (87,328.44) = = (87,328.44) -
Change of fair value of MELESRHEEAR
available-for-sale financial assets ~ EES 102,800,000.00 - 15,420,000.00 87,380,000.00 -
Exchange portion of cashflow B4 FEBEEH
from hedging BHHA (77,111,964.78) (32,162,927.55) (3,653,150.32) (15,796,243.61) (25,499,643.30)
Exchange differences on foreign ~ JMERFITE 25
currency translation (158,866,115.80) - - (205,029,277.02) 46,163,161.22

67,596,799.82 (32,162,927.55) 42,573937.78 (62,863,128.95) 120,048,918.54
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) FPHS i R M 5 (48
30 June 2016 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 2016F6H30H (A E¥T)

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial #. - & f i % it & £ IH H 51 #

Statements (Continued) (%)
45. Special reserve 45. BIEFE
January to June 2016 20165 1-6 H
At the Increase Decrease
beginning during during At the end
(Unaudited) of period the period the period of period
(REER) BAOBE RHEE M N BARBE
Safety funds TEEESD 78,839,437.56 24,218,491.22 (11,254,408.32) 91,803,520.46
2015 2015%F
Increase Decrease
At the beginning during during At the end
(Audited) of year the year the year of year
(BER) FURE RELEM RERD ERBE
Safety funds TEEEE 51,026,772.11 78,605,603.31 (50,792,937.86) 78,839,437.56
46. Surplus reserve 46. BEBRNTE
January to June 2016 20165 1-6 H
At the Decrease
beginning Increase during during At the end
(Unaudited) of period the period the period of period
(RigER) BANHE A AR D HREAE
Statutory surplus reserve FEERBAE 1,207,988,900.22 - 1,207,988,900.22
2015 20154
At the Increase Decrease
beginning during during At the end
(Audited) of year the year the year of year
(B5=R) FONE RELE KERD FRNE
Statutory surplus reserve FERBAE 3,051,742,591.19 168,836,810.85  (2,012,590,501.82)  1,207,988,900.22
According to the provisions of Company Law and the articles of RBRAEMARRZRARTE @ N
association, the Company appropriated statutory surplus reserve RARFFEN10% RIUEE &A%
at 10% of the net profit. Where the accumulated amount of the DER - AERBRLBERAERAER
statutory surplus reserves reaches 50% or more of the Company’s AEMEA50% A £/ - AT T B2

registered capital, additional appropriation is not needed. B e



Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2016 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial
Statements (Continued)

47.

48.

Retained earnings

Interim Report 2016 A HAZRE

RS i 25 BT 5 (%)

201696 A30H (A E#¥T)

T SRR EIEH R
(74)

47. K7 BRI HE

January-June 2016 2015
2016%1-6 A 20154
(Unaudited) (Audited)

(REBERK) (R&ER)

Retained earnings at the end of previous =81, £ K 7k 5> B T4

26,918,633,619.95 26,397,531,915.03

1,051,516,016.05 1,390,576,941.23
= 168,836,810.85

399,861,927.80 699,758,373.65
- 880,051.81

period/year
Net profit attributable to shareholders of 5B E A RIEH
the parent pewlbE
Less: Appropriation of surplus reserves 3 : IRERE A ATE
Dividend payable on ordinary FEEBARER S AR A
share in cash
Others Hth
Retained earnings at the end of HF R
period/year KRB

27,570,287,708.20 26,918,633,619.95

On 7 June 2016, the 2015 profit distribution scheme was
considered and approved on the 2015 annual general meeting of
the Company. Based on the total share capital of the Company of
3,998,619,278 shares, the Company distributed to all shareholders
a cash dividend of RMB1 (including tax) for every 10 shares held
(totaling RMB399,861,927.80). As at the date of approval for
issuance of these financial statements, the distribution of cash

dividend had been completed.

Revenue and Cost of Sales

Revenue includes turnover and other revenue that arise in the
course of the Group’s ordinary activities. The Group's turnover,
which arises from the principal activities of the Group, represents
the net invoiced values of goods sold, after allowances for returns,
trade discounts and the value of services rendered; and gross rental

income received and receivable from investment properties.

R2016F6 878 » AARQAA20154F
BEBFASEZBB2015FF
FESBEHE - AKDFLRA
3,998,619,278 R A E & - M= 8
BREZI0BRIEREIR AT AREN
T(ER)  HERBEBRSBRIARE
399,861,927.807T ° &, Ik K B 7 5
RIE®RE R BeRAE FHT
go

48. EE WA K KA
WABEREEREEEBEREL
MBEERHEMRA - AEEEE
TR ELE NS EEEFENNRR
B BRI - FRERSHEESD
BHESYNBEZFEURREME
b2 B U % FE MR 607 6 MR A 4BE o
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2016 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial

Statements (Continued)

48. Revenue and Cost of Sales (Continued)

January-June 2016

S5 e R WA R (A

201664308 (A E¥T)

T~ B OF B R R IH H RE R

(%)

48. BEWAR R (&)

2016%1-6 A
(Unaudited)
(REBER)

Revenue

LON

TEEH
R X%

Revenue from principal operations

Other revenue

41,339,236,381.32
947,274,827.86

42,286,511,209.18

The revenue is listed as follows:

A

Revenue

January-June 2015
20155 1-6 A
(Unaudited)

(REER)
Cost

LN AR

31,745,863,655.75

35,652,402,920.85

27,314,875,631.89

879,238,268.00 802,856,947.83 714,069,152.77
SPLPATIEPEER S 36,455,259,868.68  28,028,944,784.66
BERBATIRNT

January-June 2016
2016%1-6 A
(Unaudited)

(REBER)

32,665,539,622.84
8,673,696,758.48

41,339,236,381.32

Revenue from principal operations FEZEBBA
Sales of goods and others 5 7 am M E A
Forklift trucks services X Bk B

Other revenue HAb ZE R UA
Sales of materials HEME
Sales of power HEB S
Lease income HERA
Others Hh

670,034,345.87
19,115,944.79
42,168,902.46
215,955,634.74

947,274,827.86

42,286,511,209.18

January-June 2015
20154 1-6 A
(Unaudited)
(REgEER)

28,019,213,155.25
7,633,189,765.60

35,652,402,920.85

465,039,233.16
17,780,467.40
77,932,128.14
242,105,119.13

802,856,947.83

36,455,259,868.68
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2016 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial #. - & f I % it & £ ZIH H 51 &
Statements (Continued) (%)
49. Taxes and Surcharges 49, EEH & KM

50.

January-June 2016

January-June 2015

20165 1-6 A 20154 1-6 A

(Unaudited) (Unaudited)

(RREX) (REER)

Business tax = 2,847,627.04 3,403,665.60
City construction tax WER 68,932,891.45 47,038,265.07
Educational surtax HE B 49,537,321.70 33,323,736.07
Others Hith 21,499,280.79 12,286,967.15

142,817,120.98

Distribution and selling expenses

50. SHEEH

January-June 2016

96,052,633.89

January-June 2015

2016 1-6 A 2015 1-6 A

(Unaudited) (Unaudited)

(RREEX) (REEZR)

Staff costs B ITRA 1,394,340,539.02 1,306,012,818.06
After-sales and product return fee —BRkERREER 500,541,199.80 198,106,907.94
Marketing expenses 5 EAE R 440,909,037.79 331,988,461.01
Freight and packaging BEEBERAKE 409,996,248.58 390,723,131.26
Travel expenses EIRE 132,867,865.12 123,718,540.64
Lease expenses HeEs 106,481,310.25 99,113,219.88
Depreciation of fixed asset BEEEENE 107,641,545.68 102,882,076.30
Office expenses ENE =g 54,718,821.69 50,380,620.99
Others Hih 330,336,399.88 267,084,920.24

3,477,832,967.81

2,870,010,696.32
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2016 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial # - & f B % #i 38 3= % IH H 5E B
Statements (Continued) (%)
51. General and administrative expenses 51. EBEH

January-June 2016 January-June 2015

20165 1-6 A 20154 1-6 A
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(RREX) (REERZ)
Staff costs 8 TR 1,755,367,686.59 1,630,042,799.13
Depreciation of fixed assets BEB&ERE 506,465,941.72 479,383,978.26
External support fee SNER L 5 B 373,131,317.78 254,741,275.87
Experiment expenses and development A& &
expenses HEER 190,052,168.84 234,679,985.85
Office expenses N 134,967,451.99 165,365,811.87
Fuels and materials AR R MR & 114,189,841.14 113,970,149.19
Taxes He 113,095,019.61 111,985,489.99
Lease expenses HEE 67,077,608.48 75,886,926.17
Travel expenses EiRE 52,546,808.22 50,743,093.81
Repair expenses EIEE 23,389,291.27 39,987,756.64
Transportation charges B 13,168,381.70 11,189,510.89
Vehicle usage fee HEfFERE 7,358,803.70 7,853,810.32
Promotional expenses EEEESE 2,069,188.86 4,670,181.39
Heating expense g 1,341,159.82 7,081,093.07
Others Hith 384,291,028.77 368,966,671.29

3,738,511,698.49

3,556,548,533.74
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30 June 2016 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial

Statements (Continued)
52. Finance expenses
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S5 e R WA R (A

201696 A30H (A E#¥T)

T~ B B o 3 BOH H Rk R

(%)
52. BB A

January-June 2016

2016%F1-6 8
(Unaudited)
(REER)

750,203,437.21
404,578,928.28

(58,278,604.93)
(198,092,124.51)

89,253,779.49

Interest expenses MEZ
Less: interest income R B YA
Exchange gains b 5 s
Handling fees and others FEBREAM
Interest expenses: FMEZH

Interest on bank loans, overdrafts and SERNEREER

other borrowings wholly repayable
within 5 years

Interest on financial leases

RITER - BxR
H b EFAH 8
BMEHEENN L

541,646,432.74
190,233,675.73
18,323,328.74

750,203,437.21

53. EERERX

January-June 2016
2016 1-6 8
(Unaudited)

(REER)

Other interest H A RS
53. Impairment loss of assets
Loss from bad debt ZREK

Loss due to decline in value of inventories 178 Kk{E18 %

Impairment loss of fixed assets

Bl & EmERK

174,277,719.09
174,904,080.58
48,771.99

349,230,571.66

January-June 2015

20154 1-6 A
(Unaudited)
(REEZ)

585,824,191.96

394,565,439.62

(40,420,254.36)
32,195,570.45

183,034,068.43

379,741,391.54
173,173,322.42
32,909,478.00

585,824,191.96

January-June 2015

2015 1-6 A
(Unaudited)
(REEZ)

120,422,147.00
65,543,694.17
6,637,369.07

192,603,210.24
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2016 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial
Statements (Continued)
54. Profit or loss on change of fair value

NAREBEMFEEEES
FFAEHBEENEREE
Hep 2 HEK

Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss for the current period

Incl: Forward contract

MRS BEEAHED
M BBt 2 BA A

Financial liabilities at fair value through

profit or loss for the current period

55. Investment gain

AR E N R HRE

Gain on long-term equity investments

under the equity method ®E W

Investment gain from disposal of long- EE& REREREELR
term equity investments ®E W=

Investment gain during the period in AIHHESREER
which the available-for-sale financial FEBEIEN
assets were held ®E W=

Others EHAh

PR 5 3 M R (4)
201664308 (A E¥T)

T~ B OF B R R IH H RE R

(%)
54. PRBEESFES
January-June 2016 January-June 2015
2016%1-6 8 2015%1-6 4
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(RBER) (REgEER)

55.

(63,149,038.43)
(63,149,038.43)

(23,076,012.83)

(86,225,051.26)

RE WS

January-June 2016

2016 1-6 8
(Unaudited)
(RE&E&ER)

68,609,558.56

6,300,164.01

10,961,466.93
(2,894,123.99)

82,977,065.51

(9,163,435.00)
(9,163,435.00)

(9,163,435.00)

January-June 2015

20154 1-6 A
(Unaudited)
(REEZ)

66,804,707.15

18,720,561.88

12,308,119.74
2,911,072.62

100,744,461.39
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) RS i R M 5 (48

30 June 2016 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 20166 H30H (A E#or)

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial # - & 0F b % it 3% £ EIH H 51 B
Statements (Continued) (%)

56. ZE KA

56. Non-operating income

Extraordinary profit
and loss recognised

January - June
2016

January - June
2015

from January to
June 2016

S A2016%1-6 8

20165 1-6 A 2015%1-6 3 FEEURR
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(RBEZR) (REEZ)
Government grants BB 81,034,921.61 28,036,290.04 81,034,921.61
Gain on disposal of non-current assets 3E R )& E & & 7|15 12,753,501.42 26,139,266.14 12,753,501.42
Incl: Gain on disposal of fixed assets  E /& : B F EER E F15 12,426,395.61 24,830,373.37 12,426,395.61
Gain on disposal of intangible EFEERENG
assets - 1,252,463.67 -
Other non-current assets HIEREEE 327,105.81 56,429.10 327,105.81
Profit from debt restructuring BEEEAFNE - 3,810,536.31 =
Reversal of provision for other Hin g EREER
liabilities 9,899,820.38 6,269,414.75 9,899,820.38
Others Hi 156,249,377.37 155,378,676.24 156,249,377.37
259,937,620.78 219,634,183.48 259,937,620.78

Government grants charged to profit or loss for the current period

are presented as follows:

STAEHBSBUTMEIIT -

January - June January - June Related to
2016 2015 assets/income
BEE/
20165 1-6 A 2015%F1-6 3 Wy 25 461

(Unaudited) (Unaudited)

(RBEZ) (REEZ)
Income of financial subsidies BRI A related to income
24,846,113.30 14,904,428.72 Ry 5 AR
Government support fund BIEES related to income
809,800.00 2,251,200.00 B A
Value added tax subject to rebate o1& IR IEEF related to income
38,008,434.09 - BUZSIEE
Amortization of deferred income ¥ 7 g 2% 46 84 related to assets
15,837,468.38 10,202,912.92 4 2 AE
Others Hit related to income
1,533,105.84 677,748.40 BRI 25 A

81,034,921.61 28,036,290.04
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2016 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial
Statements (Continued)
56. Non-operating income (Continued)

During the period, the government subsidy received by the

Company and amortized via deferred income amounted in total to
RMB81,034,921.61, including the following:

)

During the period, the Company and its subsidiaries received
funding in respect of national foreign trade development
funds from Financial Office of Hi-tech Zone of Weifang
under Wei Gao Cai Zhi [2016] No. 12, 37 and 40, received
the provincial foreign trade development funds for the year
2016 in respect of funding in projects of developing the
international market from the Financial Office of Xi‘an City
under Shaan Cai Ban Qi [2016] No. 26, and received Incentive
for Outstanding Corporates under import-and-export-based
economic development fund for 2015 (Round 2) from the
Financial Office of Xi‘an City under Shi Cai Han (2015) No.
2486, the subsidies under the Silk Road scheme and other
income including financial subsidies and refund of land use
taxes, in a total amount of RMB27,189,019.14;

During the period, pursuant to Qi Shan Guo Shui Tong
[2015] No. 01 and Qi Shan Guo Shui Tong [2015] No. 02,
Shaanxi Heavy-duty Motor Company Limited, a subsidiary
of the Company, obtained the exemption from value-added
tax applicable to special-purpose military vehicles from State
Administration of Taxation of Qishan, in a total amount of
RMB38,008,434.09;

During the period, the Company and its subsidiaries
amortized, via deferred income, government grants including
land refunds and special funds, in a total amount of
RMB15,837,468.38.

5 i R M 5 (48)
201646 4303 (A RHT)

T~ O B R 3 B IH H kR

(%)

56. EEIMIA(E)
AR TR BB i 0 S e s S U
W AR EESBEHIARE
81,034,921.617C » He :

(M

(2)

3)

REARRB RFRARREBEES
BF48[2016]125% ~ 375% ~ 405%
BS#T = @0 HRBEA P
RIMEBEBREEE SEE -
1R 4 PR EF #7 (2[2016]26 5 EL15
Axmy B BEN20165FE
BINEHEBEREIEE ©MAE
RMISEBEES BEBETWH K
(2015) 2486 5% H 15 78 & m &F
BB R B 2015 F M dh A A
KERREBEES(E_H)E
FEERE - HAZKEHE
& 0 DA R H fh % 18 B B B Al
d 0 AR E RS B A
Hit AR®27,189,019.147T

REIARRQAE 2 FRAIPREELR
AE AR A FR & kLB
i [2015]01 5% ~ I 1L B
[2015]02 5 ER /5 Ik LI B 7 /B &
FA R B o e fE IS E B ET A
R#38,008,434.097T :

AR QR KT AREEY S
SRR LIRE KA RER
B SRR HAFARE
15,837,468.387C ©
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) RS i R M 5 (48

30 June 2016 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 2016F6 HA30H (AR % T)

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial #. - & f I % it & £ ZIH H 51 &
Statements (Continued) (%)
57. Non-operating expenses 57. B¥EHZH

Extraordinary profit
and loss recognised

Loss on disposal of non-current assets 3F 7 814 & iz & 18 %k
Heh  Ar&ERERK

Incl: Loss on disposal of fixed assets

Loss on disposal of other non- HiIERE & E
current assets REBX
Loss from debt restructuring EREMAEX
Donation expenditure HIMBH

Others HAt

January - June
2016

20165 1-6 8
(Unaudited)
(REER)

7,311,992.07
7,170,500.23

141,491.84
1,688,090.68
3,313,000.00

29,508,903.10

41,821,985.85

January - June
2015

20159 1-6 A
(Unaudited)
(REEZ)

from January to
June 2016

T A2016%1-6 8

FEFEURR

14,763,360.50
14,760,273.08

3,087.42
444,400.00
2,075,115.44
79,680,545.33

7,311,992.07
7,170,500.23

141,491.84
1,688,090.68
3,313,000.00

29,508,903.10

96,963,421.27

41,821,985.85

58. ERRMELE
REBMEERA  HEBR  TEE
FIRREE S ENE R ERIMT

58. Expenses by nature
The supplemental information of the Group’s cost of sales,
distribution and selling expenses, general and administrative
expenses which are categorized by nature is as follows:

January-June 2016 January-June 2015

2016%1-6 B 2015%1-6 8

(Unaudited) (Unaudited)

(REEZR) (REEZR)

Materials used FE B R PEETPRCVERAERLIN  23,240,003,210.88

Movement of inventories of EXGREERSE

finished goods and work in progress FE®E (1,090,030,326.67) (731,046,004.06)
Staff remuneration B T %7 7,646,638,385.18 6,818,375,472.36
Depreciation and amortization expenses 1T & & M #45 E A 2,851,282,100.78 2,581,934,793.38
Rental He 67,077,608.48 175,000,146.05
Others Hith 1,774,155,008.33 2,371,236,396.11

39,841,446,590.05

34,455,504,014.72
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30 June 2016 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

V. Notes to Ke
Statements {Continued)
59. Income Tax Expenses

Items of Consolidated Financial

RS i 25 BT 5 (%)
201646 4303 (A RHT)

i > (/a;i%i B s e 1 IH H AE R

m

59. ASHEHR

January-June 2016
2016%1-6 8
(Unaudited)

(REER)

Current tax expenses
Deferred tax expenses

EHMEHER
BEXMEHER

593,462,242.72
(116,345,621.45)

477,116,621.27

The relationship between income tax expenses and the total profit is

listed as follows:

January-June 2015

20154 1-6 A
(Unaudited)
(REEZ)

496,543,757.39
(60,362,313.98)

436,181,443.41

PRS T E A 27 B AR BB 1O B & 51 R 4D

™

January-June 2016
20165 1-6 8
(Unaudited)

(REER)

Total profit
Tax at statutory tax rate

Effect of different tax rates
applicable to parent company
and some subsidiaries

Adjustments to current tax of
previous periods

Profits and losses attributable to
associates

Income not subject to tax

Expenses not deductible for tax

Tax incentives on eligible
expenditures

Utilization of deductible losses
from prior years

Unrecognized deductible losses

Effect of unrecognized deductible
temporary differences

Others

EAIbEE R
BAEBREFAENREA

BRRRFLTRA
ERATR R
2

HUARTHIR S B
IR kS

BENBELEN
ik

AR A

TAIEINNER

BT A EF R
EENHEEE

ISR SR
AR HEE

REER AT EINEE

ARHER R A0 B 1
ZRNTE

Hith

Note 1
i1 519,657,699.05

Note 2
2 (82,270,054.07)

2,078,630,796.18

21,410,388.74
(22,048,285.55)
(82,020,123.70)
35,976,465.08

(26,889,450.84)

(16,242,008.00)
105,979,951.32

2,745,984.62
20,816,054.62

Tax expense at the Group's
effective tax rate

BASEERBEFAED
PRSEiE A

477,116,621.27

January-June 2015

20154 1-6 A
(Unaudited)
(REEEZ)

1,742,317,730.00

435,579,432.50

(139,498,940.77)
(12,123,212.98)
(14,228,711.64)
(30,383,582.60)

48,719,130.40
(25,149,261.49)

(3,020,004.24)
162,020,156.39

1,753,494.82
12,512,943.02

436,181,443.41

Note 1:

Note 2:

The Company is subject to a statutory tax rate of 25%.

The PRC income tax of the Group is calculated based on the estimated
taxable income gained in the PRC and applicable tax rate. Tax arising
from the taxable income in other regions is calculated at applicable
tax rate according to existing laws, interpretations and practices of the
country in which the Group operates.

No provision for Hong Kong profit tax has been made as the Group
had no taxable profits arising in Hong Kong for the period.

21 AAREEBERR25% °

22 AKBEERBRBEAMEHIEIRENMG
RAEATMSRERERRER - R
A E A b [ JE AR BT IS OBIR IR IR AR
SEEEMEBRNRITER - BE
AEMEG  RERHEAE

MR AR BN FREEE I &R F
B MRIEL B AN SHARE -



Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2016 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial
Statements (Continued)
60. Earnings Per Share (EPS)

61.

The basic EPS is calculated by dividing the net profit of the current
period attribute to the ordinary shareholders of the Company by
the weighted average number of outstanding ordinary shares.

The calculation of basic EPS is detailed as follows:
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RS i R M 5 (48
201646308 (A KET)
T A0 B R R B IH H RERE
(%)
60. R W=

EAXGREmRREBNADRER
IR E)E HUF A - BRIAEITESN
EEBRH I ISHETE

January-June 2016

January-June 2015

20165 1-6 8 20154 1-6 A
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(RE&EX) (REEZ)

Earnings Wz
Net profit of the current period attribute 53 B K A &)
to ordinary shareholders of the L i AR AR R Y

1,051,516,016.05 969,149,138.37

3,998,619,278.00 3,998,619,278.00

Company g HFE A
Shares & 15
Weighted average number of the AR BT
ordinary shares outstanding of the LA R
Company hnHE 19 8
Basic EPS (RMB/share) ERGR W T,/ i])

0.26 0.24

The Company holds no potential shares that are significantly

dilutive.

Notes to items in cash flow statement
Other cash received relating to operating activities

AEBESAMELEER

61. AERERBBIE
WEME M ERE L EEBENERS

January-June 2016 January-June 2015

2016%F1-6 8 20154 1-6 A
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(RE&ER) (REFEZ)

Government grants IR 48 BN
Interest income FEIA
Others EAh

37,714,919.14
364,884,343.79
79,993,792.93

17,833,377.12
389,805,605.19
30,139,836.15

482,593,055.86

437,778,818.46
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2016 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial

Statements (Continued)

61. Notes to items in cash flow statement

(Continued)

Other cash paid relating to operating activities

PR 5 3 M R (4)
201664308 (A E¥T)

T 5 OF  k E ROE H R R

(%)

61. RERERFBZTE(HE)

SR EA R =R B B RERIR S

January-June 2016

2016 1-6 8
(Unaudited)
(REE&ER)

Marketing and external support fee

Cash settlement of confirmation business
After-sales and product return fee
Freight and packaging

Travel expenses

Office expenses

Others

MERAE RIS E
RABEBREFA

779,239,153.92
556,383,018.27
441,573,309.97
406,647,243.40
185,414,673.33
178,111,324.49
1,163,002,818.46

3,710,371,541.84

Other cash received relating to investing activities

January-June 2015
20154 1-6 A
(Unaudited)
(CREE&EZ)

591,399,918.27
1,414,511,518.54
171,687,283.22
398,576,941.58
174,461,634.45
215,746,432.86
1,399,983,170.07

4,366,366,898.99

YR E R SRS BRENRE

January-June 2016
2016%F1-6 8
(Unaudited)

(RBER)

Asset-related government grants
Others

S8 7 A R O RS i B
Hith

61,710,000.00
2,132,608.75

63,842,608.75

Other cash received relating to financing activities

January-June 2015
2015%1-6 A
(Unaudited)
(REEER)

46,079,700.01
3,782,942.59

49,862,642.60

W HMREE RS ARENRE

January-June 2016
2016%1-6 8B
(Unaudited)

(REBER)

Factoring business
Others

RER
Hit

99,191,627.95

99,191,627.95

January-June 2015
20154 1-6 A
(Unaudited)
(REEEZ)

30,000,000.00
63,268,650.92

93,268,650.92
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V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial 1. ~ A f 4 % i & £ B IH H 5 ##
Statements (Continued) ) N
61. Notes to items in cash flow statement 61. REREKREBTE(E)

(Continued) }
XNEMEBEEHERNES

Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2016 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

Other cash paid relating to financing activities

January-June 2016

January-June 2015

20165 1-6 8 20154 1-6 A
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(REEER) (REEZ)

Acquisition of minority interests in HEE T AR ERE
subsidiaries 10,358,400.00
Factoring business RIBE =

Handling fee for guarantee for borrowings & FIE (R & (R (k| F 4E & 45,480,872.40

1,334,093,538.36
30,000,000.00
12,524,202.91

Others Efb 14,090,840.23 18,740,860.66
69,930,112.63 1,395,358,601.93
62. Supplement to cash flow statement 62. BEREXRBTENR
(1) Supplement to cash flow statement (1) RenEaRGFRER
January-June 2016 January-June 2015
2016 1-6 8 2015 1-6 A
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(REER) (REEER)
Net profit F A 1,601,514,174.91 1,306,136,286.59

e BERERK
BEEENMTEN

Add: Loss in impairment of assets 349,230,571.66

Depreciation of fixed assets and

192,603,210.24

investment properties B ETE 2,214,818,781.35 1,997,898,400.07
Amortization of intangible assets A B 593,118,851.55 546,339,841.60
Amortization of long-term REGHBREH

prepaid expenses 43,344,467.88 37,696,551.71
Gain on disposal and retirement of BEEMEBERTEEE

fixed assets, intangible assets and B EEMN

other long-term assets Hih R & EH W R (5,441,509.35) (11,375,905.64)
Finance expenses M%ER 154,090,317.29 619,567,443.96
Investment income RE W (82,977,065.51) (100,744,461.39)
Loss from change of fair value NABEEZEHIEL 86,225,051.26 9,163,435.00
(Increase)/Decrease in deferred REFTBMEER

tax assets (), (10,607,887.12) 178,559,290.50
Increase/(Decrease) in deferred EEFTS R B ERE I,

tax liabilities OB ) 63,489,057.35 (413,558,816.21)
Increase in inventories FEREM (1,477,436,169.48) (605,502,311.56)
(Increase)/Decrease in LM EWIEE A

operating receivables (3hn), R (6,885,221,407.69) 2,379,145,771.04
Increase/(Decrease) in e ETIE B musg n,

operating payables CR2) 5,323,795,009.79 (4,599,946,338.41)
Others Hb 42,312,637.21 (23,026,229.78)
Increase in special reserve EHIE AN 13,349,388.62 14,802,778.58

Net cash flow from operating activities ~— K& ESELNIREREFHA

2,023,604,269.72

1,527,758,946.30
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) FPHS i R M 5 (48
30 June 2016 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 20166 H30H (AR #or)

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial 1. ~ A f 4 % i & £ B IH H 5 ##

Statements (Continued) (A
62. Supplement to cash flow statement 62. REREBRMRER(F)
(Continued)
(1) Supplement to cash flow statement (Continued) (1) REREXRWBAEH(E)
Non-cash payment of material investment and financing TERBREMNERKRENEER
activities: EE

January-June 2016 January-June 2015

2016%1-6 8 20154 1-6 8
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(REER) (REEZ)
Acquisition of long-term assets from the §5&E @& © 2 H B FUWEIH
endorsement of bank acceptance bills RITEHEZHRE
received from the sale of goods and HEBEERMEE
provision of services 1,542,662,527.04 1,148,643,955.45
30 June 2016 31 December 2015
2016%F6A30H 2015%F12H31H
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(REEX) (REEER)
Net change in cash and cash equivalents: ReRhReEEMEFLY
The closing balance of cash BEeWH/ ERGBH 22,121,213,395.15 21,014,266,005.49
Less: The opening balance of cash W BENE ESE 21,014,266,005.49 20,474,618,118.42
Add: The closing balance of cash equivalents 1 : & ZEYMER ERHE = -
Less: The opening balance of cash equivalents 3§ : &S EBWMHHFIHE - 20,000,000.00
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents BeRBELEEYFEMNE 1,106,947,389.66 519,647,887.07
(2) Information related to acquisition or disposal of 2) BSHREEFEZEFAAK
major subsidiaries and other business units Hin 2 X BAER
Information relating to acquisition of subsidiaries and other BAGF AR REMEEEH
business units EE
January-June 2016 January-June 2015
20165 1-6 B 20154 1-6 4
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(REERZ) (REER)
Consideration for acquisition of subsidiaries  EUfS T /A& &
and other business units Hith & BB 210,589,429.60 -
Cash and cash equivalents paid for acquisition HX{S /22 @) K E i & % B8 {is
of subsidiaries and other business units SNBSS MBELEED 210,589,429.60 -
Less: Amount of cash and cash equivalents in & : EUSF/A ) 2 Efth & 2 & fiy
subsidiaries and other business units RENEENREEEY
acquired 12,337,240.00 -

Net cash paid for acquisition of subsidiaries ~ HU8F /A &) & E {1 4 3 B8 ]
and other business units SIS RE 198,252,189.60 -
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2016 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial # -~ &M & HETZEZIEH B
Statements (Continued) #H
62. Supplement to cash flow statement 62. REREBRMRER(F)
(Continued)
(2) Information related to acquisition or disposal 2) BEREEFEFRAIN
of major subsidiaries and other business units HMEXEMER(E)
(Continued)

Information relating to disposal of major subsidiaries and RETEFRRIREMEEE
other business units 58
January-June 2016 January-June 2015
201651-6 A 2015%1-6 7
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(REER) (REER)
Consideration for disposal of subsidiaries and BRETAAN
other business units HEft e B8 umER 49,893,098.00
Cash and cash equivalents received for disposal & & F /2 &) & o fih & % B s
of subsidiaries and other business units WEWHReMREEED 49,893,098.00

Less: Amount of cash and cash equivalentsin =~ il - EEF AR RAMSEER
subsidiaries and other business units BENBESNELEEY
disposed of 37,959,549.54 2,499,038.39

Net cash (paid)/received for disposal of BETARIREMEEEN

subsidiaries and other business units () /WEIHE e 28 (37,959,549.54) 47,394,059.61
(3) Cash and cash equivalents (3) HERIREZED
30 June 2016 31 December 2015
2016%F6H30H 2015%12A31H
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REEER) (BERZ)
Cash Be 22,121,213,395.15 21,014,266,005.49
Incl: Cash at bank Heb: EERE 23,031,543.60 4,973,160.10
Bank deposits on demand ARERARE AR
FITER 21,648,076,061.70 20,293,084,804.26
Other cash equivalents on demand AERARE AR
Hth % ES® 450,105,789.85 716,208,041.13
Cash and cash equivalents at end of periodiyear i /FRE S MIEL ZENHE 22,121,213,395.15 21,014,266,005.49
30 June 2016 31 December 2015
2016%6H30H 20156124310
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REBER) (fe&#%)
Cash and cash equivalents at end of periodiyear i/ FREMEE A% 25,554,740,578.75 24,601,345,959.52

Cash equivalents at the end of period/year B/ EXKRESENHE
Less: Balance of restricted cash and cash A AR BIR B A
equivalents ERESHE

Closing balance of cash and cash equivalents at i /FXE & &
end of period/year ReSEMHE

3,433,527,183.60 3,587,079,954.03

22,121,213,395.15

21,014,266,005.49
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VI. The Change in Scope of Consolidation

1.

Business combinations not involving entities
under common control

The material business combination not involving entities under
common control for the period: on 8 February 2016, KION GROUP
AG, a subsidiary of the Company, entered into an agreement to
acquire the US-based Retrotech Inc.. Retrotech Inc. is a company
which focuses on the integrated system of integrated automation
of warehouses and distribution solutions. On 1 March 2016, KION
GROUP AG completed the acquisition of 100% equity interest in
Retrotech Inc., at a consideration of approximately EUR25 million
(equivalent to approximately RMB177.80 million). The acquisition
date was determined as 1 March 2016.

The provisional fair value and carrying amount of Retrotech Inc.’s
identifiable assets and liabilities at the acquisition date are as
follows:

RS i 25 BT 5 (%)
201646 4303 (A RHT)

N~ D o Y 5 )

1.

Cash and cash equivalents BE¥®ES
Accounts receivable FEUR BR X
Intangible assets mAE
Other assets HiEE
Accounts payable JE T BR X
Financial liabilities SRARE
Other financial liabilities HemaeE
Other liabilities HitaE
Minority interests DB R =
Share of net assets ZEREE
Goodwill arising from acquisition BEEANDE
Consideration paid for combination & PHEE

Note: As the assessment is not completed yet, the fair values of all the
identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities are determined on
a provisional basis. Pursuant to the”Accounting Standard for Business
Enterprises No. 20 — Business Combination”( ({3 &85 2058 —
ZEAH) ), recognition and measurement of the business combination
have been based on provisional values. Adjustments will be made to
the provisional values of the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent
liabilities within twelve months from 1 March 2016.

R —EH T REEH

REEEFR—FHTEESHE
2016F2A8H  ARAZFRA
KION GROUP AG%# ] s liiExH
Retrotech Inc. ° Retrotech Inc. Z—
REKBBEBERREXTREA R
HHYAT » A20165F3H1H * KION
GROUP AGS5ERK ¥ Retrotech Inc.
100% B AR RE W B - W B 4 R RR
T25BE - e ARBXNR17,780
BT BERWBER20165F3H1H ©

Retrotech Inc. AR EEFMER
REEENTEAABEMEREE

mF

1 March 2016
2016%3H1H
Provisional
fair value

EEAREE

12,440,561.70

62,751,133.20
109,864,330.80

21,106,940.40
(53,422,492.20)
(68,369,681.10)
(35,498,683.50)
(44,072,487.90)

4,799,621.40

4,799,621.40
173,000,003.40

177,799,624.80
Note (5F)

1 March 2016
2016453 H1H
Carrying

amount

IREEE

12,440,561.70
64,417,470.60
1,381,493.40
20,288,013.90
(53,422,492.20)
(68,369,681.10)
(34,416,276.30)
(6,102,782.70)

(63,783,692.70)

(63,783,692.70)

2 BRFEIESKRTER - AHFPERE
WEBEARREE BERKBERE
WARBEIREERETS  RED
EEERFE20% -0EAH) K
SEUFBEENEREEAERY
ZEEAMHETTHERNGTE 8
201643 A1 B E 1218 A A ¥ Al ¥
REE BERIEEENEREE

EETHE -
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VL. The Change in Scope of Consolidation v - & 1 i [ A% 5 B (44 )
(Continued)

1. Business combinations not involving entities 1. @ —EHTELESH
under common control (Continued) (&)
The Retrotech Inc’s results of operations and cash flows from the Retrotech Inc. BB E BB E=ARHIR
acquisition date to the end of this period are as follows: SR RNIBEREIROT ¢
Period from

the acquisition
date to 30 June
EEAZE6H30H M

Revenue EETION 64,330,828.00

Net profit pEw AN 18,486,710.00

Net cash flows HEeREFHE 6,627,449.00
2. Disposal of subsidiary 2. BEFRTF
Total Total

percentage of percentage of
shareholdings  voting rights

Place of held by held by Reason for
registration Business nature the Group the Group de-consolidation
rEE rEE
SR ER EHEBN TBERA
=1 i ERiHE £E Bl RAELG  FREARE
EERRAR/IAEGR AR Chongging Sales of automobiles 100% 100%  Note
S EHE i
Note: On 19 May 2016, EERRA5)II/TE AR AT, a subsidiary of the F: AEBZFRAREERARE/IISEAR
Group, was approved to complete deregistration by Chongging Bureau ARA2016F5A19BKEERT LETT
of Administration for Industry and Commerce, Jiangjin Branch and the WERRIDRER D B AT HE © &
deregistration date was 19 May 2016. Since 19 May 2016, FEEE55) | $4H 22016558190 - thE201645
79EAPRAF was no longer consolidated as part of the Group. The net A1988 - AEBETHEEERRSE
assets on book of EEPRT5)I1/TEFRAF] as at the deregistration date RBEARARMAGHERE - EEMRAT
amounted to RMB37,959,549.54. =AERRARNEHANKREFE

EAANRME37,959,549.547T ©
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30 June 2016 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 20166 H30H (AR #or)
VILInterest in Other Entities L~ A H A B P R RE R
1. Interest in subsidiaries 1. EFRARAHHESR
Particulars of the principal subsidiaries of the Company are AABBEEFRAENBERAT :

presented as follows:

Place of key Place of Nature of Registered Percentage of
operation registration business capital shareholding (%)
TELEH i EBME EfER FR (%)
Direct  Indirect
B 5t
Subsidiaries acquired through establishment or investment
BRRUAREEHADEHTAT
(1) Weichai Power (Weifang) Casting Shandong Shandong ~ Manufacturing 460,150,000.00 100.00 -
Co., Ltd. L& 11} industry
EEFH () RRBRAT REX
() Weichai Power (Shanghai) Technology Shanghai Shanghai  Manufacturing 340,000,000.00 100.00 -
Development Co., Ltd. I8 i industry
BN (LB MRERARLRA REX
(3} Weichai Power Yangzhou Diesel Jiangsu Jiangsu  Manufacturing 400,000,000.00 - 85.00
Engine Co., Ltd. T8 T# industry
EEBNANERREREELR REX
(4 Weichai Power (Chongging) Western Chongging Chongging  Manufacturing 240,000,000.00 100.00 -
Development Co., Ltd. BF L industry
HEBN(EE)ARBREERAT REX
(5)  Weichai Power (Beijing) International Beijing Beijing Project 300,000,000.00 100.00 -
Resources Investment Co., Ltd. ER IR Investment
EXBH (L R)ERERREBRLA BERE
(6)  Weichai Power (Luxembourg) Luxembourg Luxembourg Project EUR100,000.00 - 100.00
Holding S.ar.l. E#E ERE Investment E72100,000.00
EXBN(ERB)ERERAT BERE
(7)  Weichai Power (Hong Kong) Hong Kong Hong Kong Services USD336,242,497.00 100.00 -
International Development Co., Ltd. Bk BE REE  %7336,242,497.00
EXSH (BB ERERARLA
6 Shandong Heavy Industry India India India  Manufacturing  Rupee823,889,270.00 - 97.68
Private Limited E 0 industry  [£1£823,889,270.00

WRETHEEREEAA RiEX
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30 June 2016 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 20166 H30H (A E#or)
VIL.Interest in Other Entities (Continued) Y EHM PR (F)
1. Interest in subsidiaries (Continued) 1. EFLRAIRHER(E)
Particulars of the principal subsidiaries of the Company are ARAREZFRAMNBERAT « (8)

presented as follows: (Continued)

Place of key Place of Nature of Registered Percentage of
operation registration business capital shareholding (%)
TEREW b E3 3031 EfER BREAI%)
Direct Indirect
Ef 54

Subsidiaries acquired through business combinations not involving entities under common control
HR—EH T EEAMRENFLA

9 Shandong Huadong Casting Co., Ltd. Shandong Shandong  Manufacturing 450,150,000.00 - 100.00
IREBFERRAT E IS industy
Big

(100 Shaanxi Heavy-duty Motor Company Shaanxi Shaanxi  Manufacturing 3,706,330,000.00 51.00 -
Limited i i industry
REEXAEERAT REX

(1) Shaanxi Hande Axle Co., Ltd. Shaanxi Shaanxi  Manufacturing 320,000,000.00 3.06 94.00
REEEERERAT R i industry

(12)  Shaanxi linding Casting Co., Ltd. Shaanxi Shaanxi  Manufacturing 435,360,000.00 - 100.00
RASSREERAT PR il industry

(13)  Shaanxi Fast Gear Co., Ltd. Shaanxi Shaanxi  Manufacturing 256,790,000.00 51.00 -
REZTHERERETAHA BRE il industry

(14)  Zhuzhou Gear Co., Ltd. Hunan Hunan Manufacturing 531,314,951.00 87.91 -
HWHERBRELAT il il industry

(15)  Zhuzhou Torch Sparkplugs Co., Ltd. Hunan Hunan  Manufacturing 282,480,000.00 100.00 -
HRNAAREAEEERERAAT il il industry

(16)  Weichai (Chongging) Automotive Chongging Chongging  Manufacturing 1,695,410,000.00 82.48 17.52
Co., Ltd. (Note 1) £ E] industry
K (EE)RBERAR (M) RE%

(17)  Siciété International des Moteurs France France  Manufacturing EUR33,311,180.00 - 100.00

Baudouin i A industry B{7133,311,180.00

HEER RS NER AR A RER

(18)  KION GROUP AG Germany Germany  Manufacturing EUR98,900,000.00 = 38.25

KION GROUP AG &8 CE industry E17298,900,000.00

RER

Note 1:0n 29 June, 2016, the Company further invested an additional RMB400 F1: M20165F6H298 ' AR FE#HL% (&

million in Weichai (Chongging) Automotive Co., Ltd., which completed the B) AEARARBMREMETAR

change in industrial and commercial registration on 29 June 2016. o ML (EB) AEARAFRER

20166 A29H TR TRI#E -
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2016 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

Vll.Interest in Other Entities (Continued)
1. Interest in subsidiaries (Continued)
Changes in paid-in capital of principal subsidiaries in January-June

2016 are detailed as follows:

31 December

(Unaudited) 2015
(RE&ER) 20151283180
Weichai (Chongaing) Automotive — #4(EF )78

Co., Ltd. BRAF 1,295,410,000.00

Changes in paid-in capital of principal subsidiaries in 2015 are

detailed as follows:

PR 5 3 M R (4)
201664308 (A E¥T)

7 Ffth R P A B 25 (A

Increase in the

current period

KEE M

400,000,000.00 =

31 December

Increase in the

1. EFRAPHER(HE)
TEFATEKRAAR201661-68%
AR MFEDT

30 June
2016
2016%6830H

Decrease in the
current period

BN

1,695,410,000.00

FEFRARBWREAR2015FHLE
{EMFBWT :

Decrease in the 31 December

(Audited) 2014 current year current year 2015
(B %) 2014F12A318 AEEM AEFD 20155128310
KION GROUP AG (Euros) KION GROUP AG

(Br) 98,736,000.00 74,000.00 70,000.00 98,740,000.00

Subsidiaries with material interests of minority shareholders are as

follows:

January to June 2016

Percentage of

shareholding

(Unaudited)

Shaanxi Heavy-duty Motor Company Limited R SR 5EER A A
Shaanxi Fast Gear Co., Ltd. REZTHERERATAR
KION GROUP AG KION GROUP AG

minority

shareholders

SBRR

BRI

49.00%
49.00%
61.75%

GESZLEBRREHTRAAMN
™

20169 1-6 A
Accumulated

Dividends

paid to minority

Attributable to minority

minority interests at
shareholders

AL BHRR
XAERA

the end of period
HR &zt

interests
RO
RREH
13,570,573.13 =

68,635,933.28 =
467,009,474.10  352,999,193.66

2,771,636,866.79
3,742,936,756.35
2,620,768,037.02
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) RS i R M 5 (48

30 June 2016 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 2016F6H30H (A E¥T)

VIl.Interest in Other Entities (Continued) L FEHA R PR RERR (5])
1. Interest in subsidiaries (Continued) 1. EFRARAPHRER (&)

Subsidiaries with material interests of minority shareholders are as

follows: (Continued)

FESEELHEREDZN T RAALW
T (8

January to June 2015 20155 1-6 H
Percentage of Accumulated
shareholding Attributable to Dividends minority
minority minority ~ paid to minority interests at
(Unaudited) shareholders interests shareholders the end of year
SERE BELH SRR FREH
(REEER) RSl KRR SARF S ERRER
Shaanxi Heavy-duty Motor Company Limited BEFEER 5B AR A A 49.00% (8,671,561.47) - 2,599,113,653.12
Shaanxi Fast Gear Co,, Ltd. REZIEESARALAR 4900%  30,895,843.61 - 3735280,71493
KION GROUP AG KION GROUP AG 61.75% 300,177,073 225,059,398.69  2,499,736,341.02

The following table illustrates the summarized financial information

of the above subsidiaries. The amounts disclosed are before any

TRIRT LR FRAREERB(E
B BEEERANEEASEEZH

inter-company eliminations:

(Unaudited)

(RiEE%)

January to June 2016 2016%1-6 8

Current assets RBEE

Non-current assets FRBEE

Total assets BEAH

Current liabilities nBEE

Non-current liabilities kRBBE

Total liabilities BfEAT

Revenue EEWA

Net profit FHE

Total comprehensive GA(BR)/ Wxes
(loss)/income

Net cash flows from BEEHELN
operating activities RengFd

KION GROUP AG

KION GROUP AG

13,446,018,875.00
29,815,962,636.46
43,261,981,511.46
15,607,306,875.00
23,145,663,161.87
38,752,970,036.87
18,671,556,750.93

749,058,754.99

(371,414,331.89)

1,389,848,143.60

HERERA S

Shaanxi Heavy-duty

Motor Co., Ltd.
REER[E
BERAT

15,599,542,435.19
5,142,967,888.50
20,742,510,323.69
14,036,200,260.38
1,236,007,194.60
15,272,207,454.98
10,900,579,789.80
70,051,147.86

70,064,142.16

1,086,069,550.33

Shaanxi Fast
Gear Co., Ltd.
BALtSER
BREEATF

7,696,253,455.42
2,885,562,675.85
10,581,816,131.27
3,034,216,632.45
61,360,000.00
3,095,576,632.45
3,619,505,717.45
135,528,544.31

140,784,319.80

451,796,595.82
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2016 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

VIl.Interest in other entities (Continued)
1.

Interest in subsidiaries (Continued)

The following table illustrates the summarized financial information

I 7 2% BT (48
201646 4303 (A RHT)

+ 78
1.

of the above subsidiaries. The amounts disclosed are before any

inter-company eliminations: (Continued)

(Unaudited)

(Rig=Z)

KION GROUP AG

KION GROUP AG

b 2 8 P R RE A ()

EF QAP ER(E)
TRIRT LRFARNEEHBEE
B EUEERATEEANE LR
MEEHOSHE - (#)

Shaanxi Heavy-duty

Motor Co., Ltd.
REER T

BERAA

Shaanxi Fast
Gear Co., Ltd.
BRPEE T H
BREEAT

31 December 2015

20156 12HA31H

Current assets REAE 11,564,473,575.20  14,239,604,577.08 7,003,684,896.10
Non-current assets FERBEE 28,313,660,899.34 5,063,221,440.61 2,982,434,825.14
Total assets BEAL 39,878,134,474.54  19,302,826,017.69 9,986,119,721.24
Current liabilities nEaE 12,285,338,800.00  13,223,632,907.51 2,612,556,360.52
Non-current liabilities EREEE 22,174,904,890.91 648,550,138.30 31,650,000.00
Total liabilities BB 34,460,243,690.91  13,872,183,045.81 2,644,206,360.52
January to June 2015 2015 1-6 A
Revenue BERA 16,782,378,217.60 8,151,372,098.53 3,245,618,011.36
Net profit SEF 478,264,589.87 12,597,961.52 62,126,937.95
Total comprehensive income REWmesE 929,831,750.87 12,598,880.80 59,075,794.67
Net cash flows from KRB ELR

operating activities ReneFE 1,183,895,054.60 253,832,502.85 609,283,598.47
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30 June 2016 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

VIl.Interest in other entities (Continued)

2.

Interest in jointly-controlled enterprises and

associates
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5 i R M 5 (48
201696 A30H (A E#¥T)

Particulars of the principal jointly-controlled enterprise and associates

of the Company are presented as follows:

+ 7E
2.

oAt 48 v A RE 2 (48
ERgbEMNBELEF
YR
ARTEEABLEABE O EON

s

Place of key Place of Nature of Registered Percentage of Accounting
operation registration Business capital shareholding (%) treatment
TERER it EHME HREx REHI(%) SRR
Direct Indirect
E# 3
Jointly-controlled enterprise
AERE
(1) Xi'an FC Intelligence Transmission Shaanxi Shaanxi  Manufacturing 500,000,000.00 - 51000  Equity method
Co., Ltd. (Note) BE BE industry ERk
BRERELEYERDA(E) ez
Associate
BErE
(1) Shanzhong Finance Leasing Co., Ltd. Beijing Beijing  Finance lease 920,000,000.00 19.565 19565  Equity method
WERERERRAR R R HERE BwA
Q) Shandong Zhonggong Group Finance Shandong Shandong Finance 1,000,000,000.00 20.000 - Equity method
Co., Ltd. W& 1M company Bk
WRBIEEHKERLT BBAR

Note : Xi'an FC Intelligence Transmission Co., Ltd. is held as to 51% by the Group,
and as to 4% and 45% by Shaanxi Fast Gear Automotive Transmission
Co., Ltd. (“Transmission Co") and Caterpillar (China) Investment Co., Ltd
("Caterpillar”) respectively. Its board of directors comprises seven directors,
three of whom being nominated by the Group, one being nominated by
Transmission Co and three being nominated by Caterpillar. According to
its articles of association, board resolutions require unanimous approval
or approval by substantially all directors, and thus Xi‘an FC Intelligence
Transmission Co. is a jointly-controlled enterprise of the Group.

g AEERAARERTREHAERA
A151% R - BINMRALAR R R BRA A
THEHERERETAR([EHE
BDMRERS(FE)REFRAA
(TRE®E]) - HRLEOH R ALI%
Mac5% - EEGHEREFMEK - H
P=RHAKERE —EHEHE
BZET - SHN=FEFRBEEIEMT
BREAREROTE  EFTCHRET
EEQXRUERAZHAEZBRA
ALALZEREDEEHFRAABER
REBEEGEDRE-
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30 June 2016 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

Vll.Interest in other entities (Continued)

2.

RS i 25 BT 5 (%)
201646 4303 (A RHT)

{:Eﬁ@£¥¢%%§%¥

Interest in jointly-controlled enterprises and
associates (Continued)

The Group holds 51% equity interest of Xi‘an FC Intelligence
Transmission Co., Ltd. (“FC Intelligence Transmission”), which is
principally engaged in the production of automatic gear boxes. It is
a key jointly-controlled enterprise of the Group and is accounted for
using equity method in the Group's accounts.

The following table illustrates the summarised financial information
of Xi’an FC Intelligence Transmission Co., Ltd. The amounts
disclosed are adjusted for differences in accounting policies and
reconciled to the carrying accounts in this financial statement:

EEELENBELED
PR (&)
AEEBARAEARERSEEDE
RAF([ERFES])S1%KRE - &
%{%@E%iﬁa@b“u@ BRE
ESEMSEE  AEEHZAE
ERAERERH -

TRINTTAZEREHREHAERAD
AMMBERS  BEMBEEHRT
FAESERERELFDERTBR
REERHE

30 June 2016 31 December 2015

Current assets
including: cash and cash equivalents
Non-current assets

rBAE
Het : REMBEEEY
SERBDAE

Total assets BEAR
Current liabilities mEaE
Total liabilities BEAF

Shareholders’ equity attributable
to the Parent

RS SNl S 32

Shares of net assets based on
percentage of shareholding
Carrying value of investment

BREBRLIIZERFEENTE

REMREER

Revenue

Finance expenses — interest income
Finance expenses — interest expenses
Income tax expenses

Net profit

Other comprehensive income

Total comprehensive income

CELION
MBER—F KA
MEERA-FEER
PRSP E R

e ZAIE
Hipfr e W
AW

20166 H30H 201512 831H
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REER) (&%)

238,380,361.48
13,872,990.08
300,646,828.20

539,027,189.68
250,328,360.96

250,328,360.96

288,698,828.72

147,236,402.65
143,727,760.32

January to June
2016
2016%1-6 8
(Unaudited)
(REER)

38,129,629.83

93,532.88
(2,383,561.11)

(28,084,389.48)

(28,084,389.48)

231,885,512.75
13,462,605.12
306,689,077.66

538,574,590.41

228,683,168.45

228,683,168.45

309,891,421.96

158,044,625.20
158,050,798.96

January to June
2015

20154 1-6 A
(Unaudited)
(REER)

28,539,390.94
218,110.30
(2,217,975.87)

(31,091,381.96)

(31,091,381.96)
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) RS i R M 5 (48
30 June 2016 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 20166 H30H (A E#or)
VIl.Interest in other entities (Continued) + f o A8 P RS ()
2. Interest in jointly-controlled enterprises and EEELENBELESP
associates (Continued) HREE (1)

The Group holds 20% equity interest of Shandong Zhonggong
Group Finance Co., Ltd. (“Shandong Zhonggong Finance Co."),
which provides the Group with services of deposits, credit lending,
settlement and other financial services. It is a key associate of the
Group and is accounted for using equity method in the Group's

accounts.

The following table illustrates the summarised financial information
of Shandong Zhonggong Finance Co.. The amounts disclosed are
adjusted for differences in accounting policies and reconciled to the

carrying accounts in this financial statement:

AEEHRBLURETEBUBER
ARI(TLUREINBEARL)20%K
o IWRBETHBH AR ARNERRE
G 28 #EREMGSBRE
EAEESENHELYE  AEEY
ZHECERAERERE

TRIVRTIWRE LB R E6 0I5
BEE BUIBEERABRTHES:T
BRZREBFANEAVBHHRERERS
28

30 June 2016 31 December 2015

201656 A30H 2015%F12H31H

(Unaudited) (Audited)

(REEHFER) (fe&%)

Current assets RENEE 9,928,557,685.91 13,655,440,758.54
Non-current assets IERBVEE 6,157,507,082.31 2,642,503,117.94
Total assets BESET 16,086,064,768.22 16,297,943,876.48
Current liabilities mENAE vl e PRV 15,110,832,277.66
Total liabilities AEastr 14,825,249,234.18 15,110,832,277.66

Shareholders’ equity attributable to EIEE) S SPNCIE s

the Parent 1,260,815,534.04 1,187,111,598.82

BREBLAIZENFEENE

Shares of net assets based on

percentage of shareholding 252,163,106.81 237,422,319.76

Carrying value of investment KERREEE 252,209,651.91 237,468,864.87
January to June January to June

2016 2015

2016 1-6A 20155 1-6 A

(Unaudited) (Unaudited)

(REER) (REER)

Revenue N 154,023,897.62 116,710,681.81
Income tax expenses FrisHiE A (24,567,978.41) (18,974,372.43)
Net profit I 73,703,935.22 56,923,117.26
Other comprehensive income H 4R A W zs - -
Total comprehensive income RNtk 73,703,935.22 56,923,117.26
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30 June 2016 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

Vll.Interest in other entities (Continued)
Interest in jointly-controlled enterprises and

2.

S5 e R WA R (A

201646 4303 (A RHT)

+t %Eﬁﬂﬁzﬁﬁqﬂ%%ﬁi(%ﬁ)
EhRNBERESD

PN

associates (Continued)
The Group holds 39.13% equity interests of Shanzhong Finance
Leasing Co., Ltd. (“Shanzhong Finance Leasing”), which provides
the Group and its distributors with finance leasing services. It is
a key associate of the Group and is accounted for using equity
method in the Group’s accounts.

The following table illustrates the summarised financial information
of Shanzhong Finance Leasing Co., Ltd.. The amounts disclosed are
adjusted for differences in accounting policies and reconciled to the

Eﬂ%ﬁ(@)
AEBREUEREREERAA
(MLEBRBERE])39.13% B4 - 1L
EWMATEEAAREERAEENEH
BRUBARELERY  RARE
EENHLLE  FEEURBLE
ERAMRERH -

TRIRTWEMEHEBR QRN
MBER  ELMBEEAETHE
SRR ER B EARM B RKREEK

carrying accounts in this financial statement:

Current assets mENEE
Non-current assets JEMBNE E
Total assets BEAR
Current liabilities mEaE
Non-current liabilities JEREAaE
Total liabilities =

Shareholders’ equity attributable to
the Parent

NS YNGR

Shares of net assets based on
percentage of shareholding

BREBRLIZENFEENTE

Carrying value of investment HEHEREEE
Revenue EERA

Finance expenses — interest income &R — 78 HSU\
Finance expenses — interest expenses BiSER—FEE
Income tax expenses Fiisti &M

Net profit b=

Other comprehensive income EAh 4R & W e

Total comprehensive income fRe W T8

[Eiia-C

30 June 2016
201656 H30H
(Unaudited)
(REER)

3,391,349,163.72
1,135,219,709.80

4,526,568,873.52

2,537,270,001.75
968,155,617.91

3,505,425,619.66

1,021,143,253.86

399,573,355.24
398,513,299.01

January to June
2016

20165 1-6 8
(Unaudited)
(RBER)

110,833,610.16

2,259,732.85
(46,118,425.18)
(7,097,475.40)

21,344,952.37

21,344,952.37

31 December 2015
2015412 A31H
(Audited)
(REZ)

3,106,216,477.84
1,239,438,238.23

4,345,654,716.07

2,689,819,257.60
656,064,319.26

3,345,883,576.86

999,771,139.21

391,210,446.77
391,030,428.38

January to June
2015
2015%F1-6 A
(Unaudited)
(REER)

171,064,360.60
1,839,675.01

(62,850,935.23)

(8,084,132.68)
22,314,023.51

22,314,023.51




Interim Report 2016 FAsks 189

Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) RS i R M 5 (48
30 June 2016 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 20166 H30H (A E#or)
VIl.Interest in other entities (Continued) + T HoAth 8 i 25 (48)
2. Interest in jointly-controlled enterprises and EEELENBELED
associates (Continued) ke (&)
The following illustrates the combined financial information of the TRINRTYHAEBSEIAE S A
associates which, individually, are not significant to the Group: EBOENATHBKES -

30 June 2016 31 December 2015
201656 A30H 2015412 A831H

(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REER) (&%)
Associate B2
Total carrying value of investments WEAEmEES 691,714,696.21 660,600,073.97
The total amount of the following calculation based on the THFRERFREIA RN AR

percentage of shareholding:

January to June January to June
2016 2015
20165 1-6 A 20154 1-6 8
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(REER) (REEZ)
Net profit F R 68,609,558.56 88,879,902.82
Other comprehensive income/(loss) Hibsr AUz, (E18) 15,331,279.38 (72,011,395.61)
Total comprehensive income fRe W AT 83,940,837.94 16,868,507.21
VIIL.Transfers of Financial Assets I\~ S R
Transferred financial assets that had not been CEBERERBARALIBERNS
derecognised in their entirety mMEE
As at 30 June 2016, the Group had endorsed to its suppliers commercial MR2016F6A30R ' "EBEBEEEHHE
acceptance bills for settling account payables with a carrying amount FRAREE RN EA R EZNR
of RMB10,000,000.00 (31 December 2015: RMB6,893,000.00). The EEEAAR10,000,000.0075(201 5$
Group considered that it retained substantially all of the risks and rewards 12 ﬂ 318 : AR#¥6,893,000.007T) °
including the related default risk. Accordingly, its and all related settled ERA - AEERBT E%?Fﬁﬁﬂ’]ﬂ
account payables continued to be fully recognized. After endorsement, Eﬁﬂ HREN - REREEENZORR - B
the Group no longer retained its right of use, including the right to b BB EHERARE BENDEE
sell, transfer or pledge to other third parties. As at 30 June 2016, FERERER - BE% NEBTHRBFER
the Group'’s settled account payables had a total carrying amount of HutEd  BEBELE  @ER:EHE
RMB10,000,000.00 (31 December 2015: RMB6,893,000.00). HEME=0#F - R20165F6 4300 -

AEENEALAENEMNEREREEA
A AR #10,000,000.007T (2015412 A
318 : AR¥6,893,000.007¢C) °
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2016 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

VIIL.Transfers of Financial Assets (Continued)

Transferred financial assets that had been
derecognised in their entirety but continuously
involved

As at 30 June 2016, the Group had endorsed to its suppliers bank
acceptance bills, which remained outstanding, for settling account
payables with a carrying amount of RMB3,650,664,800.61 (31 December
2015: RMB2,818,049,462.43). The Group had discounted bank
acceptance bills, which remained outstanding, with a carrying amount
of RMB2,706,634.94 (31 December 2015: RMB44,487,805.36). As at
30 June 2016, they were due in 1 to 12 months. If acceptance banks
dishonor the bills, endorsees shall have the right to turn to the Group for
recourse (“Continuing Involvement”) according to the Law of Negotiable

Instruments.

The Group considered substantially all risk and reward of the bills had
been transferred. Therefore, the Group derecognized the book value
of the related accounts payable that have been settled by the bills. The
undiscounted cash flow and maximum loss of continuing involvement and
repurchase were equal to the book value of the bills. The Group considers

the fair value of continuing involvement is not significant.

From January to June 2016, the Group did not recognize any significant
profit or loss at the date of transfer. The Group had no current or
accumulated gain or expense arising from the continuing involvement
in financial assets which had been derecognized. The endorsement and

discount were incurred evenly throughout the period.

CEERILIBREEES AW
CHEBEMEE

20164 6 5308 » AN % E X 5 H
WMEBSELHESRAREEEMNER
MIRTERLEENEEAEERARE
3,650,664,800.617C(2015412A318 :
ANR#2,818,049,462.4370) + ANEBE K
HEMEMBRRTALEZENEEEEAR
AR #2,706,634.94 7T (20154 12 A 31
H: AR®44,487,805.3670) ° 12016
F6A308  HEHAA1Z12MA « R
(BEEVBABRTE - BERLRITERBHAR
B EREBABRAAEEER([EEY
Al) e

AEERE  AEECEEBTHLTH
BRRBAMBH - Bt KRUEERELRE
ZHBANCHEERNERNREEE - #
BHARBENZEKBRAMKRITRR SR
ESREREEE AEERE  BEY
ARREBELTERK -

20165 1-6 A » REBREER AERL

MEXRBREFTEK - AEBEEEALES
ABRIEREMEES MR HERL

IRess B A - HEMEBAEAP ARG
B
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) RS i R M 5 (48
30 June 2016 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 2016F6H30H (A E¥T)
IX. Disclosure of Fair Value Ju~ A R fEAE W) P ER
1. Assets and liabilities measured at fair value 1. UAAREBEEFENEEMN
=L
January to June 2016 20165 1-6 H

Inputs used in the measurement of fair value
AREETEEANGAE

Quoted prices in Key observable Key unobservable

(Unaudited) active markets inputs inputs
EZAHE EZFRTEER
ERMIERE BWAE BAE
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
(RigERz) (B—FER) (€3=-)/9 (B=ER)
Financial assets at fair value through LA A 4 B € B
profit or loss HEEDHAZEH
BRmemEE 103,611,375.00 103,611,375.00
Available-for-sale listed equity AEHESREE
instruments for available-for-sale AhEN LT
financial assets BHIA 226,648,375.00 226,648,375.00
226,648,375.00 103,611,375.00 330,259,750.00
Financial liabilities at fair value AR EEFER
through profit or loss HEHHAR
BEMEREE 236,466,063.57 236,466,063.57




192  Weichai Power Co., Ltd.

1.

HRBORHERDE
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30 June 2016 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 2016F6 HA30H (AR % T)
IX. Disclosure of Fair Value (Continued) > /A\fﬁﬁg 1A i 4 25 (4)
Assets and liabilities measured at fair value 1. UAREEFENEEMN
(Continued) aE(E)
2015 20154
Inputs used in the measurement of fair value
AREEAEEANEAE
Quoted prices in Key observable  Key unobservable
(Audited) active markets inputs inputs
BEAEE BENIEER
BRI RE BAE ANE
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
(&%) (Z-ER) (B-ER) (B=ER) B
Continuously measured at fair value &M A% BEE
Financial assets at fair value through AR BEEE
profit or loss HEHHAZH
BaNeREiE - 37,867,082.40 - 37,867,082.40
Available-for-sale listed equity ARLESREE
instruments for available-for-sale FmA#LE
financial assets ERITA 258,826,493.60 - - 258,826,493.60
258,826,493.60 37,867,082.40 - 296,693,576.00
Financial liabilities at fair value NAnEESER
through profit or loss HEHHAE

92,014,803.10

92,014,803.10
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IX. Disclosure of Fair Value (Continued)
Assets and liabilities disclosed at fair value

2.

30 June 2016
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PO 5 i 3 M R (4)
201664308 (A E¥T)

Ju~ 2 SR B R ()

2. X

XREER

=i
201696 A30H

BENEEM

Inputs used in the measurement of fair value

Quoted prices in

DAEERE

Key observable

ERBNEAE

Key unobservable

(Unaudited) active markets inputs inputs
EZAHE EERTBE
ERMIERE BWAE BAE
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
(RigERz) (B—FER) (€3=-)/9 (B=ER) =L
Long-term receivables REEWH 3,610,678,450.13 3,610,678,450.13
Long-term borrowings REER 11,957,144,411.64 11,957,144,411.64
Bonds payable e EH 2,750,207,777.40 - 2,750,207,777.40
Long-term payables REERNT - 7,232,063,375.00 7,232,063,375.00
31 December 2015 2015%F12H31H
Inputs used in the measurement of fair value
ARBEREEANEAE
Quoted prices in Key observable  Key unobservable
(Audited) active markets inputs inputs
BEAEE BENIEER
BRI IR(E BAE AANE
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
(FER) (B—ER) (F=ERX) (5=ER) Ch
Long-term receivables REEUGR - 3,382,225,078.40 - 3,382,225,078.40
Long-term borrowings REER - 7,540,256,933.90 - 7,540,256,933.90
Bonds payable B &S 5,944,180,335.98 - - 5,944,180,335.98
Long-term payables REEMAT - 6,644,874,751.20 - 6,644,874,751.20
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2016 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

IX. Disclosure of Fair Value (Continued)

3.

Estimation of fair value

Fair value of financial assets/liabilities

The management has assessed the cash and cash equivalents,
notes receivable, accounts receivable, financial products under
other current assets, non-current assets due within 1 year, short-
term borrowings, notes payable, accounts payable and long-term
liabilities due within 1 year and long-term payables due within one
year. In each case, the fair value and carrying value are similar due

to short remaining period.

The finance team of the Group is led by the head of finance
department. It is responsible for formulating policies and procedures
applicable to the measurement of the fair value of financial
instruments. The finance team directly reports to the Chief Financial
Officer and the Audit Committee. On each balance sheet date, the
finance team analyzes the change in value of financial instruments
and ascertain the key inputs which apply to the valuation. The
process and result of valuation is subject to approval by the Chief

Financial Officer.

The fair value of financial assets and liabilities is determined as the
amount at which well-informed parties undergo exchange of assets
or settlement of debts out of free will and in a fair transaction. The
following methods and assumptions are used in estimating fair

values.

Financial assets/liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include
the forward contracts of subsidiaries. The Group believes that the
fair value estimated using valuation techniques is reasonable and

the most appropriate value as of the balance sheet date.

The fair values of listed equity instruments are determined according

to quote prices on the market.

5 i R M 5 (48)
201646 4303 (A RHT)

2 AR A A e B (4

iR

3.

NAEBEME

TRHEE/ ¢REBEANER

EEECKTRTERE:  BRE
B EWER - Rt RsEEF AR
BEm- - —FANNENERBEE -
REER - ENERE - EANERHRE—
FAIHNRBABE - —FA2 N
REENAHE  BERBHRIR A
nEEREE@EEES

AEENPEEGHMEHMFHIBEA
XL BEVESRIAEAAEER
ENBERMNEF - MBEBREERRAE

FUBENENZEERS - BEE
ERERA  UBEEITERTA
EBEZD BEHER ﬁHE’JER%JA
B -HERENERKRERNBE
ZHUE ©

CHMEEMSBHBEENAREE MU
EAFRGH  ABBEROZZE
BREETEERBRIEBHEENS
BHE - LT EMREBARGE
AR1EE -

AABEFELEZEHFAZNER
MEREE/ SREEERETEFLR
AIMEMAR - AEEBE - UHE
BRitfEstmanBERAGEN XA

TrRREEBBXRERAENERE -
FiHERTA  UWSHREEER
REE-



Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2016 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

IX. Disclosure of Fair Value (Continued)

3.

Estimation of fair value (Continued)
Fair value of financial assets/liabilities (Continued)

Fair values of long-term borrowings are determined using
discounted cash flows, at rates equal to market yield of other
financial instruments with similar contract terms, credit risks and
remaining term. As at 30 June 2016, non-performance risks

underlying long-term borrowings were appraised as insignificant.

Fair values of long-term receivables/ long-term payables are
determined using the present value of net leasing receipts/ net
leasing payments, at rates equal to the market yield of other finance

leases with similar contract terms, credit risks and remaining term.

The fair values of bonds payable are determined as quoted prices

on the market.

The level change in the fair value
From January to June 2016, there were neither transfers between
Level 1 and Level 2 for the measurement of fair value of financial

assets and liabilities, nor transfer into or out of Level 3.

Interim Report 2016 AR HEAZRE

5 i R M 5 (48
201696 A30H (A E#¥T)

Ju~ 2 SR B R ()

3.

AnEEMSEEGE)
TREE /SRAEBAAEE
(&)
REERRARRAS R B BUER
EAAREE  UARLARER - &
IR AF R E £ B T A
B R M ASFTE - 201656 A
308 HYRBERZEFTRY
BB ATEX -

EfE s BN RN A A EE
PR E WK, FRENRENR
& UBRELARKR - ERARRA
5164 SRR ) L A0 R R B M OB M2
REAFRRETE -

ENES  UMSREBEAAE
1 o

ARABEEBRER
M20165F1-6H  WEeHEENS
MEBEAABEMEEE —ERNE
ZERZHENER - NEEARED
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) F B i R B T (48
30 June 2016 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 20166 H30H (AR #or)

X. Related Party Relationships and Transactions >

The related parties defined in these financial statements included the
related parties under accounting standards and related parties under the

information disclosure requirements of SFC.

o B O Bl A e L A2

A BHRERPTRENBB TR BESTE
A RENBEE T hEREEEENRS

FEGEBEERET A ENRET

o

1. Parent 1. §2AF
Proportion of Proportion of
ownership voting
Registered Nature of Registered interest in power in
address business capital the Company the Company
HA0H HALR
it ABUE ifEx RLA RRELH
(%) (%)
Weichai Group Holdings Limited Weifang City, External investment financial guarantee RMB1,200,000,000.00 16.83 16.83
HEEREEERAT Shandong Province investment advisory planning and N
i) organization/ coordination and
M management of production operating

activities of corporates under the Group
WMREBERRRERH

REES/ BREAEENE

PREERREY

Shandong Heavy Industry Group Co., Ltd. is the ultimate controller

of the Company.

2. Subsidiaries

Details of subsidiaries are set out in Note VII.1.

3. Associates

Details of associates are set out in Note VII.2.

ARBNREENARLURETRE

BRRAE -

™~
N

AL
FRRABEFEAMEL 1 -

3. B
B EHEL 2 o



Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2016 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

X. Related Party Relationships and Transactions

(Continued)
Particulars of other related parties which 4,
entered into material transactions with the

4.

Group

Interim Report 2016 AR HEAZRE

5 i R M 5 (48
201696 A30H (A E#¥T)

Related party relationships
A T BA 17

T~ B B 05 B AR B e 52 B (B

BASEBLEEARIWN
Hitb A B

Referred to as

i

Shandong Heavy industry Group Co., Ltd
LWRETEBEERDA
Weichai Group Holdings Limited
EEREEARR
Weichai (Weifang) Med|um—duty
Diesel Engine Co., Ltd.

HESe Oy ) RVSOR AR I
Shandong Weichai Import and Export Co., Ltd.
IR AELE L AFRAA
Weichai Heavy-duty Machinery Co., Ltd.
M ERBRNBRDA

Yangzhou Yaxing Coach Co., Ltd.
BMNEERERHARAT

Yangzhou Shengda Special Vehicles Co., Ltd.
BN ERESERAA

Weichai Electric Equipment Co., Ltd
HRENRBAEBR

Chongging Weichai Diesel Engine Limited

EEMREEHRERD
Chutian Engineering Machmery Company Limited

WHEERTIREMAR A

Shantui Engineering Machlnery Co., Ltd.

I TAR AR (9 B PR 2 7]

Shandong Shantui Machinery Co., Ltd.

IR LA R A A

Shandong Heavy Industry Group Finance Co., Ltd.
LWREISEEGBERAA

Shanzhong Finance Leasing Co.,Ltd.
LEREEEERLA
Shanzhong Jianji Co., Ltd.
ILERKERAR

Ultimate controller
RN

Parent

SR

Common control by parent

R—8 AR S

Common control by parent
A—8 AT
Common control by parent

A—8AREs

Common control by parent

R— A 7S

Common control by parent

[l — & 2 Bl

Common control by parent

A—S A TS

Common control by parent

R— A7 S

Same ultimate parent
—EREBEHA

Same ultimate parent

Rl — S A2 I A

Same ultimate parent

[l — B A EHIA

Same ultimate parent

BRAREHIA

Same ultimate parent
—REEFIA
Same ultimate parent

R — &R HIA

Shandong Heavy Industry
HWRET
Weichai Group Holdings
HES R
Weichai Medium

b ekt

Weichai Import and Export
HESE R O
Weichai Heavy-duty
Machinery

R ER
Yangzhou Yaxing
BMEE

Shengda Special Vehicles
BERRRE
Weichai Electic

HERE N

Chongging Weichai
E) 3
Chutian Engineering
1gi: 3
Shantui Engineering
TR
Shandong Shantui
IR L #
Shandong Heavy Industry

Finance Company

IWREBTHMBRA
Shanzhong Finance Leasing
LWEREMRS
Shanzhong Jianji

WE R
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HRBORHERDE

Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2016 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

X. Related Party Relationships and Transactions

(Continued)

4.

Particulars of other related parties which 4,
entered into material transactions with the

Group (Continued)

5 i R M 5 (48)
201646 4303 (A RHT)

Related party relationships

T~ B B 05 B AR B e A2 5 (B

BASEBLEEARIH
HibBAM 5 B R ()

Referred to as

B S B R fE 8
Beigi Foton Motor Co., Ltd. Same key management personnel Beigi Foton
EREEAERDERAF F—FAREEAS tAtEH

Shaanxi Automotive Holdings Group Co., Ltd.
RAAEZEREERRDA

Shaanxi Automobile Industry Co., Ltd.
POTBEXBRAT

Shaanxi Automotive Group Co., Ltd.
R EEEBRETRA

Shaanxi Fast Gear Automotive Transmission
Co., Ltd.
REZLHAEEHEEFRAT
Shaanxi Huazhen Vehicle Parts Co., Ltd.
RAEZEHDEERAA

Shaanxi Huazhen Sancan Industry and

Trading Services Co.,Ltd.
RAZEZETERBERDA
Shaanxi Tongli Special Purpose Vehicle Co., Ltd.
BREANERAEAERAETAT

Shaanxi Lantong Transmission Axle Co., Ltd.

RAOEREPHHER AT

Baoji Huashan Engineering Vehicles Co., Ltd.
BEXE | TREHEREEAT

Xi'an Lande New Energy Automotive Technology
Development Co., Ltd.
AR TERIFEAR AR

Shaanxi Wanfang Vehicle Parts and Components Co. Ltd.

REEST AETHREARATA

Shaanxi Wanfang Tianyun Vehicle
Equipment Co. Ltd.
RABAFREAEZERERRA
Shaanxi Fangyuan Automobile Standard
Components Co. Ltd.
RAEHEREREGERAAF

Associate of substantial shareholder(s)
of subsidiary(ies)
FRARIEERRZBMEA
Associate of substantial shareholder(s)
of subsidiary(ies)
FREEERR2HEA
Substantial shareholder(s) of
subsidiary(ies)
FRAEIEERE
Substantial shareholder(s) of
subsidiary(ies)
FRAEIEZERE
Associate of substantial shareholder(s)
of subsidiary(ies)
FRARIEERRZBMEA
Associate of substantial shareholder(s)
of subsidiary(ies)
FREEERRZHEA
Associate of substantial shareholder(s)
of subsidiary(ies)
FREIEERRZHEA
Associate of substantial shareholder(s)
of subsidiary(ies)
FREIEERRZBEA
Associate of substantial shareholder(s)
of subsidiary(ies)
FRARIEEMRRZBMEA
Associate of substantial shareholder(s)
of subsidiary(ies)
FREEERREZHEA
Associate of substantial shareholder(s)
of subsidiary(ies)
FREIEERRZHEA
Associate of substantial shareholder(s)
of subsidiary(ies)
FREIEERRZHBEA
Associate of substantial shareholder(s)
of subsidiary(ies)
FRARAIEZEMRRZBMEA

Shaanxi Automotive Holdings

pOTIER

Shaanxi Industry
RTE

Shaanxi Automotive
b9ak =]

Shaanxi Fast Gear Automotive

BROLEE)

Huazhen Parts

ERIM

Huazhen Services

ERRY

Tongli Special Purpose
BAIEM

Lantong Transmission

EEEyH

Baoji Vehicle

BHEW

Lande New Energy
MR R

Shaanxi Wanfang
RAEET

Wanfang Tianyun
BHRE

Fangyuan Automobile
HEAE



Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2016 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

X. Related Party Relationships and Transactions

(Continued)

4.

Particulars of other related parties which 4,
entered into material transactions with the

Group (Continued)

St 5 R Y

Interim Report 2016 AR HEAZRE

(#)

20166 H30H (A R#T)

Related party relationships
B S BER

T~ B B 5 B AR B e 52 5 (B

BASEBLEEARIH
HibBAM S B R ()

Referred to as

L

Shaanxi Tongchuang Huaheng Vehicle Radiator Co. Ltd.

RERAIEZ TEHAERETAF

Shaanxi Automobile Group Xunyang Baotong
Special Purpose Vehicles Co., Ltd.
RAAEEEAGEREAEERAR
Shaanxi Automobile Group Changsha Huantong
Automobile Manufacturing Co., Ltd.
REAEEERSPRBABHERRAT
Shaanxi Automobile Group Yan'an Special
Purpose Vehicles Co., Ltd.
REAEEEELEREERAA
Shaanxi Dongming Automobile System Co., Ltd
RAREEBRGERODERAR

Shaanxi Zhongfu IDT Techology Co., Ltd
RAEREDHHEREER AR

Shaanxi Shaangi Auto City Hotel Co., Ltd.
PREREFEERR DA

Shanghai Yuanxing Supply Chain
Management (Group) Limited
FEETHERERERAF
Shaanxi Zhongjiao Tianjian Vehicle Net Information
Technology Co., Ltd.
AR R RRERBELRMERAR
Shaanxi Deyin Logistic Services Co., Ltd.

REERDRREBERAF

Shaanxi Deyin Leasing Co., Ltd
ERHEEERRAA

Shaanxi Dongfeng Axle And Transmission
System Co., Ltd
RAREEBEDRGRNDERAA
Shaanxi Automobile Group Wenzhou Yunding
Automobile Co., Ltd.
RAAEEERMNERTEERAA

Associate of substantial shareholder(s)
of subsidiary(ies)

FRARIEEMR ZBMEA

Associate of substantial shareholder(s)
of subsidiary(ies)

FAREEREZHEA

Associate of substantial shareholder(s)
of subsidiary(ies)

FRARIEZEMRZBMEA

Associate of substantial shareholder(s)
of subsidiary(ies)

FRARIEEMR BEA

Associate of substantial shareholder(s)
of subsidiary(ies)

FRAABEREZBEA

Associate of substantial shareholder(s)
of subsidiary(ies)

FARNEBREIHEA

Associate of substantial shareholder(s)
of subsidiary(ies)

FRARIEEMR ZBEA

Associate of substantial shareholder(s)
of subsidiary(ies)

FAABEREZBEA

Associate of substantial shareholder(s)
of subsidiary(ies)

FTAREEREIHEA

Associate of substantial shareholder(s)
of subsidiary(ies)

FRARIEEMRR ZBEA

Associate of substantial shareholder(s)
of subsidiary(ies)

FARNEBREZHEA

Associate of substantial shareholder(s)
of subsidiary(ies)

FARIZEZMR ZBEA

Associate of substantial shareholder(s)
of subsidiary(ies)

FRAOAEEMRFRZHEA

Tongchuang Huaheng
REEs

Xunyang Baotong
AGER

Changsha Huantong
RARE

Yan'an Special Purpose
Vehicles

ERERE

Dongming Automobile

REER

Shaanxi Zhongfu
RAETE

Shaangi Auto City
BT E

Yuanxing Supply Chain
BITHER

Zhongjiao Tianjian
PN

Deyin Logistic
=R

Deyin Leasing
EREE

Dongfeng Axle
REEE

Wenzhou Yunding

BMETR
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2016 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

X. Related Party Relationships and Transactions
(Continued)
4. Particulars of other related parties which 4.
entered into material transactions with the

BASEBLEEARIH
HibBAM 5 B R ()

Group (Continued)

Related party relationships

Referred to as

B T E &
Shaanxi Deshi Vehicle Components (Group) Co., Ltd. Associate of substantial shareholder(s) Shaanxi Deshi
PREECRES T (RE)BREFERT of subsidiary(ies) PR E A

Zhuzhou Gear Company Limited

wMERRD AR AR

Zhuzhou Automobile Gear Factory

VDR =

Shaanxi Tonghui Automotive Transportation Co., Ltd.

FRAEZERFZBHEA

Same key management personnel
as subsidiaries

B ARIRRA—BREREAR

Same key management personnel as

subsidiaries
BYRRIAR-—BARERAR
Associate of subsidiaries

Zhuzhou Company
=Dl

Zhuzhou Gear Factory

TR R

Tonghui Automotive

REBEAEDRERRDA FRAZBERE WIE T

Xi'an FC Intelligence Transmission Co., Ltd. Associate of subsidiaries FC Intelligence Transmission
AZYREREHARAA FREAZEEDE SREY

CIMC - SHAC (Xi'an) Special Vehicles Co., Ltd. Associate of subsidiaries CIMC - SHAC
PEPAIER (AR EREERAA FREIZEERE REER

Xi'an Cummics Engine Co., Ltd. Associate of subsidiaries Xi'an Cummics
AZERRESRARLDA FRAZBERE P2 A R

Baoding Shangi Tianma Automobile Co., Ltd Associate of subsidiaries Shangi Tianma
REBRARETEFRAA FARIZHEERE POARE

Shaanxi Eurostar Auto Co., Ltd. Associate of subsidiaries Eurostar
RABETFAEZERHAERDA FREIZEERE BLAT 5T

Shaanxi Automobile Wuhai Special Vehicles Co., Ltd. (Note)  Associate of subsidiaries Shaanxi Wuhai
RASEZERAERRAA () FRAZBERE PRASE

Weichai Power Westport New Energy Engine Co., Ltd. Associate of parent Westport New Energy
HEETERE R N B R A BRAZEERE PR B IR

Note: On 1 December 2015, the equity entrustment agreement was terminated FEa
upon discussion and negotiation. Shaanxi Heavy-duty Motor Company
Limited, a subsidiary of the Company (”Shaanxi Heavy-duty Motor”)
ceased to have voting right on Shaanxi Wuhai. The equity investment
in Shaanxi Wuhai by Shaanxi Heavy-duty Motor was changed to be
accounted for using the equity method and Shaanxi Wuhai was no longer
included in the consolidation.

2015F 12 R 1A RIpBEmRIERIES
tih®E  ARAZFARIRAER )R
BHRARI(ATHBIRAEZER])T
BREAHKRASENRIIE KRAEE
AEBOSETNRERER AL
%E - THEMAANGHEER -
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2016 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

X. Related Party Relationships and Transactions 1 ~ B 5 B8 R HAZ 5 (4)
(Continued)

5. Major transactions between the Group and its 5. AEEHEBABINEIER
related parties 2
(1) Transaction of goods and services with related (1) BEELTERMSEHERS
parties
Purchase of goods from related parties B EAR 57 i B B an

January-June

2016

20165 1-6 B
(Unaudited)
(RREEX)

Shaanxi Fast Gear Automotive
Shaanxi Wanfang

Weichai Medium

Westport New Energy

Baoji Vehicle

Weichai Import and Export
Shanxi Wuhai

Wanfang Tianyun

Huazhen Parts

Tongli Special Purpose
Xi‘an Cummics

Weichai Heavy-duty Machinery
Shaanxi Deshi

Lantong Transmission
Zhongjiao Tianjian
CIMC-SHAC

Tongchuang Huaheng
Fangyuan Automobile
Dongming Automobile

FC Intelligence Transmission
Others

PO EE

BRAEES

AR Y

FB IR
HHER

HESE L O
BTSE

B RE

EREF

BHEH

78 % FR AR H
HESEE M

pREG B

ERgywm
hRRRE

TEER

REIET

HTERE

REFEW

B85

Hity

1,161,653,857.08
326,244,520.81
269,298,477.86
263,238,866.14
224,049,056.99
175,945,171.38
167,527,419.35
161,442,495.02
146,506,367.24
122,549,756.11
121,812,867.18
120,513,798.25
104,458,971.05
54,435,651.08
38,694,764.19
31,620,031.53
28,394,185.97
24,640,943.62
22,509,212.47
19,592,647.23
395,358,767.28

3,980,487,827.83

January-June
2015
2015%1-6 A
(Unaudited)
CREEEZ)

975,420,473.41
232,297,273.56
220,810,972.19
515,359,315.17
418,177,287.63
199,189,544.41
97,900,309.38
36,424,010.38
238,041,821.53
113,537,791.09
80,919,963.22
77,723,382.70
37,938,179.59
27,976,737.77
36,824,034.02
20,594,191.08
25,435,625.51
17,042,545.85
35,930,085.13
177,315,862.76

3,584,859,406.38
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2016 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

X. Related Party Relationships and Transactions

(Continued)

5.

Major transactions between the Group and its
related parties (Continued)

Transaction of goods and services with related
parties (Continued)

Sales of goods to related parties

(1)

HRB D RHBRAF

S5 e R WA R (A

201664308 (A E¥T)

-~ B Bk s B AR S H A2 5 ()

5.

Shaanxi Fast Gear Automotive

Beigi Foton

Weichai Import and Export

Weichai Medium

Westport New Energy

Weichai Electric
Shaanxi Wuhai
Yangzhou Yaxing

Tongli Special Purpose

Shaanxi Wanfang
Baoji Vehicle
Huazhen Parts

Shantui Engineering

Shaanxi Zhongfu

Weichai Heavy-duty Machinery

Others

BREEE)

ik A& |

SR O
e Y

FEEETEER
HLEE N

BRAEE

BMNEE

BHEA

PREaE

EHEE

I

T2

PREEH =

LB

Hith

Receiving services from related parties

Weichai Group Holdings

Tonghui Automotive

Shaanxi Industry
Others

S PR IR

BHETE
PRTE %
Hit

Note 1
31

FEEHEBEBINEER
2 (&)
(1) BB ITEaNERERS
(%&)
18] BE B 75 45 & B
January-June January-June
2016 2015
20165 1-6 B 20154 1-6 A
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(RBER) (REER)

669,954,412.44
301,459,177.54
194,020,552.30
135,612,554.56
123,981,344.79
118,050,886.59

108,759,200.94
95,525,022.34
77,588,252.13
69,087,969.53
60,369,297.22
50,361,876.14
41,922,209.22
31,132,114.48
29,977,789.63
927,714,949.96

3,035,517,609.81

580,910,137.21
307,175,003.30
183,970,717.81
88,500,864.07
254,721,970.27
99,349,289.89

84,373,978.43
14,237,167.44
105,332,938.67
65,887,417.10
25,958,357.80
36,956,878.20
10,422,382.04
55,895,298.88
662,320,520.00

2,576,012,921.11

January-June
2016

20165 1-6 A
(Unaudited)
(RBER)

145,609,913.44
50,240,627.70

32,930,618.01
136,366,611.01

365,147,770.16

January-June
2015

20154 1-6 A
(Unaudited)
(REER)

159,409,975.98

46,371,323.19
30,741,402.31
36,032,703.43

272,555,404.91
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2016 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

X. Related Party Relationships and Transactions

(Continued)
5.  Major transactions between the Group and its 5. AEEHEBABINEIER
related parties (Continued) 2 (&)
(1) Transaction of goods and services with related (1) BEITERMEBRS
parties (Continued) (&)

Rendering services to related parties

5] B8 B 7 B2 (7 55

January-June

2016
2016%1-68
(Unaudited)

(REER)

Others Hb

36,985,023.47

36,985,023.47

Note 1:From January to June 2016, Tonghui Automotive provided
comprehensive services including agency procurement,
warehousing, logistics distribution and receipt and payment
services to Shaanxi Heavy-duty Motor Co., Ltd, a subsidiary
of the Company. Agency services provided by Tonghui
Automotive to Shaanxi Heavy-duty Motor Co., Ltd. amounted to
RMB40,605,029.55 (January — June 2015: RMB46,371,323.19),
and goods purchased by Tonghui Automotive on behalf of Shaanxi
Heavy-duty Motor Co., Ltd. amounted to RMB731,021,601.46
(January — June 2015: RMB771,992,473.69) during this period.

During the period, the prices for the Group's sale of goods
and rendering of services to related parties as well as
purchase of goods and receiving services from related parties

were determined with reference to market rates.

January-June
2015
2015%1-6 A
(Unaudited)
CREEEZ)

20,222,627.64

20,222,627.64

A

7 H

R2016F1-6 A » WIEARE
BARRARZFRAKRAEE
TEBRAAREHARER
B AR YEREERKRA
W EHRERE - NFERE
ENATEARAAEXBE
MENRERESEAAR
# 40,605,029.55 7T (2015 4
1-6 4« AR#46,371,323.19
) RERBENEDSRE
B AN R # 731,021,601.46
JL(2015%F1-6 A+ AR
771,992,473.697C) °

CAKERBEBDHEER

o RESHER  RKEEM®
REREHELEMSERRE °
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2016 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

X. Related Party Relationships and Transactions 1 ~ BB 7 B8 R HAZ 5 (4)

(Continued)
5. Major transactions between the Group and its 5. AEEHEBABINEIER
related parties (Continued) 2 (4&)
(2) Leasing with related parties (2) BAEAHMEE
As lessor 1EAML A

Type of leased property
HEZERA

FC Intelligence Transmission
ERHEE)

Westport New Energy
B IR

Tonghui Automotive
BEE

Shanzhong Finance Leasing
LWERMERS

Xi‘an Cummics
a2 AR AT

Weichai Electric

HLHEE N

Weichai Import and Export
HESELR O

Huazhen Parts

FEHRT

Shaanxi Wanfang

DFiR=]
Shaangi Auto City
BRI I
Shaanxi Industry

PRE

Buildings and equipment
FE#E

Buildings

FE

Buildings and equipment
FE#E

Buildings

FE

Buildings, equipment & land
FEHRELH
Buildings

FE

Buildings

FE

Buildings and equipment
FE##E

Buildings

FE

Hotels and buildings
BIERE

Buildings

FE

January-June

2016

20165 1-6 A
(Unaudited)
(REER)
Lease revenue

HERA

8,111,621.70

4,032,118.82

3,337,493.75

3,014,353.04

2,743,334.56

2,400,902.71

1,701,103.92

1,022,708.76

156,142.40

122,220.00

120,183.00

January-June
2015

20154 1-6 A
(Unaudited)
(REgER)
Lease revenue

HEBA

8,111,621.70

6,213,530.22

5,023,418.67

2,987,853.04

4,137,681.84

2,250,000.00

1,627,052.64

1,735,314.80

58,620.00

221,454.00

161,530.20




Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2016 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

X. Related Party Relationships and Transactions
(Continued)
Major transactions between the Group and its

5.

related parties (Continued)

()

Leasing with related parties (Continued)

As lessee

Type of leased property
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201696 A30H (A E#¥T)

-~ B Bk s B AR e H AR 5 ()
5. AKEEERBELINEER

& (&)

(2) BABEHHE(E)

TEm AN

January-June

2016

20165 1-6 A
(Unaudited)
(REER)
Lease fee

HEE

January-June

2015

20154 1-6 A

(Unaudited)

(REgER)

Lease fee
Fizh-¢:

HEEERH
Shaanxi Industry Buildings
B FE
Shaanxi Fast Gear Automotive Buildings
BOEEE) FE
Weichai Group Holdings Buildings
e S PRI FE
Zhuzhou Company Buildings
=g FE
Chongging Weichai Buildings
BE RS FE
Shaanxi Automotive Buildings
PRk E FE

9,310,867.32

6,250,554.31

3,183,187.58

3,029,500.00

1,999,998.00

1,306,087.32

During the period, the prices for the Group's leasing with

related parties were determined with reference to market

rates.

9,402,948.84

6,344,062.69

6,577,567.73

3,335,400.00

1,999,998.00

1,427,428.82

AE NEBEEBBITEAER
BEBR2EMSERRE °
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2016 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

X. Related Party Relationships and Transactions

(Continued)

5. Major transactions between the Group and its

related parties (Continued)

(3) Transfer of assets with related parties

Details of transaction

REAR

RS i 25 BT 5 (%)
201646 4303 (A RHT)

-~ B Bk s B AR S H A2 5 ()
5. AKEEERBELINEER

& (&)

(3) B AEEER

January-June

2016

20165 1-6 8
(Unaudited)
(REER)

Weichai Group Holdings
MR I

Weichai Group Holdings
MR IR

Weichai Heavy-duty Machinery
HESRE

Weichai Heavy-duty Machinery
HESREH

Weichai Medium

Hseh R

Shaanxi Fast Gear Automotive
pOEES

Chongging Weichai

BEEH L

Weichai Electric

HEEE

Purchase of fixed assets
BEETEE

Sale of fixed assets

& EEEE
Purchase of fixed assets
BEETEE

Sale of fixed assets
HEEEEE

Sale of fixed assets
HEEEEE

Sale of fixed assets
HEEEEE
Purchase of fixed assets
BEETEE

Sale of fixed assets

HEBREEE

174,040.16

36,244.80

2,687.85

209,689.48

27,202.80

47,578.19

5,623.94

During the period, the Group’s purchase and sale of fixed

assets from and to related parties were on prices determined

with reference to market rates.

Except for the transactions with associates, all the above

transactions of goods and services with related parties,

leasing with related parties and transfer of assets with related

parties also constitute connected transactions or continuing

connected transactions as defined under Chapter 14A of the

Hong Kong Listing Rules.

January-June
2015

20154 1-6 A
(Unaudited)
CREEEZ)

48,326.02

112,890.41

1,405.99

268,887.01

AE - NEBE RS REN
HEBRTEEBR2EMSE

FRIRTE o

FRERERRETZR SN
T A L il 8 Bk 75 78 4R AN 85 165 K2
5 BB HAENEMRNEE
BREREBR(ER LTRAD
FUATHEZENHEI HH

HEMERS -



Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2016 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

X. Related Party Relationships and Transactions
(Continued)
5. Major transactions between the Group and its
related parties (Continued)
(4)  Other related party transactions

(a)

Deyin Leasing provides Shaanxi Heavy-duty Motor
Company Limited, a subsidiary in the Group, with
services of financial leasing. It was agreed among
Deyin Leasing and third-party distributors that for the
vehicle monies of related business to be receivable
by the Group from distributors, Deyin Leasing may
take up the payment obligation on behalf of the
distributors. In January — June 2016, the amount of
vehicle sales through this business mode amounted
to RMB1,289,164,100.00 (January — June 2015:
RMB676,803,500.00).

Shanzhong Finance Leasing provides Shaanxi Heavy-
duty Motor Company Limited, a subsidiary in the
Group, with services of financial leasing. In January —
June 2016, the amount of vehicle sales through this
business mode amounted to RMB280,723,760.68.
Shaanxi Heavy-duty Motor Company Limited provided
guarantee for joint liabilities in respect of failure of
the lessee under finance lease to settle instalment
payments plus interest. Risk exposure in respect of
possible guarantee for joint liabilities as at 30 June
2016 amounted to RMB728,490,000.00 (31 December
2015: RMB728,010,000.00). For details, see Note XII.3.
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S S ¥ R MY R (A

201646 H30H (AR #T)
+ ~ BT BAR S H AL 5 ()
5. AEEHEBEBEINEER

2 (&)
(4)
(a)

H@EB T X5

EREEAAEBZTA
AIRAENAEERA
AR EREEL
BRAEME = & H
R EE R A S EE R
KEm N EBEEBNE
X ATEREREE R
EAENRER 2016
F1-6 AMBZEEBIE
AHENEWMESHERAR
# 1,289,164,100.00 7T
(20159 1-6 A :+ AR
676,803,500.007T) °

LWEREREANERE Y
FARRASATEHR
NRRHBMEREEL
2016F 1-6 AmBZIESE
BEABEENERSER
A K # 280,723,760.68
T BRAEEARREHRR
RNAAMAERENEMR
FREINORERSE
2B SRR F B R #E
EREEME  BZE2016
F6H30HMEHEERR
FREBBRK D BAR
& 728,490,000.00 JT
(20154128318 = A
R ® 728,010,000.00
L) AEBER2REHE
+= 3¢
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2016 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

X. Related Party Relationships and Transactions
(Continued)
5. Major transactions between the Group and its
related parties (Continued)

4)
()

Other related party transactions (Continued)

On 21 March 2013, the Group entered into the
Financial Services Agreement with Shandong Heavy
Industry Group Finance Co., Ltd. (“Shandong
Heavyduty Finance Company”). Pursuant to the
agreement, Shandong Heavy-duty Finance Company
provided deposit, credit, accounting and clearing
services as well as other financial services to the
Company and its controlling subsidiaries. The interest
rates for credit relating to financial services as well as
fee rates are determined according to the Financial
Services Agreement and based upon the relevant
requirements of the People’s Bank of China’s under
which the lending rate shall not exceed the minimum
level permitted under the interest rates and fee rates
for money lending of similar types and categories
available to the Group from other major commercial
banks in the PRC.

Amounts of transactions with Shandong Heavy Industry

Finance Company are as follows:

S5 e R WA R (A

201646 4303 (A RHT)

T~ B B 05 B AR B He A2 B (B
5. AKEEERBELINEER

7 (&)
(4) HAdEB TR 5 (&)
(0 FEBMRLIKSTEE
MEERAR([LRE

January-June

20164 1-6 B
(Unaudited)
(REER)

35,676,678,959.48

58,888,241.54

9,926,615.52

190,000,000.00

Bank deposit placed BFERERITIE R
Interest income FMEUA
Interest expenses FMEZH
Acquisition of short-term borrowings B 1552 BR{E K
Acquisition of long-term borrowings 1S R EIfE R

THBRRL)R201343
A21B#( SRS
#) BEHZ - LWRE
T B RRARR RIER
FRAARKER 8 -
FEERHEMSRARES -
RS RREEER EM
B RRB(S ARG IHZE)
MEFBEARBITEEE
A EFEREAR E W AR E
TERAEEEE A E
Bl E g RITESH)
FEEREBEIEENERE
KA SAEKFERHETE -

REBEINRSTHBHR
RIEANBIERZ N
™

January-June
2015

20154 1-6 A
(Unaudited)
(REgER)

2016

39,534,575,451.23

104,485,351.64

5,209,019.16

190,000,000.00

200,000,000.00 =

Establishment of bank acceptance bills

FERITAN ER

874,978,467.61

883,769,074.66
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) RS i R M 5 (48
30 June 2016 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 20166 H30H (A E#or)

X. Related Party Relationships and Transactions 1 ~ B 5 B8 R HAZ 5 (4)
(Continued)

5.  Major transactions between the Group and its 5. AEEHEBABINEIER
related parties (Continued) 2 (1&)
(4) Other related party transactions (Continued) (4) HuBEB AR5 (E)
() Balances of accounts with Shandong Heavy Industry (o) AEBHRNESINB
Finance Company are as follows: NAKEIBTREGEED
-

30 June 2016 31 December 2015
201656 H30H 2015912 A31H

(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REEZR) (BE=Z)
Cash and cash equivalents placed FEHEsTNEEES
with related parties 12,105,631,102.31 12,634,249,570.97
Interest receivable FEUAI S 92,809,113.75 51,793,725.00
Short-term borrowings AR 160,000,000.00 120,000,000.00
Long-term borrowings REIER 320,807,751.45 120,807,751.45
Non-current liabilities due within —FRIEBNERESEE
one year 100,000,000.00
Balance of bank acceptance bills i BB SR 77 L TE R 6858

established 874,176,367.61 656,349,921.56
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2016 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

X. Related Party Relationships and Transactions

(Continued)
Amounts due from/to related parties

6.

HRB D RHBRAF

Accounts receivable
R

Weichai Electric

YT N

Yangzhou Yaxing

HMEE

Beigi Foton

Blpari=:E

Weichai Import and Export
HESEL N

Weichai Heavy-duty Machinery
ML B

Changsha Huantong
EYRE

FC Intelligence Transmission
SR EY

Eurostar

BLAT A

Shengda Special Vehicles
BRERRS

Westport New Energy
BB

Weichai Medium

Hesehn

Yan'an Special Purpose Vehicles
ERERE

Yuanxing Supply Chain
EITHERE

Others

Hith

PR 5 3 M R (4)
201664308 (A E¥T)

- B B O B AR e H AR 5 ()
6. BAMETS BB FIRERE

30 June 2016

201656 H30R
(Unaudited)
(REER)

Gross carrying

amount

SRE ERE

139,736,581.73

112,347,597.47

103,879,340.02

98,312,939.23

80,275,369.57

71,246,913.98

64,658,509.24

41,050,096.79

32,699,581.69

31,227,361.89

26,996,191.88

24,747,584.00

24,602,370.00

327,049,649.40

1,178,830,086.89

Provision for
bad debt
BIRERE

(7,004,738.11)

(5,068,088.27)

(4,903,317.68)

(3,920,205.47)

(4,721,671.14)

(22,180,887.63)

(5,572,712.31)

(30,398,691.26)

(1,634,979.08)

(1,546,767.25)

(799,000.42)

(1,237,379.20)

(1,330,612.25)

(2,378,617.59)

(92,697,667.66)

31 December 2015
201512 A31H
(Audited)
(EEZ%)

Gross carrying
amount

BRI AR

Provision for
bad debt
EIRER

37,385,429.48

32,360,380.91

52,398,951.88

19,394,826.38

92,844,247.27

71,246,913.98

51,967,576.89

40,881,105.39

38,788,181.68

75,498,168.59

9,723,545.17

25,332,584.00

52,382,380.00

340,156,829.32

(1,869,271.47)

(1,609,883.47)

(2,710,424.98)

(917,168.91)

(6,728,851.84)

(14,770,406.04)

(2,598,378.84)

(27,384,919.49)

(1,939,409.08)

(3,034,017.26)

(455,237.26)

(1,266,629.20)

(7,372,807.00)

(8,057,364.40)

940,361,120.94

(80,714,769.24)
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) RS i R M 5 (48
30 June 2016 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 2016F6H30H (A E¥T)

X. Related Party Relationships and Transactions 1 ~ B ¥ 5 B8 X K2 5 (%)
(Continued)

6. Amounts due from/to related parties 6. BHMATRBRWENNRERE
(Continued) (48)
30 June 2016 31 December 2015
201656 H30H 20156128318
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(RBER) (8EZ)
Gross carrying Provision for Gross carrying Provision for

amount bad debt amount bad debt

AR TEH BR BE AR RE A BERER
Other receivables
H At FE KRR
Shaanxi Fast Gear Automotive
BROEEE 94,414,343.46 - -
Shaanxi Automotive
PR HE 17,074,200.43 - -
Shangi Tianma
D IRP N 13,778,740.01 (10,872,216.01) 13,778,740.01 (10,872,216.01)
Weichai Heavy-duty Machinery
ML E K 2,250,285.79 - =
Zhuzhou Gear Factory
R 8 11,729,070.78 -
Zhuzhou Company
=L ah) 9,730,399.70 -
Others
Hi 114,016,037.79 84,484,528.98 (94,921.17)

241,533,607.48 (R YPPALXANVE 119,722,739.47 (10,967,137.18)
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2016 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

X. Related Party Relationships and Transactions 1 ~ B ¥ 7 B8 R HAZ 5 (4)
(Continued)
6. Amounts due from/to related parties 6. BAB T EWENRIESRE

(Continued)

(#%&)

30 June 2016
20166 A30H

(Unaudited)
(REER)

Notes receivable (Bank acceptance bills)

BURRB(RITERLZESR)
Deyin Leasing

BIREE

Yangzhou Yaxing
HBMEE

Weichai Heavy-duty Machinery
SR E

Shantui Engineering
T2

Weichai Import and Export
S O

Baoji Vehicles

B

Shengda Special Vehicles
BERES

Beiqgi Foton

bR H

Others

HAh

1,803,867,600.00

191,201,663.36

170,678,277.51

77,135,000.00

64,176,189.60

32,000,000.00

26,153,400.00

2,660,000.00

2,367,872,130.47

Prepayments

SEENET S|

Weichai Import and Export
S E N

Deyin Logistic

BRYR

Others

Hh

63,747,935.85

31,796,464.47

95,544,400.32

Dividends receivable

FE U A% Rl

Eurostar

B AT 5F

Tonghui Automotive
e TE

3,040,000.00

3,040,000.00

31 December 2015
2015412 A831H

(Audited)
(=)

1,101,850,000.00
214,260,430.29
152,000,000.00
12,728,564.00
53,000,000.00
32,000,000.00
32,153,400.00
22,280,000.00

26,858,683.56

1,647,131,077.85

33,341,774.27

35,280,091.10

68,621,865.37

3,040,000.00

3,440,000.00

6,480,000.00
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2016 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

X. Related Party Relationships and Transactions 1 ~ B 7 B8 R HAZ 5 (4)
(Continued)

6. Amounts due from/to related parties 6. BAB T EEWENRIBERE
(Continued) (&)

30 June 2016 31 December 2015
20166 H30H 2015412 A31H

(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REER) (fE#|IZ)

Accounts payable
B R
Shaanxi Fast Gear Automotive
BROAEE) 475,837,683.52 359,348,397.64
Tonghui Automotive
BE B 442,096,814.88 543,027,580.74
Shaanxi Wanfang
BRPRE S 298,318,005.86 104,896,021.22
Baoji Vehicle
EHER 227,398,518.65 16,731,838.32
Weichai Import and Export
ML RO 126,657,398.59 139,429,864.04
Huazhen Parts
EHRE 93,160,216.68 13,945,813.42
Tongli Special Purpose
BHER 77,079,045.76 162,781,843.66
Xi'an Cummics
P R AR T 74,862,177.51 39,103,656.61
Shaanxi Deshi
PREGEA 72,676,991.14 73,739,781.73
Wanfang Tianyun
BHKiE 48,799,035.76 —
Lantong Transmission
EimEEH 36,856,990.47 28,014,092.40
Zhongjiao Tianjian
HR R K 2 34,980,422.75 16,145,661.91
CIMC-SHAC
FESFR 30,235,696.22 26,321,527.10
Tongchuang Huaheng
EalIzES 27,503,197.17 12,700,446.51
Weichai Group Holdings
S R 25,282,426.89 439,824.96
Weichai Medium
LR R 24,939,275.63 1,746,810.21
FC Intelligence Transmission
EREE 23,408,953.57 623,454.33
Fangyuan Automobile
FEqE 20,550,392.90 9,949,774.00
Others
Hi 135,470,015.37 114,381,092.89

2,296,113,259.32

1,663,327,481.69
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2016 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

X. Related Party Relationships and Transactions 1 ~ B ¥ 7 B8 R HAZ 5 (4)
(Continued)
6. Amounts due from/to related parties 6. BH A EWENZIEAE

(Continued)

(#%&)

30 June 2016

31 December 2015

20166 H30H 201512 A31H
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REER) (f&F'EZ)
Notes payable (Bank acceptance bills)
EREE(BRTEARLESR)
Tonghui Automotive
WIESRE 375,100,000.00 494,975,712.00
Baoji Vehicle
EHTEH 140,900,000.00 -
Shaanxi Wanfang
BREE 50,356,876.68 80,800,000.00
Shaanxi Deshi
PrpaiE it 35,250,000.00 17,700,000.00
Xi‘an Cummics
P R AR T 20,000,000.00 39,500,000.00

Westport New Energy
B R R
Lantong Transmission
EREEH

Tongli Special Purpose

5,400,000.00

186,257,619.46

18,047,191.18

BAER 4,610,018.32 9,252,067.88

Others

HAh 20,633,000.00 11,804,973.08
652,249,895.00 858,337,563.60

Prepayments

AWK IR

Shaanxi Wuhai

BRSBTS 12,311,831.88 -

Baoji Vehicle

EHEE 5,037,163.00 5,037,163.00

Weichai Medium

HESE R A 10,685,909.01

Tongli Special Purpose

BAOER 632,920.00 72,196.00

Wenzhou Yunding

BINETE 118,574.90 118,574.90

Huazhen Parts

EEIMG 1,300.00 314,500.64

Weichai Import and Export

HESE T N 158,682.09

Others

HAh 1,108,597.53 153,993.60

19,210,387.31

16,541,019.24




Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2016 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

X. Related Party Relationships and Transactions
(Continued)

6.

Amounts due from/to related parties
(Continued)
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-~ B Bk s B AR e H AR 5 ()

6. BT EWENREKRE
(%)

30 June 2016 31 December 2015
201656 A30H 2015412 A831H

(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REEHFZ) (fe&=Z)

Other payables
Hs AR

Shaanxi Automotive
Rt =]

Shaanxi Industry
b E %

Others

H A,

52,332,280.10 60,623,678.82
31,951,483.41 73,980,291.12

59,694,867.10 67,324,741.70

143,978,630.61 201,928,711.64

Dividends payable
EARF
Shaanxi Automotive
BRI & =

2,940,000.00

Long-term payables
REIEMNR
Other immaterial associates

Hi 3P AR & b

255,101,250.00 229,501,339.20

Non-current liabilities due within one year

—FRIBFRBEE

Other immaterial associates

Hi3FE A& D E

119,010,375.00 126,734,462.40

Other than long-term payables and non-current liabilities due within
one year, amounts due from/to related parties were non-interest
bearing and unsecured. Of which the terms of repayment for
amounts of trading nature will follow the requirement of terms of
trading, while amounts of non-trading nature have no fixed terms

of repayment.

BRREEMNR  —FRIBNIERD
BB - U FE A B ESE 75 SRR
PEFE - BB - BHP - BHER
MERRERE S RHIAE  FES
R E EER -
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2016 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

XI. Share-based Payment

Share-based Payment Project Applicable to Staff
Members of KION

On 1 October 2014, KION GROUP AG introduced a share-based payment
project applicable to KION's staff members in Germany (Project 2014).
Since 1 October 2015, KION GROUP AG introduced its share-based
payment projects applicable to its staff members in Germany, China,
United Kingdom, France and lItaly (Project 2015). Under Project 2015,
a staff member may participate in the project by giving a declaration of
acceptance during the period from 2 to 31 October 2015. Only those who
have, before the commencement of the agreement, signed permanent
employment contract with KION GROUP AG and been working for KION
GROUP AG for at least one year are qualified to participate in the project.
Currently, KION GROUP AG, 12 German subsidiaries and 34 overseas
subsidiaries have participated in Project 2015. KION GROUP AG will
consider extending the coverage of project to more countries in the years

to come.

Under the share-based payment project for staff members, a participating
staff member will, through a share placement plan, be entitled to one
bonus share, free of charge, to match with every three shares in KION
GROUP AG that have been held for three years. KION GROUP AG is
entitled to provide cash payments in lieu of the grant of bonus shares. To
motivate staff's participation in this project, KION GROUP AG will grant a
first-time participant, on a free-of-charge basis, one share to correspond
with every 27 shares initially purchased by him/her/it. If the participant has
sold the shares of KION GROUP AG or no longer works for KION GROUP
AG, he/she/it will no longer be eligible for such right to receive such free-

of-charge shares.

As at 30 June 2016, 52,532 valid bonus shares had been granted by
KION GROUP AG (31 December 2015: 53,220 shares). In the first half of
2016, with the lapse of some bonus shares, the number of valid bonus
shares decreased by 688 shares. From January to June 2016, total costs
recognized in respect of equity-settled share-based payment related to
this project was EUR257,000.00 (equivalent to RMB1,995,730.00) (January
to June 2015: EUR113,000.00 (equivalent to RMB781,485.40)).

KIONEIR#®X{SEE

2014%F10A1H * KION GROUP AGS|#
—IEEAEBEARNE TKIONE I K®H
ZHIEE (20147H ) - KION GROUP AG
B2015F10 S 1HREMAEE - A &E - I
EBMEBEARMARMNE IEREE TR
% 1B H (2015188 ) 20151 B H &Y
BTAAA2015F10828E31 A BB
K—EEXBALELRIER  REEHE
714 AT E EAKION GROUP AG%A] T kK AfR
EeR - B2RIEZEL—FNEIAE
BERMAKIEE - BRI2HEH2015BEMNE
KION GROUP AG X 1281 F A R F134
&SN F 2 7] » KION GROUP AGZE EFELA
BFEEKEEBEEARIEZHEK -

EIRMOZNEHBRBRRFTEH2EE
T#HEHE =KION GROUP AGRRZE R =
FRAEES—REBMHITEAR - KION
GROUP AGEHEBBEBR I HBERETA
A% - KION GROUP AG A8 EN E T2 EATA
B HEXR2EABENEISVEED
BoIRBREEER X —RRE - ARATE
B 2% HE TKION GROUP AGHI IR = &
ERE SERESEAEARE-

#HZ=2016F6H30H ' KION GROUP AG
752,532 B MAT IR (2015F 12 A 31
H :53,220/%)  fE2016%F E¥FREF D
ATRE K R 688 % © 20164F 1-6 A £
AIBEEBENNEREENRO ZFTER
K& A 4% A IT257,000.00 - 1A A
R #1,995,730.007C (2015 1-6 A : &
7C113,000.00 - #r & A R # 781,485.40

L
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30 June 2016 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 2016F6 H30H (AR #or)

XI. Share-based Payment (Continued) T e A (4
Share Incentive Scheme Applicable to KION KION £ 32 iz R B B =t &1
Managers
In March 2016, a Share Incentive Scheme implemented by KION GROUP 1201643 F * KION GROUP AGH#f#L 12
AG became applicable to managers with retrospective effect from 1 BYERTBE2016F1A1ARAH=FN
January 2016, for a term of three years (KION Senior Management B B st 2 (KIONS E REVE T8l -
Long-term Incentive Scheme). At the beginning of the period subject to F2016F 1 A1 RERE %I - KEHF
appraisal, on 1 January 2016, 150,679 virtual shares with specific fair F150,6791 A B R E QXA BENERK
value were granted to managers. Such virtual shares were apportioned in 7 ZEBRBRNDEBESMSIBEERTFRG
proportion to the total annual remuneration of the respective managers FrfE A RE HH L I T DB

who were granted such shares.

As at 30 June 2016, accumulated liabilities incurred from the cash-settled HE2016F6 A30R  LBEESHEE
share-based payments amounted to EUR14,185,000.00 (or equivalent to MR ENEEMRFTEAELEA
RMB104,614,375.00 (31 December 2015: EUR8,463,000.00, equivalent EX JT 14,185,000.00 @ #1 & A R ¥
to RMB60,046,677.60). In particular, EUR8,336,000.00 belonged to the 104,614,375.00 7t ( 2015 F 12 A 31
2014 tranche, which was equivalent to RMB61,478,000.00 (31 December H : BT 8,463,000.00 @ T & A KB
2015: EUR5,716,000.00, equivalent to RMB40,556,163.20), and ® 60,046,677.60 5t ) : H A - B T
EUR4,859,000.00 belonged to the 2015 tranche, which was equivalent to 8,336,000.00 BN 2014 F KR F1H & -
RMB35,835,125.00. (31 December 2015: EUR2,747,000.00, equivalent & AR ¥ 61,478,000.00 7t ( 2015
to RMB19,490,514.40). EUR 990,000.00 belonged to the 2016 tranche, F12 A 318 © B Jt5,716,000.00

which was equivalent to RMB7,301,250.00. T & AR ¥ 40,556,163.20 70 ) + BT

4,859,000.00 B A 2015F 0 ®E FMHE -
#r& AR 35,835,125.007t (20159 12
A318 : BJT2,747,000.00 * 1A AR
#19,490,514.40 7T ) + 8 7£ 990,000.00
BR2016EHRTHE  TEARK
7,301,250.007T °
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2016 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

XI. Share-based Payment (Continued)

Share Incentive Scheme Applicable to KION
Executive Board

As part of the Share Incentive Scheme of KION GROUP AG, members of
the Executive Board were granted virtual shares over a fixed period of time
(2.5 years for the 2013 tranche and 3 years for the tranches in subsequent
years). At the beginning of the period subject to appraisal, on 1 January
2016, 104,438 virtual shares with specific fair value were granted to
members of the Executive Board. Such virtual shares were apportioned
in the manner stipulated under the respective service contract of each

member of the Executive Board.

Given the completion of the long-term target set in the beginning
of the period subject to appraisal in 2013, the first payment of the
2013 tranche, which amounted to EUR10,420,000.00 or equivalent to
RMB70,194,330.00, was completed in April 2016.

As at 30 June 2016, accumulated liabilities incurred from the cash-settled
share-based payments amounted to EUR12,152,000.00 (or equivalent to
RMB89,621,000.00 (31 December 2015: EUR7,430,000.00, equivalent
to RMB52,717,336.00). In particular, EUR7,449,000.00 belonged to the
2014 tranche, which was equivalent to RMB54,936,375.00 (31 December
2015: EUR5,266,000.00, equivalent to RMB37,363,323.20), and
EUR3,944,000.00 belonged to the 2015 tranche, which was equivalent
to RMB29,087,000.00 (31 December 2015: EUR2,164,000.00, equivalent
to RMB15,354,012.80). EUR759,000.00 belonged to the 2016 tranche,
which was equivalent to RMB5,597,625.00.

KION# T Z E SR EH BT &

EAKION GROUP AGH I S B =T 8l8 —
Br - MOTEEERET—EAREH M
(2013F B AR2.5F - BENWEA3IF)
WERTESKG - £2016F 1 A1HEM
HEZZPB  ATZEEEREERT
104,438 EERTEAREEREHR
M ZEBBRNDIEREBUATEZEEEKE
BREERFPHRENTADE -

ER2013FERBEEZVELEED
FHEEMEN  203F8 FH 8
=T B JC 10,420,000.00 © T & AR
70,194,330.00 T B A X E1£20164F
ARASERK °

HE2016F6 308 LLBESEEHE
RO ENEENRAEBEESEAR
BL JT 12,152,000.00 @ T & A R ¥
89,621,000.00 7t ( 2015 % 12 A 31
H : B Jt 7,430,000.00 © T &4 A B
# 52,717,336.00 5t ) + E F - BT
7,449,000.00 B A 2014 F 1% F 1) &
& AR ¥ 54,936,375.00 7t ( 2015
12 A 318 + B Jt 5266,000.00
A AR®37,363,323.2000) © BT
3,944,000.00 B R 2015F M EFMHE -
#fr& AR #29,087,000.007C (2015412
HA31H : BJ£2,164,000.00 - :TA AR
#15,354,012.80 7T ) * |8 7L 759,000.00
BR2016EFHRTHE  TEARE
5,597,625.007T °
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XII. Commitments and Contingencies 1o ARGE B B IE
1. Significant commitments 1. EEARER

Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2016 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

Capital commitments BAREH
Investment commitments & AR

Exposure to confirmation risks

Shaanxi Heavy-duty Motor Co., Ltd., a subsidiary of the Company,
entered into a tri-party cooperation agreement with distributors and
endorsing bank. Distributors will deposit guarantee money of not
lower than 30% to the bank and apply for establishment of bank
acceptance bill according to the amount of credit facility provided
by the bank. Shaanxi Heavy-duty Motor Co., Ltd. assumes security
obligation in favour of the distributors for the difference between
amount of notes and guarantee money. As at 30 June 2016, open
position of outstanding acceptance bill was RMB1,709,690,000.00
(31 December 2015: RMB1,013,770,700.00).

Finance lease business

Shaanxi Heavy-duty Motor Co., Ltd., a subsidiary of the Company,
entered into a cooperation agreement with Shanzhong Finance
Leasing Co., Ltd.. It is agreed by and between the two parties that
Shanzhong Finance Leasing Co., Ltd. shall provide finance lease
service to Shaanxi Heavy-duty Motor Co., Ltd. or its distributors.
Shaanxi Heavy-duty Motor Co., Ltd. shall provide joint liability
guarantee in respect of the leasee’s failure to pay the instalment
payments and interests under the finance lease. As at 30 June
2016, risk exposure of joint liabilities was RMB728,490,000.00 (31
December 2015: RMB728,010,000.00).

30 June 2016 31 December 2015
201656 H30H 201512 A31H
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(RBER) (g&E=)

1,174,213,600.88 1,733,809,898.35
- 1,300,000.00

1,174,213,600.88 1,735,109,898.35

RAE 2O R
RARZFRARARBEL TEHRA
RIEGHE  ARBIT =R =
FEERZ  SHEARRITEATR
R30% M RFD  BIERITHTH
—EEREE  BEMACRITELE
R oRRAFRTEFRAARLHE
RUEERCHERRIFS CHMEZHENE
FIRFEMT - HZE2016F6A30H
HAHHNALEZHRAOBEAAR
#1,709,690,000.00 7t (2015 F 12
A318 : AR®1,013,770,700.00
JT) °

HRpEHEARBEBEMNE
%

KRB ZFRRKAERNTEFRA
AIELEREHEBR AR A
et EHOTELERERESR
RAARAERRBHRRAFSEL
HEREREAERY  RAERR
BEERARABMEMAENAMR ST K
M BERE S AR RA SR
HTIREARMT - HE2016%F6 A30
B @FETREBFARHBOAARE
728,490,000.007C (20154 12 A 31
H: ARK#728,010,000.007T) °
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XII. Commitments and Contingencies (Continued) 12 7% & BA FHIH ()
4. Material guarantee 4. EAERER

30 June 2016 31 December 2015
20166 H30H 2015912 A31H

(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REER) (&%)
Loan guarantee BRER 158,960,750.00 166,971,341.60
XIIL. Subsequent Events T2 HRERAMEFKARFH
Acquisition of additional interests in overseas AKAREFEIINFARKION
subsidiary KION GROUP AG GROUP AG
On 18 July 2016, KION Group AG issued in aggregate 9,890,000 new 20167 H18H * KION GROUP AGE i
KION shares through the accelerated market bookbuilding offering BN R SE A0 B 1T 5 R 1B 359,890,000 ik #r
process, at an issue price of EUR46.44 per KION share. Pursuant to the B - BITEIE B46.44BC, ] - KA A
agreement between the Company and KION GROUP AG in relation to the EAKION GROUP AGRLREEE M /TR M
subscription of its new shares, the Company has, through Weichai Power EHERBS  AQFBEBMHEERER
(Luxembourg) Holding S.a r.l. (“Weichai Lux"), subscribed for 5,934,000 BEH 5,934,000 5% - RESHEET
new KION shares at a total consideration of EUR276 million. Upon KB 2.7618 « N XL RE L E) 5T K
completion of the transaction, the number of shares of KION GROUP AG & RNRFBAAELEREZRTFAEKION
held by the Group through Weichai Lux amounted to 43,767,700 shares GROUP AGHIfR 7 4851 /43,767,7004% -
and the Group’s shareholding in KION has increased from 38.25% to BRI 38.25% EFFE40.23% ©

40.23% after enlargement.

Dividend payment K 2% AL F

On 30 August 2016, under the authority granted by the shareholders of M2016F8A30H - ARRIEEZCRIE
the Company, the Board considered and approved the distribution to all BEAEHRE  FZBBUARERA
shareholders of cash dividend of RMB1 (including tax) for every 10 shares 3,998,619278 M AEE r MEZBRREE
held, based on the total share capital of the Company of 3,998,619,278 TORRERSAFNARBITT(ER) - T

shares, without any capitalisation of reserve. BN RSB -



Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2016 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

XIV. Other Significant Events

1.

Leases

As the lessor

Finance leases: As at 30 June 2016, the balance of unrealized
finance income is RMB510,645,000.00 (31 December 2015:
RMB511,159,493.60) and is apportioned to the leasing period using
effective interest rate method. Pursuant to the leasing contract
signed with the lessee, the minimum lease receivables under non-

cancellable leases are as follows:
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T Ay T 2

1.

BEHEEFRHEA

Finance lease, as lessor

For fixed assets leased out under operating lease, refer to Note V.16.

As the lessee

Finance leases: As at 30 June 2016, the balance of unrecognised
finance costs is RMB780,071,957.68 (31 December 2015:
RMB714,146,070.40) and is apportioned to the leasing period using
effective interest rate method. Pursuant to the leasing contract
signed with the lessor, the minimum lease payables under non-

cancellable leases are as follows:

BMEHEEFEREEA

Finance lease, as lessee

For fixed assets leased in under finance lease, refer to Note V.16.

5,490,060,625.00

10,813,929,082.68

HE

YEREMEA

FhEFME - 201668308 ¢
AEAMEWNZNHERARKE
510,645,000.007C (20154 12 A 31
H: AR®511,159,493.6070) @ %
AERMREERAEHANS @RS
I - BREREARARITNEES
R - AR ERN KA E KRS
N

30 June 2016 31 December 2015

20166 H30H 2015912 A831H
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REER) (L ®|HZ)

5,149,469,113.60

REBHBEEEE  28MFR
16 °

TEREFE A

FhEFME - R2016F 68308
ABAMEEANBEARARE
780,071,957.68 7L (20159 12 A 31
H: AR#714,146,070.407T) @ #%
AERAEEEEE RS (@8R
1o - BERALHAAZITINEES
B TNAIREEENSRERENRE
W

30 June 2016 31 December 2015

201656 H30H 2015412 A31H
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REEZR) (f&FEz)

9,900,003,512.00

BREBRABEEE  2RMEH -
16
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XIV. Other Significant Events (Continued)

1.

Leases (Continued)

As the lessee (Continued)

Material operating lease: Pursuant to the leasing contract signed
with the lessor, the minimum lease payables under non-cancellable

leases are as follows:

RS i 25 BT 5 (%)
201646 4303 (A RHT)

T 3 Ay 2 0 (4

1.

REHEFEREEA

Operating lease, as lessee

Segment reporting

Operating segments

The Group organizes and manages its operating business in
accordance with the nature of business and provision of products
and services. Each operating segment of the Group is one operating
group, providing products and services with risks and rewards

different from those of other operating segments.

The details of operating segments are as follows:

(@) manufacturing and sale of diesel engines and related parts

("Diesel engines”);

(b)  manufacturing and sale of automobiles and major automobile
components other than diesel engines (“Automobiles and

other major automobile components”);

() manufacturing and sale of other automobile components

("Other components”);

(d) provision of import and export services (“Import & export

services"”);

(e)  forklift trucks production and warehousing technology

(“Forklift trucks and warehouses technology services”).

HE(H|)
tERAEA (&)
BAGEHERE - RBEEAARITH

HEAR  TAMEEENKERE
BT

Minimum lease payments

REEENRE
30 June 2016 31 December 2015
201656 H30H 201512 A31H
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(RBER) (g&EZ)

1,911,597,073.38

2,052,515,661.54

7 B E
4 5 R
AEENREXHREXFOHMEE A
&Pﬁ%ﬁﬁ’ﬂ@uuﬂﬁ&ﬁ D FARAE
c REBMEEZLETEE —HZE
ﬁ&%l RHUEERTRANEMEZED
BB L B2 3 BUAS N RIS B A AR 0 &P
B 3R M ) 2 M AR A o

AT RE D B 4E S HBLE

(a) HERBESE B LAEEZTE
(M &mmel)

by EEABEERBEREBAREE
(T aREm) ([HER
Hih FZETEF])

(00 H£ERHEEHMAIETIHMH
([EZEH])

(d) REELBARB(TEL DR
%)

() XHBAEE KAEERM(TRER
BERMRE]) o



Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2016 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

XIV. Other Significant Events (Continued)

2.

Segment reporting (Continued)

Operating segments (Continued)

Management monitors the results of operating segments separately
for the purpose of making decisions about resources allocation and
performance assessment. Segment performance is evaluated based
on reportable segment profit, which is a measure of adjusted total
profits. The adjusted total profits are measured consistently with the
Group's total profits, except that interest income, finance expenses,
investment income, dividend income, gains from changes in fair
value of financial instruments as well as head office expenses are

excluded from such measurement.

Segment assets exclude equity investments at fair value through
profit or loss for the current period, derivative instruments,
dividends receivable, interests receivable, available-for-sale financial
assets, long-term equity investments, goodwill, deferred tax
assets and other unallocated head office assets as these assets are

managed on a group basis.

Segment liabilities exclude derivative instruments, borrowings,
income tax payable, deferred tax liabilities and other unallocated
head office liabilities as these liabilities are managed on a group

basis.

Inter-segment transfers are transacted with reference to the prices

used in the transactions carried out with third parties.

Interim Report 2016 AR HEAZRE

5 i R M 5 (48
20166 H30H (A R#T)

T Ay T 2

2.

“%ﬁiua

KED K
EREHNEELRATELEDR
WAW  HELBETHEERRS
PIRTTEIR - HHMER - UBEHH
AW ARUETIE - ZIERY

FMBREETREENEE BT
ERBWA - MIERA - RE WS -
BAWA - @BMIADNABEEDK
HARBEERZIN - RITRAE

EIPIE SRR P == = DI

DHEETBEAAABEFAEAEHR
B AEHBEEORRERE
TAET A - RN - EUHIE - |
Hjﬁﬁmﬂﬁﬁ RERERE &

BAE PSR E E M E AL AR D AL #)
mHEE  RAERGELEETAR
EHg—Em o

m

=3
47

%HF KE‘ ]]\}EE ﬁ

DHABIBETELA R &
RFFSH - BEMBHABEALEAM
ADEWANEE REERNELR

BIERAEESR—FRE -

DERANEBEE  2RAE=T7E
IR SRR RERHIE
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) FPHS i R M 5 (48
30 June 2016 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 2016F6H30H (A E¥T)
XIV. Other Significant Events (Continued) 0 At B SE RO (4)
2. Segment reporting (Continued) 2. DEEHRE(E)
Operating segments (Continued) i E ()
Automobiles Forklift trucks
and other major and warehouses
automobile Other  Import & export technology
(Unaudited) Diesel engines components components services services
RER EEER
(ABEH) K TEEH Hp S EHNEE REHTRE
January to June 2016 20165168
Seqment revenue: APA -
Sale to external customers NERPHE 8092,893,088.80  14457,309,394.17  1,008,422,281.14 56,329,694.08  18,671,556,750.93  42,286,511,209.18
Inter-segment sale HPREE 2,657,096,485.71 5213.68 554,480,616.37 16,109,740.08 - 3207,692,055.84
Total At 10,749,989,574.57  14,457,314,607.85  1,562,902,897.51 7243943416 18,671,556,750.93  45,514,203,265.02
Adjustment: i
Elimination of inter-segment sale P HmEEE (3,227,692,055.84)
Revenue WA 42,286,511,209.18
Seqment results PRI 1183,286,20639  (103392,331.31) 23,169,220.52 (37.1323%.609)  887,881,445.33  1,953,812,144.24
Adjustment: g%
Elimination of inter-segment results REpAmEE (87,020,269.01)
Interest income HemA 404,578,928.28
Dividend income and unallocated income - (R E A RAS B 342,914,686.9
Corporate and other unallocated expenses ~ AEREpAPER X (41,821,985.85)
Finance expenses BIEAA (493,832,707.77)

Profit before tax RartE 2,078,630,7%.18
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30 June 2016 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 2016F6H30H (A E¥T)
XIV. Other Significant Events (Continued) 9 At B SR (4)
2. Segment reporting (Continued) 2. DEHE(E)
Operating segments (Continued) RS ER(45)
Automobiles Forklift trucks
and other major and warehouses
automobile Other  Import & export technology
Diesel engines components components services services
RER XELER
£ TEEH Hp S EHnEE REHMRE
30 June 2016 2016564308
Segment assets HHEE 2418467852196 2340572868290  12,278,184,753.12  5,607,891,690.50  39,779,477,011.46  105,255,960,659.94
Adustment: HE
Eimination of inter-segment assets RN PHEE (9,550424,468.73)
Corporate and other unallocated assets — PEREpFITEE 29,623,295,392.78
Total assets BEE 125,328,831,583.99
Seqment liablities HHER 11,962,211,994.95  17,305,205,432.04  6,772,049,713.99 642,508,279.92  25,921,229,625.00  62,603,205,045.90
Adustment: HE
Elimination of inter-segment iablities BENIHERE (8,056,763,107.96)
Corporate and other unallocated liabiities A% REMADREE 29,327,315,740.95
Total liabilties BafE 83,873,757,678.89
Automobiles Forklift trucks
and other major and warehouses
automobile Other  Import & export technology
Diesel engines components components services services
RER ELER
K TEEH Hp 24 BN REHMRE
January to June 2016 20165161
Other segment information: EfrAHER
Share of proft and loss from: EIETSIATNERER :
Lossi(gain) from associates and jointy BENAL0EEL/
controlled enterpries (k&) (18,25061886)  20,486,099.11 - (50,90580)  (70,794,133.01)  (68,609,558.56)
Loss of impairment of inventories FEHERR 10421343 106,237,43260 112962005 5711489370 174,904,080.58
Lossfreversal) of impairment of accounts — FEURER 3N R E- f e W BE 21h
receivable and other receivables RERL/(BE) 48,464,159.64 80,159,807.71 2,992,360.38 (78,042.07) 42,739433.43 174,277,119.09
Depreciation and amortization TEREH (424)591,780.07)  (501,807,126.33) (95,935,507.75) (12,636219.91)  (1,816,311,466.72)  (2,851,282,100.78)
Gainfloss)from disposal of foed assets ~~ EFZEREFE/ (%) 7,194,963.29 1492,401.69 (205,225.87) (3.22643.73) 5,255,895.38
Gainfrom disposal of intangble assets AL AEREFS = = = = =
Investment n associates and jointly REZNAEREY
controlled enterprises e 544,729,370.86 474716,865.91 - 35,555,554.92 43116361576 1,486,165,407.45

Capital expenditure BARR (281,986,904.02)  (359,940,23283)  (183.202,799.87) (2,039,780.78)  (2,710,908,115.60)  (3,538,077,833.10)
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XIV. Other Significant Events (Continued)

2.

Segment Reporting (Continued)

PR 5 3 M R (4)
201646 4303 (A RHT)

I At 7 2 0 (4
2. DEEE(E)

Operating segments (Continued) KESE(E)
Automobiles Forklift trucks
and other major and warehouses
automobie Other Import & export technology
(Unaudited) Diesel engines components components services Services Total
RER EEER
(R&EH) il TERPH EfpZHe EHORE REHIRE it
January to June 2015 20155168
Seqment revenue: APHA
Sale to external customers NIZFHE 7066459.211.86  11,524123359.10  1,027,929,113.35 54,369,966.77  16,782,378.217.60  36,455,259,868.68
Inter-segment sale AHEEE 1,691,508, 415.01 . 469,415,049.50 16,415,093.88 - 217733855839
Total At 8,757967,62087 1152412335910 1,497,344,162.85 70,785,060.65  16,782,378217.60  38,632,598,427.07
Adjustment: F
Elimination of inter-segment sale BEIDERE (2,177338,558.39)
Revenue WA 36,455,259,868.68
Seqment results rE 816,195,21432 (38,231,462.51) (678926.43) (2581479040)  812,661,82640  1,564,131,861.38
Adjustment: i
Eimination of inter-segment resuls R BEEE 137,804,713.45
Interest income LN 394,565,439.62
Dividend income and unallocated income REWARF AT A 320,378,644.87
Corporate and other unallocated expenses PEREMASEES (96,93,421.27)
Finance expenses BIRAA (577,599,508.05)
Profit before tax bl 1,742,317,730.00
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XIV. Other Significant Events (Continued)

2.

Segment Reporting (Continued)
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2. HBEE ()

Operating segments (Continued) I1REDER(4T)
Automobiles Forklifttrucks
and other major and warehouses
automobile Other Import & export technology
Diesel engines components components services services Total
18R NEEER
il TERPH EfpZHe julaliii REHRIRE At
31 December 2015 20158128318
Segment assets AHEE 2014403423181 2167636448736 11,614,982,63041  6591253,116.32 3646431447054 96,490,948 936.44
Adjustment: Fi
Elimination of inter-segment receivables EHDHEENE (10,021,867,106.57)
Corporate and other unallocated assets PEREMKXIRAE 28,404,305,977.08
Total assets BEE 114,873,387806.95
Seqment liabliies AH&E 950390561043 15581,716,79459  7,657,624,815.18 67464944964 2268578095840  56,103,677,628.24
Adjustment: i
Eimination of nter-segment payables e SARNRE (8,864,846,861.18)
Corporate and other unallocated liabilties PERERANEER 25,908,073.453.32
Total liabilties Bak 73,146,904,220.38
Automobiles Forklft trucks
and other major and warehouses
automobile Other ~ Import & export technology
Diesel engines components components services services Total
i8R NEEER
Sibn TERPE EfZHe EHORE REHIRE it
January to June 2015 2015%1-64
Other segment information: EfpAHEH
Share of profit and loss from: EETSIRANERER :
Lossi(gain) from associates and jointy BENREREEL/
controlled enterprises (%) (15,070318.27) 11,128,114.25 = (277,656.57) (62,584,846.56) (66,804,707.15)
Loss of impairment ofinvertories EERER% 01894231 2916318512 547,527.14 - ISE353960 655436417
Lossreversal of impaiment of accounts ERESREHERES
receivable and other receivables BEERS /(&) 173279%.24 76,661,80037 1671,887.58 (46471.79) 2480697460 120,422,147.00
Depreciation and amortization MEREH (382,753,52431)  (462,678,948.63) (89,766,923.80) (12,345129.98)  (1,634,390,266.60)  (2,581,934,793.38)
Gainfloss) from disposal of fixed assets EEEERENE/(BX) 4,360,395.65 1,836,363.61 (76,248.55) 16778 3,948.92180 10,070,100.29
Gain from disposal of intangible assets EVBERETS = 1,252,463.67 = = = 1,252,463.67
Investment in associates and jointy NEENARLEN
controlled enterprises RE 581,648,245.67 508,820,378.51 - 33,203,155.73 36802245067 1491,694,23058
Capital expenditure BRRY (329893,839.20)  (595,052,698.70)  (127,783,869.82) (4,823,007.93)  (2,096,580,006.40)  (3,114,133,602.05)
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XIV. Other Significant Events (Continued)
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T ﬁﬂﬁi%%ﬁ(%ﬁ)

2. Segment Reporting (Continued)

Group information

Information about products and services

Revenues from external transactions

Complete vehicles and key components &5 & @42 T &

Non-automobile engines R EREER

Other automobile components HEmZTEH

Forklift trucks and warehouses X B4 EREERI
technology services AR 7%

Others Hpth

Geographic information

Revenues from external transactions

China B K

Other countries and regions E ) B R R0 b [

Revenues from external transactions are attributable to the areas

where customers are located.

D EEwE (&)
SBE{ER
EmMEH =5
HHNZ B WA

January-June 2016

20165 1-6 A
(Unaudited)
(RE&HFER)

January-June 2015
2015%1-6 4
(Unaudited)
(REgEER)

19,868,731,956.77
2,384,556,577.98
113,077,738.66

18,155,321,109.68
1,764,823,826.09

16,296,279,893.77
1,955,345,833.05
141,541,273.44

16,782,378,217.60
1,279,714,650.82

42,286,511,209.18

36,455,259,868.68

IS B
HINZ HWA

January-June 2016
2016%F1-6 A
(Unaudited)

(RBER)

January-June 2015
2015%1-6 A
(Unaudited)
(REER)

22,124,375,440.19
20,162,135,768.99

18,432,760,865.91
18,022,499,002.77

42,286,511,209.18

36,455,259,868.68

I HUW

BENEFPMERSE -
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2.

Segment Reporting (Continued)
Group information (Continued)
Geographic information (Continued)

Total non-current assets

Interim Report 2016 FHAskE 229

RS i 25 BT 5 (%)
201696 A30H (A E#¥T)

9~ Al H 2 0 (4
2. DEEmE (&)
SEEE(E)
(58 (&)
ERBEELTE

30 June 2016 31 December 2015
20166 H30H 2015412 A31H
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REER) (g&ER)

China B K BE
Other countries and regions H B R [E

18,519,003,932.98 18,602,442,914.02
32,400,735,950.80 31,347,383,005.54

50,919,739,883.78 49,949,825,919.56

Non-current assets are attributable to the areas where the assets

are located, excluding financial assets and deferred tax assets.

Information about major customers

Revenue of RMB1,412,115,993.95 (January to June 2015:
RMB1,224,041,441.90) was derived from sales by Diesel engines
segment and Automobiles and other major automobile components
segment to a single customer, including sales to a group of entities

which is known to be under common control by that customer.

FRBEERBRNZEEMRERS -
TEEEREEMELERSEHEE -

FEEFPEEE
EEWAARY,412,115,993.95
ot (2015 F 16 A @ AR ¥
1,224,041,441.907T ) 2R B FA S 1
DEMABEREMEZTEEHHS
HBHE-—BEAFF(AEEMARZE
PESHTHRMAEE)BRA -
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XV.Notes to Key Items of the Company Financial
Statements

1.

Cash and cash equivalents

RS i 25 BT 5 (%)
201646 4303 (A RHT)

T2 ] B B R T H R R

1. E¥ES

30 June 2016 31 December 2015
20166 H30H 201512 A31H
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REER) (R&ER)

Cash at bank EFRE
Bank deposits RITIF R
Other cash equivalents HthE¥ES

106,685.90 231,540.67
11,217,801,035.64 12,429,138,306.98
16,103,751.72 18,316,956.61

11,234,011,473.26 12,447,686,804.26

As at 30 June 2016, the other cash and cash equivalents of the
Company included an amount of RMB16,103,751.72 (31 December
2015: RMB18,316,956.61), which is used in letter of guarantee and
security monies for special accounts such as bank acceptance bills

and letter of credit.

Notes receivable

7201666 A30H  ARAIEME
&P BEARY16,103,751.72
7L (2015F 12 A31H : AR¥
18,316,956.61 70 ) FA AR B A K2 9%
BIRTARLEE ERAESIEFPMEH
FORES °

2. EWEE

30 June 2016 31 December 2015
20166 H30H 201512 HA31H
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REER) (gE=)

Bank acceptance bills RITAGESR

10,336,701,433.39 6,890,636,874.68

Among which, notes receivable that were pledged are as follows:

Hep DERWEREENT :

30 June 2016 31 December 2015
20166 H30H 201512 A31H
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REER) (R&ER)

Bank acceptance bills HITERAEE

2,732,862,114.36 2,736,942,805.34
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XV.Notes to Key Items of the Company Financial % /A &) 3= 2 B % it 2 6 H i1 B
Statements (Continued) (74)
2. Notes receivable (Continued) 2. FEWEE(E)

Notes receivable that were endorsed but no yet expired as at the

balance sheet date are as follows:

Bank acceptance bills BITAGES

As at 30 June 2016 and 31 December 2015, the Group had not
transferred any notes into accounts receivable due to issuers’ failure

in performance.

Accounts receivable

The Group's trading terms with its customers are mainly on credit
except for new customers, where payment in advance or cash
on delivery is normally required. The credit period of accounts
receivable is generally one to six months, extending up to six
months for major customers. Accounts receivable is non-interest

bearing.

An aging analysis of accounts receivable based on the invoice date is

presented as follows:

Within 1 year 1F AR
1 year — 2 years 16224
2 years — 3 years 2 F3F
Over 3 years 3FLAE

Less: Provision for bad debt for

accounts receivable

EEEEHEEARBKRA MM
FEMEEIT -

30 June 2016

31 December 2015

2016%E6H30H 201512 A31H
Derecognition Derecognition
KRR BAEHER
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REER) (gE=)

271,821,120.03 357,069,766.60

R2016%6 A30H 2015412 A31
B ARAEREGLREAEDEOM S

JE W AR K
AAREEFMHE B EHOAEAR
PhE B—REFHEFENRRK
REREEHS RET  EREE
RI1-6EA  *BEFTULERES
fBA - EUERL TS «

BEFERE  BURERRER ST
S 8

30 June 2016 31 December 2015

201656 A30H 2015412 831H
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REER) (f&EZ)

1,517,964,484.52
28,371,722.19
2,352,539.15
3,683,150.03

656,639,242.60
15,510,762.24
164,500.00
3,518,650.03

1,552,371,895.89

675,833,154.87

80,013,009.59 35,230,830.42

1,472,358,886.30 640,602,324.45




232  Weichai Power Co., Ltd. %8 HIRHERAT

Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) FPHS i R M 5 (48
30 June 2016 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 2016F6H30H (A E¥T)

XV.Notes to Key Items of the Company Financial +% /2 &) 3= % B % #2086 H 51 &

Statements (Continued) (%)
3. Accounts receivable(Continued) 3. BWERM(E)
Changes in provision for bad debt for accounts receivable are JEUBR FIZBREFBMEFHIT ¢

presented as follows:

30 June 2016 31 December 2015
20166 HA30H 2015412 A831H

(Unaudited) (Audited)

(REER) &)

Opening balance B, FEXHE 35,230,830.42 52,183,546.35

Provision for the period/ year AREFEHiR 44,782,179.17 -
Decrease during the period/ year: NEFR A

Reversal g (16,952,715.93)

Closing balance B ERE 80,013,009.59 35,230,830.42

30 June 2016
20166 H30H

Provision  Percentage

(Unaudited) Amount  Proportion for bad debt of provision
(REgEZ) S8 L i RERER =T 12 b 4l
(%) (%)

Individually significant items EEIE & 88 X

for which provision for I B8 1B ET 4
bad debt is recognized AR
separately

Items for which provision 7= AR R
for bad debt is recognized 484 EHIREER
by groups with distinctive {5
credit risk characteristic 1,552,371,895.89 80,013,009.59

Not individually significant ~ E5JE & %8 8 1~
items for which provision FEAEEIE
for bad debt is recognized ~ FHiRERR M

separately

1,552,371,895.89 80,013,009.59
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Statements (Continued)
3. Accounts receivable(Continued)

Interim Report 2016 FisRsE 233

PO 5 i 3 M R (4)
201664308 (A E¥T)

T2 R T B R IEH H RE R

(%)

3. BURERMR(E)

31 December 2015
2015912 A31H

Provision Percentage
(Audited) Amount Proportion for bad debt  of provision
(E%) &5 151 AR FTHRLL A
(%) (%)
Individually significant items BHEEBEK
for which provision for bad I IR
debt is recognized separately 1B/ - - > -
ltems for which provision 1212 A R
for bad debt is recognized HEFTIRER
by groups with distinctive A
credit risk characteristics 675,833,154.87 100.00 35,230,830.42 5.21
Not individually significant BIESEHEHET
items for which provision EREEIR
for bad debt is recognized FHIREER A
separately - - - i~
675,833,154.87 100.00 35,230,830.42

As at 30 June 2016, there was no individually significant account

MN20165E6 300 » EBIHSEESE A

receivable for which provision for bad debt was recognized

separately (31 December 2015: Nil).

Account receivables of which provision for bad debts is made

according to aging analysis by the Company are as follows:

(Unaudited)
(REgE#EZ)
Within 1 year 1F AR
1-2 years 1825
2-3 years 2E3F
Over 3 years 3FEME

Amount

=8

1,517,964,484.52

28,371,722.19
2,352,539.15
3,683,150.03

1,552,371,895.89

I BIRFHRZ R EEN R ERTIBE R

(2015%12A318 : &) -

ARBRAKRE DRI RER

B RMRFIERAT

30 June 2016
20166 A30H

Provision
for bad debt
HIREE

Proportion
e 41
(%)

97.78
1.83
0.15
0.24

72,276,008.37
3,430,339.44
705,761.75
3,600,900.03

100.00 80,013,009.59

Percentage
of provision

&t 42 b

(%)

4.76
12.09
30.00
97.77
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201646 4303 (A RHT)

XV.Notes to Key Items of the Company Financial
Statements (Continued)

3. Accounts receivable(Continued)

1 ~ﬁﬂ§i£ﬁﬁ%%ﬁi€lﬁ H kR
i<}

FEW AR X (4R)

31 December 2015
2015%12831H

Provision Percentage

(Audited) Amount Proportion for bad debt  of provision
(8EZ) Gk Lt 1 AR TR0

(%) (%)
Within 1 year 1A 656,639,242.60 97.16 29,685,681.94 4.52
1-2 years 18224 15,510,762.24 2.30 1,977,148.45 12.75
2-3 years 2E3F 164,500.00 0.02 49,350.00 30.00
Over 5 years S5F M E 3,518,650.03 0.52 3,518,650.03 100.00

675,833,154.87

100.00 35,230,830.42

As at 30 June 2016, the top five balances in respect of accounts
receivable had a total closing balance of RMB791,429,921.16 (31
December 2015: RMB288,777,183.40), accounting for 50.98%
(31 December 2015: 42.73%) of the total of closing balance of
accounts receivable. The closing balance in respect of bad debt
provided for the top five amounted to RMB39,765,815.45 (31
December 2015: RMB14,438,859.17).

As at 30 June 2016, no accounts receivable (31 December 2015:

Nil) was pledged for securing bank borrowings of the Company.

H2016F 6 A308 @ BRI R A
WEWBE TR RBREST AAR
¥ 791,429,921.16 7t ( 2015 F 12
A31H : ARW#288,777,183.40
L) HERERERBREASGH
# Lt 5 50.98% (20154 12 A 31
H :42.73% ) - #Z Al O & HEEG
ROZEREEHRABEA/AARYK
39,765,815.45 7L (20154 12 A 31
H: AK#14,438,859.177T) °

M2016F6 300 © AR REEW
BEF (201512 A31H : B)EWHA
REGIRITEROER °
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2016 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

XV.Notes to Key Items of the Company Financial
Statements (Continued)
4. Other receivables

An aging analysis of other receivables is presented as follows:

30 June 2016

31 December 2015

201656 A30H 2015412 A831H

(Unaudited) (Audited)

(REEER) (EEZ)

Within 1 year 15 AR 1,483,476,216.07 1,870,123,520.79
1-2 years 15224 129,155.22 -
2-3 years 2%E3%F = =
3 years 3FAE 37,161,794.71 39,191,603.76

Less: Provision for bad debts
for other receivables

1,520,767,166.00
B L A MR RR R AR R
34,697,704.55

Closing balance

1,909,315,124.55

37,186,694.85

H,F R 1,486,069,461.45

1,872,128,429.70

Hip U TIERERNEHIOT ¢

Changes in provision for bad debts in respect of other receivables

are as follows:

30 June 2016

31 December 2015

201656 H30H 20154128318
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REER) (g&ER)
Opening balance = F 37,186,694.85 32,250,189.05
Provision for the period/year ANERFEHR - 4,936,505.80
Decrease during the period/year: NE R
Reversal &2 0| (2,488,990.30) =
Closing balance HFERE 34,697,704.55 37,186,694.85
30 June 2016 31 December 2015
201656 A30R 2015812318
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REER) (8&1%)
Provision for  Percentage Provision for  Percentage
Amount  Proportion bad debt  of Provision Amount  Proportion bad debt  of Provision
&8 1] BRER  HRUA - a7 EHREE  HRULA
(%) (%) (%) (%)
Individualy significant items for BRESEEATER
which provision for bad debt is SHERRER
recognized separately = = = =
Items for which provision forbad ~ RERRBEEAAS
debtis recognized by groups with A RZRERE
distinctive credit risk characteristic 1,520,767,166.00 34,697,704.55 1,909,315,124.55 10000 37,186,694.85 1.95
Not individually significant items for  BELBEAREA
which provision for bad debt is BEFTRER
recognized separately Ef = = = = - =
1,520,767,166.00 34,697,704.55 1,909,315,124.55 100.00 37,186,694.85
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XV.Notes to Key Items of the Company Financial +% /2 &) 3= % B % #2086 H 51 &

Statements (Continued) (%)
4. Other receivables (Continued) 4, HnERRK(E)
Other receivables of which provision for bad debts is made KRR BB KRB DT AR IBAREE
according to aging analysis by the Company are as follows: R E b ERERIE R ¢
30 June 2016 31 December 2015
201656 A30H 20158124318
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REER) (#8517)
Provision for  Percentage Provision for  Percentage
Amount  Proportion bad debt  of Provision Amount  Proportion bad debt  of Provision
| 4] BRER  HRUEA ot it BRER  TRRD
(%) (%) (%) (%)
Within 1 year TENR 1,483,476,216.07 97.55 1,035,126.12 (7S 1,870,123,520.79 97.95 1,513,680.65 0.08
1-2 years 182% 129,155.22 0.01 19,373.28 15.00 - 0.00 - -
2-3 years 1E3F - 0.00 - - - 0.00 - -
3-4 years 3E4E 3,186,268.53 0.21 1,593,134.27 50.00 3,186,268.53 0.17 1,593,134.27 50.00

45 years 4E5F 9,627,276.48 0.63 7,701,821.18 80.00 9,627,276.48 0.50 7,701,821.18 80.00
Over 5 years SELE 24,348,249.70 1.60 24,348,249.70 100.00 26,378,058.75 138 26,378,058.75 100.00

Total A 1,520,767,166.00 100.00  34,697,704.55 1,909,315,124.55 10000 37,186,694.85

Other receivables are categorized by nature are as follows: HMEREIREE S BENT -

30 June 2016 31 December 2015
20166 H30H 2015412 A31H

(Unaudited) (Audited)

(RREEX) (BE=Z)

Temporary loan to subsidiaries FREIEER 1,461,987,284.28 1,845,250,897.70
Corporate lending and payment TEEERNREBH

on behalf 37,115,239.54 38,978,973.59

Employee advance HER& 16,601,201.85 19,082,575.52

Others Hith 5,063,440.33 6,002,677.74

1,520,767,166.00 1,909,315,124.55
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XV.Notes to Key Items of the Company Financial

Weichai Power (Weifang)
Casting Co., Ltd.

ML H () B
BRRAE

Weichai Power
(Chongging) Western
Development Co., Ltd.

B (EE) A
HRBRAA

Hangzhou Hongyuan
Machinery Manufacturing
Co., Ltd.

TN B R A )

Zhuzhou Torch Machinery
Manufacturing Co., Ltd.

VNV EL 5
BREFELH

Xinjiang Machinery
Equipment Import
& Export Co., Ltd.
MERAMREELD

NG|

1,455,621,894.74

12,808,968.39

9,203,387.08

1,743,276.79

6,350,399.53

1,491,727,926.53

(%)

95.72

Temporary
loan to
subsidiaries

FRAEREHN

Corporate
lending and
payment
on behalf

LETERR
KA

Corporate
lending and
payment
on behalf

LETERR
KA

Corporate
lending and
payment
on behalf

TETERR
KA

Corporate

lending and

payment

on behalf
TETERR

(ENE

Within 1 year
15 5R

Over 5 years

S5ENE

Over 5 years
SEME

Over 5 years
SEME

Statements (Continued) (%)
4. Other receivables (Continued) 4, HAnERRK(E)
As at 30 June 2016, the top 5 other receivables are presented as MN20165FE6A30H » HibfEW &5
follows: AABNT :
Percentage of Closing balance of
total other provision for
Closing balance receivables bad debts
{hE At
PEWREREE
(Unaudited) Aty
(REEER) HReAE Ryl E3-1 i

9,292,667.14

9,203,387.08

7,743,276.79

6,350,399.53

32,589,730.54
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XV.Notes to Key Items of the Company Financial

Statements (Continued)

4.

Other receivables (Continued)

As at 31 December 2015, the top 5 other receivables are presented

PR 5 3 M R (4)

201646 4303 (A RHT)

ThoAE A R E E R
(74)

4., HMEWR(E)
M2015F12A318 - HithERZ S

as follows: WA LT :
Percentage of Closing balance of
total other provision for
Closing balance receivables Nature Age bad debts
EEA
FEM TR R
(Audited) BEHH BRERE
(fgz=%) FRHE ot e ik FRHBHE
(%)
Weichai Power (Weifang) 1,845,250,897.70 96.64 Temporary Within 1 year -
Casting Co., Ltd. loan to 1 AR
HESEE) 1 ) B subsidiaries
e NG FRAEEK
Weichai Power 12,808,968.39 0.67 Corporate 3-5 years 9,292,667.14
(Chongging) Western lending 3E5F
Development Co., Ltd. and payment
HEE N (ER) A on behalf
BRERAA PELRERK
R
Zhuzhou Torch Machinery 9,773,085.84 0.51 Corporate Over 5 years 9,773,085.84
Manufacturing Co., Ltd. lending SEMNE
RN N B RS and payment
BREMAH on behalf
PEERERK
R
Hangzhou Hongyuan 9,203,387.08 048 Corporate Over 5 years 9,203,387.08
Machinery lending SEMNE
Manufacturing Co., Ltd. and payment
NBIRER 2 R on behalf
PEERERK
R
Xinjiang Machinery 6,350,399.53 033 Corporate Over 5 years 6,350,399.53
Equipment Import lending SEMNE
& Export Co., Ltd. and payment
FERMRAEEL O AR on behalf
PEERRK
R
1,883,386,738.54 98.63 34,619,539.59
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XV.Notes to Key Items of the Company Financial + /2 & 32 2 B % #t % T8 H 51 B
Statements (Continued) (%)
5. Inventories 5. #8
30 June 2016 31 December 2015
2016%6H30H 201545127318
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REER) (BE%)
Gross carrying Provision for Carrying Gross carrying Provision for Carrying
amount  decline in value amount amount decline in value amount
RERE BREEE REEE REAE BEEE FREE
Raw materials Rt 348,675,203.90 (2,918,947.50)  345,756,256.40 387,111,200.57 (2918,947.50)  384,192,253.07
Finished goods ERm 1,000,831,809.73 (92,591.00)  1,000,739,218.73 804,044,9%.26 (36,415.42)  804,008,580.84
Materials in transit EgmE 14,281,486.21 - 14,281,486.21 - - -
Self made semifinished EEESAI
goods and work in progress & fm 96,419,997.73 96,419,997.73 148,026,065.15 - 148,026,065.15
Turnover materials BEH - - - 1,095,864.30 - 1,095,864.30
1,460,208,497.57 (3,011,538.50)  1,457,196,959.07 RICIVRXERVIWES (2,955,362.92)  1,337,322,763.36
The changes in provision for decline in value of inventories are as FEREEHEZESWT :
follows:
January to June 2016 20165 1-6 H

Write-off

Provision for for the
(Unaudited) Opening balance the period period Closing balance
(REEEZ) EERIE - AHEEHR 7S HA B g HARH
Raw materials B 2,918,947.50 - 2,918,947.50
Finished goods E P 36,415.42 56,175.58 92,591.00
Total A&t 2,955,362.92 56,175.58 3,011,538.50
2015 20154

Provision for Write-off for

(Audited) Opening balance the year the year Closing balance
(&EZ) e REEHE REAEE 8 HARE
Raw materials R A1 ¥ 2,236,097.98 682,849.52 - 2,918,947.50
Finished goods EK = 36,415.42 = 36,415.42
Total At 2,236,097.98 719,264.94 - 2,955,362.92
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XV.Notes to Key Items of the Company Financial

6.

I 7 2% BT (48
201646 4303 (A RHT)

T2 R 3 B AR IH H R R

Statements (Continued) (%)
Investment in associates 6. HHMELERE
Place of
registration/ Registered Percentage of
Key operation capital Nature of business shareholding
s,
TELEM HMER EHBUE St aalll
Shanghai Xinlian Chuangye Shanghai 150,000,000.00 Industrial investment, 33.00%
Investment Co., Ltd. finbic? investment
FEEBAIEREBRAR management
BEERE REER
Guanya (Shanghai) Investment Shanghai 400,000,000.00 Equity investment, 24.75%
Fund Partnership Enterprise indis] investment
(Limited Partnership) management
BE(LE)REREES and investment
aREE(BEREE) consultation
BIERE  KREER
RREENA
Shandong Heavy Industry Group ~ Shandong 1,000,000,000.00 Business approved 20.00%
Finance Co., Ltd. 1R by China Banking
WRETEBEMBERAR Regulatory Commission
REPRRITEEE
ERLZEGHENER
Dalian Hongyuan Machinery Liaoning USD22,818,208.00 Hardware tools and 17.31%
Manufacturing Co., Ltd. EE ¥7122,818,208.00 automobile parts and
REBREHBEBRA A accessories
heTAMAETRMN
Shanzhong Finance Leasing Beijing 920,000,000.00 Finance leasing 19.565%
Co., Ltd. R MEHEED
LWERMEHEGRAF
Xinjiang Equipment Imports and  Xinjiang 20,000,000.00 Import and export 100.00%
Exports Co., Ltd. i business
MEREELODARADA HHAER
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PO 5 i 3 M R (4)
201664308 (A E¥T)

T ﬁ;)az%ﬁﬁ%%ﬁiéiﬁ H iR

Non-listed investment under cost method

Non-listed investment under equity

method

7. RERERE
30 June 2016 31 December 2015
20166 830H 2015412 A31H
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REEZ) (&|/%)
JELEMIRE K AE 9,917,022,627.68 9,504,273,827.68
JE LTI B A

544,729,370.87 516,578,752.01

Less: Provision for impairment of

long-term equity investment

o REREREREER

10,461,751,998.55 10,020,852,579.69

10,461,751,998.55 10,020,852,579.69

As at 30 June 2016, the breakdown of long-term equity investments

under cost method was as follows:

(Unaudited)
(REER)

Weichai Power (Hong Kong)
International Development
Co., Ltd.

Shaanxi Heavy-duty Motor
Co., Ltd

Weichai (Chongging)
Automotive Co., Ltd.

Shaanxi Fast Gear Co., Ltd.

Zhuzhou Gear Co., Ltd.

Weichai Power (Weifang)
Casting Co., Ltd.

Weichai Power (Shanghai)
Technology Development
Co., Ltd.

Weichai Power (Beijing)
International Resource
Investment Co., Ltd.

Weichai America Crop.

Zhuzhou Torch Sparkplugs
Co., Ltd.

Weichai Power (Chongging)
Western Development
Co., Ltd.

RSN (B ARER
ARAA

REEASERAT
HR(ER)NEERAA

REZLHESRERAT

FNEBERELAT

BB ()R
N

BEN(LEHREER
ARAAE

BN RBERER
Nl

Weichai America Crop.

KRR ERER
BEAH

HEBN(ER)EPER
ARAT

Opening balance

B E

2,087,069,782.12

1,992,116,000.85
1,027,410,000.00
1,082,558,680.59
532,334,743.1
460,150,000.00

340,000,000.00

300,000,000.00

262,811,997.28
245,574,858.40

240,000,000.00

MH2016FE6 308 » AE K B #E
ERMANT -

Additional
[N EN
during the period

Inl: Closing
provision for
impairment
LGB T3
rHENRE HAREEE EERERA BEERE

= 2,087,069,782.12 = -

Declared
cash dividend

Closing
carrying amount

1,992,116,000.85

400,000,000.00 1,427,410,000.00
1,082,558,680.59
532,334,743.21
460,150,000.00

340,000,000.00

300,000,000.00

262,811,997.28

245,574,858.40

240,000,000.00
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Statements (Continued) (74)
7. Long-term equity investments (Continued) 7. REBRERE(E)
As at 30 June 2016, the breakdown of long-term equity investments 201646 300 « BAEE B

under cost method was as follows: (Continued)

RERMMT : (&)

Additional Incl: Closing
investments Closing Declared provision for
Opening balance during the period carrying amount cash dividend impairment
(Unaudited) H: 8K
(REER) BIRR RHEMRE HAREEE EERERA REERE
Weichai Power (Qingzhou) &8 7(EM) BRI 150,000,000.00 - 150,000,000.00 - -
Drive Control Technology BRAT
Co., Ltd.
Zhuzhou Torch Machinery — #MEAEEHRERR 130,898,993.14 130,898,993.14
Manufacturing EffLE
Co., Ltd.
Weichai Power (Weifang) BE8 () BRE 122,000,000.00 122,000,000.00
Reconstruction Co., Ltd. BRAT
Weichai Power (Weifang) Spare &)/ (15 BR &R 101,410,238.34 101,410,238.34
Part Resources Co., Ltd. BRAR
Weichai Power Freshen Air - #&81 ) ERFLHH 100,000,000.00 100,000,000.00
Technology Co., Ltd. ARAT
Weichai Power (Weifang) H5H 1 (5 % BRI 76,000,000.00 76,000,000.00
Equipment Service REERAR
Co., Ltd.
Shandong Synergy Oil Co., Ltd. WRENERGBRAH 50,715,383.36 50,715,383.36
Weichai Power Hydraulic HEHNRENRER 50,000,000.00 50,000,000.00
Technology Co., Ltd. A
9 subsidiaries which arenot ~ EBTEAMIKFAR 153,223,150.39 12,748,800.00 165,971,950.39 3,324,794.33

individually significant

9,504,273,827.68 412,748,800.00 9,917,022,627.68 3,324,794.33

As at at 30 June 2016, breakdown of long-term equity investments K2016F6 30 « = ERIARE
under equity method was as follows: HERMBNT :

Adjustment in

Additional profit and loss Incl: Closing
investments under equity Closing provision for
Opening balance  during the period method carrying amount impairment
(Unaudited) ERET B MR
(REER) HO8E AHENRE BREAR HAREEE BEER
Shandong Heavy Industry ~ IWRETSEH KA 237,468,864.87 14,740,787.04 252,209,651.91
Group Finance Co., Ltd. B
Shanzhong Finance Leasing  IEMEREFRAF 195,598,201.11 4,176,139.93 199,774,341.04
Co., Ltd.
4 associates which are not  BETERMARBECE FERCERIRLEIE 9,900,000.00 (666,308.11) 92,745,377.92

individually significant

516,578,752.01 9,900,000.00 18,250,618.86 544,729,370.87
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Statements (Continued) (%)
7. Long-term equity investments (Continued) 7. REBRERE(E)
As at 31 December 2015, the breakdown of long-term equity M2015%F 12 831H » A EAREIAL
investments under cost method was as follows: ERERANT
Changes during the year
K58
Closing
Opening Other Additional Declared Closing ~ provision for
(Audited) balance increases  Other decreases investment ~ cashdividend ~ carrying amount impaiment
(E510) 48 Efpsgin Efpis BNgE  EERERN  EREEBE ERNEER
Weichai Power (Hong Kong) EEn(ER)AREE 2,087,069,782.12 - - - - 2,087,069,782.12 =
International Development Co,, Ltd. ~ ERAA
Shaami Heaw-duty Motor Co, ltd. ~ BEEXAEERAT 1992,116,000.85 - - - 1020000000 1,992,116,00085 S
Shaanii Fast Gear Co, Lid. REZTREGERLT 1,082,558,680.59 - - - 19653598032 1,082,558680.59 -
Weichai (Chongging) Automotie ~ %5( 2% ) EARAT 1,027,410,000.00 - - - - 1,027410,000.00 =
(o, ltd.
Thuzhou Gear Co,, Lid. HNESEREAAT 532,334,743.1 - - - - 53337321 =
Weichai Power (Weffang) Casting ~~ #4E0 (55 BABRAT  460,150,000.00 - - - - 460,150,000.00 =
(o, ltd.
Weichai Power (Shanghai) Technology ~ ¥4¢80 77 15 ) R %E 340,000,000.00 - - - - 340,000,000.00 -
Development Co,, Ltd. BRAE
Weichai Power (Bejng) International %4871 (R EEEE 300,000,000.00 - - - - 300,000,000.00 =
Resource Investment Co,, Lid. REQH
Weichal America Crop. Weichai America Crop. 262,811,997.28 - - - - 262811997.28 =
Zhuzhou Torch Sparkplugs Co, Lid. —— HEINBABEESR 245,574,858.40 - - - 2A8686516 24557485840 =
EffRA
Weichai Power (Chongaing) Weste 4871 (E% | R %E 240,000,000.00 - - - - 240,000,00000 =
Development Co, Ltd. ERAT
Weichai Power (Qingzhou) Drive Control #4807 (E44) &kt 150,000,000.00 - - - - 150,000,000.00 =
Technology Co,, Ltd. ARAA
Zhuzhou Torch Machinery A ERRZERR 130,898,993.14 - - - - 13089899314 =
Manufacturing B
(o, Ltd.
Weichai Power (Wefang) E25 ) (85 BRE 122,000,000.00 - = - ATITA% 122,000,000 -
Reconstruction Co, Ltd. ERAA
Weichai Power (Wefang) Spare Part ~ J5¢80 77 (35 ) G R B 10141023834 - - - 700665495 10141023834 -
Resources Co, Lid. ERAAE
Weichai Power Freshen Al ERENERELMER 100,000,000.00 - - - 9765931399 100,000,000.00 -
Technology Co, L. BRAT
Weichai Power (Weffang) Equipment 34807 (35 216 76,000,000.00 = = = - 7600000000 -
Semice Co, L1d. FHERAR
Shandong Synergy Oil Co, Lid. WEEERRERAR 9426918.00 = - 4128846536 - 5071538336 -
Weichai Power Hydraulic Technology #4301 RER BB AT 50,000,000.00 - = = - 50,000,000.00 =
(o, ltd.
11 subsiciares which are not EEREAMIIRTAR 17946764414 1211868710 (38363,18089) - 1208828477 15322315039 .

individually significant

94892298%.07  12,118687.10  (33363,18085)  41,288465.36  435,562,168.00  9,504,273,827.68 =

243
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Statements (Continued) (%)
7. Long-term equity investments (Continued) 7. RERERE(E)
As at 31 December 2015, the breakdown of long-term equity M2015F 128318 @ #FEREK
investments under equity method was as follows: W EBRANT -
Changes during the year
KERY
Investment gains Closing
Opening Other  and losses under Declared Closing provision for
balance decreases  the equity method cash dividend  carrying amount impairment
(Audited) BRET
(F5H) ENRE Etd RERE  FEREMN  SAREEE  FREEER
Associates Betk
Shandong Heawy Industry Group ~~ WWEET£EEHERAT 22800996354 - TIBAMTE (1327950345 23746886487 -
Finance Co,, Ltd.
Shanzhong Finance Leasing WEBEHRERRAT 195,590,022.32 - 806787879 (8,059,700.00)  195,598,201.11 -
Co, Ltd.
4 associates which are notindiidually BEFRERHIFEE RS 14261285233 (12,118687.10)  (46982,479.20) - 83511,68.03 -
significant
566,232,838.19 (12,118,687.10)  (16,196,195.63)  (21,339,20345)  516,578,752.01 -
8. Investment property 8. REMEHME

Subsequent measurement under the cost model:

January to June 2016

(Unaudited)
(REEER)
Gross carrying amount RE
Opening balance Hi¥erEE
Transfer from construction FEIREA
in progress
Other transfer-out Hingg
Closing balance HIREhEE
Accumulated depreciation REEMEH
and amortization
Opening balance HerE
Provision iR
Other transfer-out Hb s
Closing balance HIR#REE
Carrying amount REEE
Closing HIR
Opening Hi9

RAKAEETRERE -

20169 1-6 A

Houses
and buildings
EEREEY

1,418,955,971.19

(16,518,800.68)

1,402,437,170.51

362,947,235.20
35,503,816.42
(8,453,380.01)

389,997,671.61

1,012,439,498.90

1,056,008,735.99

Land use rights
T AR

100,766,676.00

55,182,310.78

155,948,986.78

13,410,745.44
4,585,113.05

17,995,858.49

137,953,128.29

87,355,930.56

1,519,722,647.19

55,182,310.78
(16,518,800.68)

1,558,386,157.29

376,357,980.64
40,088,929.47
(8,453,380.01)

407,993,530.10

1,150,392,627.19

1,143,364,666.55
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Statements (Continued) (%)

8. Investment property (Continued) 8. BREMEME (&)
Subsequent measurement under the cost model: KARABERETERETZ -
(Continued) (%)

2015 20154
(Audited) Houses and buildings Land use rights Total
(&%) FEREEY T A &t
Gross carrying amount RE
Opening balance EHE 1,199,695,698.48 100,766,676.00  1,300,462,374.48
Transfer from construction FREIEEA
in progress 219,260,272.71 - 219,260,272.71
Disposal and retirement BE R mE - = -
Closing balance FRATE 1,418,955,971.19 100,766,676.00 1,519,722,647.19
Accumulated depreciation and R EREH
amortization
Opening balance FHERE 295,269,424.01 11,395,411.93 306,664,835.94
Provision TR 67,677,811.19 2,015,333.51 69,693,144.70
Disposal or retirement BB kiR - - =
Closing balance FRATE 362,947,235.20 13,410,745.44 376,357,980.64
Carrying amount AREEE
Closing FxR 1,056,008,735.99 87,355,930.56 1,143,364,666.55
Opening =) 904,426,274.47 89,371,264.07 993,797,538.54
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9. Fixed assets 9. BIEEE
January to June 2016 20165 1-6 A

(Unaudited)
(REER)
Gross carrying amount FE
Opening balance HRE
Acquisition BE
Transfer from investment property REMEHEEA
Transfer from construction in progress 2 Ti2& A
Disposal o retirement RELEE
Closing balance BRBE
Accumulated depreciation ZithE
Opening balance HHE
Provision iR
Transfer from investment property REMRREE)
Disposal o retirement RELHE
Closing balance BRBE
Carrying amount REERE
Closing iy S
Opening a1

Houses and
buildings
EEREEN

1,628,358,002.76

16,518,800.68
260,661.00

1,645,137,464.44

408,813,248.82
39,947,749.40
8,453,380.02

457,214,3718.24

1,187,923,086.20

1,219,544,753.94

Machinery and

equipment

BERE

2,397,681,195.55
11,335.62

360,811,371.99
(46,754,593.46)

2,711,749,309.70

1,386,152,224.08
104,493,841.19

(34,479,358.34)

1,456,166,706.93

1,255,582,602.77

1,011,528,971.47

Electronic
equipment
EEEL

628,594,406.07
14,252,215.19

101,892,152.72
(4,264,94042)

740,473,833.56

474,149,804.82
43,281,442.07

(4,136,995.76)

513,294251.13

221,179,582.43

154,444,601.25

Transportation
equipment

L

137,837,447.90
4,456,882.96

6,141,945.88
(604,148.53)

147,832,128.21

111,021,536.83
10,284,704.04

(557,528.30)

120,748, 712.57

27,083,415.64

26,815,911.07

Others
2t

767,231,291.44
1,603,262.28

323,825.68
(14,775,194.05)

754,383,185.35

535,270,801.98
22,570,435.15

(14,159,904.62)

543,681,332.51

210,701,852.84

231,960,489.46

5,559,702,343.72
20,323,69.05
16,518,800.68
469,429,957.21
(66,398,876.46)

5,999,575,921.26.

2,915,407,616.53
220,578,171.85
8,453,380.02
(53,333,787.02)

3,091,105,381.38

2,908,470,539.88

2,644,294,721.19
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Statements (Continued) (%)
9. Fixed assets (Continued) 9. BEIEEE(HE)
2015 20154
Houses and Machinery and Electronic Transportation
(Audited) buildings equipment equipment equipment Others Total
(&E%) REREEN BERE ERE EEEL L4 ait
Gross carrying amount FE
Opening balance ENBE 1,340,546,401.49  2,402,755,097.52 585,580,083.98 131,054,310.23 751,668875.63  5,211,604,768.85
Acquisition BE - 28,350,932.95 18,899,385.76 126,000.00 477177 47,451,096.48
Transfer from construction in progress ERIREA 287,811,601.27 40,711,721.14 32,293543.91 9,458,186.91 56,409,905.01 426,684,958.24
Disposal o retirement REZHE - (74136,556.06) (8,178,607.58) (2801,04924)  (40922,266.97)  (126,038479.85)
Closing balance EXBE 162835800276 2397,681,19555 62859440607  137.837,44790  767,231,29144  5559,702,343.72
Accumulated depreciation ZithE
Opening halance ENBE 33785388350  1,240,545,766.39 404,464,357.62 100,000,024.22 507,987,28460  2,590,851,316.33
Provision iR 7095936532 204,276,706.92 77,320,494.75 14,183,343.30 30,768,139.25  397,508,049.54
Disposal or retirement RELHE - (58,670,249.23) (7,635,047.55) (3,161,830.69) (3,484,621.87) (72,951,749.34)
Closing balance EXBE 40881324382 1,386,152,224.08 474,149 ,804.82 111,021,536.83 535,270,801.98  2,915,407,616.53
Carrying amount REEE
Closing X 1,219,544,753.94  1,011,528971.47 154,444,601.25 26,815,911.07 231,960,489.46  2,644,294,727.19
Opening ) 100269251799 1,162,209331.13  181,115,726.36 31,05428601  243,681591.03  2,620,753,452.5
As at 30 June 2016, fixed assets for which the Company had 72016568308 ARG HKRERS
not obtained real estate certificates had a carrying amount of EiEINETEEREEEAAR
RMB370,400,318.52 (31 December 2015: RMB397,224,427.46). #£370,400,318.52 T (20159 12 A

318 :397,224,427.467T) °
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Statements (Continued) (%)
10. Intangible assets 10. B EE
January to June 2016 20165 1-6 A

(Unaudited)
(REEEZ)
Gross carrying amount & ERE
of asset
Technology know-how BERAM
Trademark rights [ERcdEdst
Land use rights T A
Software EIgGs
Less: Accumulated W BREEe
amortization
Technology know-how EERM
Trademark rights AR A
Land use rights T AR
Software ;i
Net carrying amount RERE
Technology know-how HH M
Trademark rights [EreEdsk-
Land use rights T A
Software i

Opening
balance

CEIE

218,365,759.46
124,448,000.00
260,497,899.05

16,429,455.27

619,741,113.78

Opening
balance

IR

218,180,268.95
15,555,996.00
39,589,505.84
16,200,110.54

289,525,881.33

Opening
balance

IR

185,490.51
108,892,004.00
220,908,393.21

229,344.73

330,215,232.45

Disposal or
Acquisition retirement

BE BERRE

222,054,558.62

222,054,558.62

Disposal or
retirement

BER®RE

29,287.98

14,628,512.05
59,829.06

14,717,629.09

Closing balance

HRE

218,365,759.46
124,448,000.00
482,552,457.67

16,429,455.27

841,795,672.40

Closing balance

ARE

218,209,556.93
15,555,996.00
54,218,017.89
16,259,939.60

304,243,510.42

Closing balance

HRE

156,202.53
108,892,004.00
428,334,439.78

169,515.67

537,552,161.98
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2015 20154
Opening Disposal or
(Audited) balance Acquisition retirement Closing balance
(gE”) FOE BE R B S FRE
Gross carrying amount of ~ EEJRE
asset
Technology know-how BHEF 218,365,759.46 - - 218,365,759.46
Trademark rights IS0 A 124,448,000.00 - - 124,448,000.00
Land use rights T A 260,497,899.05 - - 260,497,899.05
Software gt 16,190,139.03 239,316.24 - 16,429,455.27
619,501,797.54 239,316.24 - 619,741,113.78
Opening Disposal or
balance Charge retirement Closing balance
FME AR R B S FERE
Less: Accumulated o RETEe
amortization
Technology know-how E-¥=E5300 218,121,693.01 58,575.94 - 218,180,268.95
Trademark rights PR 15,555,996.00 - - 15,555,996.00
Land use rights T A 34,232,125.25 5,357,380.59 = 39,589,505.84
Software BN 16,143,609.99 56,500.55 - 16,200,110.54
284,053,424.25 5,472,457.08 - 289,525,881.33
Opening
balance Closing balance
FUH FRH
Net carrying amount REEE
Technology know-how EEREMM 244,066.45 185,490.51
Trademark rights I {55 F 4 108,892,004.00 108,892,004.00
Land use rights T A 226,265,773.80 220,908,393.21
Software s 46,529.04 229,344.73
335,448,373.29 330,215,232.45
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2016 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

XV.Notes to Key Items of the Company Financial +% /2 &) 3= % B % #2086 H 51 &
Statements (Continued) (74)

11. Payroll payable
January to June 2016

1. BB I &M
2016%F1-6 H

Opening Increase during ~ Decrease during
(Unaudited) balance the period the period Closing balance
(REER) BARE R XHHD HRRE

Short-term remuneration
Post-employment benefits (Defined
contribution plan)

Severance benefits

(RERFE)

437,166,732.53

8,118,912.99

378,278,741.66

66,851,333.73

(413,127,794.96)

(67,134,190.45)

402,317,679.23

7,836,056.27

Portion payable within —FRZROBH
one year 26,456,460.69 38,299,232.87 (28,507,696.85) 36,247,996.71
471,742,106.21 483,429,308.26 (508,769,682.26) 446,401,732.21
2015 20154
Opening Increase during Decrease during
(Audited) balance the year the year Closing balance
(FER) FRE REREM RERD FRHE

Short-term remuneration

Post-employment benefits

531,482,274.49

767,617,167.41

(861,932,709.37)

437,166,732.53

(Defined contribution plan) (RERFE) 8,458,501.71 144,912,147.02  (145,251,735.74) 8,118,912.99

Severance benefits
Portion payable within one year —FRAZENHH 2,877,585.46 44,994,953.29 (21,416,078.06) 26,456,460.69
542,818361.66  957,524,267.72  (1,028,600,523.17)  471,742,106.21
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) RS i R M 5 (48
30 June 2016 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 2016F6H30H (A E¥T)
XV.Notes to Key Items of the Company Financial +% /A &) 3= % B % #) % 0H H 51 &
Statements (Continued) (%)
11. Payroll payable (Continued) 1. BB ITEHM(E)
Short-term remuneration is as follows: RO T
January to June 2016 20165 1-6 A

Opening Increase during Decrease during

(Unaudited) balance the period the period Closing balance
(REEEZ) HYIERER ZH 8 RHER D HRERER
Salaries, bonuses, allowances T & - #% -

and subsidies 3 B A4 B 383,180,986.54 282,201,481.30 (303,213,945.34) 362,168,522.50
Staff welfare BITENE 465,455.30 16,666,725.67  (16,825,170.53) 307,010.44
Social security HERBE 2,755,038.77  39,693,688.98  (39,772,332.19)  2,676,395.56
Housing funds TEAES 6,746,296.10 28,625,731.28  (28,823,045.58) 6,548,981.80
Union running costs and ITERENRT

employee education costs BERLE 44,018,955.82  11,091,114.43  (24,493,301.32)  30,616,768.93

437,166,732.53  378,278,741.66 (413,127,794.96) 402,317,679.23
2015 20154
Increase during  Decrease during

(Audited) Opening balance the year the year  Closing balance
(gER) FHHE RER RER L FRHF
Salaries, bonuses, allowances I8 #¢ -

and subsidies AL AR RL 487,657,187.07  562,158,931.01 (666,635,131.54) 383,180,986.54
Staff welfare BIGMNE 662,231.41 29,660,781.31 (29,857,557.42) 465,455.30
Social security HreRkE 2,726,081.38 83,508,780.83  (83,479,823.44) 2,755,038.77
Housing funds EELES 6,406,110.49 64,402,844.49  (64,062,658.88) 6,746,296.10
Union running costs and IgREMET

employee education costs BiRE 34,030,664.14 27,885,829.77  (17,897,538.09)  44,018,955.82

531,482,274.49

767,617,167.41

(861,932,709.37)  437,166,732.53
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XV.Notes to Key Items of the Company Financial +% /2 &) 3= % B % #2086 H 51 &
Statements (Continued) (74)

11. Payroll payable (Continued) 1. BB ITEHM(E)
Post-employment benefit (defined contribution plan) is as follows: BB AEA (RTIRTFETEDOT -

Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2016 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

January to June 2016 20165 1-6 H

Opening Increase during Decrease during

(Unaudited) balance the period the period Closing balance
(REER) i8R AHRIZ N EE D HREAEE
Basic pension insurance EXREEZRR 4,732,358.09 44,668,176.03  (44,668,176.03) 4,732,358.09
Unemployment insurance KERRE - 2,474,286.70 (2,474,286.70) -
Corporate contribution to TrEFEHE
pension fund 3,386,554.90 19,708,871.00  (19,991,727.72) 3,103,698.18
8,118,912.99 66,851,333.73  (67,134,190.45) 7,836,056.27
2015 20154
Increase during  Decrease during
(Audited) Opening balance the year the year  Closing balance
(fE&%) FHEE REI N RERD FARBE
Basic pension insurance EAREERRE 4,872,751.98  97,093,106.03  (97,233,499.92) 4,732,358.09
Unemployment insurance RERRE - 5,460,465.75  (5,460,465.75) -
Corporate contribution to TEERHE
pension fund 3,585,749.73 42,358,575.24  (42,557,770.07) 3,386,554.90
8,458,501.71  144,912,147.02 (145,251,735.74) 8,118,912.99
12. Taxes payable 12. EXBE
30 June 2016 31 December 2015
201656 H30H 2015412 A31H
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REEXR) (BE=Z)
Value-added tax EER 6,037,257.66 5,327,511.95
Corporate income tax TSR 55,395,002.05 4,124,748.42
Individual income tax BAFTER 2,084,549.74 8,232,374.10
Property tax BER 5,787,704.83 8,836,993.87
Stamp duty ENFERT - 5,402,879.94
Land use tax b fE A 6,046,181.00 5,500,041.00
City construction R 423,406.56 397,382.34
Business tax BEER - 337,696.70
Educational surtax B &M 302,433.27 283,844.54
Others HAfb 114.67 3,494.37
76,076,649.78 38,446,967.23
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30 June 2016 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

XV.Notes to Key Items of the Company Financial

Statements (Continued)
13. Other current liabilities
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RS i 25 BT 5 (%)

201696 H30H (A RHT)

AW EEMHEHREEE
(%)

13. Bt iBasE

30 June 2016

31 December 2015

20166 A30H 2015412 A831H
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REER) (&%)

Expected after-sales expenses (Note)

A =8 (GE) 528,729,493.64

Note:

after-sale period.

14. Deferred income

The Group's expected after-sales expenses were recognized according EaE
to the historical after-sale expenses incurred for the units of product
effectively sold and the number of product sold which are still within the

474,669,460.90

HAMCEERBER R -

ARBAEA=ZCEARBRES L EHE
BEBNEMN=EBERNNE=R

14, EE W=
30 June 2016 31 December 2015
20166 H30H 201512 A31H
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REFZ) (L ®|HZ)

Land-related government grant

Industry revitalization and technical
renovation special fund

Position-based allowances for

project teams

S8+ $b 4 B H) IR 48 BY)
EFREMBNERESD

309,401,878.88

19,218,747.38
B ASBEEEEE
29,473,900.00

285,462,657.32

9,257,847.40

29,473,900.00

358,094,526.26

15. Revenue and cost of sales

324,194,404.72

15. EEIW AR KR

January-June 2016 January-June 2015

2016%F1-6 A 2015F1-6 4

(Unaudited) (Unaudited)

(RBER) (RIEERZ)
Revenue Revenue Cost
A 5% WA PR A

Principal operations FEER

Sale of goods and others 78 HE R EAD RWLE R (YR DI A R NN 6,361,563,171.56  4,824,330,082.78
Other revenue Hh %5 382,205,150.28 347,982,729.22 373,635,910.53 355,224,543.90

8,835,969,888.54

(AT YR AT 6,735,199,082.09

5,179,554,626.68
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2016 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

XV.Notes to Key Items of the Company Financial

Statements (Continued)
16. Investment income

17.

HRB D RHBRAF

PR 5 3 M R (4)
201664308 (A E¥T)

(%)
16. REW =

January-June 2016

2016 1-6 8
(Unaudited)
(REER)

Gain on long-term equity investments
under the cost method

Gain on long-term equity investments
under the equity method

Investment income arising from the
disposal of other long-term equity
investments

Investment gain during the period in
which available-for-sale

financial assets were held

FRAEZE B R H R A s

3,324,794.33

AR E N RARERE KR

18,250,618.86

B H AR AE £
RE WS

FAEAHRLESREENRE
WS E W

21,575,413.19

Expenses by nature

The supplemental information of the Group’s cost of sales,

distribution and selling expenses, general and administrative

T2 ) R B R I H kR

January-June 2015
2015%1-6 4
(Unaudited)
(REgEER)

194,911,381.98

15,415,407.47

11,227,751.15

1,720,000.00

223,274,540.60

17. EREMESE

expenses which are categorized by nature is as follows: e

January-June 2016

Materials used

Movement of inventories of finished
goods and work in progress

Technological development costs

Staff remuneration

Depreciation and amortization expenses

Rental
Others

201651-6 8

(Unaudited)

(REER)

FER B B 4,646,947,067.16

EXMREEMEREZE

(145,124,570.47)

KT R 309,722,847.86
5B T 5 485,658,033.43
wEBMEHER 276,737,619.93
itk 13,788,778.05
Eth 2,384,228,168.50

7,971,957,944.46

AAREERAE  HEEM  ERE
REREEEASANETERND

January-June 2015
2015%1-6 A
(Unaudited)
(REER)

3,152,516,962.40

250,258,844.91
369,072,517.26
542,928,092.90
239,044,629.22
12,135,868.54
1,524,678,529.95

6,090,635,445.18
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2016 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

XV.Notes to Key Items of the Company Financial +% /A &) 3= % B % # % 0H H 51 &
Statements (Continued) (%)
18. Income tax expenses 18. FiISHER

January-June 2016

January-June 2015

Current tax expenses

Deferred tax expenses

EHFMGHER
EEFSHER

The relationship between income tax expenses and the total profit is

listed as follows:

Total profit

Tax at statutory tax rate
Effect of preferential tax rate
Adjustments to current tax of
previous periods
Gain and losses attributable
to associates
Income not subject to tax
Expenses not deductible for tax
Tax benefit applicable to qualified
expenses
Effect of unrecognised deductible

temporary differences

DR

BREMERFENREA
FRXEERENTE
HUARBEE BT AR

W
il
%
0
B
i
=
Jmo

)

AR A
AR E A
HERBERENILERZ
M EE
AERNAENEREZERN
=

=

Tax expense at the Company's effective 32 AR & BEEF R+ E /)

tax rate

FriSHiE A

2016 1-6 B
(Unaudited)
(REER)

172,834,914.89
(60,369,716.56)

112,465,198.33

20154 1-6 A
(Unaudited)
(REFEZR)

21,364,376.35
64,936,027.02

86,300,403.37

PrSTL & A B2 7 B AR BB 1O B & 51 R 4D

™

January-June 2016

2016%F1-6 8
(Unaudited)
(REER)

842,644,564.80

210,661,141.20
(84,264,456.48)

(519,258.42)

(2,737,592.83)

(498,719.15)
1,318,124.99

(11,494,040.98)

112,465,198.33

January-June 2015

2015%1-6 A
(Unaudited)
(REEZ)

922,393,302.09

230,598,325.52
(92,239,330.19)

(133,026.45)

(2,260,547.74)

(29,496,957.30)

1,806,304.28

(14,466,367.67)

(7,507,997.08)

86,300,403.37




256  Weichai Power Co., Ltd. %8 HIRHERAT
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30 June 2016 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 2016F6 A30H (AR ¥T)

XV.Notes to Key Items of the Company Financial +% /2 &) 3= % B % #2086 H 51 &
Statements (Continued) (74)

19. Supplement to cash flow statement

Net profit bl

Add: Provision/(reversal) for impairment  fn : 328 /(& [E ) EE

of assets B L
Increase in special reserve HIEF B E N
Depreciation of fixed assets and EEERKEEREE
investment properties e
Amortization of intangible assets A E
Amortization of long-term RGBS HEH

deferred expenses
Gains on disposal of fixed assets, REETEE  BIEEE
MEAM RHEEN =

intangible assets and other

long-term assets

Finance expenses BB E A

Investment income & W

(Increased)/ decrease in BEEFSTHEED
deferred tax assets (), md

(Increased)/ decrease in inventories FEmGEm R

(Increase)/decrease in et U TE B Y
operating receivables (3gm),/md

Increase/(decrease) in operating M ER TR B Mg,
payables CRA)

Net cash flow from operating activities

REETHELNRESREFE

January-June 2016
2016%1-6 8
(Unaudited)
(RBER)

730,179,366.47

42,349,364.45

3,639,876.36

260,667,101.32
14,717,629.09

1,245,498.00

(6,744,474.25)

40,734,723.97

(21,575,413.19)

(60,369,716.56)
(119,930,371.29)

(3,906,824,231.92)

2,300,892,389.97

(721,018,257.58)

19. RERERBETEHR

January-June 2015
2015%1-6 4
(Unaudited)
(REgEER)

836,092,898.72

(3,865,780.28)

6,269,514.58

235,047,678.12
2,751,453.10

1,245,498.00

(342,830.49)

40,914,664.50

(223,274,540.60)

78,094,299.65
211,538,410.32

2,659,404,626.27

(4,045,438,785.60)

(201,562,893.71)
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30 June 2016 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 20166 H30H (A E#or)

XV.Notes to Key Items of the Company Financial

Statements (Continued)
20. Cash and cash equivalents

(%)

T2 ) B B R I H kR

20. BeERBEEEY

30 June 2016

20166 HA30H
(Unaudited)
(RREX)
Cash Re
Incl: Cash on hand Hod 5 FH4S 106,685.90
Bank deposit on demand ATRERE AR XY
RITEHX 11,217,801,035.64
Closing balance of cash and B/ FRBe R
cash equivalents ReEEBMHE 11,217,907,721.54
30 June 2016
201656 H30H
(Unaudited)
(REEZR)
Closing balance of cash and B/ FREEESHE

cash equivalents
Less: Balance of restricted cash and

cash equivalents

11,234,011,473.26

B R EIR H 8

Closing balance of cash and

cash equivalents

EMESHE 16,103,751.72
B/ FREER
ReEFEMHE 11,217,907,721.54

31 December 2015
2015412 A31H
(Audited)
(R&ER)

231,540.67

12,429,138,306.98

12,429,369,847.65

31 December 2015
201512 A31H
(Audited)
(g&ER)

12,447,686,804.26

18,316,956.61

12,429,369,847.65
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HRB D RHBRAF

Supplemental Information on

Financial Statements
30 June 2016 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

R e
GBI

201646 4303 (A RHT)

1. Schedule of Extraordinary Profit and Loss 1~ FERH HhE 5 W AR
Amount in
(Unaudited) January to June 2016
(REEZ) 20165 1-6 A& 5

Gains or losses from disposal of non-current assets, including
the offset portion of impairment provision for such assets

Government grants charged in profit or loss for the current
period, except for those closely related to the ordinary
operation and gained constantly at a fixed amount or

quantity according to certain standard based on state

FRBEERERT  BESFR
BEREEFENHHDD

st AE B8R a8 RO B 5 B
(BREREEEBTYEE
NAEBEFRBERAE  BR—E
BRETRAEEREZINBA

5,441,509.35

policies BN R AN 81,034,921.61
Profit and loss from debt restructuring EFEHER (1,688,090.68)
Profit and loss on the changes in fair value generated from S EMNEINA S YN

financial assets and financial liabilities held for trading ERERREEBIN 55

and investment income received from disposal of financial
assets held for trading, financial liabilities held for trading
and available-for-sale financial assets, other than effective
hedging business relating to ordinary operating business of
the Company

One-off recognition of the difference between the carrying
amount of bond and the settlement consideration in profit
or loss for the current period

Reversal of impairment provision of receivables tested
individually

Non-operating income and expenses other than the above

RHpNEMEE XZHESH
BEEEMAAEEESES
UNEREXZHESREE
Rt RABEMAHLE
TRMEENSNRE K=
BERRESRREENEE ZHD
ER-RMFAEHER

(71,821,692.58)

75,126,254.04

BB 1T R R) L B R MUK IR
HEEEEL

BR b T8 2 SN EL o SRS

39,818,311.21

items N 133,327,294.64
261,238,507.59
Tax effect EIREE 21 12,872,377.35

Effect on minority interests

DR A (132,013,083.38)

142,097,801.56

REFEIFFLFMIBRE B MERIKEB(R
FRBTEFNARGEERBREEASE
S FERFIEER)(FEE A E[2008]43
%) AR E T o

The Group recognized extraordinary profit and loss items in accordance
with the provisions in Explanatory Announcement on Information
Disclosure for Companies Offering their Securities to the Public No. 1 —
Extraordinary Items (CSRC Announcement [2008] No. 43).
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Financial Statements (Continued) M7 E R ()
30 June 2016 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 20166 H30H (A E#or)

2. Return on Net Assets (“RONA”) and 2 - F& s 2 MmaE Bl
Earnings Per Share (“EPS”)

January to June 2016 20165 1-6 A
Weighted
average RONA
IEE
FEE KRS E
(Unaudited) (%) Diluted
(REER) i
Net profit attributable to the BHERAREER
Company’s ordinary shareholders % 58 &) 3% 7 3

Net profit attributable to the MR IEEEMBR%
Company's ordinary shareholders 538 R A 7 & @A
after extraordinary profit and loss A% 5 &9 3% 71| 5

January to June 2015 201551-6 B
Weighted
average RONA EPS
InfEFR g
FEEKRRE Rk R
(Unaudited) (%) Basic Diluted
(REgE=Z) BN aps
Net profit attributable to the FBERAREER
Company'’s ordinary shareholders — f% 5 &9 % 7| ;& 3.00 0.24 0.24
Net profit attributable to the BRI IEREE
Company's ordinary shareholders 53 A &) & B
after extraordinary profit and loss P& 5 #)% &) )8 2.73 0.22 0.22
The Company holds no potential ordinary shares that are significantly AEBESERNGEEEL LR -
dilutive.
The Group presents RONA and EPS in accordance with Compilation Rules N6 B 0 B B W e M F AR U & R 51 )
No. 9 for Information Disclosure by Companies Offering Securities to the KRFEBFEE(ARABITESFNRFES
Public — Calculation and Disclosure of Return on Net Assets and Earnings BERAERRNEIT — FEEREEZMNETR

per Share (Revised in 2010) of the CSRC. T E R E)(2010FER])HMETE -
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Other Information

Directors” and Supervisors’ Interests in Shares
and Underlying Shares

As at 30 June 2016, the interests and short position (if any) of the directors,
the chief executive and the supervisors in the shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company and its associated corporations (within the meaning
of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO")), as recorded in
the register maintained by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO,
or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Hong Kong Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed

Companies (the “Model Code”), were as follows:

oAt &R

R N B R I A SR R Ry
) R i

RZE—RFAA=+H E%- BEIEAE
&§*$E’\ZISA &ﬁ*ﬁﬁwil(m%ﬁ # N B
BiEOI([#EHREEED ) EXVE) KRG - 18
Bl RESFT  EAEEBRIEFLBAERIE
32 EARRAFENELMATLEE - R
BETRAEZETESFXZNEETRI([1R%E
FADREEMERRF REBHAIMNER R
"RE(WBE)NT :

Percentage of

the issued

Number of Number of share capital

Name of Director Capacity “A" shares held “H" shares held of the Company

ERLEE

EEne =3v) FiFAKRE B FEsHREE BITRABD

Tan Xuguang Beneficial owner 29,421,298 (Note 1) - 0.74%
EEYB BE=REEA (BFF&ET)

Zhang Quan Beneficial owner 6,842,162 (Note 1) - 0.17%
R R BE=REEA (BFF&ET)

Xu Xinyu Beneficial owner 6,842,162 (Note 1) - 0.17%
wE B=REEA (BFF&ET)

Sun Shaojun Beneficial owner 6,842,162 (Note 1) - 0.17%
BAOE EmEAA (PH=ET)

Percentage of

the issued

Number of Number of share capital

Name of Supervisor Capacity "A" shares held "H" shares held of the Company

EARRFE

EEHSR E=3v) FiFAKRE B FsHEREE BITREABD

Lu Wenwu Beneficial owner 300,000 - 0.008%

BXH EmERAA



Other Information (Continued)

Directors” and Supervisors” Interests in Shares
and Underlying Shares (Continued)

Notes:

1. These shares were derived from the previous domestic shares of the Company. The
domestic shares were ordinary shares issued by the Company, with a Renminbi-
denominated par value of RMB1.00 each, which were subscribed for and paid up in
Renminbi or credited as fully paid up. These shares became “A” shares of the Company
upon the “A” share listing of the Company on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange.

2. Al the shareholding interests listed in the above table are “long” position.
3. The percentage shareholding is calculated on the basis of 3,998,619,278 issued shares

of the Company as at 30 June 2016 (comprising 3,027,099,278 “A" shares and
971,520,000 “H" shares).

Interests in the shares of associated corporations
of the Company

Interim Report 2016 ks 261

HALE R ()

HREKE $ﬂx%&m%%%
Y RE 25 (78

BiaE

1. ZEBRNMZARRNRRANER - NERRAAR QA Z
TEOEEER - UARKIIE SREBAR®1.00
T UARBERBREBRIARI AR - ZER
MRARBABRERINESFRSA ETERKBAR
Rl Z AR »

2. ERMAIIMABREERGRER -

3. HRAESEDIREARANRZ=F - RNFANA
=+ HM30998619,278 KB E T H (B

3,027,099,278% A% }2971,520,00008H% ) 7+ & 15
ﬁ °

TP 7S 7 ) AH B 325 1 M oy ) R

Approximate

Name of Director

Name of associated

corporation

Nature of interest

Class and percentage
number of interest in the
securities entire issued
interested share capital
or deemed of associated

to be interested

corporations

FEEER EHEEEE R

BRAESEESEN EBRITRAN

EEHE HEEEERE EEME BEERREE EEHMAETLT

Gordon Riske (Note) KION Group AG Beneficial owner 227,350 ordinary shares 0.23%
(FHEE) BEalEBA EEg=giilile

Interest held by spouse 3,000 ordinary shares 0.003%

Note: Gordon Riske, a non-executive Director, was the beneficial owner of 227,350 shares in

mEER A ER

% 3 AR

Mi3t : JE #1 77 B = Gordon Riske & KION Group AG #J

KION Group AG and he was also deemed to be interested in 3,000 shares in KION Group
AG which were beneficially held by his wife, Ms. Benita Riske.

Save as disclosed above, as at 30 June 2016, none of the Directors, the chief
executive nor the supervisors had an interest or short position in the shares,
underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations that was recorded in the register required to be kept pursuant to
Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company pursuant to
the Model Code.

227350 EREAAN  WHRANREEZTF
Benita Riske %2 &= & %5 #§ A #73,000 iR KION Group
AGRI A A -

BREXHBEEEIN  RZF—R"FANA=1TH"
BEEE RRTBRABREERARALEME

R EE D - HERORESFTEERE
& 77 N BB (5 1 55 352 15 AR RE 78 R B8R TR "% 16 191 T

MmEENELMANERSOAR
BIZBEMEARAGNERFTAR

HIRBIRLE T
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Other Information (Continued)

Details of Changes in Share Capital and Substantial
Shareholders” Shareholdings
(I) Changes in share capital

Changes in share capital (as at 30 June 2016)

HoAt E R ()

Jie A A Bl A 2 2 e R A B 1 DL

() BEZEER
BAEFHBERER(BE_FT—NFE N

A=+H)

Before the movement Increase/decrease in the movement (+,-) After the movement
FREDH FRBEER (+-) LY i
Percentage  New shares (Capitalisation Percentage
No. of shares (%) issued  Bonus issue of reserve Others Sub-total  No. of shares (%)
48 B Al(%) BTHR &R MEEER it Nt HE K Al(%)
I Restricted dirculating shares ERERHRD BLOWSE  2338% - - - (6728599 (67285989 867643515 2170%
1. State-owned shares ZHR - - - - - - - - -
2. State-owned legal person shares AREARR 821,265,504 20.54% - - - - - 821265504 2054%
3. Shares held by other domestic entites o ESK 113,664,000 2.84% - - - (67285989)  (67,285,989) 46,378,011 1.16%
including: Shares held by domestic non-state-owned £ : ERIEAFE B - - - - - - - - _
legal persons
Shares held by domestic natural persons RRARARR 113,664,000 2.84% - - - (67,285989) (67,285,989 46,378,011 1.16%
4. Shares held by foreign entities NERK - - - - - - - - -
including: Shares held by overseas legal persons e < SENE AR - - - - - - - - -
Shares held by overseas natural persons EBRAER - - - - - - - - -
I Nonestricted circulating shares EREAMER 3,063,689,774 76.62% - - - 67285989 67285989 3,130975763 7830%
1. RMB ordinary shares ARBEER 2,092,169,774 5232% - - - 67,285,989 67,285,989 2,159,455,763 54.00%
2. Domestic isted foreign shares BN EHHINER - - - - - - - - _
3. Overseas lsted foreign shares S EmESNER 971,520,000 2430% - - - - - 971,520,000 24.30%
4. Others H - - - - - - - - -

[Il. Total number of shares

Kireg

3,998,619,278 100%

3998,619,278 100%



Other Information (Continued)

Details of Changes in Share Capital and Substantial

Shareholders” Shareholdings (Continued)

(1) Shareholdings of the Substantial Shareholders (as
at 30 June 2016)

(%
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HoAtE R (2)

JBe A< 52 Bl o 2 2 B R 4 B DU

Total number of Shareholders

The number of shareholders is
162,471 among which 162,188 are
shareholders of “A" shares and 283

are shareholders of “H" shares.

Shareholdings of the top ten shareholders

)

(1 FERREFERBER(R=F—3
£XA=1+H)
BRAH #162,471F » EPARKE

162,188F » HIZAXE283F -

AT 108 IR FF IR B R

Approximate
percentage of Number of Number of
sharesheld  Total number of restricted  shares pledged
Name of shareholder Type of Shareholder (%) shares held shares held or frozen
BRESEL BRERE ERRER
ELE RERME (%) BRay ko#g khgg
HKSCC Nominees Limited Foreign shareholder 24.22% 968,392,228 - N/A
BENREEREABR AT MERR A
Weichai Group Holdings Limited State-owned legal person 16.83% 672,952,800 672,952,800 -
HEREEAR AT BAEA
Weifang Investment Company State-owned legal person 3.71% 148,312,704 148,312,704 -
HITRERT BBEEA
China Securities Finance Corporation Limited Domestic non-state-owned legal person 2.75% 109,892,134 - -
MEZESERRNERAF BRFEREA
IVM Technical Consultants Wien Overseas legal person 1.98% 79,200,000 - =
Gesellschaft m.b.H
B RIVMR MO RBRAF BINEA
Peterson Holdings Company Limited Overseas legal person 1.47% 58,822,085 - -
BHERERAT BINEA
Central Huijin Assets Management State-owned legal person 1.36% 54,246,400 - -
Company Limited
mAESEEERBRREAT CEERIN
Hong Zejun Domestic natural person 1.30% 52,100,000 = =
HEE BEREAA
Shenzhen Chuangxin Investment Group Co., Ltd Domestic non-state-owned legal person 1.14% 45,713,824 - -
AT REEEER AT BRFEEEEA
Shandong Enterprise Trust Operation Domestic non-state-owned legal person 1.01% 40,563,100 - -

Company Limited

WRELEXAEBERNERAA

LTI
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Other Information (Continued)

Details of Changes in Share Capital and Substantial
Shareholders” Shareholdings (Continued)
(1) Shareholdings of the Substantial Shareholders (as

at 30 June 2016) (Continued)
Shareholdings of the top ten non-restricted shareholders

Name of shareholder

HoAt E R ()

B A 52 Bl A B B AR B A L
(#)
(I EERRFRERL(R=F—R
EXA=1H)UR)
A 104 M R 6 (6 AR R FFRR 18R

Number of
the non-restricted
shares held Types of shares

IRERERE FREREFRTROBE ROEE

HKSCC Nominees Limited
BEBPREEREABRAA

China Securities Finance Corporation Limited
PEES SRR AR QA

IVM Technical Consultants Wien Gesellschaft m.b.H
B FIVMEIT 4 R AR A

Peterson Holdings Company Limited
ERTIERB R A F]

Central Huijin Assets Management Company Limited

TRESEEERAREMELA

Hong Zejun

HER

Shenzhen Chuangxin Investment Group Co., Ltd
AR IR E L EER QT

Shandong Enterprise Trust Operation Company Limited

WREPEREELERNERAR

Zhuzhou State-owned Assets Investment Holding Group Co., Ltd.

HWNTEAEEEREEREEARAR

Guangxi Liugong Group Company Limited

BEENIEEERA A
Note:
1. It is not certain whether there is any connected relationship among the top ten

shareholders and the other top ten non-restricted shareholders or whether there is any
acting in concert relationship among them.

2. Among the shareholders, Hong Zejun held 800,000 shares through general account and
51,300,000 shares through client account of collateral securities for margin trading at
China Galaxy Securities Company Limited, totaling 52,100,000 shares.

3. No earmarked repurchase transaction has been conducted by the top ten shareholders
and the top ten non-restricted shareholders of the Company during the reporting period.

968,392,228 Overseas listed foreign
shares

BN EWINERK

109,892,134 RMB ordinary shares
AR EE R

79,200,000 RMB ordinary shares
AR EEE B

58,822,085 RMB ordinary shares
AR EE R

54,246,400 RMB ordinary shares
AR EEE B

52,100,000 RMB ordinary shares
AR EE R

45,713,824 RMB ordinary shares
AREEE B

40,563,100 RMB ordinary shares
AR E R

26,280,283 RMB ordinary shares
AREEE B

17,243,712 RMB ordinary shares
AR EE R

GEE

1. AR B R FE A A BROR T E A B A R A
BR:EAZTFERBEE  SRANEEZTER —
BITBAL -

2. AAEIREF - HEFE BB YL MRS 35 4800,000
R BAREBRAELFROERRAABTLERARS
ERBAHBEFEA51,300,0000% @ BERAMES
52,100,0008% °

3. DA AT+ BR R AT+ R R A B AR R
BEPARETHEBERS -



Other Information (Continued)

Substantial Shareholders

The register of substantial shareholders maintained by the Company pursuant
to Section 336 of the SFO (including interests filed with the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange) shows that as at 30 June 2016, the following persons (other than the
directors, chief executive and supervisors) had the following interests and the
short positions (if any) in the shares and underlying shares of the Company:

Interim Report 2016 R4 265

HoAtE R (2)

FEEBER
ARBRBCEFEBAEHAIFEI36H)FENE
ZRREBM(RIE R T B RRNFN )
BLR N -_ZT-RERNA=+TH " TIAL(E
£ RREBABREFHRINEARARFRMN R
BN ER T s AR (NE)

Percentage of Percentage of

share capital share capital Percentage of

Long/Short Number of comprising Number of comprising total issued

Name Capacity position Ashares  only A shares Hshares  onlyH shares share capital

EARKRA fEHRIRA CREG

A8 5t 8/ %8 AREE Ak HiRER At BYAM

Weichai Group Holdings Limited Beneficial owner Long 672,952,800 22.23% - - 16.83%
HEREEERAT ERlEA e

Shandong Heavy Industry Group Co, Ltd. (Note 1) Held by controlled corporation Long 672,952,800 2.23% - - 16.83%
WRETISERRAR (1) BRAEERE e

Brandes Investment Partners, LP (Note 2) Investment manager Long - - 78,578,612 16.18% 3.93%
(Pr2) REBE 5y}

Lazard Asset Management LLC Investment manager Long - - 233,959,955 24.08% 5.85%
RESR #e

JPMorgan Chase & Co. Beneficial owner Long - - 3,067,852 031% 0.08%
ERfEAA e

Investment manager Long - - 3,398,752 0.35% 0.09%
REEE 7E

Trustee (Other than bare trustee) Long - - 19,064 0.00% 0.00%
EEINGEEEIN ) e

Custodian - Corporation/approved  Long - - 79,728,995 8.21% 1.99%

lending agent

REN - £E/BRELKEA #e

86,214,663 8.87% 2.16%

Beneficial owner Short - - 109,000 0.01% 0.00%
ERBAA e

Templeton Investment Counsel, LLC Investment manager Long - - 58,181,920 5.99% 1.46%
REER e

Lazard Emerging Markets Equity Portfolio (Note 3)  Investment manager Long - - 23,707,500 5.86% 1.42%
(s3)  wAEER i

Barclays PLC (Note 2) Person having a security interest Long - - 525,552 0.11% 0.03%

(F3£2) in shares

HRABERBERMA g

Interest of corporation controlled by  Long - - 25,453,050 5.24% 1.27%

the substantial shareholders

RIRGR A ey £ B i

25,978,602 5.35% 1.30%

Interest of corporation controlled by~ Short - - 24,102,475 4.96% 1.21%

the substantial shareholders

ARRHANNEEER He
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Other Information (Continued)

Substantial Shareholders (Continued)

HoAt E R ()

FEBR ()

Percentage of Percentage of
share capital share capital Percentage of
Long/Short Number of comprising Number of comprising total issued
Name Capacity position Ashares  only A shares Hshares  only H shares share capital
RARRA fEHRRA HERARE
£8 5% 8/ %8 AREE At HiRE R At AR
Morgan Stanley Interest of corporation controlled by  Long - - 53,386,246 5.49% 1.34%
the substantial shareholders
ARRAEE G EEES 5y}
Interest of corporation controlled by~ Short - - 49,216,077 5.06% 1.23%
the substantial shareholders
IR A e Z B e
BlackRock, Inc. Interest of corporation controlled by  Long - - 49,829,555 5.13% 1.25%
the substantial shareholders
piERipak Loy 4 5y}
Citigroup Inc. Person having a security interestin  Long - - 304,706 0.03% 0.01%
shares
HRBEREERNA 2
Interest of corporation controlled by  Long - - 2,261,932 0.23% 0.05%
the substantial shareholders
NRR RS RS e
Custodian - Corporation/ approved  Long - - 57,202,803 5.89% 1.43%
Iending agent
REN-EE/RERLREA 5y}
59,769,441 6.15% 1.49%
Interest of corporation controlled by~ Short - - 2,556,732 0.26% 0.06%
the substantial shareholders
KBRS B RS it
Notes: PiIEE

Shandong Heavy Industry Group Co., Ltd., a subsidiary of State-owned Assets Supervision
and Administration Commission of Shandong Province (“Shandong SASAC"), held the
entire capital of Weichai Group Holdings Limited (formerly known as Weifang Diesel
Engine Works).

The number of H shares (and the relevant shareholding percentages) reported above
by the relevant substantial shareholder does not take into consideration the Company’s
bonus share issuance on 20 August 2015 as there is no disclosure of interest obligation
under the SFO where there is no change in percentage of shareholdings for a substantial
shareholder.

The number of H shares (and the relevant shareholding percentages) reported above
by the relevant substantial shareholder does not take into consideration the Company’s
bonus share issuance on 17 August 2012 and 20 August 2015 as there is no disclosure of
interest obligation under the SFO where there is no change in percentage of shareholdings
for a substantial shareholder.

The percentage of shareholding is calculated on the basis of 3,998,619,278 issued
shares of the Company as at 30 June 2016 (comprising 3,027,099,278 “A" shares and
971,520,000 “H" shares).

Save as disclosed above, the Company had not been notified of any other
relevant interests or short positions in the issued share capital of the Company as
at 30 June 2016.

B EXREE S
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Other Information (Continued)

Emolument Policy
The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is set up by the
Remuneration Committee on the basis of their merit, qualifications and

competence.

The emoluments of the directors of the Company are decided by the
Remuneration Committee, having regard to the Group’s operating results,

individual performance and comparable market statistics.

Arrangements to Purchase Shares or Debentures
At no time during the Period was the Company and any of its subsidiaries a
party to any arrangements to enable the directors of the Company to acquire
benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the

Company or any other body corporate.

Purchase, Sale or Redemption of Securities of the
Company
During the Period, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased,

sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities.

Pre-emptive Rights
There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company'’s articles of
association or the laws of the PRC, which would oblige the Company to offer

new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

Audit Committee

The audit committee of the Company (the “Audit Committee”) comprises
five independent non-executive Directors of the Company. The Chairman of
the Audit Committee is Mr. Wang Gongyong, an independent non-executive
Director. Mr. Wang has appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or
related financial management expertise as required under Rule 3.10(2) of the
Listing Rules for the purpose of this appointment. During the Period, the Audit
Committee discharged its responsibilities, reviewed and discussed the financial
results and internal control matters of the Company. In accordance with the
requirements of Appendix 16 to the Listing Rules, the Audit Committee has

reviewed the reviewed consolidated financial statements for the Period.
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Other Information (Continued)

Compliance With Corporate Governance Code
in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules

Throughout the Period, other than the roles of the Chairman and the Chief
Executive Officer being performed by Mr. Tan Xuguang (“Mr. Tan"), and that the
directors of the Company did not attend the Company’s annual general meeting
during the Period due to other essential business engagements, the Company
has complied with all the code provisions of the Corporate Governance Code as

set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules.

Mr. Tan is in charge of the overall management of the Company. The Company
considers that the combination of the roles of the Chairman and the Chief
Executive Officer can promote the efficient formulation and implementation
of the Company’s strategies which will enable the Group to grasp business
opportunities efficiently and promptly. The Company considers that through the
supervision of its board and its independent non-executive Directors, there is

adequate balance of power and authority in place.

Compliance with the Model Code

During the Period, the Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding
securities transactions by Directors on terms no less exacting than the required
standard set out in the Model Code. Having made specific enquiry of all Directors,
the Directors have confirmed that they have complied with the required standard
set out in the Model Code for the Period.

Sufficiency of Public Float
Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and within
the knowledge of the directors of the Company, the Company has maintained

the prescribed public float under the Listing Rules as at the date of this report.

Approval of the Financial Statements
The reviewed consolidated financial statements for the Period were approved by
the Board on 30 August 2016.

Publication of the Interim Report on the
Websites of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange and
the Company

The 2016 interim report will be despatched to the shareholders as well as made
available on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange’s website at www.hkexnews.hk

and the Company’s website at www.weichaipower.com in due course.
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Address

Tel

Fax

P.C.

Service hotline
E-mail
Website

DILERERS T ST E XA REERAT1975E R
. +86-536-8197777 (##k)

. +86-536-8231074

: 261061

: 800 860 3066

. weichai@weichai.com

. http://www.weichaipower.com

: Section A 197, Fu Shou East Street, High Technology Industrial Development Zone, Weifang, Shandong Province
1 +86-536-8197777 (Gen)

: +86-536-8231074

1 261061

: 800 860 3066

: weichai@weichai.com

: http://www.weichaipower.com
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